
Item 1Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Item 3Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 

 
 
Meeting Date:  June 24, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  Kent Hubbard/854-6458 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
Agenda Language:  Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 
263.152(a)(1), declare certain items surplus property and authorize 
equipment to be disposed of through Dell, Inc.  
 
 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 

and recommends approval of requested action. This procurement action 
meets the compliance requirements as outlined by the statutes. 

 
Under our existing agreement with Dell to trade-in and dispose of our 
computer equipment, Purchasing recommends that the Court declare 
these computer-related systems as surplus property and direct the 
equipment to Dell for disposal. 
 
Equipment list attached.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 4Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Dell Trade-In

Asset Number 

(SAP)

Inventory 

number (TAG)

Asset description Serial Number Asset location

1000880 105427 FILE SERVER POWEREDGE    2500 #220-1492 TO INCLUDE GXW4711 TC Pending Trade In
1001079 121404 POWEREDGE 6600 W/OPTION 2146GB MEDIA BAY HARDDRIVE45SZ141 TC Pending Trade In
1001117 105469 DELL POWEREDGE 2600      Q119232365 HJ7XG41 TC Pending Trade In
1001120 121617 DELL POWEREDGE 2600      Q119232414 2K7XG41 TC Pending Trade In
1001199 121001 LAPTOP  SONY FOR RAE MULTIPLE SENSOR KIT 3000960 TC Pending Trade In
1001200 123230 LAPTOP  SONY FOR RAE MULTIPLE SENSOR KIT 3000951 TC Pending Trade In
1001314 105460 FILE SERVER POWEREDGE    2800 STANDARD 9KP4L61 TC Pending Trade In
1001353 126926 FILE SERVER POWEREDGE 2800 STANDARD  DELL DDN8V71 TC Pending Trade In
1001407 127488 FILE SERVER POWEREDGE    2800 STANDARD CJ10W71 TC Pending Trade In
1001478 127863 STORAGE ARRAY  DELL 220S POWERVAULT 55M3H91 TC Pending Trade In
1001772 157635 SYMPOSIUM SERVER DUAL CORE INTEL# XEON# 5130 DELL1BSC0C1 TC Pending Trade In
1001858 152239 DELL EMC CX3-20 DISK ARRAY B2377D1 TC Pending Trade In
1001859 152240 DELL EMC CX3-20 DISK ARRAY 92377D1 TC Pending Trade In
1001860 152241 DELL EMC CX3-20 DISK ARRAY 9N277D1 TC Pending Trade In
1001861 152242 DELL EMC CX3-20 STORAGE PROCESSOR 8N277D1 TC Pending Trade In
1001868 157683 DELL POWEREDGE 2950 SERVER DUALCORE XEON PROCESSOR3S5WVC1 TC Pending Trade In
1001881 157696 DELL POWEREDGE 2950 SERVER DUALCORE XEON PROCESSORDTLVVC1 TC Pending Trade In
1002323 141062 FC4 SAN DRIVE DISK ARRAY ENCLOSURE 9SS8FD1 TC Pending Trade In
1002486 139888 DELL 2950 FILE SERVER QUAD CORE ZEON E5405 D5JSSK1 TC Pending Trade In
1002705 145164 DELL POWEREDGE R210 SERVER BS47JL1 TC Pending Trade In
1002706 145166 DELL POWEREDGE R210 SERVER 6F47JL1 TC Pending Trade In
1003413 145999 COMPUTER  FILE SERVER  PE R710 W/CHASSIS FOR UP TO71PSLM1 TC Pending Trade In
1004565 84489 PC  SERVER  DELL SP-466 3XUFM TC Pending Trade In
1004679 69287 PRINTER  IBM 1118384 TC Pending Trade In
1004960 78244 PC  ACER 486DX2-66 355026784 TC Pending Trade In
1005098 87032 ACEP133-SYS ACER P133 269612459 TC Pending Trade In
1005971 97351 PRINTER  OPTRA S 1625    16PPM  350 INPUT/250 11DBF28 TC Pending Trade In
1006027 30010 INSPIRON 3500 LAPTOP COMPUTER  DELL W7J74 TC Pending Trade In
1006071 98587 PRINTER  LASER JET 2100XI  1200X1200  10PPM  4MB USDD015461 TC Pending Trade In
1006110 11468 PRINTER  LEXMARK OPTRA 1625 11ZL682 TC Pending Trade In
1006252 97851 PANASONIC KX-P2130 MATRIX PRINTER OBMCJC39036 TC Pending Trade In
1006363 101404 PRINTER  LEXMARK OPTRA T 612-4MB MEMORY 4100980 TC Pending Trade In
1006439 97848 PC  HP NET SERVER LH3 US94500056 TC Pending Trade In
1006670 112402 PC  DELL GX110 DESKTOP   #46260536/WIN 2000 5PW1901 TC Pending Trade In
1006965 102595 LASERJET 1200 15PPM 1200DPI PSL5E/6 PC/MAC-USB CBNV001061 TC Pending Trade In
1007320 113277 PC  GX150 MINITOWER      Q#46260536 W/O TOKEN RING 1WFH511 TC Pending Trade In
1007561 109781 PRINTER LEXMARK T622N    LASER  20T4450 41FB057 TC Pending Trade In
1007649 103796 PRINTER  HP LASERJET 4100DTN  25PPM JPLGD04013 TC Pending Trade In
1007813 108976 PRINTER  LEXMARK T522 LASER E009162 TC Pending Trade In
1007944 113777 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE C610  MOBILE W/INTERNAL NIC G8KZZ11 TC Pending Trade In
1008987 132184 COMPUTER  GX260 DEKSTOP 3N4DF21 TC Pending Trade In
1008996 109768 E322 LASER PRINTER - DELL ONLY MIDNIGHT GRAY 890MKBS TC Pending Trade In
1009167 120636 PRINTER  LEXMARK E323 890353G TC Pending Trade In
1009434 132438 DELL GX260T P4/2.0/512/40G 2H5MW21 TC Pending Trade In
1009488 120845 HP DESKJET PRINTER 6122#C8954B#A2L MY37H26168 TC Pending Trade In
1009491 121248 PRINTER  DELL PERSONAL ALL IN ONE A920 CN0T05264873135R1PHYTC Pending Trade In
1009792 165243 PRINTER  HP PSC2210 ALL IN ONE MACHINE MY31HF3691 TC Pending Trade In
1009817 120522 PRINTER  HP DESKJET 5550 COLOR INKJET MY3651S1MJ TC Pending Trade In
1009825 121234 COLOR LASERJET PRINTER 4600N 17PPM 96MB  HP JPCKB27126 TC Pending Trade In
1009994 120941 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D600  MOBILE W/INTERNAL NIC 49GLB71 TC Pending Trade In
1010062 132827 COMPUTER  GX270T DESKTOP 6DDNS31 TC Pending Trade In
1010069 132835 COMPUTER  GX270T DESKTOP 2GDNS31 TC Pending Trade In
1010070 132836 COMPUTER  GX270T DESKTOP 6GDNS31 TC Pending Trade In
1010117 132863 COMPUTER  GX270T DESKTOP 1B1PV31 TC Pending Trade In
1010123 132870 COMPUTER  GX270T DESKTOP G11PV31 TC Pending Trade In
1010256 121517 PRINTER  DELL PERSONAL ALL IN ONE PRINTER A920 5288K31 TC Pending Trade In
1010322 119837 LAPTOP  PANASONIC CF-48 3BYUA15287 TC Pending Trade In
1010323 119844 LAPTOP  PANASONIC CF-48 3BYUA15290 TC Pending Trade In
1010324 119845 LAPTOP  PANASONIC CF-48 3BYUA15294 TC Pending Trade In
1010325 119846 LAPTOP  PANASONIC CF-48 3BYUA15289 TC Pending Trade In
1010972 100836 I70 COLOR BUBBLE JET PRINTER  CANON XAEM20473 TC Pending Trade In
1010973 100837 I70 COLOR BUBBLE JET PRINTER  CANON XAEM20475 TC Pending Trade In
1011032 121639 DELL A920 COLOR JET PRINTER 73H6Y31 TC Pending Trade In
1011120 124189 PRINTER  MULTIPASS MP370  MULTIFUNCTION CANON USB08541 TC Pending Trade In
1011690 123328 PRINTER  LEXMARK T632N   QUOTE #141820934 991VFY1 TC Pending Trade In
1011789 133139 COMPUTER  GX270T DESKTOP 2ZPJB51 TC Pending Trade In
1011854 124575 PRINTER HP COLOR LASERJET4650N PART# Q33669A#ABAJPFAQ3669A TC Pending Trade In
1011855 124584 PRINTER HP COLOR LASERJET4650N PART# Q33669A#ABAJPFAB09493 TC Pending Trade In
1012039 122068 PRINTER  FX890N NETWORK PRINTER 9 PIN  EPSON E8BY059097 TC Pending Trade In
1012063 123152 PRINTER  LEXMARK 632N    QUOTE #141822272 99201ND TC Pending Trade In

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Dell Trade-In

Asset Number 

(SAP)

Inventory 

number (TAG)

Asset description Serial Number Asset location

1012159 119715 PRINTER  HP PSC1350 ALL IN ONE MY48JD73MN TC Pending Trade In
1012160 119716 PRINTER  HP PSC1350 ALL IN ONE MY454D902V TC Pending Trade In
1012283 125081 HP DESK JET 5650 COLOR PRINTER #932-464 MY4624N15N TC Pending Trade In
1012338 133261 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D600  WXP #182182909 FWWZD61 TC Pending Trade In
1012370 124531 PRINTER  SAMSUNG CLP500 B1CX7011410N TC Pending Trade In
1012415 125014 FILE SERVER  POWEREDGE 2650  DELL H2GXG61 TC Pending Trade In
1012468 133339 COMPUTER  GX280 DESKTOP DNWHP61 TC Pending Trade In
1012585 125116 PRINTER  DELL 5100 CN COLOR LASER G35H751 TC Pending Trade In
1012605 133364 COMPUTER  GX280 DESKTOP JSPXR61 TC Pending Trade In
1012606 133367 COMPUTER  GX280 DESKTOP 4SPXR61 TC Pending Trade In
1012608 138539 OPTIPLEX GX755  PC DELL C7BT5H1 TC Pending Trade In
1012633 126070 EPSON STYLUS R200 COLOR PRINTER FR5K092724 TC Pending Trade In
1012758 133400 COMPUTERS  OPTIPLEX GX280  DELL 6LZ7W61 TC Pending Trade In
1012766 126912 PRINTER DELL 1700N PRINTER 7RRK951 TC Pending Trade In
1012937 124769 PRINTER  SAMSUNG ML2150 BSAXA00745 TC Pending Trade In
1012938 124772 PRINTER  SAMSUNG ML2150 BSAXA00738 TC Pending Trade In
1012939 124766 PRINTER  SAMSUNG ML2150 BSAXA00737 TC Pending Trade In
1012940 120990 PRINTER  SAMSUNG ML2150 BSAXA00744 TC Pending Trade In
1012941 133442 COMPUTER  GX280 DESKTOP DELL 4M94771 TC Pending Trade In
1012944 133513 COMPUTER  GX280 DESKTOP 4LJ4C71 TC Pending Trade In
1012974 133529 COMPUTER  GX280 DESKTOP H4T6J71 TC Pending Trade In
1012991 126474 PRINTER  DELL PERSONAL   1700  QUOTE #176298802 C9GS951 TC Pending Trade In
1012992 126475 PRINTER  DELL PERSONAL   1700  QUOTE #176298802 9RGS951 TC Pending Trade In
1013043 133686 COMPUTER  GX280 DESKTOP 4H48M71 TC Pending Trade In
1013288 124781 PRINTER  LASER SAMSUNG ML 2150 BSAYZ00092 TC Pending Trade In
1013290 124676 PRINTER  HP LASERJET 4350TN USBXM12232 TC Pending Trade In
1013385 122184 PRINTER  DELL BIGNS61 TC Pending Trade In
1013416 147095 OPTIPLEX GX280  SMALL MINITOWER PENTIUM 4 520/DELLJ4S2V71 TC Pending Trade In
1013574 126597 PRINTER  DELL WORKGROUP  W5300N QUOTE #17907084673PNS61 TC Pending Trade In
1013584 126607 DELL PRECISION 380 CONVERTIBLE MINI-TOWER JFK5981 TC Pending Trade In
1013716 126032 PRINTER  DELL 1700 721DC1B TC Pending Trade In
1013732 127402 PRINTER  HP ALL-IN-ONE MY56K0202J TC Pending Trade In
1013824 147261 COMPUTER  GX280 DESKTOP 63YJK81 TC Pending Trade In
1013858 126627 PRINTER  LEXMARK E332N   QUOTE #181096646 7229L3B TC Pending Trade In
1013963 127636 HP DESK JET 450CI PRINTER SG5815Z047 TC Pending Trade In
1014034 147316 COMPUTER  GX620  DELL 5X5ZR81 TC Pending Trade In
1014087 126623 PRINTER  MULTI-FUNCTION  CANON PIXMA MP780 AHB197886 TC Pending Trade In
1014111 147409 OPTIPLEX GX620 ULTRA SMALL FORM FACTOR PENTIUM 46LQKS81 TC Pending Trade In
1014127 147422 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D610  MOBILE (NO PORT REPLTOR 53KNW81 TC Pending Trade In
1014132 127566 PRINTER  DELL W5300N     2 DRAWER  DUPLEX  ENVELOP 992TVFW/CJ4PS61 TC Pending Trade In
1014157 147430 COMPUTER  GX620 DELL 83N6X81 TC Pending Trade In
1014467 127866 PRINTER  LEXMARK T642TN  2 DRAWER  DUPLEX 7902L90 TC Pending Trade In
1014560 124096 PRINTER  DELL W5300N     2 DRAWER  DUPLEX  ENVELOP D3SNS61 TC Pending Trade In
1014561 124097 PRINTER  DELL W5300N     2 DRAWER  DUPLEX  ENVELOP 4VSNS61 TC Pending Trade In
1014562 124098 PRINTER  DELL W5300N     2 DRAWER  DUPLEX  ENVELOP 3DPNS61 TC Pending Trade In
1014563 147555 COMPUTER  GX620 DELL 9018Q91 TC Pending Trade In
1014570 147556 COMPUTER  GX620 DELL C018Q91 TC Pending Trade In
1014571 147557 COMPUTER  GX620 DELL B018Q91 TC Pending Trade In
1014572 147558 COMPUTER  GX620 DELL 4018Q91 TC Pending Trade In
1014573 147559 COMPUTER  GX620 DELL 3018Q91 TC Pending Trade In
1014574 147560 COMPUTER  GX620 DELL 6018Q91 TC Pending Trade In
1014582 127906 LAPTOP  INSPIRON 9400 INTEL CORE DUO PROC T2500 9L08Q91 TC Pending Trade In
1014659 147607 COMPUTER  GX620 DELL 61KNS91 TC Pending Trade In
1014742 126663 PRINTER  LEXMARK E323N 2 YR WNTY QUOTE #271030434 72BK10N TC Pending Trade In
1014747 137376 PRINTER  LEXMARK E323N 2 YR WNTY QUOTE #271030434 72B118Y TC Pending Trade In
1014749 126762 HP OFFICEJET 5610 ALL IN ONE CN62LDE1BN TC Pending Trade In
1014884 128822 PRINTER  HP DESKJET 6540 INKJET  PART#C8963A#B1H MY6205Q034 TC Pending Trade In
1014887 127952 PRINTER  EPSON STYLUS PHOTO  R340 GXWK139241 TC Pending Trade In
1014982 147743 COMPUTERS  OPTIPLEX GX620 5SL46B1 TC Pending Trade In
1015089 122301 PRINTER  DELL W5300N     2 DRAWER  DUPLEX  ENVEOPE CN0KD3307238565F09VMTC Pending Trade In
1015203 147727 NOTEBOOK  DELL LATITUDE D820 DFYV281 TC Pending Trade In
1015234 126677 PRINTER  LEXMARK E323N 2 YR WNTY QUOTE #292418291 6204NTL TC Pending Trade In
1015255 147809 COMPUTER  GX620 DELL 7F05CB1 TC Pending Trade In
1015256 126672 PRINTER  DELL 5310N WKGRP5YR WTY QUOTE #302524278JFWHN81 TC Pending Trade In
1015270 147813 COMPUTER  GX620 DELL 9HF0HB1 TC Pending Trade In
1015272 147814 COMPUTER  GX620 DELL CHF0HB1 TC Pending Trade In
1015274 124106 PRINTER  5310N DELL 5YR WTY QUOTE #302524278 4RQHN81 TC Pending Trade In
1015368 126681 DELL NOTEBOOK D820 1VSYGB1 TC Pending Trade In
1015376 147826 COMPUTER  GX620 DELL 8P1YHB1 TC Pending Trade In
1015377 147827 COMPUTER  GX620 DELL JP1YHB1 TC Pending Trade In

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Dell Trade-In

Asset Number 

(SAP)

Inventory 

number (TAG)

Asset description Serial Number Asset location

1015416 147863 NOTEBOOK  LAT D620 DELL MOBILE (NO PORT REPLTOR J3ZMLB1 TC Pending Trade In
1015418 147854 NOTEBOOK  LAT D620 DELL MOBILE (NO PORT REPLTOR J2ZMLB1 TC Pending Trade In
1015420 147859 NOTEBOOK  LAT D620 DELL MOBILE (NO PORT REPLTOR 53ZMLB1 TC Pending Trade In
1015424 147855 NOTEBOOK  LAT D620 DELL MOBILE (NO PORT REPLTOR G1ZMLB1 TC Pending Trade In
1015425 147850 NOTEBOOK  LAT D620 DELL MOBILE (NO PORT REPLTOR B3ZMLB1 TC Pending Trade In
1015441 147871 NOTEBOOK  LAT D620 DELL WORKSTATION MODEL J58NLB1 TC Pending Trade In
1015460 147879 NOTEBOOK  LAT D620 DELL MOBILE (NO PORT REPLTOR GFYSLB1 TC Pending Trade In
1015462 147895 COMPUTER  GX620 DELL FSMGMB1 TC Pending Trade In
1015463 147893 COMPUTER  GX620 DELL 5SMGMB1 TC Pending Trade In
1015465 147889 COMPUTER  GX620 DELL HSMGMB1 TC Pending Trade In
1015466 147897 COMPUTER  GX620 DELL BRMGMB1 TC Pending Trade In
1015491 131082 PRINTER  DELL 5310N WKGRP5YR WTY QUOTE #302524278G6WHN81 TC Pending Trade In
1015532 131076 PRINTER  5310N DELL 2 DRAWER  DUPLEX  ENVELOPE G2XHN81 TC Pending Trade In
1015535 131079 PRINTER  5310N DELL 2 DRAWER  DUPLEX  ENVELOPE 76XHN81 TC Pending Trade In
1015579 147914 COMPUTER  GX620 DELL H54HPB1 TC Pending Trade In
1015627 147930 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D620  MOBILE (NO PORT REPLTOR 1H7VQB1 TC Pending Trade In
1015628 147931 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D620  MOBILE (NO PORT REPLTOR HH7VQB1 TC Pending Trade In
1015696 125905 PRINTER  DELL 5110CN COLO5YR WNTY QUOTE 310300640CN0XC5287197166HB098 TC Pending Trade In
1015701 130325 PRINTER  DELL 5110CN COLOR LASER 1JR7891 TC Pending Trade In
1015835 125899 DELL LASER PRINTER 1710N G95VW91 TC Pending Trade In
1015838 125902 DELL LASER PRINTER 1710N 875VW91 TC Pending Trade In
1015843 138505 DELL LASER PRINTER 1710N 6N11X91 TC Pending Trade In
1016020 126812 PRINTER  DELL LASER 1710N (222-0394) 726BBMP TC Pending Trade In
1016054 124152 HP 5610 PSCF INKJET CN69MDE2VS TC Pending Trade In
1016093 130797 PRINTER  DELL 5310N WKGRP5YR WTY QUOTE #310301213CN0KD3307238568B0DS8TC Pending Trade In
1016127 130445 PRINTER  DELL 5310N WKGRP2 DRAWER  DUPLEX  ENVELOP75ZT4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1016132 128886 CANON IP90 PRINTER FCVB52614 TC Pending Trade In
1016139 128893 CANON IP90 PRINTER FCVB52603 TC Pending Trade In
1016279 147968 COMPUTER  GX620 DELL 353VBC1 TC Pending Trade In
1016295 147989 COMPUTER  GX620 DELL 963VBC1 TC Pending Trade In
1016297 147969 COMPUTER  GX620 DELL F43VBC1 TC Pending Trade In
1016305 147988 COMPUTER  GX620 DELL 843VBC1 TC Pending Trade In
1016307 147990 COMPUTER  GX620 DELL 553VBC1 TC Pending Trade In
1016309 147982 COMPUTER  GX620 DELL 363VBC1 TC Pending Trade In
1016313 147974 COMPUTER  GX620 DELL 443VBC1 TC Pending Trade In
1016314 147975 COMPUTER  GX620 DELL 853VBC1 TC Pending Trade In
1016316 147986 COMPUTER  GX620 DELL 743VBC1 TC Pending Trade In
1016317 147970 COMPUTER  GX620 DELL B43VBC1 TC Pending Trade In
1016319 147971 COMPUTER  GX620 DELL 653VBC1 TC Pending Trade In
1016328 147993 COMPUTER  OPTIPLEX 745 MINITOWER  CORE 2 DUO 3M5HCC1 TC Pending Trade In
1016333 128289 HP 6940 DESKJET PRINTER MY6CC9R0WY TC Pending Trade In
1016452 129309 PRINTER  DELL PHOTO AIO PRINTER 926 (222-5573) 193LDB1 TC Pending Trade In
1016483 148009 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D620  WORKSTATION MODEL CZCNKC1 TC Pending Trade In
1016484 148008 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D620  WORKSTATION MODEL JYCNKC1 TC Pending Trade In
1016485 148010 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D620  WORKSTATION MODEL 5YCNKC1 TC Pending Trade In
1016542 148092 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D620 MOBILE (NO PORT REPLITOR)9J0TKC1 TC Pending Trade In
1016543 148100 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D620 MOBILE (NO PORT REPLITOR)CP0TKC1 TC Pending Trade In
1016544 148087 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D620 MOBILE (NO PORT REPLITOR)1M0TKC1 TC Pending Trade In
1016545 148098 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D620 MOBILE (NO PORT REPLITOR)3B0TKC1 TC Pending Trade In
1016551 148089 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D620 MOBILE (NO PORT REPLITOR)BG0TKC1 TC Pending Trade In
1016552 148101 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D620 MOBILE (NO PORT REPLITOR)HK0TKC1 TC Pending Trade In
1016644 148122 COMPUTER  GX745 DELL 34ZYKC1 TC Pending Trade In
1016787 131272 PRINTER  DELL WORKGROUP LASER 5310N 6BJT4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1016789 131274 PRINTER  DELL WORKGROUP LASER 5310N 9BJT4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1016808 128863 PRINTER  DELL 5310N WKGRP2 DRAWER  DUPLEX  ENVELOP3WHT4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1016831 148243 COMPUTER  GX745 DELL 7DL6PC1 TC Pending Trade In
1016884 128363 PRINTER  WASP WPL305 TT LABEL IFM-633808402006 T457010173 TC Pending Trade In
1017043 128316 PRINTER  DELL MULTI-FUNCTION 1815DN LASER FDRXD91 TC Pending Trade In
1017097 148293 COMPUTER  GX745 DELL 2J5WPC1 TC Pending Trade In
1017193 13145 PRINTER  DELL 5110CN COLO5YR WNTY QUOTE #343715561CN0GC2857197166SA175TC Pending Trade In
1017323 121475 DELL GX280 CPU H5X6Y61 TC Pending Trade In
1017367 126866 HP DESKJET 6980DT COLOR INJET PRINTER MY7279R0R8 TC Pending Trade In
1017435 148442 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D620  WORKSTATION MODEL 1P51YC1 TC Pending Trade In
1017438 148444 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D620  WORKSTATION MODEL CM51YC1 TC Pending Trade In
1017641 124161 HP 5610 COLOR INKJET PRINTER CN722DE318 TC Pending Trade In
1017672 128412 DELL WORKGROUP LASER PRINTER 5310N CN0KD330723856CT0K8YTC Pending Trade In
1017673 128413 DELL WORKGROUP LASER PRINTER 5310N CN0KD330723856CT0HG0TC Pending Trade In
1017674 128414 DELL WORKGROUP LASER PRINTER 5310N CN0KD330723856CT0J2J TC Pending Trade In
1017675 128415 DELL WORKGROUP LASER PRINTER 5310N CN0KD330723856CP0M3QTC Pending Trade In
1017676 128416 DELL WORKGROUP LASER PRINTER 5310N CN0KD330723856CT0LLJ TC Pending Trade In

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Dell Trade-In

Asset Number 

(SAP)

Inventory 

number (TAG)

Asset description Serial Number Asset location

1017677 128417 DELL WORKGROUP LASER PRINTER 5310N CN0KD330723856CT0KYVTC Pending Trade In
1017678 128418 DELL WORKGROUP LASER PRINTER 5310N CN0KD330723856CT0K3QTC Pending Trade In
1017680 128420 DELL WORKGROUP LASER PRINTER 5310N CN0KD330723856CT0L56 TC Pending Trade In
1017681 130447 DELL WORKGROUP LASER PRINTER 5310N CN0KD330723856CT0K0DTC Pending Trade In
1017682 130448 DELL WORKGROUP LASER PRINTER 5310N CN0KD330723856CT0L2HTC Pending Trade In
1017683 130449 DELL WORKGROUP LASER PRINTER 5310N CN0KD330723856CT0K1VTC Pending Trade In
1017684 130450 DELL WORKGROUP LASER PRINTER 5310N CN0KD330723856CT0KYWTC Pending Trade In
1017685 130452 DELL WORKGROUP LASER PRINTER 5310N CN0KD330723856CT0K0NTC Pending Trade In
1017686 130453 DELL WORKGROUP LASER PRINTER 5310N CN0KD330723856CT0L0J TC Pending Trade In
1017692 140684 DELL WORKGROUP LASER PRINTER 5310N FG7W4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1017712 128372 PRINTER  HP DESKJET 6980 MY7389R438 TC Pending Trade In
1017868 131942 PRINTER  DELL LASER 1720DN WITH WARRANTY BWKTTB1 TC Pending Trade In
1017869 131940 PRINTER  DELL LASER 1720DN WITH WARRANTY GZKTTB1 TC Pending Trade In
1017874 131933 PRINTER  DELL LASER 1720DN WITH WARRANTY 32PTTB1 TC Pending Trade In
1017884 148554 "COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM& 17"" LCD FP MONITOR NEED TC Pending Trade In
1017886 148556 "COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM& 17"" LCD FP MONITOR 61774D1 TC Pending Trade In
1017887 148557 "COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM& 17"" LCD FP MONITOR B0774D1 TC Pending Trade In
1017889 148559 "COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM& 17"" LCD FP MONITOR DZ374D1 TC Pending Trade In
1017891 148561 "COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM& 17"" LCD FP MONITOR H0774D1 TC Pending Trade In
1017892 148562 "COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM& 17"" LCD FP MONITOR 21774D1 TC Pending Trade In
1017895 148565 "COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM& 17"" LCD FP MONITOR GZ674D1 TC Pending Trade In
1017897 148567 "COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM& 17"" LCD FP MONITOR 1Z674D1 TC Pending Trade In
1017898 148568 "COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM& 17"" LCD FP MONITOR 60774D1 TC Pending Trade In
1017900 148570 "COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM& 17"" LCD FP MONITOR 91774D1 TC Pending Trade In
1017901 148571 "COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM& 17"" LCD FP MONITOR 8Z674D1 TC Pending Trade In
1017905 148575 "COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM& 17"" LCD FP MONITOR 20774D1 TC Pending Trade In
1017906 148576 "COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM& 17"" LCD FP MONITOR 9Z674D1 TC Pending Trade In
1017908 148578 "COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM& 17"" LCD FP MONITOR 3Z674D1 TC Pending Trade In
1017953 130767 PRINTER  DELL 5310N WKGRP2 DRAWER  DUPLEX  ENVELOPBWZT4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1017957 131398 PRINTER  DELL 5310N WKGRP2 DRAWER  DUPLEX  ENVELOP7NZT4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1017996 148639 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D620  W/2GB RAM  MOBILE 9N3N5D1 TC Pending Trade In
1017997 148645 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D620  W/2GB RAM  MOBILE GN3N5D1 TC Pending Trade In
1017998 148648 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D620  W/2GB RAM  MOBILE HN3N5D1 TC Pending Trade In
1018001 148640 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D620  W/2GB RAM  MOBILE BN3N5D1 TC Pending Trade In
1018003 148643 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D620  W/2GB RAM  MOBILE 8N3N5D1 TC Pending Trade In
1018056 131472 PRINTER  DELL 1710       PERSONAL  USB 5YR GG05TB1 TC Pending Trade In
1018095 148666 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM DELL HTXV6D1 TC Pending Trade In
1018096 148668 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM DELL 2VXV6D1 TC Pending Trade In
1018111 148705 OPTIPLEX 745 MINITOWER  CORE 2 DUO E6300/1.86GHZ J05P7D1 TC Pending Trade In
1018113 148708 OPTIPLEX 745 MINITOWER  CORE 2 DUO E6300/1.86GHZ F05P7D1 TC Pending Trade In
1018142 129448 PRINTER  DELL 1720       PERSONAL  USB 5YR CN0HK111731907590123 TC Pending Trade In
1018198 148663 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM DELL 5S2L6D1 TC Pending Trade In
1018217 148685 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM DELL BH5P7D1 TC Pending Trade In
1018224 148700 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM DELL JH5P7D1 TC Pending Trade In
1018250 148660 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM  DELL 9S2L6D1 TC Pending Trade In
1018255 148662 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM  DELL CS2L6D1 TC Pending Trade In
1018262 148688 DELL GX745 W/2GB RAM 8H5P7D1 TC Pending Trade In
1018268 131304 PRINTERS  DELL WORKGROUP LASER 5310N 4B6V4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1018270 131306 PRINTERS  DELL WORKGROUP LASER 5310N 596V4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1018387 148717 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D620  W/2GB RAM  MOBILE 8K8HDD1 TC Pending Trade In
1018388 148718 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D620  W/2GB RAM  MOBILE GJ8HDD1 TC Pending Trade In
1018389 148720 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D620  W/2GB RAM  MOBILE 1K8HDD1 TC Pending Trade In
1018393 148713 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D620  W/2GB RAM  MOBILE CJ8HDD1 TC Pending Trade In
1018395 148715 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D620  W/2GB RAM  MOBILE JK8HDD1 TC Pending Trade In
1018399 148711 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM  DELL 8TJRCD1 TC Pending Trade In
1018414 137002 PRINTERS  DELL WORKGROUP LASER 5310N 9P4V4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1018416 137025 PRINTER  DELL 1720       PERSONAL  USB 5YR BVFVTB1 TC Pending Trade In
1018434 137049 PRINTER  DELL 1720       PERSONAL  USB 5YR JGDVTB1 TC Pending Trade In
1018442 137058 PRINTER  DELL 1720       PERSONAL  USB 5YR C3DVTB1 TC Pending Trade In
1018448 137005 PRINTERS  DELL WORKGROUP LASER 5310N H66V4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1018449 137006 PRINTERS  DELL WORKGROUP LASER 5310N 1T6V4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1018451 137008 PRINTERS  DELL WORKGROUP LASER 5310N J17V4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1018453 137010 PRINTERS  DELL WORKGROUP LASER 5310N CR6V4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1018459 137016 PRINTERS  DELL WORKGROUP LASER 5310N B97V4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1018462 137020 PRINTERS  DELL WORKGROUP LASER 5310N GQ6V4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1018464 137022 PRINTERS  DELL WORKGROUP LASER 5310N 9T6V4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1018471 137043 PRINTER  DELL WORKGROUP LASER 5310N D27V4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1018472 137044 PRINTER  DELL WORKGROUP LASER 5310N 187V4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1018498 129452 PRINTER  LEXMARK E342N   2YR WNTY  #343725556 620XLW4 TC Pending Trade In
1018576 148739 NOTEBOOK  LAT D620  (OLD)MOBILE (NO PORT REPLTOR 7TTMGD1 TC Pending Trade In

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Dell Trade-In

Asset Number 

(SAP)

Inventory 

number (TAG)

Asset description Serial Number Asset location

1018632 131373 HP 1200 MONOCHROME LASER JET PRINTER CNB915931 TC Pending Trade In
1018731 130638 PRINTER  DELL 5310N WKGRP5YR WTY QUOTE #3437301981BBV4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1018837 137082 PRINTER  DELL 5110CN COLO5YR WNTY QUOTE #3437155618849B91 TC Pending Trade In
1018838 148772 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630 CCB0QD1 TC Pending Trade In
1018859 148771 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  WORKSTATION MODEL 506WPD1 TC Pending Trade In
1018968 123930 PRINTER  DELL 5310N WKGRP5YR WTY QUOTE #343730198791RB0T TC Pending Trade In
1019040 129314 DELL PRECISION 390 CONVERTIBLE MINITOWER  PC 294SRD1 TC Pending Trade In
1019066 148783 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  WORKSTATION MODEL DCDPRD1 TC Pending Trade In
1019079 148796 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 383435507 J1VVRD1 TC Pending Trade In
1019080 148797 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 383435507 D1VVRD1 TC Pending Trade In
1019081 148798 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 383435507 C1VVRD1 TC Pending Trade In
1019084 148801 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 383435507 91VVRD1 TC Pending Trade In
1019085 148802 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 383435507 H1VVRD1 TC Pending Trade In
1019086 148803 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 383435507 62VVRD1 TC Pending Trade In
1019088 148806 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 383435507 12VVRD1 TC Pending Trade In
1019089 148807 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 383435507 52VVRD1 TC Pending Trade In
1019090 148808 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 383435507 G1VVRD1 TC Pending Trade In
1019092 148810 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 383435507 51VVRD1 TC Pending Trade In
1019094 148812 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 383435507 22VVRD1 TC Pending Trade In
1019096 129468 PRINTER  DELL 5310N WKGRP5YR WTY QUOTE #343730198791P10V TC Pending Trade In
1019099 140689 DELL 1720 LASER PRINTER 6GCXTB1 TC Pending Trade In
1019102 128441 PRINTER  DELL MULTI-FUNCTION LASER 1815DN CN0NF5657221178G0790 TC Pending Trade In
1019103 138138 PRINTER  DELL MULTI-FUNCTION LASER 1815DN CN0NF565722117AC0179 TC Pending Trade In
1019111 128445 PRINTER  DELL WORKGROUP LASER 5310N (222-0998) JVFV4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1019112 128448 PRINTER  DELL WORKGROUP LASER 5310N (222-0998) CN0JD4167238577N0H42 TC Pending Trade In
1019113 128449 PRINTER  DELL WORKGROUP LASER 5310N (222-0998) CN0JD4167238577N0H7GTC Pending Trade In
1019114 138867 PRINTER  DELL MULTI-FUNCTION LASER 1815DN 1BXZD91 TC Pending Trade In
1019146 148834 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 383435507 6KR9SD1 TC Pending Trade In
1019270 148778 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 383435507 H45HRD1 TC Pending Trade In
1019307 148839 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  WORKSTATION MODEL 48LJSD1 TC Pending Trade In
1019400 128988 PRINTER  DELL 1720 PERSONAL  USB 5YR F79Q7D1 TC Pending Trade In
1019459 148882 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ 32HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019460 148859 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ 73HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019461 148898 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ H6HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019462 148891 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ 47HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019463 148869 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ J7HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019464 148884 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ F7HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019465 148901 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ J8HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019466 148881 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ 55HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019467 148885 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ H3HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019468 148883 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ D6HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019469 148877 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ G4HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019470 148887 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ 33HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019471 148893 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ G2HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019472 148863 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ 97HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019473 148855 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ 49HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019474 148878 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ D4HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019475 148860 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ C2HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019476 148876 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ 28HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019477 148854 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ 99HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019478 148889 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ J4HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019479 148865 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ 85HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019480 148895 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ J6HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019481 148875 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ B6HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019482 148872 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ G5HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019483 148896 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ 15HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019484 148897 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ 94HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019485 148890 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ B5HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019486 148868 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ 14HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019487 148866 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ D3HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019488 148902 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ 79HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019489 148894 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ 38HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019490 148879 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ 35HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019491 148874 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ 72HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019492 148862 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ 34HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019493 148880 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ 66HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019494 148871 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ 68HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019495 148900 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ F8HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019497 148873 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ B8HB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019498 148899 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ 4CHB1F1 TC Pending Trade In

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Dell Trade-In

Asset Number 

(SAP)

Inventory 

number (TAG)

Asset description Serial Number Asset location

1019499 148858 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ JBHB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019500 148861 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ BCHB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019501 148864 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ HCHB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019502 148857 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ 6BHB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019503 148892 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ DCHB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019504 148867 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ DBHB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019505 148856 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ 7CHB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019506 148870 LATITUDE D630  INTEL CORE 2 DUO Y7300  2.00GHZ 9BHB1F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019507 131443 PRINTER  DELL 1720 5YR   WNTY QUOTE #388054590 HFBQ701 TC Pending Trade In
1019509 128451 FAX  PANASONIC UF-8000 FAX/COPIER/PRINTER/SCANNERJGE44900163 TC Pending Trade In
1019529 148934 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 JW3J3F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019531 148919 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 9X3J3F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019552 148929 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUO8Y3J3F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019559 149287 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUOJHGGDF1 TC Pending Trade In
1019560 149288 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUO6JGGDF1 TC Pending Trade In
1019561 149289 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUOBHGGDF1 TC Pending Trade In
1019562 149290 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUO1JGGSF1 TC Pending Trade In
1019563 149291 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUODHGGDF1 TC Pending Trade In
1019567 149295 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUO6HGGDF1 TC Pending Trade In
1019570 149298 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUOJHGGDF1 TC Pending Trade In
1019605 148905 COMPUTER  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUO60LH3F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019606 148906 COMPUTER  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUOF0LH3F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019607 148907 COMPUTER  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUOGZKH3F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019610 148910 COMPUTER  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUO9ZKH3F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019611 148911 COMPUTER  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUOB0LH3F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019612 148912 COMPUTER  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUOCZKH3F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019613 148913 COMPUTER  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUO11LH3F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019614 148914 COMPUTER  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUOJZKH3F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019617 149271 COMPUTER  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUOJZ2GDF1 TC Pending Trade In
1019619 149273 COMPUTER  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUO403GDF1 TC Pending Trade In
1019621 149275 COMPUTER  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUOF03GDF1 TC Pending Trade In
1019622 149276 COMPUTER  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUO113GDF1 TC Pending Trade In
1019623 149277 COMPUTER  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUOC03GDF1 TC Pending Trade In
1019625 149279 COMPUTER  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUOG03GDF1 TC Pending Trade In
1019627 149281 COMPUTER  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUO213GDF1 TC Pending Trade In
1019628 149282 COMPUTER  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUO413GDF1 TC Pending Trade In
1019629 149283 COMPUTER  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUO203GDF1 TC Pending Trade In
1019630 149284 COMPUTER  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUOB03GDF1 TC Pending Trade In
1019669 148963 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM  DELL 3VMC5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019670 148965 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM  DELL 5VMC5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019671 148968 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM  DELL 2VMC5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019672 148975 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM  DELL JTMC5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019727 131465 PRINTER  DELL 5310N      WORKGRP: QUOTE 388075342 BKNV4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1019728 131466 PRINTER  DELL 5310N      WORKGRP: QUOTE 388075342 6WMV4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1019809 149121 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  WORKSTATION MODEL H9PY5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019811 149122 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  WORKSTATION MODEL F9PY5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019821 149123 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630 WORKSTATION MODEL 1BPY5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019849 138109 PRINTER  DELL COLOR LASER 5110CN CN0JD4167238579R0PC8 TC Pending Trade In
1019850 148997 DELL GX755 W/2GB RAM 11ZC5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1019894 140682 PRINTER  DELL LASER 5310N 3TBCB91 TC Pending Trade In
1019898 131496 PRINTER  DELL 5110CN COLO5YR W/500 SHT DRAWER 8LB9B91 TC Pending Trade In
1020111 149078 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 7TFW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020112 149079 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 FYFW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020113 149080 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 GVFW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020114 149081 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 2VFW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020115 149082 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 JXFW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020116 149083 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 8YFW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020117 149084 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 3YFW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020118 149085 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 CVFW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020119 149086 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 3VFW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020120 149087 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 DTFW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020121 149088 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 9XFW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020122 149089 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 6XFW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020123 149090 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 3XFW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020124 149091 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 9VFW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020125 149092 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 FTFW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020126 149093 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 7WFW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020127 149094 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 JWFW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020128 149095 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 CWFW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020129 149096 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 1WFW5F1 TC Pending Trade In

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Dell Trade-In

Asset Number 

(SAP)

Inventory 

number (TAG)

Asset description Serial Number Asset location

1020130 149097 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 5WFW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020131 149098 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 HTFW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020132 149099 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 F4LW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020133 149100 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 54LW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020134 149101 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 76LW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020135 149102 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 77LW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020136 149103 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 B3LW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020138 149105 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 56LW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020139 149106 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 F6LW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020140 149107 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 29LW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020141 149108 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 B5LW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020142 149109 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 72LW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020143 149110 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 C6LW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020144 149126 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 67LW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020145 149111 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 B8LW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020146 149112 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 D7LW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020147 149113 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 79LW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020148 149114 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 35LW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020149 149115 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 88LW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020150 149116 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 5BLW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020151 149117 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 J7LW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020152 149118 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 H6LW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020153 149119 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 J5LW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020154 149120 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 FBLW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020155 149125 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 58LW5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020159 148956 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM  DELL 94JC5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020163 148961 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM  DELL D4JC5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020165 148964 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM  DELL 17JC5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020166 148966 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM  DELL H8JC5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020168 148971 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM  DELL G5JC5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020169 148973 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM  DELL B6JC5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020170 148974 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM  DELL C5JC5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020172 148978 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM  DELL J3JC5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020184 149005 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM  DELL HMQF5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020186 149007 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM  DELL GLQF5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020191 149012 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM  DELL 1KQF5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020197 149018 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM  DELL CMQF5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020198 149019 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM  DELL JKQF5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020199 149020 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM  DELL 4PQF5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020202 149023 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM  DELL GMQF5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020204 149025 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM  DELL GNQF5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020212 149033 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM  DELL JQQF5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020213 149034 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM  DELL CQQF5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020214 149035 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM  DELL FPQF5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020215 149036 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM  DELL 9PQF5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020219 149040 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM  DELL GQQF5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020220 149041 COMPUTER  GX745 W/2GB RAM  DELL 4QQF5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020309 128997 PRINTER  DELL 5310N  5YR WNTY QUOTE: 388075911 40QV4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1020375 149069 COMPUTER  GX755 W/2GB RAM  DELL 9J6V5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020377 149070 COMPUTER  GX755 W/2GB RAM  DELL CJ6V5F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020453 149216 COMPUTER  GX755 W/2GB RAM  DELL G6YQ8F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020501 149269 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 392929349 5NXCDF1 TC Pending Trade In
1020505 149303 COMPUTER  GX755 W/2GB RAM  DELL HKBJDF1 TC Pending Trade In
1020536 149270 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  WORKSTATION MODEL 2RXCDF1 TC Pending Trade In
1020742 149328 COMPUTER  GX755 W/2GB RAM  DELL DQQVGF1 TC Pending Trade In
1020750 149342 COMPUTER  GX755 W/2GB RAM  DELL JQQVGF1 TC Pending Trade In
1020911 149246 COMPUTER  GX755 DELL C69R9F1 TC Pending Trade In
1020913 149247 COMPUTER  GX755 DELL G69R9F1 TC Pending Trade In
1021094 152522 COMPUTER  GX755 W/2GB RAM  DELL HTZQQF1 TC Pending Trade In
1021106 152532 COMPUTER  GX755 W/2GB RAM  DELL F5DCSF1 TC Pending Trade In
1021240 152543 COMPUTER  GX755 W/2GB RAM  DELL 2BNMSF1 TC Pending Trade In
1021391 152587 COMPUTER  GX755 W/2GB RAM  DELL 4YY2VF1 TC Pending Trade In
1021406 152603 COMPUTER  GX755 W/2GB RAM  DELL 2YY2VF1 TC Pending Trade In
1021440 152735 COMPUTERS  DELL OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR 6WRYZF1 TC Pending Trade In
1021441 152736 COMPUTERS  DELL OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR 8WRY2F1 TC Pending Trade In
1021443 152738 COMPUTERS  DELL OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR FVRYZF1 TC Pending Trade In
1021444 152739 COMPUTERS  DELL OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR 2WRY2F1 TC Pending Trade In
1021445 152740 COMPUTERS  DELL OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR 4WRYZF1 TC Pending Trade In
1021446 152741 COMPUTERS  DELL OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR 1XRT2F1 TC Pending Trade In
1021447 152742 COMPUTERS  DELL OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR FWRYZF1 TC Pending Trade In

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Dell Trade-In

Asset Number 

(SAP)

Inventory 

number (TAG)

Asset description Serial Number Asset location

1021449 152744 COMPUTERS  DELL OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR JWRY2F1 TC Pending Trade In
1021450 137326 PANASONIC CF-30 TOUGHBOOK 8AKYA05207 TC Pending Trade In
1021451 137327 PANASONIC CF-30 TOUGHBOOK 7LKYA97065 TC Pending Trade In
1021452 137328 PANASONIC CF-30 TOUGHBOOK 7LKYA93172 TC Pending Trade In
1021453 137329 PANASONIC CF-30 TOUGHBOOK 7LKYA97999 TC Pending Trade In
1021454 137330 PANASONIC CF-30 TOUGHBOOK 7LKSA96169 TC Pending Trade In
1021456 137332 PANASONIC CF-30 TOUGHBOOK 7LKYA97886 TC Pending Trade In
1021457 137333 PANASONIC CF-30 TOUGHBOOK 7LKYA97010 TC Pending Trade In
1021458 137335 PANASONIC CF-30 TOUGHBOOK 7LKYA97907 TC Pending Trade In
1021459 137337 PANASONIC CF-30 TOUGHBOOK 7LKYA98037 TC Pending Trade In
1021460 137338 PANASONIC CF-30 TOUGHBOOK 7LKYA97147 TC Pending Trade In
1021461 137339 PANASONIC CF-30 TOUGHBOOK 8AKYA05868 TC Pending Trade In
1021462 137340 PANASONIC CF-30 TOUGHBOOK 7LKYA97044 TC Pending Trade In
1021463 137341 PANASONIC CF-30 TOUGHBOOK 7LKYA97036 TC Pending Trade In
1021464 137343 PANASONIC CF-30 TOUGHBOOK 8AKYA05192 TC Pending Trade In
1021475 137334 PRINTER  DELL 5110 BWT9B91 TC Pending Trade In
1021489 137218 PRINTER  DELL 1720 DN 8JL18D1 TC Pending Trade In
1021490 137184 PRINTER  DELL 1720 DN CN0GK166731908210304 TC Pending Trade In
1021491 137227 PRINTER  DELL 1720 DN CN0GK166731908210146 TC Pending Trade In
1021492 145468 PRINTER  DELL 1720 DN BY398D1 TC Pending Trade In
1021497 141142 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 7LKYA97097 TC Pending Trade In
1021498 141143 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04970 TC Pending Trade In
1021499 141144 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04273 TC Pending Trade In
1021500 141145 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA03984 TC Pending Trade In
1021501 141146 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04968 TC Pending Trade In
1021502 141147 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 7LKYA98121 TC Pending Trade In
1021503 141148 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04156 TC Pending Trade In
1021505 141150 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04826 TC Pending Trade In
1021506 141151 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04028 TC Pending Trade In
1021507 141152 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA05844 TC Pending Trade In
1021508 141153 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04960 TC Pending Trade In
1021509 141154 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04132 TC Pending Trade In
1021510 141155 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 7LKYA97830 TC Pending Trade In
1021511 141156 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 7LKYA97854 TC Pending Trade In
1021512 141157 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 7LKYA97134 TC Pending Trade In
1021513 141158 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04014 TC Pending Trade In
1021514 141159 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 7LKYA97103 TC Pending Trade In
1021515 141160 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04020 TC Pending Trade In
1021516 141161 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA05202 TC Pending Trade In
1021517 141162 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04807 TC Pending Trade In
1021518 141163 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 7LKSA96228 TC Pending Trade In
1021519 141164 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA05964 TC Pending Trade In
1021520 141165 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04140 TC Pending Trade In
1021521 141166 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04923 TC Pending Trade In
1021522 141167 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04152 TC Pending Trade In
1021523 141168 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 7LKSA96089 TC Pending Trade In
1021524 141169 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04981 TC Pending Trade In
1021525 141170 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA05733 TC Pending Trade In
1021526 141171 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA05893 TC Pending Trade In
1021527 141172 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 7LKSA96186 TC Pending Trade In
1021528 141173 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 7LKSA97963 TC Pending Trade In
1021529 141174 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04007 TC Pending Trade In
1021530 141175 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 7LKYA97006 TC Pending Trade In
1021531 141176 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04133 TC Pending Trade In
1021532 141177 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04012 TC Pending Trade In
1021533 141178 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04153 TC Pending Trade In
1021534 141179 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04275 TC Pending Trade In
1021535 141180 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 7LKYA97131 TC Pending Trade In
1021536 141181 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 7LKSA96151 TC Pending Trade In
1021537 141182 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04909 TC Pending Trade In
1021538 141183 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04912 TC Pending Trade In
1021539 141184 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 7LKYA97062 TC Pending Trade In
1021540 141185 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04903 TC Pending Trade In
1021541 141186 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04983 TC Pending Trade In
1021542 141187 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 7LKSA96079 TC Pending Trade In
1021543 141188 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04802 TC Pending Trade In
1021545 141190 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04154 TC Pending Trade In
1021546 141191 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04130 TC Pending Trade In
1021547 141192 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 7LKYA97838 TC Pending Trade In
1021548 141193 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04117 TC Pending Trade In

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Dell Trade-In

Asset Number 

(SAP)

Inventory 

number (TAG)

Asset description Serial Number Asset location

1021549 141194 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 7LKSA96002 TC Pending Trade In
1021550 141195 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04951 TC Pending Trade In
1021551 141196 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04124 TC Pending Trade In
1021552 141197 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 7LKYA97943 TC Pending Trade In
1021553 141198 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04946 TC Pending Trade In
1021554 141199 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 7LKSA96153 TC Pending Trade In
1021555 141200 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 7LKYA97944 TC Pending Trade In
1021556 141201 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 7LKYA97035 TC Pending Trade In
1021557 141202 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04762 TC Pending Trade In
1021558 141203 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04137 TC Pending Trade In
1021559 141204 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04080 TC Pending Trade In
1021560 141205 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04280 TC Pending Trade In
1021561 141206 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK *VISTA COA/INSTALL XP 8AKYA04875 TC Pending Trade In
1021804 152634 COMPUTER  GX755 DELL 917KZF1 TC Pending Trade In
1021831 152764 COMPUTER  GX755 DELL 16ZQ0G1 TC Pending Trade In
1021858 152620 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE (OLD) WORKSTATION MODEL H2YKYF1 TC Pending Trade In
1022041 152618 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE (OLD) WORKSTATION MODEL HL5KYF1 TC Pending Trade In
1022059 141223 PRINTER  DELL 5310N  5YR WNTY QUOTE: 423948807 C26W4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1022060 141224 PRINTER  DELL 5310N  5YR WNTY QUOTE: 423948807 H16W4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1022064 141228 PRINTER  DELL 5310N  5YR WNTY QUOTE: 423948807 506W4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1022065 141229 PRINTER  DELL 5310N  5YR WNTY QUOTE: 423948807 926W4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1022067 141231 PRINTER  DELL 5310N  5YR WNTY QUOTE: 423948807 246W4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1022222 152935 COMPUTER  GX755 DELL 225JBG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022238 152894 COMPUTER  GX755 DELL DG5JBG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022240 152926 COMPUTER  GX755 DELL 325JBG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022252 152918 COMPUTER  GX755 DELL 435JBG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022256 152938 COMPUTER  GX755 DELL 925JBG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022258 152892 COMPUTER  GX755 DELL 2G5JBG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022266 152940 COMPUTER  GX755 DELL 315JBG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022274 152521 COMPUTER  GX755 DELL 2VZQQF1 TC Pending Trade In
1022278 152916 COMPUTER  GX755 DELL 335JBG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022294 152906 COMPUTER  GX755 DELL 1G5JBG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022300 152876 COMPUTER  GX755 DELL DJ5JBG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022328 152962 COMPUTER  GX755 DELL C15JBG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022332 152963 COMPUTER  GX755 DELL 9J5JBG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022336 152929 COMPUTER  GX755 DELL 125JBG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022366 152950 COMPUTER  GX755 DELL F05JBG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022369 152933 COMPUTER  GX755 DELL H25JBG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022373 152889 COMPUTER  GX755 DELL HF5JBG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022375 152903 COMPUTER  GX755 DELL DF5JBG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022380 152934 COMPUTER  GX755 DELL J25JBG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022382 152912 COMPUTER  GX755 DELL 345JBG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022388 152891 COMPUTER  GX755 DELL 9G5JBG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022438 153000 LATITUDE D830  CORE 2 DUO T7500 2.20GHZ (222-7944) 26CSLG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022440 153002 LATITUDE D830  CORE 2 DUO T7500 2.20GHZ (222-7944) 1BCSLG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022448 152996 COMPUTER  OPTX755 4GB RAM  DELL 95R1HG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022461 152993 COMPUTER  OPTX755 4GB RAM DELL 16R1HG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022474 152966 OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUO FZRVDG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022477 152969 OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUO J0SVDG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022478 152970 OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUO D0SVDG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022565 137135 PRINTER  DELL 1720 5YR   WNTY QUOTE #423949154 622NVT2 TC Pending Trade In
1022598 138143 PRINTER HP 1720N C1Y78D1 TC Pending Trade In
1022606 153039 COMPUTER  OPTX755 4GB RAM  DELL 84CRWG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022616 153047 COMPUTER  OPTX755 4GB RAM  DELL D5CRWG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022622 153046 COMPUTER  OPTX755 4GB RAM DELL GDCRWG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022623 153048 COMPUTER  OPTX755 4GB RAM DELL 9DCRWG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022624 153050 COMPUTER  OPTX755 4GB RAM DELL 5DCRWG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022627 153041 COMPUTER  OPTX755 4GB RAM  DELL 1FCRWG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022629 153043 COMPUTER  OPTX755 4GB RAM  DELL 75CRWG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022662 153024 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 423945217 4N8QWG1 TC Pending Trade In
1022686 137365 PRINTER  DELL 3110CN COLO5YR WNTY QUOTE #423948429315G991 TC Pending Trade In
1022701 138219 PRINTER  DELL 5310N LASER 7929M62 TC Pending Trade In
1022746 153062 COMPUTER  OPTX755 4GB RAM DELL HGWYBH1 TC Pending Trade In
1022815 153068 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 423945217 JKY2FH1 TC Pending Trade In
1022872 153072 LATITUDE D830 DELL J5LCGH1 TC Pending Trade In
1022873 153073 LATITUDE D830 DELL G5LCGH1 TC Pending Trade In
1022883 138532 PRINTER  HP OFFICEJET PRO K540DTN NETWORK INKJET MY85R680HS TC Pending Trade In
1022930 153081 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUOCYBBJH1 TC Pending Trade In
1022931 153082 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUODYBBJH1 TC Pending Trade In
1022932 153083 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUOFYBBJH1 TC Pending Trade In

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Dell Trade-In

Asset Number 

(SAP)

Inventory 

number (TAG)

Asset description Serial Number Asset location

1023158 153095 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 423945217 JHBFJHL TC Pending Trade In
1023164 153087 COMPUTER  OPTIPLEX 755 MINITOWER  CORE 2 DUO H2NDJH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023165 153088 COMPUTER  OPTIPLEX 755 MINITOWER  CORE 2 DUO J2NDJH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023181 153111 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 423945217 5FBFJH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023185 153089 COMPUTER  OPTIPLEX 755 4GB RAM  DELL 13NDJH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023187 153090 COMPUTER  OPTIPLEX 755 4GB RAM  DELL 23NDJH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023211 153092 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  MOBILE QUOTE# 423945217 5JBFJH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023261 153110 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  WORKSTATION MODEL BFBFJH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023263 153113 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  WORKSTATION MODEL 9FBFJH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023264 153094 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  WORKSTATION MODEL 7FBFJH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023265 153096 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  WORKSTATION MODEL FFBFJH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023266 153097 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  WORKSTATION MODEL DFBFJH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023267 153098 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  WORKSTATION MODEL GFBFJH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023268 153099 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  WORKSTATION MODEL 1GBFJH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023269 153101 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  WORKSTATION MODEL 2GBFJH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023270 153103 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  WORKSTATION MODEL JFBFJH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023272 153108 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  WORKSTATION MODEL 5GBFJH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023274 153114 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  WORKSTATION MODEL 4GBFJH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023288 153075 OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUO B1M5JHL TC Pending Trade In
1023291 153093 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  WORKSTATION MODEL BGBFJH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023293 153102 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  WORKSTATION MODEL FGBFJH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023294 153105 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  WORKSTATION MODEL 8GBFJH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023295 153109 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  WORKSTATION MODEL CGBFJH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023296 153115 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE D630  WORKSTATION MODEL GGBFJH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023345 122875 PRINTER  DELL 5310N      WORKGRP: QUOTE 423948434 F7RV4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1023346 122876 PRINTER  DELL 5310N      WORKGRP: QUOTE 423948434 G2RV4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1023414 122933 PRINTER  DELL 5310N  5YR WNTY QUOTE: 423948807 GNSW4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1023417 165397 PRINTER  DELL 5310N  5YR WNTY QUOTE: 423948807 79141YP TC Pending Trade In
1023418 153144 COMPUTER  755 MINITOWER  DELL 6TNQPH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023420 153139 COMPUTER  755 MINITOWER  DELL 1TNQPH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023422 153147 COMPUTER  755 MINITOWER  DELL 9TNQPH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023423 153138 COMPUTER  755 MINITOWER  DELL JSNQPH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023424 153141 COMPUTER  755 MINITOWER  DELL 3TNQPH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023425 153136 COMPUTER  755 MINITOWER  DELL GSNQPH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023426 153134 COMPUTER  755 MINITOWER  DELL DSNQPH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023427 153140 COMPUTER  755 MINITOWER  DELL 2TNQPH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023428 153133 COMPUTER  755 MINITOWER  DELL CSNQPH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023429 153143 COMPUTER  755 MINITOWER  DELL 5TNQPH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023430 153142 COMPUTER  755 MINITOWER  DELL 4TNQPH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023431 153145 COMPUTER  755 MINITOWER  DELL 7TNQPH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023432 153135 COMPUTER  755 MINITOWER  DELL FSNQPH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023448 146341 PRINTER  DELL 5310N  5YR WNTY QUOTE: 423948807 64DT4B1 TC Pending Trade In
1023460 153125 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 455464181 5QZJPH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023461 153126 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 455464181 6QZJPH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023462 153127 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 455464181 BQZJPH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023463 153128 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 455464181 7QZJPH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023464 153129 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 455464181 9QZJPH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023465 153130 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 455464181 CQZJPH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023466 153131 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 455464181 8QZJPH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023483 153148 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 8PL3QH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023484 153149 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 9PL3QH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023487 153122 LATITUDE E6400 INTEL CORE 2 DUO T9400  2.53GHZ 3PQJPH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023488 153152 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 J4W9QH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023489 153153 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 15W9QH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023490 153154 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 25W9QH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023491 153155 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 35W9QH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023492 153156 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 45W9QH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023493 153157 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUO55W9QH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023494 153158 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUO65W9QH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023495 153159 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUO75W9QH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023496 153160 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUO85W9QH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023497 153161 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUO95W9QH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023498 153162 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUOB5W9QH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023499 153163 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUOC5W9QH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023500 153164 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUOD5W9QH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023501 153165 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUOF5W9QH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023502 153166 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUOG5W9QH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023503 153167 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUOH5W9QH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023504 153168 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUOJ5W9QH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023505 153169 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUO16W9QH1 TC Pending Trade In

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Dell Trade-In

Asset Number 

(SAP)

Inventory 

number (TAG)

Asset description Serial Number Asset location

1023506 153170 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUO26W9QH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023507 153171 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUO36W9QH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023508 153172 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUO46W9QH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023509 153173 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUO56W9QH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023510 153174 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUO66W9QH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023511 153175 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUO76W9QH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023512 153176 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUO86W9QH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023513 153177 DESKTOP  OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTOR CORE 2 DUO96W9QH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023571 153207 OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUO E7200/ 3GH1SH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023573 153208 OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUO E7200/ 4GH1SH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023578 153213 OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUO E7200/ 9GH1SH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023584 153219 OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUO E7200/ 7RL1SH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023586 153221 OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUO E7200/ 9RL1SH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023591 153226 OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUO E7200/ GRL1SH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023592 153227 OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUO E7200/ HRL1SH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023593 153228 OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUO E7200/ JRL1SH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023594 153229 OPTIPLEX 755 SMALL FORM FACTORCORE 2 DUO E7200/ 1SL1SH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023623 153253 COMPUTER  OPTX755 9PZLTH1 TC Pending Trade In
1023923 153260 LAPTOP  LATITUDE E6400 F4VC6J1 TC Pending Trade In
1023925 153261 LAPTOP  LATITUDE E6400 H4VC6J1 TC Pending Trade In
1023926 153262 LAPTOP  LATITUDE E6400 15VC6J1 TC Pending Trade In
1023932 153276 CPU 750 DELL 8LMH6J1 TC Pending Trade In
1023933 153274 CPU 755 DELL 6LMH6J1 TC Pending Trade In
1023934 153275 CPU 755 DELL 7LMH6J1 TC Pending Trade In
1023972 153273 DELL COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER JPJH6J1 TC Pending Trade In
1023978 153266 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 9KWH6J1 TC Pending Trade In
1023980 153267 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 8KWH6J1 TC Pending Trade In
1024011 140747 HP OFFICE JET PRO K8600DN-PRI TH8C322088 TC Pending Trade In
1024290 153390 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER  DELL 4TRRQJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024391 153368 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER  DELL 8INQQJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024393 153370 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER  DELL B7NQQJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024395 153487 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 472726448 CJ4LRJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024397 153488 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 472726448 GJ4LRJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024399 153490 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 472726448 9J4LRJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024400 153492 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 472726448 5J4LRJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024402 153494 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 472726448 3J4LRJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024404 153497 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 472726448 1J4LRJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024406 153499 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 472726448 HJ4LRJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024408 153500 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 472726448 6J4LRJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024410 153501 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 472726448 8J4LRJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024412 153504 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 472726448 FJ4LRJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024414 153508 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 472726448 DJ4LRJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024416 153512 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 472726448 HH4LRJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024418 153515 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 472726448 2J4LRJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024420 153518 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 472726448 4J4LRJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024422 153520 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 472726448 GH4LRJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024424 153525 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 472726448 JH4LRJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024426 153544 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 472726448 BJ4LRJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024428 153371 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER  DELL C1NQQJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024430 153369 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER  DELL 91NQQJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024432 153372 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER  DELL D1NQQJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024433 153373 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER  DELL F1NQQJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024435 153374 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER  DELL G1NQQJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024436 153375 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER  DELL H1NQQJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024437 153376 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER  DELL J7NQQJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024438 153377 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER  DELL 12NQQJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024439 153378 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER  DELL 22NQQJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024440 153379 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER  DELL 32NQQJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024441 153380 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER  DELL 42NQQJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024442 153381 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER  DELL 52NQQJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024443 153382 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER  DELL 62NQQJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024444 153383 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER  DELL 72NQQJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024445 153384 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER  DELL 82NQQJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024446 153385 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER  DELL 92NQQJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024459 153535 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 472726448 7J4LRJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024945 153767 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER  DELL 3P9CTJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024948 153769 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER DELL 39LCTJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024953 153763 DELL LATITUDE E6400 78Z8TJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024954 153764 DELL LATITUDE E6400 68Z8TJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1024955 153765 DELL LATITUDE E6400 58Z8TJ1 TC Pending Trade In

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Dell Trade-In

Asset Number 

(SAP)

Inventory 

number (TAG)

Asset description Serial Number Asset location

1025048 153725 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER  DELL HV34TJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1025050 153726 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER  DELL JV34TJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1025051 153727 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER  DELL 1W34TJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1025112 153706 COMPUTER OPTIPLEX 760 4GB DELL DJY3TJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1025116 153751 COMPUTER OPTIPLEX 760 4GB DELL F574TJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1025119 153711 COMPUTER OPTIPLEX 760 4GB DELL 1KY3TJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1025122 153759 COMPUTER OPTIPLEX 760 4GB DELL 5674TJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1025125 153712 COMPUTER OPTIPLEX 760 4GB DELL 2KY3TJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1025131 153707 COMPUTER OPTIPLEX 760 4GB DELL FJY3TJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1025137 153709 COMPUTER OPTIPLEX 760 4GB DELL HJY3TJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1025143 153742 COMPUTER OPTIPLEX 760 4GB DELL 1174TJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1025157 153781 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER  DELL 4BFRTJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1025171 153774 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 472726448 J6QQTJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1025173 153772 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 472726448 B6QQTJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1025174 153776 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 472726448 G6QQTJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1025177 153779 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER  DELL 2BFRTJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1025179 153780 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER  DELL 3BFRTJ1 TC Pending Trade In
1025260 139832 PRINTER- HP OFFICEJET 6500 NETWORK MY945871TY TC Pending Trade In
1025334 153847 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER  DELL BZQ0BK1 TC Pending Trade In
1025336 153851 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER  DELL FYQ0BK1 TC Pending Trade In
1025402 153867 COMPUTER OPTIPLEX 760 7WCGBK1 TC Pending Trade In
1025575 153892 CPU  760 4GB DVDRW DELL 6L0ZKK1 TC Pending Trade In
1025576 153893 CPU  760 4GB DVDRW DELL 7L0ZKK1 TC Pending Trade In
1025798 153972 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER DELL 2HRWSK1 TC Pending Trade In
1025800 153973 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER DELL 3HRWSK1 TC Pending Trade In
1025802 153975 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER DELL 5HRWSK1 TC Pending Trade In
1025804 153974 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER DELL 4HRWSK1 TC Pending Trade In
1025823 153951 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 492272883 HPSSK1 TC Pending Trade In
1025829 153946 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 492272883 5Q77SK1 TC Pending Trade In
1025831 153947 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 492272883 3077SK1 TC Pending Trade In
1025832 153948 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 492272883 4Q77SK1 TC Pending Trade In
1025833 153949 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 492272883 1077SK1 TC Pending Trade In
1025834 153952 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 492272883 2Q77SK1 TC Pending Trade In
1025997 139042 DELL 5330DN PRINTER 4P27VG1 TC Pending Trade In
1026031 154031 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 G57ZVK1 TC Pending Trade In
1026068 154036 COMPUTER DELL 760 MINITOWER FGJ0WK1 TC Pending Trade In
1026168 139959 LEXMARK C540N COLOR LASER PRINTER 9820XTP TC Pending Trade In
1026289 154045 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 WKSTATION QTE: 492272883 BDLBZK1 TC Pending Trade In
1026421 154068 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER DELL DYNDZK1 TC Pending Trade In
1026454 154049 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER DELL 6GLDZK1 TC Pending Trade In
1026456 130117 SERVER  FILE LATITUDE E6500 INTEL CORE 2 DUO T9550 D4H8ZK1 TC Pending Trade In
1026464 140681 DELL 5110CN COLOR LASER PRINTER HZBCB91 TC Pending Trade In
1026478 154047 COMPUTER  760 MINITOWER DELL CD5DZK1 TC Pending Trade In
1026490 154001 COMPUTER  OPTIPLEX 760 4GB  DVDRW 191PVK1 TC Pending Trade In
1026496 154002 COMPUTER  OPTIPLEX 760 4GB  DVDRW 291PVK1 TC Pending Trade In
1026497 154003 COMPUTER  OPTIPLEX 760 4GB  DVDRW 391PVK1 TC Pending Trade In
1026505 139991 EPSON DISCPRODUCER PP100 CD/DVD PUBLISHER KHTF001654 TC Pending Trade In
1026628 154140 NOTEBOOK  LATITUDE E6400 QUOTE: 492272663 826Z0L1 TC Pending Trade In
1026664 138903 PRINTER  LEXMARK T650DTN- DIR-SDD-502 7934CCY TC Pending Trade In
1026723 139057 PRINTER  ALL-IN-ONE  HP OFFICEJET 8500 MY9A142DMV TC Pending Trade In
1026802 145433 HP 8000 COLOR INKJET PRINTER ITEM # 825750 MY9B724384 TC Pending Trade In
1027834 146019 PRINTER  ALL IN ONE  HP OFFICE JET  PRO 8500 MY9C6420BH TC Pending Trade In
1027920 159081 COMPUTER  DELL OPTIPLEX 780 2WGL4M1 TC Pending Trade In
1028158 159143 COMPUTER  DELL OPTIPLEX 780 8V5K6M1 TC Pending Trade In
1028171 159170 COMPUTER  DELL OPTIPLEX 780 3X5K6M1 TC Pending Trade In
1028179 159191 COMPUTER  DELL OPTIPLEX 780 8Y5K6M1 TC Pending Trade In
1028551 140557 PRINTER  DELL 5110CN COLO5YR WNTY QUOTE 310300640313CB91 TC Pending Trade In
1029173 146828 PRINTER DELL 2335DN MULTIFUNCTION LASER (224-2855) HPWCZ11 TC Pending Trade In
1029248 159429 COMPUTER  DELL OPTIPLEX 1780 1CX5WN1 TC Pending Trade In
1029300 140351 EPSON TMU950P PRINTER K3TF010316 TC Pending Trade In
1032036 164939 FUJI IP-10 DIGITAL PASSPORT PRINTER 98611071XKB0809039 TC Pending Trade In
1036813 108943 HP 940C PRINTER CN2341D2HN TC Pending Trade In
1039218 128028 PRINTER  HP 2100 USGZ013101 TC Pending Trade In
1039219 128036 PRINTER  HP 2100 USGH052155 TC Pending Trade In
1039220 128037 PRINTER  HP 2100 USGZ013153 TC Pending Trade In
1039342 130286 LOG MGMT BUNDLE INCLUDING1 ST3000 ANALYZER APPLIANCA0056042026 TC Pending Trade In
1039480 131464 PRINTER TC Pending Trade In
1039640 130773 PANASONIC CF-30 LAPTOP 8CKYA21032 TC Pending Trade In
1039648 106945 PRINTER  HP LASER 6P USCC100804 TC Pending Trade In
1039692 145438 HP 1200 PRINTER CNBC653539 TC Pending Trade In

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Dell Trade-In

Asset Number 

(SAP)

Inventory 

number (TAG)

Asset description Serial Number Asset location

1039709 145165 DELL POWEREDGE R210 SERVER HH47JL1 TC Pending Trade In
1039776 144435 DELL STREAK 7 TABLET 3MNCPQ1 TC Pending Trade In
1039783 166046 DELL LATITUDE ST TABLET CQYGDR1 TC Pending Trade In
1039891 139457 DELL XRFD630 LAPTOP 3W04VH1 TC Pending Trade In
1040428 141047 HP Elitebook 8760 Laptop CNU22801LV TC Pending Trade In
1040628 160949 OptiPlex 790 SFF;OptiPlex 790 Small For 798T6V1 TC Pending Trade In
1040643 161014 OptiPlex 790 SFF;OptiPlex 790 Small For 79007V1 TC Pending Trade In
1042662 166711 APPLE IPAD RET WIFI 4G 64GB BLK ATT DMPJX979F18C TC Pending Trade In
1042697 165610 HP LAPTOP USH225A109 TC Pending Trade In
1045751 170843 OptiPlex 7010 SFF;OptiPlex 7010 SFF w/ D9J08Y1 TC Pending Trade In
1046873 166518 DELL 1720DN PRINTER TC Pending Trade In

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: June 24, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  Jason G. Walker/44562; Marvin Brice, 
CPPB, Assistant Purchasing Agent  
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Modification No. 2 to Contract 
4400001364, Meals on Wheels and More, Inc., for Owner Occupied 
Home Rehabilitation Program. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

 The Owner Occupied Home Rehabilitation program improves the quality 
of housing stock in the CDBG area for low to moderate income owner 
occupied houses. Funded through this program are minor home repair 
services for low and moderate income homeowners in the 
unincorporated areas of Travis County and the Village of Webberville in 
order to move these homes towards Housing Quality Standards.  
Potential improvements include, but are not limited to: foundation repair, 
roofing, flooring, electrical, plumbing, accessibility modifications, 
connection of houses to long-term viable sources of water, 
weatherization, noise attenuation, septic tank repairs/installation, and 
other related engineering or designs for improvements. 

 A 0% interest, forgivable 5 year loan up to $24,999 with no required 
annual or monthly payments is available, where the deferred loan is 
forgiven at a pro-rata rate of 20% for each year of home ownership. 
This program is to be administered by Travis County Health and Human 
Services (HHS) through a contractual relationship with the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) as funded by a 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG). 
 

 Meals on Wheels and More, Inc. is the single point of contact where they 
receive and review program applications, prepare scopes of work, bid 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 5Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

out construction, and facilitate warranty issues. Client files for all 
applicants are maintained by Meals on Wheels and More, Inc. In 
addition, Meals on Wheels and More, Inc. provides marketing services 
for the program along with website materials, and assists with 
environmental work as needed. 
 

 With this Modification No. 2, 1) the contract will renew for an additional 
one-year term, beginning October 1, 2014 through September 30, 2015, 
2) the contract not-to-exceed amount is modified from $1,068,000.00 to 
$1,518,000.00, an increase of $450,000.00, and 3) Attachments A – C 
of the contract are deleted in their entirety and replaced with amended 
Attachments A – C. 

 Modification No.1 extended the term of the contract for seven (7) 
months, February 28, 2014 through September 30, 2014. 

 On February 26, 2012 the Commissioners Court approved the contract 
award to Meals on Wheels and More, Inc. for a not-to-exceed amount of 
$1,068,000.00. 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last   12  months $428,973.00 has 
been spent against this contract/requirement. 

 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: $1,068,000.00    
Contract Type: Professional Services   
Contract Period: Through February 28, 2014   

 Contract Modification Information: 

Modification Amount: $450,000.00   
Modification Type:     
Modification Period: Through September 30, 2015  

 Solicitation-Related Information: N/A 

Solicitations Sent:  Responses Received:  
HUB Information:  % HUB Subcontractor: 

 
 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 Special Contract Considerations:   

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 
  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been 

notified. 
  Comments:   

 
 Funding Information: 

  SAP Funds Reservation Document #: 300001177 
  Funding Account(s): 1580060001 
  Comments: 

 
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Funds Reservation 300001177
General Data

Document type NE
Company code 1000
FM area 1000
Controlling area 1000

Document type 030
Document date 06/06/2014
Posting date 06/06/2014
Currency USD/ 1.00000 

Statistics

Entered by TOLLIVK
Last changed by

Created on 06/06/2014
Last changed

More Data

Text Additional  funding Meals on Wheels and more
Reference

Overall Amount             450,000.00  USD

Document item 001

Commitment item 518120
Fund 2054
Cost center
Vendor

Funds center 1580060001
G/L account 518120
Due on
Customer

Text funding for Meals on Wheels

Amount           197,844.70  USD

Document item 002

Commitment item 518120
Fund 2054
Cost center
Vendor

Funds center 1580060001
G/L account 518120
Due on
Customer

Text funding for Meals on Wheels

Amount             9,000.00  USD

Document item 003

Commitment item 518120
Fund 2054
Cost center
Vendor

Funds center 1580060001
G/L account 518120
Due on
Customer

Text funding for Meals on Wheels

Amount            33,885.40  USD

Document item 004

Earmarked fund 300001177 printed on 06/11/2014/15:15:18 Side 1 of 2

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Funds Reservation 300001177
General Data

Document type NE
Company code 1000
FM area 1000
Controlling area 1000

Document type 030
Document date 06/06/2014
Posting date 06/06/2014
Currency USD/ 1.00000 

Statistics

Entered by TOLLIVK
Last changed by

Created on 06/06/2014
Last changed

More Data

Text Additional  funding Meals on Wheels and more
Reference

Overall Amount             450,000.00  USD

Commitment item 518120
Fund 2054
Cost center
Vendor

Funds center 1580060001
G/L account 518120
Due on
Customer

Text funding for Meals on Wheels

Amount            74,841.90  USD

Document item 005

Commitment item 518120
Fund 2054
Cost center
Vendor

Funds center 1580060001
G/L account 518120
Due on
Customer

Text funding for Meals on Wheels

Amount           104,428.00  USD

Document item 006

Commitment item 518120
Fund 2054
Cost center
Vendor

Funds center 1580060001
G/L account 518120
Due on
Customer

Text funding for Meals on Wheels

Amount            30,000.00  USD

Earmarked fund 300001177 printed on 06/11/2014/15:15:18 Side 2 of 2

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: 4400001364. Owner Occupied Home PAGE 1 OF 12 PAGES

Rehabifitatlon Program
ISSUED BY: PURCHASING OFFICE PURCHASING AGENT ASST: Jason G. Walker DATE PREPARED:

P.O. BOX 1748 TEL NO: (512) 854-9700 Julie 11, 2014AUSTIN, TX 78701 FAX NO: (512)854-9185.

ISSUED TO: Meals on Wheels and MODIFICATION NO.: EXECUTED DATE OF ORIGINAL

M 2 CONTRACT:

3227 East 5th St.
Austin, TX 78702

ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES: 2/26/13 — 2/28/14 CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES: 2/28/14 - 9/30/14

FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY:

Oiiginal Contract Amount: 11.068.000.00 Cunent Modified Amount $ 1.068.000.00.

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES:

1. Pursuant to the attached Amendment of Contract (Attachment 1), in summary:

A. The contract will renew for an additional one-year term, beginning October 1,2014 and continuing through September 30,
20 15.

B. The contract not-to-exceed amount is modified from $1,068,000.00 to $1,518,000.00, an increase of $450,000.00.
C. Reference Section 4.2, Attachments, 4.2.1 - 4.2.3 (Attachments A - C) are deleted in their entirety and replaced with

Attachments A - C, included with the Amendment as Exhibit 1.

Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisioes,ot the documit referenced above as heretofore modified, remain unchanged and in full
force and effect.

ITS DULY AUTHORIZEJ5 AGENT

D DBA

RATION

D OTHER

DATE:

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS DATE:

BY:4Jhj
CYD GRIMES, C.P.M., CPPO, TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS DATE:

BY:_________________________________________________
SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE

L

TritE: P1IJ€J /Ct

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

walkerj
Draft



Modification No. 2
Page 2 of 12

ATTACHMENT 1

AMENDMENT OF CONTRACT BETWEEN
TRAVIS COUNTY AND

MEALS ON WHEELS AND MORE, INC.

This amendment of written instrument (“Amendment”) is entered into by the following parties: Travis County, a political
subdivision of the state of Texas (“County”), and Meals on Wheels and More, Inc. (“Contractor”).

RECITALS

The Travis County Commissioners Court approved and the County Judge executed a contract (“Contract” with Contractor,
the Initial Term of which was effective upon execution of the Parties, and terminated February 28, 2014 (“Initial Term”).

Contractor agreed to provide services and activities for indigent and other qualified recipients in accordance with the
terms of the Contract, including the attachments thereto, during any approved Contract period.

The Contract provided for renewal andlor amendment of the Contract by written agreement of the Parties.

By written agreement, the Contract was renewed for an additional partial seven-month term beginning March 1, 2014, and
continuing through September 30, 2014 (“2014 Renewal Term”).

County and Contractor desire to amend the Contract to reflect changes to mutually agreeable terms.

In consideration of the mutual benefits to be received through those changes, County and Contractor agree as follows:

1.0 AMENDMENT PERIOD

1.1 2015 Renewal Term. The Parties agree to renew the Contract for an additional one-year term
beginning October 1, 2014 and continuing through September 30, 2015 (“2015 Renewal Term”).

2.0 CONTRACT FUNDS

2.1 Maximum Funds. The Parties agree to amend the maximum amount of County Funds provided under
the Contract by an amount not to exceed Four Hundred and Fifty Thousand Dollars ($450,000.00). The Parties agree that
all provisions of the Contract that reflect the Contract Funds will be amended to increase the total by the above stated
amount.

2.2 Contract Funds Limitation. The Parties agree that funding provided under the Contract, as amended,
cannot be invoiced and will not be paid until all requirements of the environmental process set forth in the Contract have
been completed to County’s satisfaction.

3.0 CONTRACT TERMS

3.1 General Terms. The Parties agree that any terms not specifically changed in this Amendment will
remain in full force and effect as set forth in the Contract, as amended.

4.0 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

4.1 Attachments. The Parties agree to amend Section 4.2, “Attachments,” by deleting Attachments A-C
and substituting the amended Attachments A-C which are included in this Amendment as Exhibit 1.

4.2 Application. The Parties agree that all references to Attachments A-C throughout the Contract will now
reference the Amended Attachments A-C included in this Amendment.

5.0 INCORPORATION

5.1 County and Contractor hereby incorporate this Amendment into the Contract and hereby incorporate the
Contract into this Amendment for the purposes of interpretation of both. Except for the changes made in this Amendment,
County and Contractor hereby ratifS’ all terms and conditions of the Contract as amended. The Contract, as amended, with

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Modification No. 2
Page 3 of 12

the changes made in this Amendment constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties and supersedes any prior
undertaking or written or oral agreements or representations between the Parties.

6.0 EFFECTIVE DATE

6.1 Effective. This Amendment shall be effective when fully executed by County and Contractor.

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



EXHIBIT 1

Attachment A, Amended Work Statement
Attachment B, Amended Project Budget
Attachment C, Amended Program Budget

Modification No. 2
Page 4 of 12

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Modification No. 2
Page 5 of 12

ATTACHMENT A

WORK STATEMENT

CDBG Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation

The SUBRECIPIENT will use CDBG funds to finance housing improvement activities
and related costs, through 5-year deferred loans of up to $24,999 per household. The
SUBRECIPIENT will primarily concentrate efforts on correcting and eliminating
deficiencies affecting health and safety. As this work statement reflects process
oriented workflows, the COUNTY and SUBRECIPIENT will discuss and make changes
to ensure the most efficient use of time and resources.

The major tasks that the SUBRECIPIENT will perform include, but are not necessarily
limited to thefollowing:
1.0 Creation or revision of homeowner rehabilitation program procedures and

marketing materials.
SUBRECIPIENT will use any program forms created by Travis County for the
administration of the program, including but not limited to the program
application, program agreement and homeowner certifications. Subject to review
and approval by the COUNTY, the SUBRECIPIENT will create any additional
necessary program documents or revise existing documents to conform to
program guidelines.

2.0 Marketing and Outreach.
SUBRECIPIENT will conduct sufficient advertisement and outreach to ensure
that enough eligible applicants from the CDBG Service Area participate in the
program. The outreach efforts should include efforts to attract those eligible
households who are identified as least likely to learn about or apply for the
program. Once awarded, the SUBRECIPIENT will begin determining the
eligibility of clients on the Travis County waiting list, the SUBRECIPIENT will
also begin the process of translating into Spanish all documents the client must
read and! or sign. When the SUBRECIPIENT encounter clients who speak only
Spanish, the SUBRECIPIENT will assign their bilingual case workers to them to
insure the clients understand the process and the project. If the client is immobile
or elderly without support family, the SUBRECIPIENT will visit the client and scan
in the required backup documentation at the residence to facilitate the intake. If
the applicant is considered ineligible, the SUBRECIPIENT shall send a letter of
determination and applicable appeal processes to such applicant.

3.0 Work write-ups.
Once client and property are determined eligible, the SUBRECIPIENT will
conduct a home inspection and interview to perform a work write-up, create
drawings and project specifications and take “before photos”. Once completed
and agreed to by the owner, the SUB RECIPIENT will submit the work write-up to
Travis County for review and completion of the Mechanic’s Lien Contract. The
detailed work write-up will include estimated costs of each activity, materials to

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Modification No. 2
Page 6 of 12

be used, and industry or regulatory standards to be met.

4.0 Environmental and Lead-Based Paint Hazard Review.
Once a client is determined eligible, the SUBRECIPIENT will forward the
Environmental and Historical requests to Travis County for final clearance. The
SUBRECIPIENT must complete lead-based paint hazard review based upon the
SUBRECIPIENT’S established lead based paint practices ensuring they follow
HUD regulations regarding lead-safe work practices wherever a painted surface
is disturbed in a house built before 1978. The SUBRECIPIENT will provide a
copy of their lead based paint procedures and any forms for inclusion into the
Subrecipient Manual. The environmental review will be approved by the
COUNTY before the SUBRECIPIENT moves forward with the repairs of each
home. A final lead clearance report will be provided to the COUNTY.

5.0 Delivery of Services.
Upon Travis County approval, the SUBRECIPIENT will bid out the project to their
list of contractors. Each of these contractors will provide a turnkey bid price to
perform the work on a line-item bid. Once reviewed, the SUBRECIPIENT will
determine the best contractor for the project! client. This is normally the low
bidder but experience has taught us that not all contractors match the client or
the project. The client is the important factor — it is their home. The
SUBRECIPIENT may use non-profit agencies to assist in achieving goals, and
will treat them as subrecipients rather than Contractors. All actions will be in
alignment with the SUBRECIPIENT’S procurement policies. The
SUBRECIPIENT will award the selected contractor or subrecipient a work order
and conduct a preconstruction conference with the client to again go over the
work to be done, give the client samples and selections to choose from (shingle,
flooring, paint, etc.), and secure their signature authorizing the work.

6.0 Periodic and final inspections:
The SUBRECIPIENT will begin work immediately after the project is approved
and the permits are secured by the contractor. The SUBRECIPIENT will
complete the work in a timely manner. Several times during the project, if not
daily, the SUBRECIPIENT will visit the site to do construction management, and
will mediate in the event of owner dissatisfaction with the work done. A
subcontracted ICC Residential Building Inspector will inspect all plumbing,
electrical, structural and mechanical work. A licensed engineering firm will
design, inspect and approve any major foundation work, and the
SUBRECIPIENT keep engineers’ letters of approval on file. The homeowner,
contractor and the SUBRECIPIENT will agree to and sign any change orders
before the SUBRECIPIENT initiate any changes to the work. The
SUBRECIPIENT will keep on file for inspectionall supportive documentation
proving the necessity of the change order, and understands that the COUNTY
will review change orders after the fact potentially resulting in unapproved costs.

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Modification No. 2
Page 7 of 12

Upon completion of the project, the SUBRECIPIENT will draw up any necessary
punch-list or remedial work needed. Upon final cleanup and completion, the
SUBRECIPIENT will conduct a final walk through with the client and the
COUNTY. The client, once satisfied, will sign the final acceptance and
adjustment to the final deferred loan amount which will begin the one year
warranty period by the general contractor. The SUBRECIPIENT will take “after
photos” at this time. The general contractor will submit their invoice along with a
lien release affidavit showing all material and labor have been paid for and
releasing the homeowner, the SUBRECIPIENT and Travis County. The
SUBRECIPIENT will process all approved invoices (with supporting
documentation) without delay, issue payment to the general contractor and
submit monthly reimbursement requests to Travis County.

7.0 Maintenance of case files and other records.

7.1 The SUBRECIPIENT will maintain case files for 4 years after the release of
the mechanic’s lien , including work write-ups, the assistance agreement
between the property owner and entity performing the rehabilitation (either a
subcontractor or the SUBRECIP lENT), documentation on all necessary licenses
and permits, and site visit/inspection reports, including final inspection.

7.2 The SUBRECIPIENT will document income, age, race or ethnic origin, and
disability status for each assistance household as well as track HUD Outcome
indicators for each assisted household. These indicators are, but are not limited
to:

• Units occupied by elderly household

• Units brought from substandard to standard condition

• Units meeting Energy Star Standard

• Units made leadLisafe

• Units made more accessible

7.3 The SUBRECIPIENT will maintain these and other program and financial
records in accordance with the general requirements for record keeping specified
in Sections 8.0, 9.0, 13.5.7, 16.1.3, 16.4 and 16.5 of this Agreement.

8.0 GOALS AND OBJECTIVES.
8.1 National Objective. The national objective for CDBG funds under this
Contract is Low to Moderate Income Housing as defined in 24 CFR Part 570.208
(a) (3).

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Modification No. 2
Page 8 of 12

8.2 Activity. Offeror willact to provide home rehabilitation services to eligible
homeowners. This eligible activity is defined in 24 CFR Part 570.202.

8.3 Goal. The goal for performance under the Contract is to provide a suitable
living environment for low to moderate income households.

8.4 Performance Indicators/Objectives. Performance Indicators/objectives
include the following: Deferred Loans for home rehabilitation to low and moderate
income households.

8.5 Number of Households. The an estimated 58 households will be assisted
during the award period.

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Modification No. 2
Page 9 of 12

ATTACHMENT B

PROJECT SCHEDULE

CDBG Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Program

Task Date Achieved

Execute Subrecipient Agreement February 2013

$1,088,000 expended July 1,2014

Begin spending $450,000 After release of funds is received
anticipated June 24, 2015

$450,000 expended July 30, 2015

Please note: It is possible that if 50% of funds are not expended by the end of April
2015, an amount equal to the shortage may be removed from the Contract.

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



ATTACHMENT C

PROGRAM BUDGET

Modification No. 2
Page 10 of 12

CDBG Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Program

Full Program Budget Summary

A. Home Rehabilitation Funding

B. Program Delivery: Direct Support Costs

Total Funding Requested

$ 1,420,000

$ 98,000

$ 1,518,000

A. Home Rehabilitation Funding

Please provide the amount of funding requested for rehabilitation services. Costs incurred under this line Item
are related to the actual repair and need to include any costs that would be experienced by the homeowner if
they were to complete the repair on their own. The maximum amount of assistance per house is $24,999.

A. Home Rehabilitation Amount Requested $ 1,420,000

Included in the costs for rehabilitation of each home are construction management (time for work write ups and
change orders, project management, final walk through and sign off), inspections by an third party IBC certified
Inspector, and lead based paint and asbestos testing. In the area below, please identify the flat fee charged per
HOUSE or PER VISIT.

Task

Construction

Management

IBC Inspector

Lead Based Paint Testing

Asbestos Testing

# of Hours Rate per Hour Flat Fee Per Home or Visit

$2000 per house

$50 per visit

$600 per house

$600 per house

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Modification No. 2
Page 11 of 12

B. Program Delivery: Direct Support Costs Breakdown

These costs are not included In the loan amount to the homeowner, but are costs required for the delivers, of
the program. All direct support costs must have a direct tracking system to be charged to the grant (e.g.
timesheets, copier logs, mileage logs, etc.). No costs associated with indirect costs may be charged. In the
budget narrative section for each line item, include enough detail to justify the amount of funding requested
and the method used to track expenses.

Salary, Wages and Fringe Benefits

Budget Narrative:

$ 98,000

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Modification No. 2
Page 12 of 12

EXHIBIT C- 1:SUBCONTRACTED EXPENSES FORM
for Home Repair Program funded by Travis County CDBG Program

Agency: Meals on Wheels and More, Inc.Program: Travis County CDBG Home Repair Program

Please provide TOTAL PROGRAM information for all of this program’s subcontractors whose
rofessionaI services will be charged to this program.

SUBCONTRACT #1
Name of Subcontractor ATS Engineers

Dollar Amounts by Funding Source:

TRAVIS COUNTY amount ALL OTHER Sources amount TOTAL
$ 5,800 $ $ 5,800

IBC inspections

As needed

Term of Subcontract

Services to be Subcontracted

Number of Clients to be Served (if
applicable)

SUBCONTRACT #2

Name of Subcontractor

Term of Subcontract

Services to be Subcontracted

Number of Clients to be Served (if
applicable)
Dollar Amounts by Funding Source:

TRAVIS COUNTY amount ALL OTHER Sources amount TOTAL
$ 10,000 $ 10,000

SUBCONTRACT #3

Name of Subcontractor TRI

Term of Subcontract Same as grant term

Services to be Subcontracted Lead Testing and Asbestos testing

Number of Clients to be Served (if Approx. 20
applicable)
Dollar Amounts by Funding Source:

TRAVIS COUNTY amount ALL OTHER Sources amount TOTAL
$ 3,000 $ $ 3,000

Tucker Engineering

Same as grant term

Foundation design and inspection

Approx. 9

(If needed for additional subcontracts, copy blocks above to a new page and re-number them
accordingly)

Same as grant term

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: June 24, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: David Walch 46663; Marvin Brice 49765  
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Contract No. 4400001995, KG 
Empowerment Group, LLC for Job Readiness and GED Preparation 
Training Services. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

This contract will be for the provision of a Job Readiness Training 
Program serving as a vehicle to help juveniles under the care of Juvenile 
Probation to regain focus, develop employable skills, and position them 
to transition to the community upon release.   

The GED preparation Program serves to prepare youth to take their 
GED exams by providing direction and tutoring in Reading, Writing, 
Math, Social Studies and Science.  

Section 4.10 of the contract states: Pursuant to TEX. LOC. GOV’T. 
CODE ANN. § 262  et seq., Commissioners Court hereby orders that 
this Agreement is exempt from the requirements of the County 
Purchasing Act because it is a contract for the purchase of personal or 
professional services. 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $0.00 has been 
spent against this contract/requirement. 

 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount:  As-Needed Contract   
Contract Type:  Professional Services Agreement 
Contract Period:  June 24, 2014 – September 30, 2015 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 6Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 Funding Information: 

  SAP Shopping Cart #: 
  Funding Account(s):    

Grant Number/Cost Center:  800338 (Eagle Soars 
Grant)/1450400001 

  Internal Order:  101382 
  Product Code:  86110000 
  Commitment Item:  511370 

  Comments:  As-Needed Contract 
 
 

 
 
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



• 4400001995
Page 1 of26

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT/CONTRACT

BETWEEN

TRAVIS COUNTY

AND

KG EMPOWERMENT GROUP, LLC

FOR

JOB READINESS AND GED PREPARATION TRAINING SERVICES

CONTRACT NO. 4400001995

Travis County Purchasing Office

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001995
Page 2 of 26

Cjf;TV

TABLE OF CONTENTS
OFFI

1.0 Definitions 3
2.0 Term 4
3.0 Contractor’s Responsibilities 4
4.0 Compensation, Billing and Payment 7
5.0 Records, Confidentiality and Access 9
6.0 Amendments /Modifications 10
7.0 Miscellaneous 10

Approvals 15

Attachments

Attachment A — Scope of Services — Job Readiness and GED Preparation Training 16
Attachment B — Fee Schedule 19
Attachment C — Insurance Requirements 20
Attachment D — Ethics Affidavit including 23

Exhibit 1 - List of Key Contracting Persons 24
Attachment E — Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility
and voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001995
Page 3 of 26

STATE OF TEXAS §
§

COUNTY OF TRAVIS §

JOB READINESS AND GED PREPARATION TRAINING SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between the following parties: Travis County, Texas, (the
“COUNTY”) and KG Empowerment Group, LLC (the “CONTRACTOR”).

WHEREAS, COUNTY desires to obtain job readiness and GED preparation training services for juveniles
under the supervision, care and/or custody of the Juvenile Probation Department, and;

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR has the professional ability and expertise to provide such services;

NOW, THEREFORE, COUNTY and CONTRACTOR agree as follows:

1.0 DEFINITIONS

In this Agreement,

1.1 “Commissioners Court” means the Travis County Commissioners Court.

1.2 “Purchasing Agent” means Travis County Purchasing Agent Cyd V. Grimes, or her successor.

1.3 “County Auditor” means Travis County Auditor Nicki Riley, or her successor.

1.4 “Parties” mean Travis County and KG Empowerment, LLC

1.5 “Is doing business” and “has done business” mean:

1.5.1 Paying or receiving any money or other valuable thing in exchange for personal services
or for purchase or use of any property interest, either real or personal, either legal equitable; or

1.5.2 Loaning or receiving a loan of money, services, or goods or otherwise creating or having
in existence any legal obligation or debt;

1.5.3 but does not include

1.5.3.1 any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a Key Contracting Person at a
posted, published, or marked price available to the public,

1.5.3.2 any financial services product sold to a Key Contracting Person for personal,
family or household purposes in accordance with pricing guidelines applicable to
similarly situated individuals with similar risks as determined by Contractor in the
ordinary course of its business; and

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001995
Page 4 of 26

1.5.3.3 a transaction for a fmancial service or insurance coverage made on behalf of
Contractor if Contractor is a national or multinational corporation by an agent, employee
or other representative of Contractor who does not know and is not in a position that he or
she should have known about the Contract.

1. 6 “Key Contracting Person” means any person or business listed in Exhibit 1 to the Affidavits
attached to this contract and marked as Attachment D.

1.7 “Director” means the Chief Juvenile Probation Officer of Travis County, who will administer
this Agreement, or his/her designated representative.

1.8 “Client” means a juvenile under the supervision, care and/or custody of the Juvenile Probation
Department who is referred to CONTRACTOR for services.

2.0 TERM

2.1 Initial Term. The Initial Term of this Agreement shall commence upon execution and shall
continue until September 30, 2015.

2.2 Renewal Term(s). Subject to continued funding by the Commissioners Court, this Agreement
shall thereafter automatically renew on October 1 of each year for five (5) succeeding terms of one year
unless sooner terminated by either party as provided herein.

2.3 Termination. Either party may terminate this Contract at any time by giving the other party
written notice of such termination at least thirty (30) days before the effective date of the termination.

3.0 CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSffiILITIES

3.1 Scope of Services. CONTRACTOR shall perform, in a timely manner, the services and activities
described in the Scope of Services set forth as Attachment A to this Agreement, which is expressly
incorporated herein and made a part hereof.

3.2 Ethical Standards. CONTRACTOR shall perform all services and exercise all discretionary
powers in a manner consistent with applicable canons of professional ethics and her best professional
judgment.

3.3 Subcontracting. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, CONTRACTOR is prohibited
from hiring or subcontracting with any other person to perform any of the duties that it has accepted as
part of this Agreement.

3.4 Civil Rights/ADA Compliance. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services and activities
pursuant to this Agreement in compliance with the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Public Law 93-1122, Section 504, and with the provisions of the Americans
with Disabilities Act of 1990, Public Law 10 1-336 [S.933].

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001995
Page 5 of 26

3.5 Legal Compliance. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all federal, state, county, and city laws,
rules, regulations and ordinances applicable to the provision of the services described herein and the
performance of all obligations undertaken pursuant to this Agreement.

3.6 Payment of Property Taxes. CONTRACTOR warrants that CONTRACTOR is not currently
delinquent in payment of property taxes to the Travis County Tax Assessor Collector.

3.7 Insurance Requirements CONTRACTOR shall comply with the insurance requirements set out
in Attachment C, “Insurance Requirements”, which is incorporated herein by reference and made a part
hereof.

3.8 Federal Funds. CONTRACTOR warrants that no Federal appropriated funds have been paid or
will be paid, by or on behalf of CONTRACTOR, to any person for influencing or attempting to
influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with awarding of any Federal
contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

3.9 Contractor Requests for Information. CONTRACTOR may communicate all requests for
direction and factual information relating to services performed pursuant to this Agreement to the
Director and may rely on all factual information supplied by the Director in response to his requests.
However, the Director shall not serve as the agent of COUNTY or Commissioners Court or any elected
official of COUNTY for any other purpose than conveying factual information.

3.10 Professional Licensure/Certification. CONTRACTOR shall maintain all necessary licenses and
certifications related to the professional services being provided hereunder, and shall perform all services
under this Agreement according to the applicable federal, state, and local rules and regulations. In the
event licensure or certification expires, is revoked, suspended, probated, or is canceled, CONTRACTOR
shall inform COUNTY of such event within five (5) working days.

3.11 Standard of Care. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, CONTRACTOR
shall perform all services and responsibilities required of CONTRACTOR under this Agreement using
at least that standard of care which a reasonably prudent professional in Travis County, Texas would use
in similar circumstances. CONTRACTOR warrants the duties within this Agreement shall be performed
in a good and workmanlike manner. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to relieve
CONTRACTOR of this duty.

3.12 Duty to Report. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that suspected or alleged cases of child abuse or
exploitation or neglect of clients served under this Agreement are immediately reported to the Director
and to the appropriate authorities as required by law and in conformity with the procedures detailed in
Chapter 261 of the Texas Family Code. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that its employees, interns,
volunteers, subcontractors, agents, and consultants are properly trained in the reporting requirements and
procedures of chapter 261 of the Texas Family Code.

3.13 Duty to Disclose Information. CONTRACTOR has an affirmative duty under this Agreement to
promptly ascertain and disclose in sufficient detail all of the following information to Director:

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001995
Page 6 of 26

3.13.1 Any and all licensure complaints and any corrective action required by any of
CONTRACTOR’S licensing authorities or funding entities.

3.13.2 Any arrest of any employee, intern, volunteer, subcontractor, agent and/or consultant of
CONTRACTOR.

3.13.3 Any finding of “Reason to Believe” by a state regulatory agency in a child abuse, neglect
and exploitation investigation where CONTRACTOR was the alleged or designated perpetrator.

3.14 CONTRACTOR certifies that the individual or business entity named in this Agreement is not
ineligible to receive the specified grant or payment under Section 231.006 of the Texas Family Code and
acknowledges that this Agreement may be terminated and payment withheld if this certification is
inaccurate.

3.15 Disqualifying Criminal History.

3.15.1 CONTRACTOR agrees to provide documentation to DIRECTOR or her designee
that a criminal background check has been completed on any employee, intern, volunteer,
subcontractor, agent and/or consultant of CONTRACTOR, or CONTRACTOR whose duties in
connection with this Agreement may include contact with youth referred under this Agreement.
To comply with this requirement, a criminal background check shall include a fmgerprint-based
criminal history search of criminal information databases maintained by the Federal Bureau of
Investigation and by the State of Texas and shall have been conducted within two (2) years prior
to assignment of services under this Agreement.

In addition to the required criminal background check, the DIRECTOR or her designee will
consult any child abuse registry maintained by the State or locality in which any employee,
intern, volunteer, subcontractor, agent and/or consultant of CONTRACTOR, or CONTRACTOR
will work whose duties in connection with this Agreement may include contact with youth
referred under this Agreement. Any employee, intern, volunteer, subcontractor, agent and/or
consultant of CONTRACTOR, or CONTRACTOR whose name appears on any child abuse
registry will be disqualified from providing services to youth referred under this Agreement.

3.15.2 CONTRACTOR shall not assign or allow any employee, intern, volunteer, subcontractor,
agent and/or consultant of CONTRACTOR, or CONTRACTOR to provide services to youth referred under
this Agreement whose criminal background check reflects a disqualifying criminal history. To comply with
this requirement, a disqualifying criminal history includes: any felony conviction or deferred adjudication
within the past ten (10) years; any jailable misdemeanor conviction or deferred adjudication within the past
five (5) years; any current felony or jailable misdemeanor deferred adjudication, probation or parole; or the
requirement to register as a sex offender.

3.15.3 CONTRACTOR shall not assign or allow any employee, intern, volunteer, subcontractor,
agent and/or consultant of CONTRACTOR, or CONTRACTOR to provide services to youth referred under
this Agreement who have:

1. Engaged in sexual abuse in a prison, jail, lockup, community confinement facility, juvenile
facility, or other institution (as defmed in 42 U.S.C. 1997);

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001995
Page 7 of 26

2. Been convicted of engaging or attempting to engage in sexual activity in the community
facilitated by force, overt or implied threats of force, or coercion, or if the victim did not
consent or was unable to consent or refuse; or
3. Been civilly or administratively adjudicated to have engaged in the activity described in
subparagraph 2 of this section.

3.16 Financial Reporting. Upon request, CONTRACTOR shall provide COUNTY copies of profit and
loss statements, annual fmancial statements, audit reports, and other financial records and reports that may
be requested by COUNTY. COUNTY shall have the right to conduct onsite review of CONTRACTOR’S
fmancial records and source documents.

3.17 CONTRACTOR is hereby notified that state funds may be used to pay for services rendered to
Travis County Juvenile Probation. For this reason, CONTRACTOR shall account separately for the receipt
and expenditure of all funds received as payment under this Agreement, and shall adhere to Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in the accounting, reporting and auditing of such funds.
CONTRACTOR agrees to provide COUNTY an independent financial audit of all state funds received
under this Agreement at least once a year. The audit shall be prepared in accordance with Generally
Accepted Auditing Standards and any other audit requirements of COUNTY or TJJD.

3.18 Monitoring. COUNTY shall have the right to conduct periodic fmancial and programmatic
monitoring of CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR agrees to cooperate fully with COUNTY’S monitoring
activities.

3.19 Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion from
Participation in Contracts Exceeding $100,000.00

The Contractor certifies, by entering into this Contract, that neither it nor its principals are debarred,
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in
this transaction by any federal department or agency. The Contractor shall include this certification
requirement in all subcontracts to this contract that exceed $100,000.00.
*Form is provided as Attachment E*

4.0 COMPENSATION. BILLING AND PAYMENT

4.1 Fees. For and in consideration of the satisfactory performance of the services described in
Attachment A, Scope of Services, by CONTRACTOR pursuant to the terms of this Agreement,
COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR in accordance with the Fee Schedule which is attached hereto as
Attachment B and made a part hereof

4.1.1 Not to exceed amount: Not applicable -- As needed basis contract
4.1.2 Additional Fees: Not applicable

4.2 Satisfactory Completion of Services. COUNTY shall not be responsible for the costs of any
services under this Agreement that are not performed to COUNTY’ S satisfaction and given COUNTY’ S
approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. COUNTY’S obligation to make any payment to

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001995
Page 8 of 26

CONTRACTOR is dependent upon completion of the services invoiced in a timely, good and
professional manner and at a standard acceptable in CONTRACTOR’S profession.

4.3 Timely Payment. The COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR within thirty (30) days after the
receipt of a complete and correct invoice by the Travis County Juvenile Probation Department.
Accrual and payment of interest on overdue payments shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas
Government Code

4.4 Invoicing. Payment is to be made monthly. CONTRACTOR shall submit an invoice no later
than ten (10) days from the last day of the month for which payment is being requested. Each invoice
shall include the following information:

4.4.1 the contract Reference Number;

4.4.2 an invoice number and invoice date,

4.4.3 the designation of the training as job readiness or GED preparation

4.4.5 the total number of training hours completed per monthly billing cycle and the
corresponding total amount billed

In addition to the invoice, CONTRACTOR shall attach a training roster as supporting documentation
that lists the name of each youth served along with the following information corresponding with each
youth named and dates of his/her participation.

Invoices may be e-mailed to: Michael Williams at Michael.williams@co.travis.tx.us,
or original invoices may be sent to:

Travis County Juvenile Probation Dept.
Financial Services

2515 South Congress Ave
Austin, Texas 78704

4.5 Overpayment. CONTRACTOR shall refund to COUNTY any money which has been paid to
CONTRACTOR by COUNTY, which COUNTY determines has resulted in overpayment to
CONTRACTOR. Such refund shall be made by CONTRACTOR to COUNTY within thirty (30) days
after the refund is requested by COUNTY. If COUNTY enters into any subsequent Agreement with
CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR fails to refund any money owed to COUNTY within thirty (30)
days of request, COUNTY may offset the difference against the next advance or payment payable to
CONTRACTOR

4.6 Taxpayer Identification. CONTRACTOR shall provide COUNTY with an Internal Revenue
Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification that is completed in
compliance with the Internal Revenue Code, its rules and regulations, and a statement of entity status in
a form satisfactory to the County Auditor before any Agreement funds are payable.

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001995
Page 9 of 26

4.7 Delinquent Property Taxes. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if the
CONTRACTOR is delinquent in the payment of property taxes at the time of invoicing, the
CONTRACTOR hereby assigns any payments to be made for services rendered hereunder to the Travis
County Tax Assessor-Collector for the payment of said delinquent taxes.

4.8 Disbursements to Persons with Outstanding Debt.

4.8.1 In accordance with Section 154.045 of the Local Government Code, if notice of
indebtedness has been filed with the County Auditor or County Treasurer evidencing the
indebtedness of CONTRACTOR to the State, the COUNTY or a salary fund, a warrant may not
be drawn on a COUNTY fund in favor of the CONTRACTOR, or an agent or assignee of
CONTRACTOR until:

4.8.1.1 the County Treasurer notifies CONTRACTOR in writing that the debt is
outstanding; and

4.8.1.2 the debt is paid.

4.8.2 “Debt” includes delinquent taxes, fines, fees, and indebtedness arising from written
agreements with the COUNTY.

4.8.3 COUNTY may apply any funds COUNTY owes CONTRACTOR to the outstanding
balance of debt for which notice is made under section 4.8.1.1 above, if the notice includes a
statement that the amount owed by the COUNTY to CONTRACTOR may be applied to reduce
the outstanding debt.

4.9 Period of Services. COUNTY shall not be liable for costs incurred or performances rendered by
CONTRACTOR before or after the term of this Agreement.

4.10 Exemption from County Purchasing Act. Pursuant to TEX. LOC. GOV’T. CODE ANN. § 262
q., Commissioners Court hereby orders that this Agreement is exempt from the requirements of the

County Purchasing Act because it is a contract for the purchase of personal or professional services.

4.11 Funding Out. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if, during budget planning and
adoption, Commissioners Court fails to provide funding for this Contract for the following fiscal year of
COUNTY, COUNTY may terminate this Contract after giving CONTRACTOR 20 days written notice
that this Contract is terminated due to the failure to fund it.

4.12 CONTRACTOR acknowledges and agrees that COUNTY is under no obligation to refer any
clients to CONTRACTOR for services under this Contract and this Contract shall not be so construed.

5.0 RECORDS CONFiDENTIALITY AND ACCESS

5.1 Confidentiality. CONTRACTOR shall establish a method to secure the confidentiality of records
and other information relating to clients in accordance with the applicable federal, state and local laws,
rules and regulations, and applicable professional ethical standards. This provision shall not be
construed as limiting the right of COUNTY access to client information. Upon authorization from

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001995
Page 10 of 26

COUNTY to render client files anonymous, CONTRACTOR agrees to mask information identifying
clients in a way that will not obstruct COUNTY’ S monitoring and evaluation duties in any way.

5.2 Records Maintenance. CONTRACTOR shall create, maintain, and retain, and shall make
reasonably available to COUNTY, all necessary and appropriate records, information, and
documentation (including all accounting records) relating to services provided under the terms of this
Agreement for a period of three (3) years after the provision of the services, or until any litigation
concerning any of the services has been satisfactorily resolved, whichever occurs later. CONTRACTOR
shall provide copies of such records to COUNTY upon written request to CONTRACTOR at a cost
mutually agreed to by COUNTY and CONTRACTOR

5.3 Access to Records. COUNTY or its duly authorized representatives shall have access to any and
all records, information and documentation of CONTRACTOR, which are directly pertinent to the
services to be performed under this Agreement for the purposes of making audits, examinations,
excerpts, and transcriptions. CONTRACTOR shall maintain the records, information, and
documentation in a readily available state and location, reasonably accessible to COUNTY or their
authorized representatives.

6.0 AMENDMENTS/MODIFICATIONS

6.1 General. Unless specifically provided otherwise in this Agreement, any change to the terms of
this Agreement or any attachments to it shall be in writing and signed by each party. IT IS
ACKNOWLEDGED BY CONTRACTOR THAT NO OFFICER, AGENT, EMPLOYEE OR
REPRESENTATiVE OF COUNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY TO CHANGE THE TERMS OF THIS
AGREEMENT OR ANY ATTACHMENTS TO IT UNLESS EXPRESSLY GRANTED THAT
AUTHORITY BY COMMISSIONERS COURT.

6.2 Requests for Changes. CONTRACTOR shall submit all requests for changes to the terms of this
Agreement or any attachment to it to the Director with a copy to the Purchasing Agent.

6.3 Purchasing Agent Authority. Contractor understands and agrees that the Purchasing Agent has
certain authority to approve an Amendment subject to applicable law (specifically the County
Purchasing Act, TEX. LOC. GOV’T CODE, Chapter 262, and other applicable law) and County policy,
as approved by the Commissioners Court. Within that authority, the Purchasing Agent may approve
Amendment requests under this Contract. The Purchasing Agent will advise Contractor as to such
authority upon submission of a request for Amendment; at any time, the Purchasing Agent may submit
any request to the Commissioners Court for approval, regardless of the authority of the Purchasing
Agent to sign the Amendment.

7.0 MISCELLANEOUS:

7.1 INDEMNIFICATION. CONTRACTOR AGREES TO AND SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD
HARMLESS COUNTY, ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES, FROM AND AGAINST
ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, NEGLIGENCE, CAUSES OF ACTION, SUITS,
AND LIABILITY OF EVERY KIND, iNCLUDiNG ALL EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT
COSTS, AND ATTORNEY’S FEES, FOR INJURY TO OR DEATH OF ANY PERSON, FOR ANY
ACT OR OMISSION BY CONTRACTOR, OR FOR DAMAGE TO ANY PROPERTY, ARISiNG

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001995
Page 11 of26

OUT OF OR iN CONNECTION WITH THE WORK DONE BY CONTRACTOR UNDER THIS
CONTRACT.

7.2 Copyrights, Patents and Licenses. CONTRACTOR represents and warrants that (i) all applicable
copyrights, patents, licenses, and other proprietary or intellectual property rights which may exist on
materials used in this Agreement have been adhered to and (ii) the County shall not be liable for any
infringement of those rights and any rights granted to the County shall apply for the duration of this
Agreement. Consultant shall indemnify the County, its officers, agents, and employees from all claims,
losses, damages, causes of action, and liability of every kind including expenses of litigation, court costs
and attorney fees for damages to any person or property arising in connection with any alleged or actual
infringement of existing patents, licenses, or copyrights applicable to materials used in this Agreement.

7.3 Claims Notification. If any claim, or other action, including proceedings before an
administrative agency, is made or brought by any person, firm, corporation, or other entity against
CONTRACTOR or COUNTY in relation to the performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall
give written notice to COUNTY of the claim or other action within three (3) working days after being
notified of it or the threat of it; the name and address of the person, firm, corporation or other entity that
made or threatened to make a claim, or that instituted or threatened to institute any type of action or
proceeding; the basis of the claim, action or proceeding; the court or administrative tribunal, if any,
where the claim, action or proceeding was instituted; and the name or names of any person against
whom this claim is being made or threatened. This written notice shall be given in the manner provided
herein. Except as otherwise directed, CONTRACTOR shall furnish to COUNTY copies of all pertinent
papers received by CONTRACTOR with respect to these claims or actions.

7.4 Suspension. If CONTRACTOR fails to comply with any provision herein, COUNTY may,
upon written notification to CONTRACTOR, suspend this Agreement in whole or in part and withhold
further payments to CONTRACTOR, until CONTRACTOR is in compliance with the terms of this
Agreement or Agreement is terminated as provided herein.

7.5 Non-Waiver of Default

7.5.1 No payment, act or omission by COUNTY may constitute or be construed as a waiver of
any breach or default of CONTRACTOR which then exists or may subsequently exist.

7.5.2 All rights of COUNTY under this Agreement are specifically reserved and any payment,
act or omission shall not impair or prejudice any remedy or right to COUNTY under it. Any
right or remedy in this Agreement shall not preclude the exercise of any other right or remedy
under this Agreement or under any law nor shall any action taken in the exercise of any right or
remedy be deemed a waiver of any other rights or remedies.

7.6 Forfeiture of Contract If CONTRACTOR has done business with a Key Contracting Person
during the 365 day period immediately prior to the date of execution of this Agreement or does business
with any Key Contracting Person at any time after the date of execution of this Agreement and prior to
the full performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall forfeit all benefits of this Agreement and
COUNTY shall retain all performance by CONTRACTOR and recover all considerations, or the value
of all consideration, paid to CONTRACTOR pursuant to this Agreement, provided, however, that this

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001995
Page 12 of26

section may be waived by Commissioners Court pursuant to Section 3(g) of the Travis County Ethics
Policy.

7.7 Entire Agreement

7.7.1 Entire Agreement. All written or oral agreements between the parties to this Agreement
related to the subject matter of this Agreement that were made prior to the execution of this
Agreement have been reduced to writing and are contained in this Agreement or in the policies
and procedures approved by Commissioners Court for County. Any prior agreements, promises,
negotiations, or representations not expressly set forth in this document are of no force and effect.

7.7.2 Attachments. The attachments enumerated and denominated below are hereby made a
part of this Agreement, and constitute promised performances by CONTRACTOR in accordance
with all the provisions of this Agreement.

7.7.2.1 Scope of Services Attachments
7.7.2.1.1 Attachment A — Scope of Services Job Readiness and GED preparation

Training
7.7.2.2 Attachment B — Fee Schedule
7.7.2.3 Attachment C — Insurance Requirements
7.7.2.4 Attachment D — Ethics Affidavit including:

Exhibit 1 - List of Key Contracting Persons
7.7.2.5 Attachment E — Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension,

Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts

7.8 Notices:

7.8.1 Written Notice. Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement by
one party to the other shall be in writing and shall be given and deemed to have been given
immediately if delivered in person to the address set forth in this section for the party to whom
the notice is given, or on the third day following mailing if placed in the United States Mail,
postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail with return receipt requested, addressed to the
party at the address herein specified.

7.8.2 County Address. The address of County for all purposes under this Agreement shall be:

Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO (or her successor)
Travis County Purchasing Agent
P. 0. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767

With copies to (registered or certified mail with return receipt is not required):

Estela Medina (or her successor)
Chief Juvenile Probation Officer
Travis County Juvenile Probation Department
P.O. Box 1748

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001995
Page 13 of 26

Austin, Texas 78767

7.8.3 Contractor Address. The address of CONTRACTOR for all purposes under this
Agreement and for all notices hereunder shall be:

Kristy L. Gillespie
KG Empowerment Group, LLC
3003 Hill Street
Round Rock, Texas 78644

7.8.4 Change of Address. Each party may change the address for notice to it by giving written
notice of the change in compliance with Section 7.8. Any change in the address shall be reported
within fifteen (15) days of the change.

7.9 Authority of the DIRECTOR. The DIRECTOR will act on behalf of the COUNTY with respect to
the work to be performed under this Agreement. The DIRECTOR shall have complete authority to
interpret and define in writing COUNTY’S policies and decisions with respect to CONTRACTOR’S
services. The DIRECTOR may designate representatives to transmit instructions and receive
information.

7.10 Dispute Resolution. The Purchasing Agent will act as the County representative in disputes
where the Contractor has been unable to successfully resolve such dispute with the Department. Any
document, notice or correspondence in relation to the dispute at this stage not issued by or to the
Purchasing Agent is void unless otherwise stated in this Contract. If the Contractor does not agree with
any document, notice or correspondence relating to the dispute issued by the Purchasing Agent or other
authorized County person, the Contractor must submit a written notice to the Purchasing Agent within
ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the document, notice or correspondence outlining the exact point
of disagreement in detail. The Purchasing Agent will provide Contractor with a written response to the
dispute containing the final resolution by County. If the matter is not resolved to the Contractor’s
satisfaction in this final notice, Contractor may submit a written Notice of Appeal to the Commissioners
Court through the Purchasing Agent. This Notice of Appeal must be submitted within ten (10) calendar
days after receipt of the final unsatisfactory reply. Contractor then has the right to be heard by
Commissioners Court and the Purchasing Agent will coordinate placing the matter on the
Commissioners Court agenda.

7.11 Mediation. When mediation is acceptable to both parties in resolving a dispute arising under this
Agreement, the parties agree to use a mutually agreed upon mediator, or person appointed by a court of
competent jurisdiction for mediation as described in the Tex. Civ. Prac. And Rem. Code, 154.023.
Unless both parties are satisfied with the result of the mediation, the mediation will not constitute a fmal
and binding resolution of the dispute. All communications within the scope of the mediation must
remain confidential as described in Tex. Civ. Prac. And Rem Code 154.073, unless both parties agree, in
writing, to waive the confidentiality.

7.12 Cooperation and Coordination. CONTRACTOR shall cooperate and coordinate with COUNTY
staff and other contractors as reasonable and necessary and as required by the DIRECTOR.

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001995
Page 14 of 26

7.13 Independent Contractor. The parties expressly acknowledge and agree that CONTRACTOR is an
independent contractor, operating solely in that capacity, and assumes all of the rights, obligations and
liabilities applicable to him as an independent contractor. CONTRACTOR shall not be considered an
employee of COUNTY, or gain any rights against COUNTY pursuant to the COUNTY’ S personnel
policies.

7.14 Governing Law. The validity of this agreement and of any of its terms or provisions, as well as
the rights and duties of the parties hereunder, shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas.

7.14.1 Severability. Any clause, sentence, provision, paragraph, or article of this Agreement
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or ineffective shall not impair,
invalidate, or nullif, the remainder of this Agreement, but the effect thereof shall be limited to
the clause, sentence, provision, paragraph or article so held to be invalid, illegal, or ineffective.

7.14.2 Law and Venue. All obligations under this Agreement shall be performable in Travis
County, Texas. Venue for any litigation concerning this Agreement shall be in the City of
Austin, Travis County.

7.14.3 Assignment. No party may assign any of the rights or duties created by this Agreement
without the prior written approval of the other party. It is acknowledged by CONTRACTOR that
no officer, agent, employee or representative of COUNTY has any authority to assign any part of
this Agreement unless expressly granted that authority by Commissioners Court.

7.15 Binding Contract. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, this Agreement shall
be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR and their respective
successors, executors, administrators, and assigns. Neither the COUNTY nor the CONTRACTOR may
assign, sublet, or transfer his interest in or obligations under this Agreement without the written consent
of the other party hereto.

7.16 Performance of Other Services. As a part of this Agreement, it is understood that
CONTRACTOR is free to provide services outside this Agreement as it sees fit at those times which
CONTRACTOR is not obligated to COUNTY. It is also understood that COUNTY is free to have more
than one contractor providing the type of services included in this Agreement.

7. 17 Survival. Conditions and covenants of this Agreement which by their terms are performable
after the termination, expiration, or end of this Agreement shall survive such termination, expiration, or
end and remain fully performable.

7.18 Interpretational Guidelines

7.18.1 Computation of Time. When any period of time is stated in this Agreement, the time
shall be computed to exclude the first day and include the last day of the period. If the last day of
any period falls on a Saturday, Sunday or a day that COUNTY has declared a holiday for its
employees, these days shall be omitted from the computation.

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001995
Page 15 of 26

7.18.2 Number and Gender. Words of any gender in this Agreement shall be construed to
include any other gender and words in either number shall be construed to include the other
unless the context in the Agreement clearly requires otherwise.

7.18.3 Headings. The headings at the beginning of the various provisions of this Agreement
have been included only to make it easier to locate the subject matter covered by that section or
subsection and are not to be used in construing this Agreement.

7.18.4 ContractlAgreement. As used in this document, the terms “Contract” and “Agreement”
are synonymous.

7.19 Conflict of Interest:

If required by Chapter 176, Texas Local Government Code, the Contractor shall complete and
file the Conflict of Interest Questionnaire with the County Clerk, Elections Division, 5501
Airport Blvd., Austin, Texas 78751. The Contractor shall update this Questionnaire by
September 1 of each year for the duration of this Contract, as required by Chapter 176 of the
Local Government Code. In addition, if any statement on a submitted Questionnaire becomes
incomplete or inaccurate, the Contractor shall submit an updated Questionnaire. The Contractor
should note that the law requires the County to provide access to a filed Questionnaire on the
official Travis County Internet website.

DUPLICATE ORIGINALS

This Agreement will be executed in duplicate originals and be effective when executed by both parties.

KG Empowerment Group, LLC Travis County

By: Samuel T. Biscoe
Name a ci Title (Printed) Travis County Judge

Date: 5j))D)L) Date:_____________

Approved as to Legal Form By:
ASc

Approved by Purchasing:

_______________________________

Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO Purchasing Agent

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001995
Page 16 of 26

ATTACHMENT A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

TRAVIS CO. JUVENILE PROBATION RESIDENTIAL SERVICES

KG Empowerment Group’s

JOB READINESS AND GED PREPARATION PROGRAM

Program Proposal

• :
• •- •.••• ;• ••--•- •

I

•<(

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001995
Page 17 of26

KG Empowerment Group, LLC
Job Readiness and GED Preparation Program Proposal

GENERAL PROGRAM INFORMATION

KG Empowerment Group, LLC will develop a Job Readiness and GED training program with
Travis County Juvenile Probation Department (TCJPD) -Residential Services operated on the
South Austin campus at 2515 S. Congress Ave., Austin, TX 78704.

The Job Readiness Training Program will serve as a vehicle to help students regain focus,
develop employable skills, and position them to transition to the community upon release. In the
Job Readiness class, students will have the opportunity to acquire skills that will enhance their
ability to market themselves in the workplace. The primary focus of the Job Readiness class is to
provide students with ongoing job training on both the individual and group level as they prepare
for successful entry into the workforce.

The GED Preparation Program will serve to prepare students to take their GED exams. Students
will receive direct instruction and tutoring in the academic areas of Reading, Writing, Math,
Social Studies, and Science. Students will also have the opportunity for individual and group
study time. Practice tests will be administered on an ongoing basis to assess individual student’s
progress in each academic area.

KG Empowerment Group, LLC will contract a Job Readiness/GED Instructor who will work
with the TCJPD — Residential Services Program, including collaborating with TCJPD Staff and
interacting with residents on an as needed basis.

JOB READINESS CURRICULUM CORE

The Job Readiness Class will be offered as needed (as deemed necessary by TCJPD —

Residential Services). Within this setting, multiple teaching platforms will be utilized, including
direct instruction, project-based learning, and independent study. The Aztec Ready to Work
curriculum will be utilized, along with supplemental material to address specific gaps in
students’ learning. Students will gain specific skill-sets that may be implemented within their
future employment. Additionally, the Job Readiness Program will include:

• Communication Skills (appropriate workplace language, decision making, conflict
resolution)

• Professionalism (interview skills, resume writing, job searching skills, appropriate
workplace attire)

• Additional Professional Skill Building (decision making, time management, customer
service)

• Work Ethics
Career Interest Inventories to help students identify future potential career paths.

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001995
Page 18 of 26

• Marketability will be interwoven throughout all assignments to ensure that students
identify their own personal talents and become comfortable in utilizing their talents
regardless of the environment.

• After successful completion of the program, students will receive a Certificate of
Completion.

The GED Preparation Program will be offered as needed (as deemed necessary by TCJPD
Residential Services). Within this setting, multiple teaching platforms will be utilized, including
direct instruction, project-based learning, and independent study. GED preparation materials and
study guides will be used, along with supplemental material to address specific gaps in students’
learning. Students will gain knowledge in the areas of Reading, Writing, Math, Social Studies,
and Science, and will prepare to take their GED exams upon successful completion of practice
exams in each of these areas.

PROGRAM COST

KG Empowerment Group, LLC proposes a program cost of $30 per hour for up to 12 students to
include the following:

• Planning, development & implementation of the TCJPD Job Readiness Program and/or
GED Preparation Program.

• I (one) instructor.
• I (one) Job Readiness or GED class serving up to 12 students at a time.
• Rolling admission on an as needed basis to serve more students throughout the year.
a Curriculum designed to meet students’ individual needs.

PROGRAM SERVICE DELIVERY DETAILS

The TCJPD Job Readiness Program and GED Preparation Program will take place on an as
needed basis on the TJPD Intermediate Sanctions Center campus.

Students will be screened for eligibility by TCJPD Staff; however, KG Empowerment Group,
LLC proposes the following as the minimum requirements for program participants:

• At least 16 years 0 months of age.
• Meet a minimum of a 4th grade reading and math level on TABE Assessment.
• Good behavioral standing (to be defined by TCJPD Staff in consultation with KG

Empowerment).
• Motivation to continue the program to completion.

Students who complete the Job Readiness Program will receive a Certificate of Completion.
Students who are enrolled in the GED Preparation Program will be deemed eligible to take their
GED exams upon scoring a minimum of 150 on each of the Official Practice Tests in each
subject area.

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001995
Page 19 of 26

ATTACHMENT B
FEE SCHEDULE

For and in consideration of Contractor KG Empowerment Group, LLC’ s full and satisfactory
performance of the services and activities described in the Scope of Services Attachment A,
Travis County shall pay Contractor at a rate of:

$30.00 per hour for: Planning, Development and implementation of the TCJPD
Job Readiness Program and br GED Preparation Program.

Sessions will be held on-she at the TCJPD and will serve up to 12 students per training class.

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001995
Page 20 of 26

ATTACHMENT C
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Contractor shall have, and shall require all subcontractors providing services under this Contract to have,
Standard Insurance meeting the General Requirements as set forth below and sufficient to cover the needs of
Contractor and/or Subcontractor pursuant to applicable generally accepted business standardsDepending on
services provided by Contractor and/or Subcontractor(s), Supplemental Insurance Requirements or alternate
insurance options shall be imposed as follows:

I. General Requirements Applicable to All Contractors’ Insurance.

The following requirements apply to the Contractor and to Subcontractor(s) performing services or activities
pursuant to the terms of this Contract. Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the following concerning
insurance requirements applicable to Contractor and subcontractor(s):

A. The minimum types and limits of insurance indicated below shall be maintained throughout the
duration of the Contract.

B. Insurance shall be written by companies licensed in the State of Texas with an A.M. Best rating
of B+ VIII or higher.

C. Prior to commencing work under this Contract, the required insurance shall be in force as
evidenced by a Certificate of Insurance issued by the writing agent or carrier. A copy of the Certificate of
Insurance shall be forwarded to County immediately upon execution of this Contract.

D. Certificates of Insurance shall include the endorsements outlined below and shall be submitted
to the Travis County Purchasing Agent within ten (10) working days of execution of the contract by both
parties or the effective date of the Contract, whichever comes first. The Certificate(s) shall show the Travis
County contract number and all endorsements by number.

E. Insurance required under this Contract which names Travis County as Additional Insured shall be
considered primary for all claims.

F. Insurance limits shown below may be written as Combined Single Limits or structured using
primary and excess or umbrella coverage that follows the form of the primary policy.

G. County shall be entitled, upon its request and without expense, to receive certified copies of
policies and endorsements.

H. County reserves the right to review insurance requirements during y term of the Contract and
to require that Contractor make reasonable adjustments when the scope of services has been expanded.

I. Contractor shall not allow any insurance to be cancelled or lapse during y term of this
Contract. Contractor shall not permit the minimum limits of coverage to erode or otherwise be reduced.
Contractor shall be responsible for all premiums, deductibles and self-insured retention. All deductibles and
self-insured retention shall be shown on the Certificates of Insurance.

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001995
Page 21 of26

J. Insurance coverage specified in this Contract is not intended and will not be interpreted to limit
the responsibility or liability of the Contractor or subcontractor(s).

II. Specific Requirements

The following requirements (II.A - ll.E. inclusive) apply to the Contractor and Subcontractor(s) performing
services or activities pursuant to the terms of this Contract. Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the
following concerning insurance requirements aplicab1e to Contractor and subcontractor(s):

A. Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability Insurance

1. Coverage shall be consistent with statutory benefits outlined in the Texas Workers’
Compensation Act.

2. Employers’ Liability limits are:

$500,000 bodily injury each accident
$500,000 bodily injury by disease
$500,000 policy limit

3. Policies under this Section shall apply to State of Texas and include the following
endorsements in favor of Travis County and City of Austin:

a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304)
b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form 420601)

B. Commercial General Liability Insurance

1. Minimum limit:
$500,000* per occurrence for coverage A and B with a
$1,000,000 policy aggregate

2. The Policy shall contain or be endorsed as follows:
a. Blanket contractual liability for this Contract
b. Independent Contractor Coverage

3. The Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor of Travis County

4. a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form CG 2404)
b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form CG 0205)
c. Travis County named as additional insured (Form CG 2010)

* Supplement Insurance Requirement If child care, or housing arrangements for clients is provided, the
required limits shall be:

$ 1,000,000 per occurrence with a
$ 2,000,000 policy aggregate

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001996
Page 22 of 26

C. Business Automobile Liability Insurancet

1. If any form of transportation for clients is provided, coverage for all owned, non-owned, and
hired vehicles shall be maintained with a combined single limit of $300,000* per occurrence
2 Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor of Travis County

a Waiver of Subrogation (Form TE 2046A)
b Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form TE 0202A)
c. Travis County named as additional insured (Form TE 990lB)

t Alternative Insurance Requirement
If NO transportation services of any type is provided, and use of a motor vehicle is strictly limited to travel to

and from work or work sites, evidence of Personal Auto Policy coverage with limits of
$1 00,000/$300,000/$50,000

may be provided in lieu of Business Automobile Liability Insurance

D. Professional Liability/E & 0 Insurance

1. Coverage shall be provided with a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per claim /$3,000,000
aggregate to cover injury to a child while the child is in the care of Contractor or Subcontractor and
to cover negligent acts, sexual harassment, errors, or omissions arising out of Professional Services
under this Contract.

2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date
this Contract is signed and/or effective, whichever comes first. Coverage shall include a three (3)
year extended reporting period from the date this Contract expires or is terminated. Certificate of
Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims made and shall contain both the retroactive date of
coverage and the extended reporting dates.

3. Subcontractor(s) who are not covered under Contractor’s professional liability insurance shall
provide Contractor with current certificates of insurance annually on the renewal date of their
insurance policy.

E. Blanket Crime Policy Insurance

1. If an advance against Contract Funds is requested or received in an amount greater than
$5,000, a Blanket Crime Policy shall be required with limits of the Contract Funds allocated in the
Contract or the amount of scheduled advances.

2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date
services begin under this Contract or the effective date of this Contract. whichever comes first.
Coverage shall include a three- (3) year extended reporting period from the date this Contract expires
or is terminated. Certificate of Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims made and il contain both
the retroactive date of coverage and the extended reporting period date.

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF TRAVIS

ATTACHMENT D
ETHICS AFFIDAVIT

ETHICS AFFIDAVIT

4400001995
Page 23 of 26

Date: iiIPM
Name of Ahiant: 1-N Erp’1 IVS V)
Title of Affiant: Ofrci7’.CrvV
Business Name of Prqpnent: 1-v-1Oc.JV (2ì9 (,t,C
County of Proponent: I V’(SM S

Affiant on oath swears that the following statements are true:

1. Affiant is authorized by Proponent to make this affidavit for Proponent.

2. Affiant is fully aware of the facts stated in this affidavit.

3.

4.

Affiant can read the English language.

Proponent has received the list of key contracting persons associated with this solicitation which is attached to this affidavit as
Exhibit “1

5. Affiant has personally read Exhibit “1” to this Affidavit.

6. Afflant has no knowledge of any key contracting person on Exhibit “1” with whom Proponent is doing business or has done
business during the 365 day period immediately before the date.of this affidavit whose name is not disclosed in the
solicitation.

Signa of Affiant

3O5 h’IIf £frtLI k4Lfrd ij-1
Address

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me by H o,i,2O/i

Notary Public, State of_____________

Typed or printed name of notary. / f
My commission expires: 7 15 0,i

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001995
Page 24 of 26

EXHIBIT A
LIST OF KEY CONTRACTING PERSONS

March 26, 2014

CURRENT
Name of Individual Name of Business

Position Held Holding Office/Position Individual is Ascnninfed

County Judge Samuel T. Biscoe
County Judge (Spouse) Donalyn Thompson-Biscoe
Executive Assistant Cheryl Brown
Executive Assistant Melissa Velasquez
Executive Assistant Josie Z. Zavala
Executive Assistant David Salazar
Commissioner, Precinct 1 Ron Davis
Commissioner, Precinct 1 (Spouse) Annie Davis Seton Hospital
Executive Assistant Deone Wilhite
Executive Assistant Felicitas Chavez
Executive Assistant Sue Spears
Commissioner, Precinct 2 Bruce Todd*
Commissioner, Precinct 2 (Spouse) Elizabeth Christian Consultant
Executive Assistant Sara Krause*
Executive Assistant Joe Hon
Executive Assistant Peter Einhorn
Commissioner, Precinct 3 Gerald Daugherty*
Commissioner, Precinct 3 (Spouse) Charyln Daugherty Consultant
Executive Assistant Bob Moore*
Executive Assistant Martin Zamzow*
Executive Assistant Madison A. Gessner*
Commissioner, Precinct 4 Margaret Gomez
Executive Assistant Edith Moreida
Executive Assistant Norma Guerra
County Treasurer Dolores Ortega-Carter
County Auditor Nicki Riley
County Executive, Administrative Vacant
County Executive, Planning & Budget Leslie Browder
County Executive, Emergency Services Danny Hobby
County Executive, HealthlHuman Services Sherri E. Fleming
County Executive, TNR Steven M. Manilla, P.E.
County Executive, Justice & Public Safety Roger Jefferies
Director, Facilities Management Roger El Kiaoury, M.S., P.E.
Chief Information Officer Tanya Acevedo
Director, Records Mgment & Communications Steven Broberg
Travis County Attorney David Escamilla
First Assistant County Attorney Steve Capelle
Executive Assistant, County Attorney James Collins
Director, Land Use Division Tom Nuckols
Attorney, Land Use Division Julie Joe
Attorney, Land Use Division Christopher Gilmore
Director, Transactions Division Z.Z! John Hille
Attorney, Transactions Division Daniel Bradford
Attorney, Transactions Division Elizabeth Winn
Attorney, Transactions Division Mary Etta Gerhardt
Attorney, Transactions Division Barbara Wilson
Attorney, Transactions Divisioti Jennifer Kraber*
Attorney, Transactions Division Tenley Aldredge

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001995
Page 25 of 26

Director, Health Services Division Beth Devery
Attorney, Health Services Division Prema Gregerson
Purchasing Agent Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO
Assistant Purchasing Agent Marvin Brice, CPPB
Assistant Purchasing Agent Bonnie Floyd, CPPO, CPPB, CTPM
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV CW Bruner, CTP
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Lee Perry
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jason Walker
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Richard Villareal
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Patrick Strittmatter
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Lori Clyde, CPPO, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Scott Wilson, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Loren Breland, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV John E. Pena, CTPM
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Rosalinda Garcia
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Angel Gomez
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jesse Herrera, CTP, CTPM, CTCM
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Shannon Pleasant, CTPM
Purchasing Agent Assistant III David Walch
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Michael Long, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Sydney Ceder
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Ruena Victorino*
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Rachel Fishback*
Purchasing Agent Assistant II Vacant
Purchasing Agent Assistant II L. Wade Laursen
Purchasing Agent Assistant II Sam Francis
HUB Coordinator Sylvia Lopez
HUB Specialist Betty Chapa
HUB Specialist Jerome Guerrero
Purchasing Business Analyst Scott Worthington
Purchasing Business Analyst Vacant

FORMER EMPLOYEES

Name of Individual
Position Held Holding Office/Position Date of Expiration
Commissioner, Precinct 2 Sarah Eckhardt 05/ 31/14
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Nancy Barchus, CPPB 06/28/14
Purchasing Business Analyst Jennifer Francis 11/29/14
Executive Assistant Barbara Smith 01/15/15
Attorney, Transactions Division Jim Connolly 02/28/15

*
- Identifies employees who have been in that position less than a year.

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001995
Page26of26

ATTACHMENT E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION FOR
COVERED CONTRACTS

Federal Executive Order 12549 requires Travis County to screen each covered potential contractor to determine whether each has a right to obtain a
contract in accordance with federal regulations on debarment, suspension, ineligibility, and voluntary exclusion. Each covered contractor must also
screen each of its covered subcontractors.

In this certification ‘contractor refers to both contractor and subcontractor; “contract” refers to both contract and subcontract.

By signing and submitting this certification, the contractor/potential contractor accepts the following terms:

1. The certification herein below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this contract was entered into. If it is
later determined that the potential contractor knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the
federal government or Travis County may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

2. The potential contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this certification is submitted if at any time the potential
contractor learns that the certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

3. The words “covered contract,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “participant,” “person,” “principle,” ‘proposal,” and “voluntarily
excluded,” as used in this certification have meanings based upon materials in the Definitions and Coverage sections of federal rules
implementing Executive Order 12549.

4. The potential contractor agrees by submitting this certification that, should the proposed covered contract be entered into, it shall not knowingly
enter into any subcontract with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by a federal department or agency, and/or Travis County, as applicable.

Do you have or do you anticipate having subcontractors under this proposed contract? YES

5. The potential contractor further agrees by submitting this certification that it will include this certification titled ‘Certification Regarding
Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts “without modification, in all covered subcontracts”; and
in solicitations for all covered subcontracts.

6. A contractor may rely upon a certification of a potential subcontractor that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from
the covered contract, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A contractor must at a minimum, obtain certifications from its covered
subcontractors upon each subcontract’s initiation and upon each renewal.

7. Nothing contained in all the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the
certification required by this certification document. The knowledge and information of a contractor is not required to exceed that which is
normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

8. Except for contracts authorized under paragraph4 of these terms, if a contractor in a covered contract knowingly enters into a covered
subcontract with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to
other remedies available to the federal government, any federal agency and/or Travis County may pursue available remedies, including
suspension and/or debarment.

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION FOR COVERED
CONTRACTS

Indicate in the appropriate box which statement applies to the covered contractor/potential contractor:

The contractor/potential contractor certifies, by submission of this certification, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred,
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this contract by any federal department or
agency, the State of Texas, or Travis County.

L1 The contractor/potential contractor is unable to certify to one or more of the terms in this certification. In this instance, the
contractor/potential contractor must attach an explanation for each of the above terms to which he is unable to make certification. Attach the
explanation(s) to this certification.

Vendor ID. or Social Security No.Name of Contractor

fths11 111 iI°:?kiD, t4’&)

i1iLo(d/
Signature of Authorized Representative Date Printed/Typed Name & Title of Authorized Representative

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: June 24, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Jason G. Walker/44562; Marvin Brice, 
CPPB, Assistant Purchasing Agent 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve contract award for Richard Moya Park 
Shelter and Bathroom Repairs, IFB No. B1404-011-JW, to the low 
bidder, AG Construction Management 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

 The Richard Moya Park Shelter and Bathroom Repairs project is for the 
repair of shelters and bathrooms which were damaged during the 
October 2013 flood event.  75% of the construction costs of this project 
are expected to be reimbursed through a FEMA grant.        

 Subject IFB opened on May 28, 2014, with three (3) bids received in 
response to the solicitation.  The apparent low bidder is AG Construction 
Management with a base bid of $134,072.88.  

 TNR is recommending for contract award AG Construction Management 
for the Base Bid amount of $134,072.88.   

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last N/A months $0.00 has been 
spent against this contract/requirement. 

 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: $134,072.88    
Contract Type: Construction   
Contract Period: 60 working days after issuance of notice-to-proceed. 
  

 Contract Modification Information: N/A 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 7Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

Modification Amount:    
Modification Type:     
Modification Period:   

 Solicitation-Related Information: 

Solicitations Sent: via Bidsync  Responses Received: 3  
HUB Information: Vendor is a HUB  % HUB Subcontractor: N/A  

 Special Contract Considerations:   

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 
  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been notified. 
  Comments:  N/A 

 
 Funding Information: 

  Shopping Cart/Funds Reservation in SAP: 300001174 
  Fund Center(s): 1497760010  
  Comments:  

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us


Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Funds Reservation 300001174
General Data

Document type NE
Company code 1000
FM area 1000
Controlling area 1000

Document type 030
Document date 06/04/2014
Posting date 06/04/2014
Currency USD/ 1.00000 

Statistics

Entered by WILLIAD
Last changed by ROMEROJ1

Created on 06/04/2014
Last changed 06/10/2014

More Data

Text Oct 2013 Flood Moya Park Shelter Repairs
Reference

Overall Amount             134,072.88  USD

Document item 001

Commitment item 511530
Fund 0001
Cost center 1497760001
Vendor

Funds center 1497760001
G/L account 511530
Due on
Customer

Text Restroom & Shelter Repairs Moya Park Oct 2013 Floo

Amount           134,072.88  USD

Earmarked fund 300001174 printed on 06/12/2014/09:11:14 Side 1 of 1

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400002086

This Agreement for Construction Services (the “Construction Contract” or the “Contract”) is
entered into by and between Travis County, Texas, a political subdivision of the State of Texas (the
“Owner”), and AG Construction Management (the “Contractor’).

WHEREAS, the Owner desires to enter into the Construction Contract for the construction of
Richard Moya Park Shelter and Bathroom Repairs (the “Project”) in accordance with the provisions of
the state statutes and in conformance with the Notice to Proceed (as issued by the Travis County
Purchasing Agent), the Contractor’s Bid (including the Bidding Documents, the Bid Form, any
appendices to the Specifications addressing additional technical or other Project requirements, and any
Addenda or Amendments thereto), General Conditions, Supplementary Conditions, and the
Specifications, which term shall include the Drawings and/or Plans marked Richard Mova Park Shelter
and Bathroom Repairs Travis County Texas, IFB No. B1404-011-JW; and

WHEREAS, the Contractor has been engaged in and does comparable work and represents that
it is fully equipped, competent and capable of performing the above-desired work, and desires to perform
such work in accordance with the provisions of the Construction Contract; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions stated herein, the
Owner and the Contractor agree as follows:

ARTICLE I

1.1 In addition to such other terms as may be specifically defined herein, the capitalized terms
referenced herein shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the General Conditions.

1.2 The written notice to proceed as issued by the Travis County Purchasing Agent (the “Notice to
Proceed”), the Contractor’s Bid as accepted by the Travis County Commissioners Court, the
General Conditions, the Supplementary Conditions, the Specifications (which term shall include
the Drawings and Plans marked Richard Moya Park Shelter and Bathroom Repairs, Travis
County Texas, IFB No. B1404-011-JW, any appendices to the Specifications addressing
additional technical or other Project requirements, and all addenda issued by the
Architect/Engineer or the Travis County Purchasing Agent prior to the execution of this
Construction Contract are incorporated in the Construction Contract as if set out at length.

1.3 The Contractor agrees to perform the work described in this Construction Contract and any and
all documents incorporated therein (the “Work”). The Contractor shall commence the Work upon
issuance of the Notice to Proceed, and subject to authorized adjustments, shall achieve
substantial completion of the Work within 60 working days of such issuance (the “Substantial
Completion Date”). All time limits stated in the Construction Contract, and/or the Contract
Documents are of the essence. The Substantial Completion Date will not be modified, extended,
or otherwise revised except because of rain or other adverse weather conditions or as expressly
provided in the Construction Contract documents, and the Contractor acknowledges that it may
be required to work on weekends or holidays in order to achieve substantial completion by the
Substantial Completion Date.

1.4 If the Contractor fails to achieve substantial completion of the Work by the Substantial Completion
Date, the Contractor, by execution of this Construction Contract, specifically acknowledges that
the Owner will sustain damages for each day the Work extends beyond the Substantial
Completion Date. Because of the impracticality and extreme difficulty of fixing and ascertaining
the Owner’s actual damages, the Contractor agrees $225 per working day shall be retained by
the Owner from any amounts due the Contractor for every day that the Contractor’s performance
of the Work extends beyond the Substantial Completion Date.

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

walkerj
Draft



4400002086

ARTICLE II

2.1 For and in consideration of the Contractor’s performance of the Work, the Owner shall pay the
Contractor, in the manner provided for in Article 9 of the General Conditions, the total sum of
$134,072.88 (the “Contract Sum”). The Contract Sum is comprised of (i) $118,360.40 for
materials to be incorporated into the Project or completely consumed at the job site and services
required by or integral to the performance of this Construction Contract and (ii) $15,712.48 for all
other charges, including the cost of other services, overhead, and materials which do not become
part of the finished project or are reusable. This division of the Contract Sum is made to reflect
sales tax purposes only. Invoices and payments need not reflect this division. However,
Contractor shall maintain internal records to verify. Contractor shall make these records available
upon request of the Travis County Auditor.

2.2 If at any time during the performance of this Construction Contract the Travis County
Commissioners Court (i) fails to provide funding for this Construction Contract during the following
fiscal year of Travis County, Texas, (ii) does not adopt a budget for expenditures, or (iii) is able
only to partially fund the expenditures required by this Construction Contract, then the Owner
may, upon giving the Contractor written notice of such failure to fund and termination, terminate
this Construction Contract, or a part thereof, without any further liability, effective thirty (30) days
after the Owner notifies the Contractor in writing of such failure to fund and termination. The
Owner shall pay the Contractor for any portion of the Work completed up to the effective date.
The Contractor shall have no recourse as to sums beyond those for any portion of the Work
performed up to the effective date, including without limitation any recovery for lost profits
anticipated to be made hereunder.

2.3 This Construction Contract may be amended only by a Travis County construction “Change
Order” form signed by the Travis County Transportation and Natural Resources Department
(TNR), the Contractor, the Purchasing Agent, and the Commissioners Court, as necessary.

2.4 The Owner may terminate this Construction Contract if it is found that the Contractor offered or
gave gratuities to any employee of the Owner with the intent to influence the purchasing process
in any manner, either before or after the award of this Construction Contract. The Travis County
Commissioners Court shall determine if the Contractor used gratuities to influence the process. If
so determined and the Owner terminates this Construction Contract, the Owner shall be entitled
to (i) pursue the same remedies against the Contractor as it could pursue if this Construction
Contract were breached by the Contractor, and (ii) collect exemplary damages in an amount
determined by the Travis County Commissioners Court which shall be not less than three nor
more than ten times the amount given to any officer or employee of the Owner. The rights and
remedies in this clause shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies
provided by law.

2.5 The Contractor represents and warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or
retained to solicit or secure this Construction Contract upon an understanding for a commission,
percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting bonafide employees and established
commercial selling agencies maintained by the Contractor to secure business. If the Contractor
breaches this warranty, then the Owner shall have the right to terminate this Construction
Contract without liability, or in its discretion to deduct from the amount due to the Contractor from
the Owner, or otherwise recover, the full amount of commission, percentage, brokerage, or
contingent fee.

2.6 No action or failure to act by the Owner or the Contractor shall constitute a waiver of any right or
duty afforded either of them under this Construction Contract, nor shall any such action or failure
to act constitute an approval of or acquiescence in any breach thereunder, except as may be
specifically agreed in writing.

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

walkerj
Draft



4400002086

The effective date of this Construction Contract shall for all purposes be the date of the execution
of the last to sign, whether the Owner or the Contractor.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Construction Contract as of the date(s) set forth
below.

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS AG Construction Management

By:_________________________ By: I4’
Samuel T. Biscoe Name: Mt+k c( GVhFE-ZLEZ....
Travis County Judge Title: O1’3&Q..
Date:_________ Date: (p—2..---4-

APPROVED AS TO FORM BY:

County Attorney

FUNDS VERIFIED BY:

County Auditor

APPROVED BY PURCHASING AGENT:

County Purchasing Agent

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

walkerj
Draft



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: June 24, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Jason G. Walker/44562; Marvin Brice, 
CPPB, Assistant Purchasing Agent 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Resolution Directing the Lease of Oil and 
Gas in Tract 53 of the Travis County School Land in Throckmorton County 
and Authorize Purchasing Agent to Issue Bid. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

 Approximately 18,820 acres of land in Throckmorton County, Texas, 
which is referred to as the Travis County School Land, is owned by 
Travis County and holds title to the Travis County School Land in trust 
for the public schools of Travis County. 

 With approval of this Resolution, the Commissioners Court has found it 
to be advisable and in the best interest of the public schools of Travis 
County to lease the oil and gas in Tract 53 of the Travis County School 
Land to the highest and best bidder to IFB B1406-003-JW, which is 
attached as Exhibit "A" to this Resolution.  Such approval also directs 
the Travis County Purchasing Agent to give notice of the intention of this 
Commissioners Court to lease the oil and gas on Tract 53 of the Travis 
County School Land by causing the Notice, which is attached as Exhibit 
“B” to this Resolution, to be published at least once a week for three 
consecutive weeks in a newspaper of general circulation of Travis 
County and in newspapers in Young County, Potter County, Lubbock 
County, Taylor County, Wichita County and Midland County and by 
notifying in writing all current oil and gas lessees who may be interested 
in the lease of said oil and gas.  The cost of advertising for this 
solicitation was not budgeted in the Purchasing Office Central line item 
for advertising and will cost approximately $4,374.69 (see attached 
table). 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 8Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last ___ months $0.00 has been 
spent against this contract/requirement. 

 

 Contract-Related Information: N/A 

Award Amount:    
Contract Type:   
Contract Period:   

 Contract Modification Information: N/A 

Modification Amount:    
Modification Type:     
Modification Period:   

 Solicitation-Related Information: N/A 

Solicitations Sent:  Responses Received:  
HUB Information:  % HUB Subcontractor:  

 Special Contract Considerations:   

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 
  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been 

notified. 
  Comments:  No funds involved with this resolution 

 
 Funding Information: 

  SAP Shopping Cart #: 
  Funding Account(s):  
  Comments: 

 
 

 
 
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


Dolores Sandmann ATEXAS A&4
County Extension Director
Texas A&M AgriLife Extension Service-Travis County
1600-B Smith Road • Austin, Texas 78721
512-854-9600 FAX 512-854-9611

January 16, 2014

Cyd Grimes, C.P.M. Purchasing Agent
P.O. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767

Dear Ms. Grimes:

As Independent Monitor for the surface leasing operation on the Travis County school lands in
Throckmorton County, I want to express my support of the proposed mineral lease on Section 53 of
the property. I have been in contact with both Purchasing and the County Attorney’s Office.

Should you need more information, please feel free to contact me.

Sincerely,

Dolores Sandmann
County Extension Director
Texas A&M AgriLife Extension Service — Travis County

cc: Marvin Brice
Assistant Purchasing Agent

Sherri B. Fleming, County Executive
For Health and Human Services and Veterans Service

.

: - ri
çC)
— m

c-fl

304554

Educational programs of the Texas A&M AgriLife Extension Service are open to all people without regard to race, color, sex, disability, religion, age, or national origin.
The Texas A&M University System, U.S. Department ofAgriculture, and the County Commissioners Courts of Texas Cooperating

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



1 

IN THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS  

STATE OF TEXAS  § 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS  § 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE LEASE OF OIL AND GAS IN TRACT 53 OF 

THE TRAVIS COUNTY SCHOOL LAND 

 

 

WHEREAS, Travis County, Texas, owns approximately 18,820 acres of 

land in Throckmorton County, Texas, which is referred to as the Travis County 

School Land, and which includes:  

 

Tracts 53 of the Travis County School Land, Survey, Abstract No. 254, as recorded 

in the Plat Records of Throckmorton County, Texas, at volume 2, page 16, and the 

Deed Records of Throckmorton County, Texas, at Book 60, page 73, specifically, 

Tract 53 which consist of Three Hundred Twenty (320) acres of land more or less; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, Travis County, Texas, holds title to the Travis County School 

Land in trust for the public schools of Travis County, Texas; and  

 

WHEREAS, a majority of this Commissioners Court has found it to be 

advisable and in the best interest of the public schools of Travis County, Texas, 

to lease the oil and gas in Tract 53 of the Travis County School Land. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the oil and gas in 

Tract 53 of the Travis County School Land be leased to the highest and best 

bidder on sealed bids.  All bids shall be submitted in conformance with the 

Instructions to Bidders attached to this Resolution as Exhibit “A”  and hereby 

incorporated herein for all purposes as if set forth in full and the terms of which 

have been approved by a majority of this Court.  

 

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED that the Travis County Purchasing Agent, Cyd 

V. Grimes, is directed to give notice of the intention of this Commissioners Court to lease the  

oi l  and gas  on Tract 53 of the Travis County School  Land by causing the Notice, which is 

attached as Exhibit “B” to this Resolution and hereby incorporated by reference herein for all 

purposes as if set forth in full, to be published at least once a week for three consecutive weeks in 

a newspaper of general circulation of Travis County and in newspapers in Young 

County, Potter County, Lubbock County, Taylor County, Wichita County and 

Midland County and by notifying in writing all current oil and gas lessees who 

may be interested in the lease of said oil and gas.  

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 2 

 

EXECUTED THIS        day of              , 2014. 

 

             

      Samuel T. Biscoe 

      TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE 

 

             

      Ron Davis 

      COMMISSIONER, PRECINCT ONE 

 

             

      Bruce Todd 

      COMMISSIONER, PRECINCT TWO 

 

             

      Gerald Daugherty 

      COMMISSIONER, PRECINCT THREE 

 

             

      Margaret Gomez 

      COMMISSIONER, PRECINCT FOUR 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



B1406-003-JW 

175730-1   188.278 

EXHIBIT A 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

On the   22
nd

   day of  July , 2014, at  9:00  o'clock a.m. at a Regular Session of the 

Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas, in the Commissioners Courtroom in 

the Travis County Administration Building, in the City of Austin, Travis County, Texas, 

the Travis County Commissioners Court will open sealed bids for and award an oil and 

gas lease in the following described real property, to-wit: 

 

Tract  53 of the Travis County School Land, Survey, Abstract No. 254, as recorded 

in the Plat Records of Throckmorton County, Texas, at volume 2, page 16, and the 

Deed Records of Throckmorton County, Texas, at Book 60, page 73, specifically 

Tract 53 which consist of Three Hundred Twenty (320) acres of land more or less. 

 

The following are instructions for bidding on the lease of said oil and gas:  

 

1. All bids must be in sealed envelopes. The envelopes must be clearly 

marked on the outside as follows: B1406-003-JW Travis County School Land 

Oil and Gas Lease Bid.  

 

2. All bids must be received no later than _11:00_ o'clock a.m., on the            

 21
st
  day of  July , 2014. 

 

3. All bids must be submitted to and received by Cyd V. Grimes, Travis County 

Purchasing Agent, P. 0. Box 1748, Austin, Texas 78767, located on the Eighth floor of the 

Travis County Administration Building, in the City of Austin, Travis County, Texas. 

 

4. All bids must be submitted and set forth in the County's standard  oil 

and gas lease, which is attached to these instructions.  Do not retype the standard 

oil and gas lease.  Submit your bid by completing all appropriate blanks in the 

standard lease form and returning the original numbered form which you 

received. 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



B1406-003-JW 

175730-1   188.278 

a. In the introductory paragraph on page 1, do not  complete the blanks 

for dates.  Those will be comple ted by the Purchasing Agent upon the Travis 

County Commissioners Court making the award.  Do complete all other blanks on 

page 1. 

 

b. The lease form must be submitted in triplicate originals (3).  Each 

original must be executed by the Lessee or its attorne y-in-fact.  All signatures 

must be acknowledged. 

 

c. Do not  complete the date blank, the County Judge's signature blank, or 

the County Judge's acknowledgement at the end of the Lease.  

 

d. If the Lessee is a corporation, each of the three originals of the l ease 

must be accompanied by a certified copy of a resolution of the corporate board of 

directors authorizing the signatory officer or agent to execute this specific lease 

on behalf of the corporation.  

 

e. If the Lessee is not a corporation and the lease form is not executed by the 

Lessee personally or by all the general partners of a partnership Lessee, each original 

of the lease must be accompanied by a recordable specific power of attorney authorizing 

the attorney-in-fact to execute this lease on behalf of the Lessee.  If Lessee is a 

partnership, signatures may be added to the signature page for all of the general partners.  

 

5. Each bid must be accompanied by a separate cashier's check payable to 

Travis County, Texas, in the full amount of the bonus which is bid for Tract 53 of the 

Travis County School Land. 

 

6. If the Travis County Commissioners Court believes that the bids submitted 

to it do not represent the fair value of the lease, the Court may reject the bids, give notice, 

and call for additional bids. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4500000190 

 

306050 1 

STATE OF TEXAS    § 

      § 

COUNTY OF THROCKMORTON  § 

  

OIL AND GAS LEASE 

 

 

 This Lease Agreement is made and entered into in duplicate on this the ______ day 

of_______________, ______, by and between Travis County, Texas, hereby designated as the 

Lessor, acting by and through its Commissioners Court, under authority and by virtue of the 

provisions of TEX. CONST. ART. VII, Sec. 6, pursuant to the award made on the _____ day of 

_______________, ________, and _________________________________________ [Name of 

Company] by and through __________________________, [Name] ________________, [Title] 

("Lessee"), of ______________________ [Address], ________________________________ 

[City], __________________ [State], _________ [Zip Code] _________________, [Name of 

County of Lessee], Texas, said corporation hereby designated as Lessee. 

 

 As used in this Lease, the term "oil and gas" is hereby defined to include oil, gas, 

condensate, distillate, casinghead gas, and other liquid or gaseous hydrocarbons.  This lease does 

not cover any other substances or minerals of any type which shall be produced from the leased 

premises separate and apart from, or independently of, oil, gas or other liquid and gaseous 

hydrocarbons. 

 

 1.  PRIMARY TERM 

 

 The Lessor, in consideration of the payment by Lessee of _______________ Dollars 

($__________) ($_____ per acre), the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and in 

consideration of the royalties, annual rentals, other payments, covenants, stipulations, and 

conditions contained herein and hereby agreed to be paid, observed, and performed by the Lessee, 

does hereby demise, grant, lease, and let unto the Lessee, the land described herein, for three (3) 

years from the date hereof, said period being the primary term of this lease, and as long thereafter as 

oil and gas is produced in paying quantities thereunder, subject to such conditions as hereinafter set 

out, for the sole and only purpose of prospecting and drilling for and producing oil, gas, or oil and 

gas, that may be found and produced from said land, comprising a part of the Travis County School 

Land, to wit:   

 

Tracts 53 of the Travis County School Land, Survey, Abstract No. 254, as recorded in the 

Plat Records of Throckmorton County, Texas, at volume 2, page 16, and the Deed Records 

of Throckmorton County, Texas, at Book 60, page 73, consisting of ___________ (____)  

acres of land more or less. 

This lease is subject to any valid and recorded oil and gas lease or leases, if any, as were in force 

and effect prior to         , 2014 (the effective date of this lease), by virtue of any of the terms thereof, 

in respect to the leased premises. 

 

 

 

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4500000190 

 

306050 2 

 2.  TERMINATION 

 

 If, at the expiration of the primary term, oil or gas in paying quantities is not being produced 

from the premises, this Lease shall immediately terminate; provided, however, the term or life of 

this Lease may be extended under one or more of the following conditions: 

 

 (a) Drilling or Reworking Operations.  In the event production of oil or gas on the 

leased premises, after once obtained, shall cease for any cause within sixty (60) days before the 

expiration of the primary term of this Lease or at any time or times thereafter, this Lease shall not 

terminate if the Lessee commences additional drilling or reworking operations within sixty (60) 

days after such cessation and this Lease shall remain in full force and effect so long as such 

operations continue in good faith and in a workmanlike manner, without interruptions totaling more 

than sixty (60) days during any one such operation; and, if such drilling or reworking operations 

result in the production of oil or gas, this Lease shall remain in full force and effect so long as oil or 

gas is produced in paying quantities or payment of shut-in  gas well royalties or compensatory 

royalties is made as herein provided, subject to other terms and provisions of this lease. 

 

 (b) Shut-In Royalty and Compensatory Royalty.  If, at the expiration of the primary term 

or at anytime thereafter, there is located on the leased premises a well or wells capable of producing 

gas and/or condensate or distillate in paying quantities and such hydrocarbons are not produced for 

lack of a suitable market and this Lease is not being otherwise maintained in force and effect, 

Lessee may pay as royalty TWELVE HUNDRED AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($1,200.00) per 

annum for each well on this Lease capable of producing gas and/or condensate or distillate in 

paying quantities, such payment to be made to Travis County, Texas, prior to the expiration of the 

primary term of the Lease or if the primary term has expired, within sixty (60) days after the Lessee 

ceases to produce gas from such well or wells, and, if such payment is made, this Lease shall be 

considered to be a producing lease and such shut-in gas well royalty payment shall extend the term 

of this Lease for a period of one (1) year from the end of the primary term or from the first day of 

the month next succeeding the month in which production ceased, and, thereafter, if no suitable 

market for such gas exists, the Lessee may extend this Lease for two (2) additional and successive 

periods of one (1) year each by payment of a like sum of money each year on or before the 

expiration of the extended term.  Provided, however, that if, while this Lease is being maintained in 

full force and effect by payment of such shut-in gas well royalty, gas and/or condensate or distillate 

should be sold and delivered in paying quantities from a well situated within one thousand (1,000) 

feet of the leased premises and completed in the same producing reservoir or in any case where 

drainage is occurring in respect to the leased premises and any purchaser of gas is willing to 

purchase the gas from said shut-in gas well at the value of the gross production as defined herein 

and the Lessee declines to sell to said purchaser after a written request to do so from the Lessor, the 

right to further extend this Lease by such shut-in gas well royalty payments shall cease; provided, 

however, under such circumstances, this Lease shall remain in full force and effect for the 

remainder of the current one (1) year period for which the shut-in gas well royalty has been paid 

and shall remain in full force and effect for an additional period not to exceed a combined total of 

three (3) years from the expiration of the primary term or from the first day of the month next 

succeeding the month in which production ceased only by payment by the Lessee of compensatory 

royalties at the royalty rate provided for in this Lease as would be due on an equivalent amount of 

like quality gas produced and delivered from the well completed in the same producing reservoir 

from which gas is being sold and delivered and which is situated within one thousand (1,000) feet 

of or draining the leased premises on which a shut-in gas well is situated, such compensatory 

royalty to be paid monthly to Travis County, Texas, beginning on or before the twentieth (20th) day 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4500000190 

 

306050 3 

of the month next succeeding the month in which such gas is sold and delivered from the well 

situated within one thousand (1,000) feet of or draining the leased premises and completed in the 

same producing reservoir; provided, further, that, in the event such compensatory royalties paid in 

any twelve (12) month period are in a sum less than the annual shut-in gas well royalties provided 

for in this section, the Lessee shall pay an additional sum of money equal to the difference within 

thirty (30) days from the end of such twelve (12) month period; provided, further, that nothing 

herein shall relieve the Lessee of the obligation to drill offset wells as required by Statute or other 

applicable law or as required by this Lease. 

 

 (c) Current Operations.  If, at the expiration of the primary term, production of oil and 

gas has not been obtained in paying quantities on the leased premises, but drilling operations are 

being conducted thereon in good faith and in a good and workmanlike manner, the Lessee may, on 

or before the expiration of the primary term, file a written application to the Commissioners Court 

of Travis County, Texas, for a thirty (30) day extension of this Lease, such application to be 

accompanied by a payment of SEVEN AND 50/100 DOLLARS ($7.50) per acre for each acre in 

the Lease, and the Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas, shall in writing extend this Lease 

for a thirty (30) day period from and after the expiration of the primary term and so long thereafter 

as oil and gas is produced in paying quantities from the premises; provided that the Lessee may, so 

long as such drilling operations are being conducted in good faith and in a workmanlike manner, 

make like application and payment during any thirty (30) day extended period for an additional 

extension of thirty (30) days, such extensions not to exceed a combined total of one hundred and 

eighty (180) days; provided, however, that the Lessee may, so long as such drilling operations are 

being conducted in good faith and in a workmanlike manner, make written application to the 

Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas, on or before the expiration of the initial extended 

period of one hundred and eighty (180) days and for so long thereafter as oil or gas is produced in 

paying quantities from the premises, for an additional extension of one hundred and eighty (180) 

days, such application to be accompanied by a payment of FIFTY AND NO/100 DOLLARS 

($50.00) per acre; provided further, that this Lease shall not be extended for more than a total of 

three hundred sixty (360) days from and after the expiration of the primary term, unless production 

in paying quantities has been obtained. 

 

 3.  ROYALTY 

 

 The Lessee agrees to pay or cause to be paid during the term of this Lease: 

 

 (a) Oil.  As a royalty on any and all oil, which is defined as including all hydrocarbons 

produced in a liquid form at the mouth of the well and also all condensate, distillate, and other 

liquid hydrocarbons recovered from oil or gas run through a separator or other equipment, as 

hereinafter provided, one-fourth  (1/4th) part of the value of the gross production.  Said value shall 

be based on the highest posted price, plus premium, if any, offered or paid for oil, condensate, 

distillate, or other liquid hydrocarbons, respectively, of a like type and gravity in the general area, 

the prevailing market price thereof in the general area, or the proceeds of the sale thereof, 

whichever is greatest.  The Lessee agrees that, before any gas produced from the land hereby leased 

containing liquid hydrocarbons recoverable in commercial quantities by separator on the lease is 

sold, used, or processed in a plant, it will be run through an adequate oil and gas separator of 

conventional type or other equipment at least as efficient to the end that all liquid hydrocarbons 

recoverable from the gas by such means will be recovered.  Upon written consent of the Lessor, the 

requirement that such gas be run through such a separator or other equipment may be waived upon 

such terms and conditions as prescribed by the Lessor. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4500000190 

 

306050 4 

 (b) Gas.  As royalty on any and all gas, which is defined as all hydrocarbons and 

gaseous substances not defined as oil in subparagraph (a) above, produced from any well and sold 

by the Lessee or used by the Lessee, one-fourth (1/4th) of the value of the gross production, such 

value to be determined on the basis of the highest contract price and escalations thereof which 

could reasonably be obtained by the Lessee in good faith from a non-affiliated third party at the 

time of contracting there for or the gross amount accruing to the producer from all hydrocarbons or 

other products produced from said gas, whichever is greater.  A non-affiliated third party shall mean 

an entity which is neither owned nor managed, in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, by a person 

who participates in either the ownership or management, in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, 

of the Lessee.  Where gas is run through a separator or other equipment as provided in 

subparagraph (a) above, its value after having been run through such separator or other equipment 

shall be determined as specified herein.  

 

 (c) No Deductions.  Royalties payable under this Lease shall be made without 

deduction for the cost of producing, gathering, storing, separating, treating, dehydrating, 

compressing, transporting, or otherwise making the oil, gas, and other products produced hereunder 

ready for sale or use. 

 

 (d) Injection of Gas.  Upon obtaining the consent in writing of the Commissioners 

Court of Travis County, Texas, the Lessee may inject gas into any oil or gas producing formation 

underlying the leased premises after the liquid hydrocarbons contained in the gas have been 

removed and no royalties shall be payable on the gas so injected until such time as the same may 

thereafter be produced and sold or used by the Lessee in such manner so as to entitle the Lessor to a 

royalty thereon under the royalty provisions of this Lease. 

 

 (e) Waste.  The Lessee agrees to use reasonable diligence to prevent the underground or 

above ground waste of oil or gas and to avoid the physical waste of gas produced from the leased 

premises.  The Lessee shall pay the Lessor a royalty of one-fourth (1/4th) of the market value on 

any gas so wasted, but in no event shall such value be less than Sixty Cents ($.60) per M.C.F. for 

any gas so wasted, provided that no such royalty shall be due or payable upon gas vented or flared 

in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Railroad Commission of Texas. 

 

 (f) Payment in Kind.  The Lessor shall have the option to require that payment of any 

royalty as stipulated in this Lease be made in kind, which option shall be exercisable at the 

discretion of the Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas, from time to time, upon giving the 

Lessee six (6) months written notice.  Any royalty interest taken in kind by Lessor shall be without 

deductions for the cost of producing, gathering, storing, separating, treating, dehydrating, 

compressing, transporting, or otherwise making the oil, gas, and other products produced hereunder 

ready for sale or use. 

 

 4.  ANNUAL RENTAL 

 

 One (1) year from the date of this Lease and on the same date of each of the following years 

during the life of this Lease, the Lessee shall pay to Travis County, Texas, an annual rental of ONE 

AND NO/100 DOLLAR ($1.00) per acre, payable at the beginning of the second and third years of 

this Lease, payable each year in advance.  The annual rental beginning at the end of any year in 

which production is established, whether during the primary term or later, shall be TWO AND 

NO/100 DOLLARS ($2.00) per acre unless: 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4500000190 

 

306050 5 

 (a) The royalties paid to and received in the Commissioners Court of Travis County, 

Texas, from this Lease during the preceding year shall equal or exceed such TWO DOLLARS 

AND NO/100 ($2.00) per acre annual rental, in which event, no annual rental will be due on the 

rental date immediately following such royalty payments; or, 

 

 (b) The royalties paid to and received in the Commissioners Court of Travis County, 

Texas, from this Lease during the preceding year are less than such TWO AND NO/100 

DOLLARS ($2.00) per acre annual rental, in which event, an annual rental equaling the difference 

between TWO AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($2.00) per acre and said royalties paid will be due on the 

rental date immediately following said royalty payments. 

 

 5.  PAYMENT OF ROYALTIES 

 

 All royalties not taken in kind shall be paid to Travis County, Texas, as follows:  Royalty on 

oil shall be due and payable on or before the fifth (5th) day of the second (2nd) month succeeding 

the month Division Orders are executed and returned by Lessor, who shall be entitled to delete 

unacceptable or inapplicable provisions and make other appropriate corrections to such Division 

Orders;  and royalty on gas shall be due and payable on or before the fifteenth (15th) day of the 

second (2nd) month succeeding the month Division Orders are executed and returned by Lessor, 

who shall be entitled to delete unacceptable or inapplicable provisions and make other appropriate 

corrections to such Division Orders; and, thereafter, all royalty payments shall be paid on or before 

the same day of each succeeding month; and provided, further, where such deletions or corrections 

are not acceptable to the Lessee or other person(s), Lessor shall be entitled to payment of all 

royalties in a timely manner, provided Lessor submits documentation verifying its royalty interest in 

oil or royalty interest in gas, as applicable, under this Lease.  Royalty payments shall be 

accompanied by an affidavit of the owner, manager, or other authorized agent, completed in the 

form and manner prescribed in writing by the Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas, and 

showing the gross amount and disposition of all oil and gas produced and the value of the gross 

production of oil and gas, together with a copy of any other reports or records which the 

Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas, may reasonably require to verify the gross 

production, disposition of all oil and gas produced, and the value of the gross production of oil and 

gas.  In all cases, the authority of a manager or agent to act for the Lessee herein must be filed at the 

Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas, or with the Travis County Auditor's Office.  Each 

royalty payment shall be accompanied by a check stub, schedule, summary, or other remittance 

information showing by the tract number the amount of royalty being paid on each tract.  Any 

Division Orders not issued to Owner/Lessor within ninety (90) days after the date the well is 

completed as a commercially producing well or any royalty not paid or affidavits and supporting 

documents not filed when due shall become delinquent and shall, at the option of Commissioners 

Court, have added to the sum owing a delinquency penalty of one percent (1%) of such sum for 

each thirty (30) day period of delinquency or a fractional period thereof; provided, however, that 

each such penalty shall never be less than FIVE AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($5.00).  In the event 

that a royalty payment is not paid when due, Lessor shall give Lessee notice thereof upon discovery 

of such overdue payment and in the event such payment is not made for any reason within thirty 

(30) days from the date of such notice, Lessor may declare Lessee to be in default according to the 

terms of this Lease.  Subject to the preceding sentence, a payment of the delinquency penalty shall 

in no way operate to prohibit Lessor's right of forfeiture as provided by law nor act to postpone the 

date on which royalties were originally due. 

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4500000190 

 

306050 6 

 6.  EXAMINATION OF RECORDS 

 

 The books and accounts, receipts, and discharges of all wells, tanks, pools, meters, 

pipelines, and all contracts and other records pertaining to the production, transportation, sale, and 

marketing of the oil and gas produced on said premises shall at all times be subject to inspection, 

examination and copying by the Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas, or any 

representative of County, at no charge to County. 

 

 7.  DEVELOPMENT OBLIGATIONS 

 

 (a) During the primary term of this Lease and any extension(s) thereof authorized by 

paragraph 2(c) of this Lease, Lessee shall drill and complete on the leased premises one (1) well 

producing or capable of producing oil or gas in paying quantities.   

 

 (b) The three (3) year primary term of this Lease shall commence on the       day of         

   , _____, and shall expire on the        day of                 , ______.  Any extension(s) authorized by 

paragraph 2(c) of this Lease shall begin and end only in accordance with the terms and conditions 

set out in paragraph 2(c) of this Lease. 

 

 (c) Drilling operations on the development well commenced, drilled and completed during 

the primary term and any extension(s) thereof authorized by paragraph 2(c) of this Lease shall be 

conducted in good faith and in a workmanlike manner without interruptions totaling more than 

sixty (60) days on the development well until completion of the well.  If the Lessee should fail to 

drill and complete the development well during the primary term or during any extension(s) thereof 

authorized by paragraph 2(c) of this Lease, or have interruptions in the operations on the 

development well not permitted by this Lease, this Lease shall immediately terminate in its entirety. 

 

 (d)  Provided this Lease is not terminated at the expiration of the primary term, within 

one (1) year from the end of the three year (3) primary term, notwithstanding any extension(s) 

thereof pursuant to paragraph 2(c) of this Lease, the Lessee shall continuously develop the land 

covered by this Lease by drilling and completing on the leased premises an additional well, (in 

addition to the development well drilled and completed pursuant to paragraph 7(a) hereof), 

producing or capable of producing oil or gas in paying quantities.  During said one (1) year period, 

once Lessee drills and completes the additional well specified in this paragraph, the Lessee shall 

exercise due diligence of a reasonably prudent operator in drilling such additional well or wells as 

may be reasonably necessary for the proper development of the leased premises and in marketing 

the production therefrom.   

 

 (e) Drilling operations on the additional well drilled and completed during the one (1) 

year period, beginning at the end of the three year (3) primary term, shall be conducted in good faith 

and in a workmanlike manner without interruptions totaling more than sixty (60) days on the 

additional well until completion of said additional well.  If Lessee should fail to drill and complete 

the additional well within the one (1) year period specified in paragraph 7(d), this Lease shall 

immediately terminate as to all lands covered hereby, save and except each well producing or 

capable of producing oil or gas in paying quantities together with forty (40) contiguous acres of 

land surrounding each said oil well or gas well, as applicable, or the proration unit allocated to the 

well by the Railroad Commission of Texas as of the date of such termination.   

 

 (f) A well shall be deemed to be drilled and completed as required by this Section 7 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4500000190 

 

306050 7 

when the well has been drilled to a depth necessary to find oil or gas in paying quantities.  A well 

shall not be deemed to be drilled and completed as required by this Section 7 if drilled to a depth 

too shallow for the production of oil or gas in paying quantities. 

 

 (g) In the case of partial termination as provided by paragraph 7(e) hereof, each of the 

producing oil or gas wells, as applicable, shall be surrounded by forty (40) contiguous acres of land 

or the proration unit allocated to the well by the Railroad Commission of Texas with said acres or 

allocated proration unit in the shape of a square with each said oil well or gas well, as applicable, 

placed in the center of its square as near as is practicable considering the land covered by this Lease. 

 

 (h) If Lessee fails to drill and complete one (1) additional well within the one (1) year 

period beginning at the end of the three (3) year primary term and there is partial termination of this 

Lease as provided for in paragraph 7(e) of this section, within thirty (30) days after said partial 

termination of this Lease as provided for in paragraph 7(e) of this section, Lessee shall execute and 

deliver to Lessor a recordable release containing a satisfactory legal description of all lands covered 

by this Lease, save and except the acreage retained pursuant to paragraphs 7(e) and 7(g) of this 

section.  If Lessee fails or refuses to execute and record such release, within ninety (90) days after 

being requested to do so by Travis County, then the Commissioners Court may declare a forfeiture 

of this Lease pursuant to paragraph 14 hereof. 

 

 (i) In the event of partial termination of this Lease as provided for in paragraphs 7(e) 

and 7(g) of this section, the acreage retained and assigned to each producing oil well or gas well in 

accordance with paragraphs 7(e) and 7(g) of this section shall be considered as covered by a 

separate Lease containing the same terms and provisions of this Lease, and thereafter, each separate 

Lease shall be kept in force and effect only by actual or constructive production from or operations 

upon the particular tract retained by the particular well in question as authorized under this Lease, 

without regard to production from or drilling operations upon the other tracts retained by lessee 

under the terms of paragraphs 7(e) and 7(g) of this Lease or under the terms of other Leases.    

  

 (j) If this Lease continues beyond the three (3) year primary term, and if this Lease 

continues beyond the one (1) year period specified in paragraph 7(d) of this section, the Lessee shall 

exercise the due diligence of a reasonably prudent operator in drilling such additional well or wells 

as may be reasonably necessary for the proper development of the leased premises and in marketing 

the production therefrom. 

 

 (k) Notwithstanding the partial termination of this Lease as provided for in paragraphs 

7(e) and 7(g) of this section, Lessee shall continue to have the right of ingress to and egress from 

the land still subject to this Lease only for the purpose of producing oil and gas under this Lease, 

together with easements and rights-of-way for roads, pipelines, and other facilities on, over and 

across the land covered by this Lease for access to and from the land still subject to this Lease for 

the gathering and transportation of oil and gas produced from the retained land still subject to this 

Lease; provided, however, the right of ingress and egress as described in this paragraph is subject to 

the provisions of Section 12 of this Lease regarding protection of the surface and continued 

maintenance of insurance coverage as required therein. 

 

 8.  OFFSET WELLS 

 

 The Lessee shall adequately protect the oil and gas under the described land from drainage 

from adjacent lands or leases, including non-Travis County School Land or Travis County School 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4500000190 

 

306050 8 

Land leased at a lesser royalty.  The Lessee shall drill as many wells as the facts justify and to the 

depth or depths necessary for effective protection against drainage from such adjacent lands or 

leases.  Neither the bonus, annual rentals, nor royalties paid or to be paid hereunder shall relieve the 

Lessee from the obligations herein expressed.   

 

 9.  REMOVAL OF EQUIPMENT 

 

 If this Lease shall be forfeited or terminated for any cause, the Lessee shall not, in any event, 

be permitted to remove the casing or any part of the equipment from any producing, dry, or 

abandoned well or wells without the written consent of the Commissioners Court of Travis County, 

Texas; nor shall the Lessee, without the written consent of the Commissioners Court of Travis 

County, Texas, remove from the leased premises the casing or any other equipment, material, 

machinery, appliances, or property owned by the Lessee and used by the Lessee in the development 

and production of oil or gas therefrom, until all dry or abandoned wells have been plugged to the 

satisfaction of the Railroad Commission of Texas and until all slush or refuse pits have been 

properly filled and leveled and all broken or discarded lumber, machinery, or debris shall have been 

removed from the premises to the satisfaction of the Commissioners Court of Travis County, 

Texas.  Lessor shall not unreasonably withhold consent from Lessee.   

 

 10.  REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

 

 Whenever the Lessee commences the drilling of any well or wells upon the described 

premises, upon request by any Lessor representative, and at no charge to Lessor, Lessee shall file 

written notice thereof at the Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas, or to such other office 

as the Commissioners Court may designate, accompanied by a plat of said premises showing the 

location of such well or wells.  Upon request by any Lessor representative, and at no charge to 

Lessor, the Lessee shall file at the Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas, or with such 

other office as the Commissioners Court may designate, the logs of all wells drilled upon the 

described premises within thirty (30) days after their completion or after their abandonment in the 

case of dry holes.  To the extent permitted by law, including but not limited to the Texas Public 

Information Act ("TPIA"), the Lessor shall protect the confidentiality of any information furnished 

pursuant to this paragraph. 

 

 10A.  RAILROAD COMMISSION FORMS 

 

 (a) Upon request by any Lessor representative, and at no charge to Lessor, the Lessee 

shall file at the Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas, or such other office as the 

Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas, may designate, photocopies of all forms and other 

information filed with the Texas Railroad Commission which pertain to the operations of this 

Lease, within five (5) days after said filing with the Commission.  

  

 (b) At no charge to Lessor, the Lessee shall have an electric or radioactivity survey 

made of the bore-hole section, from the base of the surface casing to the total depth of the well, of 

all wells drilled on the described premises, and upon written request by any Lessor representative, 

and at no charge to Lessor, Lessee shall transmit a true copy of the log of each survey along with 

copies of logs of all other bore-hole surveys to the Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas, 

or such other office as the Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas, may designate, within 

fifteen (15) days after the making of said survey.  At the option of the Lessor upon failure of the 

Lessee to furnish the Lessor a true copy of any log run on any well drilled on the described 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4500000190 

 

306050 9 

premises, and at no cost to Lessor, the Lessee shall be required to re-enter any well and run the 

required logging survey and at no cost to Lessor, the Lessee shall furnish a true copy thereof to the 

Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas or such other office as the Commissioners Court 

may designate; or, the Lessee shall be required to pay the Lessor a sum of FIVE THOUSAND 

AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($5,000) which shall be considered liquidated damages for the Lessee's 

failure to furnish said log to the Lessor as required hereunder. 

 (c)  The Lessee herein agrees, insofar as possible, and at no charge to Lessor, to supply 

the Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas, or such other office as the Commissioners 

Court may designate, with any records, memoranda, accounts, reports, cuttings, and cores or other 

information relative to the operations on the described premises, that the Lessor may reasonably 

request in addition to those records herein expressly provided for.   

 

 11.  WATER WELLS 

 

 In drilling wells, all water-bearing strata shall be noted by the Lessee in the log, and the 

Lessor reserves the right to require that all or any part of the casing shall be left in any non-

productive well when the Lessor deems it necessary to preserve or maintain said well or wells for 

water.  Lessor hereby agrees to pay Lessee reasonable salvage value for any casing left on the leased 

premises as provided in this paragraph.  

  

 12.  USE OF SURFACE AND PROTECTION OF SURFACE AND INDEMNITY 

 

 It is expressly understood that:  (1) the land described as the leased premises in Section 1 of 

this Lease and (2) all of the other 320 acre tracts of land located in the Travis County School Land 

Survey, Abstract 254, as recorded in the Plat Records of Throckmorton County, Texas, at volume 2, 

page 16, and Deed Records of Throckmorton County, Texas, at book 60, page 73, comprises land 

which is being leased for grazing purposes, and for hunting, fishing, and camping purposes, and 

which may be used for other purposes; and, it is essential to Lessor that no operations performed 

under this Lease or rights asserted by Lessee under this Lease unreasonably interfere with or 

jeopardize present or future grazing operations or present or future hunting, fishing, and camping 

operations, or other operations in the future.  Consequently, the parties to this Lease agree as 

follows: 

 

 I. Indemnity for Lessor. 

 

 (a) Indemnity.  The conduct of operations carried out pursuant to this Lease shall 

include, but shall not be limited to: any physical operations, exploration, development and 

production operations, whether such operations are characterized as primary recovery operations 

or secondary recovery operations.  The Lessee shall compensate the Lessor for and indemnify and 

hold the Lessor harmless against any and all actual damage to the value of the surface estate for 

the purpose of grazing livestock and for other purposes associated with use of the surface or for 

any and all actual damage to structures and improvements on the property, including but not 

limited to,  houses, buildings, outbuildings, fences and roads, or for any and all actual damage to 

the value of any and all personal property of any person or entity on the premises, where any of the 

actual damages referenced above arise directly or indirectly from the conduct of any and all 

operations carried out pursuant to this Lease, by the Lessee, by any Contractor or Subcontractor of 

the Lessee, or by any Independent Contractor doing business with the Lessee, whether the conduct 

of the Lessee, the Contractor, the Subcontractor, or the Independent Contractor constitutes 

negligence in whole or in part or whether the conduct of the Lessee, the Contractor, the 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4500000190 

 

306050 10 

Subcontractor, or the Independent Contractor constitutes intentional acts or omissions in whole or 

in part.  As used in the preceding sentence, the terms "Lessee," "Contractor," "Subcontractor," and 

"Independent Contractor" include the officers, agents, employees, representatives, parent 

subsidiaries and other affiliates, invitees, and licensees of the Lessee, Contractor, Subcontractor 

and Independent Contractor, respectively. 

 

 (b) Amounts.  Lessee shall pay surface damages in an amount or amounts set forth in 

any existing and applicable General Land Office fee schedule which is in effect on the date the 

activity requiring the payment of surface damages occurs.  If there is no existing and applicable 

General Land Office fee schedule, or if the General Land Office fee schedule does not contain an 

applicable figure, the County may consider other sources of information or may employ other 

methods to determine the amount or amounts of surface damages to be paid by the Lessee for the 

surface damage in question. 

 

 II. Indemnification and Claims Notification. 
 

(a) Indemnity for Third Party Claims.  Lessee shall indemnify, hold harmless and 

defend the Lessor and its officers, employees, agents and representatives from and against any 

and all third party claims, causes of action, , suits, recoveries, judgments, and liability of every 

kind, whether meritorious or not, filed against County in any judicial or administrative 

proceeding, including, all expenses of litigation, court costs, attorneys’ fees, and mediation fees, 

for injury, damage, or loss of any type or character arising directly or indirectly out of personal 

injury,  bodily injury, death, or property damage or loss suffered by  any person or legal entity 

while on the leased premises for any reason connected with this Lease or for any other reason, 

where injury, damage or loss  arises out of or in connection with, directly or indirectly, 

operations or activities of Lessee, its officers, employees, agents, representatives, parent 

subsidiaries or other affiliates, invitees, licensees, contractors, subcontractors, or independent 

contractors. 

 

(b) Claims Notification.  If any claim, or other action, including proceedings before 

an administrative agency, is made or brought by any person, firm, corporation, or other entity 

against Lessee or Lessor in relation to operations or activities on the leased premises under this 

Lease, Lessee shall give written notice to Lessor of the claim or other action or proceeding 

within three (3) working days after being notified of it or the threat of it; and such notice shall 

include:   

 

1. the name and address of the person, firm, corporation or other entity that made or 

threatened to make the claim, or that instituted or threatened to institute any kind of 

action or proceeding; 

 

2. the alleged basis of the claim, action, or proceeding;  

 

3. the court or administrative tribunal, if any, where the claim, action, or proceeding 

was instituted; and 

 

4. the name or names of any person against whom this claim, action, or proceeding 

is being made or threatened.  This written notice shall be given in accordance with the 

notice provisions of this Lease.  Except as otherwise directed, Lessee shall furnish Lessor 

copies of all pertinent papers received by Lessee with respect to the claims, actions, or 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4500000190 

 

306050 11 

proceedings.   

 

(c) Written Notice.  Lessor shall give Lessee written notice of any claim, action, or 

proceeding  for damages or alleging damages, within three (3) working days after the date the 

Lessor receives notice of such claim, action, or proceeding.   

 

(d) Reimbursement.  Lessee or its insurer shall reimburse the Lessor for any damage 

or loss described in Parts I and II of this Section 12, within thirty (30) days after a claim for 

reimbursement is submitted by Lessor.   

 

 (e) No County Liability.  Travis County, Texas, shall not be liable for or responsible 

for any injury, damage, or loss of any type or character arising directly or indirectly out of 

personal injury, bodily injury, death, or property damage or loss suffered or sustained by any 

person or legal entity while on the leased premises for any reason in connection with this Lease 

or for any other reason. 

 

 (f) Survival.  The indemnity provisions set forth in Parts I and II of this Section 12 

shall survive the termination or expiration of this Lease.   

 

(g) Immunity.  This Section 12 shall not be construed as a waiver of Travis County's 

sovereign immunity; and, County hereby retains all of its affirmative defenses. 

 

 III. Insurance Requirements. 

 

 To meet its obligations under this Lease, Lessee shall have standard insurance to protect the 

Lessee and the Lessor from the types of claims described in this Section 12, which may arise out of 

or result from, directly or indirectly, the Lessee's operations or activities under this Lease, whether 

such operations or activities are those of the Lessee, a contractor of the Lessee, a subcontractor of 

the Lessee, and independent contractor of the Lessee, or anyone for whose acts or omissions the 

Lessee, contractor, subcontractor, or independent contractor may be liable.  The terms "Lessee," 

"Contractor," "Subcontractor," and "Independent Contractor" include the officers, agents, 

employees, representatives, parent subsidiaries and other affiliates, invitees, and licensees of the 

Lessee, contractor, subcontractor and independent contractor, respectively.  The insurance coverage 

purchased pursuant to Paragraph (a) below shall be maintained by the Lessee throughout the entire 

term of this Lease Agreement, including both the primary term and the secondary term.  It is the 

responsibility of the Lessee to determine the Lessee's actual insurance needs to meet the obligations 

and requirements set forth in this Lease Agreement. 

 

(a) Insurance Policies.  Lessee shall, at its own expense and at all times during the 

term of this Lease, whether the primary term or the secondary term,  maintain in full force and 

effect the insurance policies required under this Paragraph (a) with the minimum policy limits 

prescribed in Paragraph (b) below.  Lessee shall also require all of its contractor(s), 

subcontractor(s). and independent contractor(s) conducting any operations or performing any 

activities under this Lease  to have standard insurance meeting the general requirements as set 

forth in this Paragraph (a) and Paragraph (b) below, consistent with the requirements of this 

Section 12. 

 

 1. The following requirements apply to the Lessee, its contractor(s), 

subcontractor(s) and independent contractor(s) conducting operations or performing 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4500000190 

 

306050 12 

activities under this Lease.  Lessee acknowledges and agrees to the following concerning 

insurance requirements applicable to Lessee, its contractor(s), subcontractor(s), and 

independent contractor(s) conducting operations or performing activities under this 

Lease: 

 

A. Minimum insurance coverage and limits specified below shall be 

maintained throughout the primary term and the secondary term of this Lease. 

B. Insurance shall be written by companies licensed in the State of Texas 

with an A.M. Best rating of B+ VIII or higher. 

 

C. Prior to commencing operations or activities under this Lease, the 

insurance required in this Part III shall be in force as evidenced by Certificate(s) of 

Insurance issued by the writing agent or carrier.  Each Certificate of Insurance 

shall include an original signature of an authorized signer and an affirmation that 

the signer has professional liability insurance limits of not less than One Million 

Dollars ($1,000,000).  In addition, each Certificate of Insurance shall be endorsed 

to acknowledge this Lease Agreement between Travis County, Texas, and the 

insured Lessee.  Each Certificate of Insurance shall include the contract number 

for this Lease Agreement as indicated on the contract award form issued by the 

County.  Certificate(s) of Insurance shall include the endorsements outlined 

below, including endorsements by number, and shall be submitted to the Travis 

County Purchasing Agent within ten (10) working days of execution of this Lease 

Agreement. 

 

D. Insurance required under this Lease Agreement which names Travis 

County as an Additional Insured shall be considered primary for all claims. 

 

E. Insurance limits shown below may be written as Combined Single Limits 

or structured using primary and excess or umbrella coverage that follows the form 

of the primary policy. 

 

F. Lessor shall be entitled, upon its request and without charge, to receive 

certified copies of policies and endorsements. 

 

G. Lessor reserves the right to review insurance requirements during the 

primary term and/or the secondary term of this Lease Agreement and to require 

that Lessee make reasonable adjustments when the scope of operations or 

activities under this Lease have changed or expanded. 

 

H. Lessee shall not allow any insurance to be cancelled or lapse during either 

the primary term or the secondary term of this Lease.  Lessee shall not permit the 

minimum limits of coverage to erode or otherwise be reduced.  The Lessee may 

not amend or modify the insurance policies required in this Part III to contain 

insurance coverage less than that prescribed in Paragraph (b) below or to contain 

terms and conditions contrary to those specified in this Part III, except with the 

express written consent of the Travis County Commissioners Court.  Lessee shall 

be responsible for all premiums, deductibles and self-insured retention.  All 

deductibles and self-insured retention shall be shown on the Certificate(s) of 

Insurance. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4500000190 

 

306050 13 

I. The insurance coverage specified in Paragraph (b) below, and applicable 

to this Lease Agreement is not intended and shall not be interpreted to limit the 

responsibility or liability of the Lessee, its contractor(s), subcontractor(s), or 

independent contractor(s).  Said insurance coverage shall not be the exclusive 

remedy of Lessor to recover for injuries, damages, or losses pursuant to Parts I 

and II of this Section 12.  In the event the insurance policies purchased pursuant to 

this Part III do not cover the injury, damage, or loss in question, or, are not in 

effect for any reason at the time of said injury, damage, or loss, the Lessor shall be 

entitled to any and all rights and remedies allowed under Texas law (statutory law, 

case law, rules, regulations or ordinances), including, but not limited to, any and 

all rights and remedies provided by other insurance policies covering Lessee 

heretofore or hereafter in effect, as well as, any and all assets of Lessee. 

 

2. Each and every assignee of this Lease shall comply with all the 

requirements of this Part III and shall purchase and maintain the insurance coverage 

required in Paragraph (b) below under the terms and conditions set forth in this Part III. 

 

3. In the event the Lessee cancels or fails to renew the insurance policies 

containing the insurance coverage set forth in Paragraph (b) below, or in the event there is 

a material change in coverage, including impairment of the aggregate limits to less than 

those prescribed in Paragraph (b) below, the Lessee shall give the Lessor not less than 

thirty (30) days prior written notice of such cancellation, non-renewal, and/or material 

change in coverage.  If Lessee cancels or fails to renew said insurance policies, the Lessee 

shall immediately obtain new, replacement policies of insurance, which comply with the 

requirements of this Part III, and which contain, at a minimum, the insurance coverages 

and limits required in Paragraph (b) below; and, Lessee shall submit certificate(s) thereof 

 to Lessor.   

 

4. Failure by the Lessee to provide the Certificate(s) of Insurance and/or 

insurance policies as required in this Paragraph (a), or failure by the Lessee to obtain and 

maintain the insurance coverages and limits required in Paragraph (b) below, or failure by 

the Lessee to comply with all the requirements of this Part III shall constitute a breach of 

this Lease Agreement; and, in the event of such breach, the Lessor, at its option, may 

terminate this Lease as provided in Section 14 of this Lease, by giving notice to the 

Lessee as prescribed in Section 17 of this Lease. 

 

(b) Insurance Requirements. 

 

The following requirements (A - E, inclusive) apply to the Lessee, its 

contractor(s), subcontractor(s), and independent contractor(s) conducting operations or 

performing activities under the Lease.  Lessee acknowledges and agrees to the following 

concerning insurance requirements applicable to Lessee, its contractor(s), 

subcontractor(s), and independent contractor(s): 

 

A. Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability Insurance 

 i. Coverage shall be consistent with statutory benefits outlined in the 

Texas Workers' Compensation Act. 

 ii. Employer's Liability limits are 

  $500,000 bodily injury each accident 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4500000190 

 

306050 14 

  $500,000 bodily injury by disease 

  $500,000 policy limit 

 iii. Policies under this Section shall apply to State of Texas and 

include in the following endorsements in favor of Travis County: 

  a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304) (or comparable form 

reflecting industry changes and standards) 

b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form 420601) (or 

comparable form reflecting industry changes and standards).  

 

B. Commercial General Liability Insurance 

 i. Minimum limit: 

$1,000,000 per person  for coverage A and B with $3,000,000 per 

occurrence 

ii. The Commercial General Liability policy shall also include lease 

liability insurance coverage with a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per 

occurrence. 

iii. The Policy shall contain or be endorsed as follows: 

 a. Blanket contractual liability for this Lease (including 

coverage for the following:  (contractual liability, independent 

contractor liability, fire legal liability, personal injury liability, 

pollution liability, completed operations liability, XCU liability, 

broad form property damage liability); 

iv. The Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor 

of Travis County: 

 a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form CG 2404) (or comparable 

form reflecting industry changes and standards); 

b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form CG 0205) (or 

comparable form reflecting industry changes and standards); 

 c. Travis County named as additional insured (Form CG 

2010) (or comparable form reflecting industry changes and 

standards). 
 

C. Employment Related Practices Insurance 

 i. This insurance coverage applies to all circumstances where Lessee 

has an employee or any employees. 

 ii. Minimum limit:  $1,000,000 per occurrence 

 iii. The policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor 

of Travis County: 

  a. Thirty day notice of cancellation (Form IL 02 75 05 03) (or 

comparable form reflecting industry changes and standards); 

  b. Travis County named as an additional insured (Form EP 20 

01 09 04 (or comparable form reflecting industry changes and 

standards). 

 

D. Business Automobile Liability Insurance
1
 

                     
1
 Alternative Insurance Requirement:  If no transportation services of any type are provided in 

connection with this Lease, and use of a motor vehicle is strictly limited to travel to and from the 

Leased Premises, evidence of personal automobile policy coverage with limits of 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4500000190 

 

306050 15 

i. If any form of transportation is used in connection with this Lease, 

coverage for all owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles shall be maintained 

with a combined single limit of $1,000,000
1
 per person and $3,000,000 per 

occurrence. 

ii. The Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor 

of Travis County 

  a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form TE 2046A) (or comparable 

form reflecting industry changes and standards); 

b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form TE 0202A) 

(or comparable form reflecting industry changes and standards); 

c Travis County named as an additional insured (Form TE 

9901B) (or comparable form reflecting industry changes and 

standards). 

 

IV. Use of Surface by Lessee. 

  

 Subject to the provisions contained in Parts I, II and III above, Lessor and Lessee agree as 

follows:   

 

 (a) Use of Surface.  Subject to its obligations to pay surface damages as prescribed in 

Parts I and II of this Section 12 and subject to the insurance requirements set forth in Part III of this 

Section 12, the Lessee shall have the right to use as much of the surface of the land as shall be 

reasonably necessary for the full exercise and enjoyment of the oil and gas rights and interest hereby 

granted in said land, including the right to use free of cost water found and produced or impounded 

by the Lessee on said land for its own operations thereon, except water from wells or tanks of the 

Lessor or its surface Lessee.  The Lessee shall not use or contaminate any water from wells or tanks 

of the Landowner/Lessor or the Surface Tenant/Grazing Lessee.  Lessee shall also have the right to 

lay and maintain gathering lines, and erect and maintain on the Leased Premises telephone and 

telegraph lines,  pull rods, and other appliances and equipment necessary for the operation of wells 

thereon.  In addition, the Lessee shall have the right of ingress and egress and the right-of-way to 

any point of operations under conditions of least injury and inconvenience to the occupant(s) of the 

surface.  The surface must not be damaged if there are usual, customary and reasonable methods 

available to develop the minerals which would cause less interference with the landowner's/Lessor's 

or Surface Tenant's/Grazing Lessee's use of the land.  

 

 (b) Maintenance of Surface.  Lessee shall build and maintain fences around its slush, 

sump, and drainage pits and tank batteries so as to protect livestock against loss, damage, or injury; 

and, upon completion or abandonment of any well or wells, Lessee shall fill and level all slush pits 

and cellars and completely clean up the drilling site of all rubbish thereon.  The Lessee shall erect, 

at a distance not to exceed twenty-five (25) feet from each well on the premises covered by this 

Lease, a legible sign on which shall be stated the name of the operator, the lease designation, and 

the well number.  Where two or more wells are on the same lease or where wells on two or more 

leases are connected to the same tank battery, whether by individual flow line connections direct to 

the tank or tanks or by use of the multiple header system, each line between each well and such tank 

or header shall be legibly identified at all times, either by a firmly attached tag or plate or an 

identification properly painted on such line at a distance not to exceed three (3) feet from such tank 

                                                                               

$100,000/$300,000/$50,000 may be provided in lieu of Business Automobile Liability Insurance. 
  

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4500000190 

 

306050 16 

or header connection.  Said signs, tags, plates, or other identification markers shall be maintained in 

a legible condition throughout the term of this Lease. 

 

 (c) Roads.  The Mineral Lessee shall at its expense repair and maintain each road used 

or constructed by it with such maintenance and repair made in accordance with the usual and 

customary practices of the oil and gas industry, as long as such road is used by the Mineral Lessee 

in its operations conducted on the leased premises pursuant to this Lease. 

 

 (d) Notification.  The Mineral Lessee agrees to notify the Surface Tenant/Grazing 

Lessee or the Surface Owner/Lessor, as the case may be, so far in advance as reasonably feasible, of 

the Mineral Lessee's intention to conduct its various operations on the subject land and to work with 

the Surface Tenant/Grazing Lessee or the Landowner/Lessor, as the case may be, to minimize the 

damage to and interference with the Surface Tenant's/Grazing Lessee's activities or the 

Landowner's/Lessor's activities. 

 

  13. LIEN 

 

 Subject to Section 9.343 of the Texas Business and Commerce Code, and other applicable 

law, Travis County, Texas, shall have a first lien upon all oil and gas produced from the area 

covered by this Lease to secure payment of any and all unpaid royalties and other sums of money 

that become due to Travis County, Texas, hereunder.  By acceptance of this Lease, Lessee grants 

Travis County, Texas, in addition to the lien referenced above, any other applicable statutory lien, 

and expressed contractual lien on and security interest in all oil and gas production from the Leased 

Premises, and, the identifiable proceeds of that production owned by, received by or due to Lessee 

in accordance with Title I, Chapter Nine, Texas Business and Commerce Code, in order to secure 

the payment of all royalties or other amounts due or to become due under this Lease, and to secure 

payment of any damages or loss that Lessor may suffer by reason of Lessee's breach of any 

convenant or condition of this Lease whether expressed or implied. This lien and security interest 

may be foreclosed with or without court proceedings in the manner provided in Title One, Chapter 

Nine, of the Texas Business and Commerce Code.  Lessee agrees that Travis County may require 

Lessee to execute and record such instruments as may be reasonably necessary to acknowledge, 

attach or perfect this lien, in the event any such instrument is necessary.  Lessee hereby represents 

that there are no prior or superior liens arising from or related to Lessee's operations or activities 

upon the above-described property or from Lessee's acquisition of this Lease.  Should Travis 

County at any time determine that this representation is not true, then Travis County may declare 

this Lease forfeited as provided herein.  This Section 13 shall not be construed as an exclusive 

remedy to Lessor for the non-payment of royalties and shall not preclude Lessor's exercise of other 

rights and remedies allowed by law. 

 

 14.  DEFAULT/TERMINATION 

 

 (a) If the Lessee shall fail or refuse to make the payment of any sum due under the 

provisions of this Lease, within thirty (30) days after same shall become due, or if the Lessee or his 

authorized representative should knowingly or intentionally make any false report or false return 

concerning production, royalty, or drilling, if the Lessee shall fail or refuse to drill any offset well or 

wells in good faith, as required herein, if the Lessee shall fail or refuse to obtain the insurance 

coverage required under Section 12, Part III of this Lease or to comply with the other requirements 

of Part III, if the Lessee or his representative shall refuse the proper authority access to the records 

and other data pertaining to the operations under this Lease within thirty (30) days of request by any 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4500000190 

 

306050 17 

County representative, if the Lessee or his representative shall intentionally fail or refuse to give 

correct information to the proper authorities or fail or refuse to furnish the cuttings or cores of any 

well within thirty (30) days of request by any County representative, or intentionally fail or refuse to 

furnish the log of any well within thirty (30) days of request by any County representative or within 

thirty (30) days after production is found in paying quantities therein, as applicable, or if Lessee or 

his representative shall fail or refuse to timely file with Lessor any other report required herein, and 

if such failures or refusals are not cured within thirty (30) days of demand to cure, or if any of the 

other terms of this Lease shall be violated, this Lease shall be subject to forfeiture  by the 

Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas, by an Order entered in the Minutes of the 

Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas, and mailed to the Lessee in accordance with the 

provisions of Section 17 hereof, reciting the facts constituting the default and declaring the 

forfeiture.  Upon proper showing by the Lessee, within thirty (30) days after the mailing to the 

Lessee of the Order declaring the forfeiture, this Lease shall, at the discretion of the Commissioners 

Court of Travis County, Texas, and upon such terms existing at the time the Lease was placed in 

default, be reinstated.  In case of violations by the Lessee of the provisions of this Lease, the remedy 

of Travis County, Texas, by forfeiture shall not be the exclusive remedy, but, in addition, a suit for 

damages, specific performance, or both may be instituted.   

 

 (b) If this Lease terminates under the provisions of Sections 1, 2, 7, or 12, the 

Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas, may immediately declare the termination of this 

Lease by an Order entered in the Minutes of the Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas, and 

mailed to the Lessee in accordance with the provisions of Section 17 hereof, reciting the facts 

relevant to the termination, reciting the provisions under which this Lease terminated, and declaring 

the termination of this Lease.  The Lessee may present to the Commissioners Court of Travis 

County, Texas, relevant facts showing why this Lease has not terminated.  If, by the presentation of 

such facts, the Travis County Commissioners Court determines that this Lease has not terminated, 

then the Commissioners Court may rescind its Order of termination; in which case, this Lease shall 

continue in full force and effect under such terms and provisions existing at the time the Lease was 

declared terminated.  In the case of noncompliance with the provisions of Sections 1, 2, 7, or 12 

hereof, the remedy of Travis County, Texas, by terminating the Lease, shall not be the exclusive 

remedy but, in addition, a suit for damages, specific performance, or both may be instituted.   

 

 15.  ASSIGNMENT 

 

 The rights acquired under this Lease may be sold, transferred, assigned or conveyed in 

whole or in part provided that all rights acquired may be assigned in quantities of not less than forty 

(40) acres, unless there be less than forty (40) acres remaining in any survey, in which case, such 

lesser area may be assigned.  All assignments shall be filed for record in the County Clerk's office 

of Throckmorton County, Texas, and a certified copy of the assignment shall be filed in the 

Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas, within one hundred (100) days after the date of the 

first acknowledgement thereof.  If not so filed and payments so made, the assignment shall be void 

as against Travis County, Texas, at the sole discretion of the Travis County Commissioners Court.  

Every assignee shall succeed to all rights and be subject to all obligations, liabilities, and penalties 

owed to Travis County, Texas, by the original Lessee or any prior transferee of the Lease, including 

any liabilities to the county for unpaid royalties. 

 

 

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4500000190 

 

306050 18 

 16.  RELINQUISHMENT 

 

 All rights to any whole lease and to any assigned portion thereof may be relinquished to 

Travis County, Texas, at any time by having an instrument of relinquishment recorded in the 

County Clerk's Office of Throckmorton County, Texas, and a certified copy of the relinquishment 

filed in the Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas, accompanied by a ONE DOLLAR 

($1.00) relinquishment fee for each Three Hundred Twenty (320) acre tract of land or assigned 

portion thereof relinquished.  A relinquishment made pursuant to this section shall not relieve the 

Lease Owner of any past due obligations theretofore accrued thereon or impair the Lessor's lien 

herein provided for. 

 

 17.  NOTICE 

 

 Any notice to be given hereunder by either party to the other shall be in writing, and may be 

effected by hand delivery, with notice deemed received immediately upon delivery, or by registered 

or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, with notice deemed effective upon the 

third day following the date of its mailing in accordance with the terms of this Section.  Notice to 

Lessor shall be made or addressed to Honorable Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge, 700 

Lavaca Street, Suite 2.70, Austin, Texas, 78701.   To be effective, notice to Lessor must also be 

mailed by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, to Cyd V. Grimes, 

CPM, Travis County Purchasing Agent,  700 Lavaca, Suite 800, Austin, Texas 78701.  Notice to 

the Lessee shall be made or addressed to: __________________________, 

___________________, ________________________.  Each party hereto may change the address 

to it by giving notice of such change in accordance with the provisions of this paragraph. 

 

 18.  FORCE MAJEURE 

 

 (a) When drilling, reworking, or other operations are delayed or interrupted by storm, 

flood, or other act of God, fire, war, rebellion, insurrection, riot, strikes, or failure of carriers to 

transport or furnish facilities for transportation, or as a result of an order, requisition, or necessity of 

the government, or as a result of any situation beyond the control of the Lessee, the time of such 

delay or interruption shall not be counted against the Lessee, anything in this Lease to the contrary 

notwithstanding; provided, however, Lessee shall immediately notify Lessor of the delay or 

interruption, the cause of such delay or interruption, and an estimated time for recommencement of 

drilling, reworking, or other operations, if possible; and, provided, however, Lessee shall 

immediately recommence drilling, reworking, or other operations once the cause of  the delay or 

interruption ceases or no longer poses a problem; and, provided, however, if Lessor determines that 

the duration of such delay or interruption is indefinite, Lessor may terminate this Lease in 

accordance with Section 14 hereof. 

 

 (b) All express or implied covenants of this Lease shall be subject to all Federal and 

State laws, executive orders, rules, and regulations and this Lease shall not be terminated, in whole 

or in part, nor the Lessee held liable in damages for failure to comply herewith, if compliance is 

prevented by or if such failure is the result of any such law, order, rule, or regulation; and, if from 

such cause, the Lessee is prevented from conducting drilling or reworking operations on or 

producing oil or gas from the leased premises, the time while Lessee is so prevented shall not be 

counted against the Lessee, and this Lease shall be extended for a period of time equal to that 

during which the Lessee is so prevented from conducting drilling or reworking operations on or 

producing oil or gas from the leased premises, notwithstanding any other provision hereof; 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4500000190 

 

306050 19 

provided Lessee immediately informs Lessor of any law, executive order, rule, or regulation 

preventing Lessee's compliance with this Lease, and provided Lessee continues to perform its 

obligations under this Lease, insofar as feasible, in a manner consistent with the applicable law, 

executive order, rule, or regulation.  This Section shall not be construed to affect the amount of any 

payment(s) due under this Lease.  However, the force majeure provisions set forth in this Paragraph 

(b) shall not apply to any order issued or action taken by the Texas Railroad Commission as a result 

of Lessee's failure to comply with applicable law or with the Commission's orders, rules, or 

regulations or the orders, rules, or regulations of another state agency where such compliance is 

within Lessee's reasonable control. 

 

 19.  BINDING CONTRACT 

 

 The covenants, terms, conditions, obligations, and agreements contained herein shall extend 

to and be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, successors in office, or 

assigns of the Lessee herein.   

 

20.  VENUE AND CHOICE OF LAW 

 

 (a) Venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right or cause of action arising out of or in 

connection with this Lease Agreement shall be subject to the venue statutes set forth in Sections 

15.011 and 15.015 of the Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code as currently enacted or as 

recodified or amended; provided, however, in the event of a conflict between Sections 15.011 and 

15.015, Section 15.015 shall prevail and control. 

 

 (b) This Lease Agreement shall be governed, interpreted, construed, and enforced in 

accordance with the laws of the United States of America and the laws of the State of Texas. 

 

21.  RIGHTS AND REMEDIES CUMULATIVE/NON-WAIVER 

 

 (a) Failure by either party to this Lease Agreement to perform its obligations under this 

Agreement shall constitute a breach of this Agreement; and, in the event of such breach, the other 

party is entitled to any and all rights and remedies allowed under United States law and/or Texas 

law, as applicable, (statutory law, case law, rules or regulations). 

 

 (b) The respective rights and remedies of the parties hereto are cumulative.  Except as 

otherwise expressly provided in this Lease Agreement, the exercise of any right or remedy in this 

Agreement, in whole or in part, shall not preclude the exercise of any other right or remedy under 

this Agreement or under any law of the United States or the State of Texas. 

 

 (c) In the event a party hereto does not enforce any obligation of the other party to this 

Agreement, or does not pursue any rights or remedies to which the party may be entitled or pursues 

a right or remedy only in part, such failure(s) shall not be considered a waiver of the other party's 

breach of this Agreement or of any subsequent breach of this Agreement by that party; and, the 

party is entitled to pursue any right or remedy, in whole or in part, for such breach as provided in 

this Agreement or by applicable law.   

 

22. CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE 

 

 (a) This Section is subject to Chapter 176 of the Texas Local Government Code.  If 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4500000190 

 

306050 20 

required under Section 176.006, Subsection (a), Local Government Code, Lessee shall file a 

completed Conflict of Interest Questionnaire in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 176 

of the Local Government Code.  The standard questionnaire form is set forth in Exhibit A 

attached hereto and hereby incorporated by reference herein for all purposes. 

 

(b) Within the applicable, authorized time period prescribed in Section 176.006, 

Subsection (a-1), Lessee shall file the completed Conflict of Interest Questionnaire with the 

Travis County Clerk whose address is 5501 Airport Boulevard, Austin, Texas 78751.   

 

(c) Lessee shall file an updated, completed Questionnaire with the Travis County 

Clerk not later than the seventh (7th) business day after the date of an event that would make a 

statement in the Questionnaire incomplete or inaccurate. 

 

(d) The law requires that the Lessor provide access to Conflict of Interest 

Questionnaires filed under Chapter 176, Local Government Code, on Lessee's website at 

www.co.travis.tx.us.  However, the law does not require that the Lessee release information 

which is excepted from disclosure under the Texas Public Information Act. 

(e) As between Lessor and Lessee, Lessee shall be solely responsible for the 

preparation of its Conflict of Interest Questionnaire, the accuracy and completeness of the 

contents contained therein and ensuring compliance with all applicable requirements of Chapter 

176 of the Local Government Code. 

 

23.  CONSTRUCTION 

 

(a) No rule of construction or interpretation shall apply against any particular party to 

this Lease based on a contention that this Lease Agreement was drafted by one of the parties.  

This Lease Agreement shall be construed and interpreted in a neutral manner and according to its 

terms. 

 

(b) Words of any gender in this Lease Agreement shall be construed to include the 

other, and words in either number shall be construed to include the other, unless the context in 

this Agreement clearly requires otherwise. 

 

(c) Headings and titles at the beginning of the provisions of this Lease Agreement 

have been included only to make it easier to locate the subject matter covered by that part, 

section or paragraph and shall not be used in construing this Agreement. 

 

(d) When any period of time is stated in this Agreement, the time shall be computed 

to exclude the first day and include the last day of the period.  If the last day of any period falls 

on a Saturday, Sunday or a day that Travis County has declared a holiday for its employees, these 

days shall be omitted from the computation.  For each year of this Lease, the County's holiday 

schedule may be obtained from the Travis County Purchasing Agent, upon request.  All hours 

stated in this Lease Agreement are stated in Central Standard Time or in Central Daylight 

Savings Time, as applicable.  All references in this Lease Agreement to the word "days" mean 

calendar days, unless this Agreement specifically states otherwise. 

 

(e) Provisions, words, phrases, and statutes, whether incorporated by actual use or 

reference, shall be applied to this Lease Agreement in accordance with Chapters 311 and 312 of 

the Texas Government Code. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4500000190 

 

306050 21 

24.  SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY 

 

 Nothing in this Lease Agreement shall be construed as a waiver of Travis County's 

sovereign immunity.  No provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted or construed in any way 

intended to constitute a waiver by Travis County of any immunities from suit or liability that 

County may have by operation of law; and, Travis County hereby retains all of its affirmative 

defenses. 

 

 

 

 IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, witnessed the signature of the County Judge of Travis 

County, Texas, this       day                , ____. 

 

 

 

LESSOR: 

 

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

 

 

By:                                                     

 Honorable Samuel T. Biscoe 

 Travis County Judge 

 

 

Date:                                                    

 

 

 

LESSEE: 

 

 

________________________ 

By:       

Name:     

Title:     

 

Date:                                                   

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4500000190 

 

306050 22 

THE STATE OF TEXAS  ) 

 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS  ) 

 

  

 This instrument was acknowledged beore me on ___________________, 201__, by Samuel 

T. Biscoe, County Judge of Travis County, Texas, on behalf of said county. 

 

  

 

         

             

       Notary Public in and for   

       The State of Texas 

 

             

       Name (typed or printed) 

My Commission Expires:    

 

         

      

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4500000190 

 

306050 23 

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS  ) 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS  ) 

 

 BEFORE ME, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for said County, Texas, on this day 

personally appeared ______________________,[Name] __________[Title], __________________ 

[Name of Company] known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing 

instrument, and acknowledged to me that he executed the same in his capacity as 

____________________[Title] of ______________________________[Name of Company], for 

the purposes and consideration therein expressed. 

 

 GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE, THIS               day of                       

________________________,__________. 

 

 

       

       Notary Public in and for   

       The State of Texas 

 

             

       Name (typed or printed) 

         

 

       My Commission Expires:    

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



175731-1   188.278 

EXHIBIT "B" 

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO LEASE LAND 

On the  22
nd

  day of  July , 2014, at  9:00  o'clock a.m. at a Regular Session of the 

Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas, in the Commissioners Courtroom in 

the Travis County Administration Building, in the City of Austin, Travis County, Texas, 

the Travis County Commissioners Court will open sealed bids for and may award an 

oil and gas lease in the following described real property, to-wit: 

 

Tract 53 of the Travis County School Land, Survey, Abstract No. 254, as recorded 

in the Plat Records of Throckmorton County, Texas, at volume 2, page 16, and the 

Deed Records of Throckmorton County, Texas, at Book 60, page 73, specifically, 

Tract 53 which consist of Three Hundred Twenty (320) acres of land more or less. 

 

All bids must be submitted to and received by Cyd V. Grimes, Travis County 

Purchasing Agent, P. 0. Box 1748, Austin, Texas 78767, located on the Eighth floor of the 

Travis County Administration Building, in the City of Austin, Travis County, Texas, on or 

before  11:00  o'clock a.m., on the  21
st
  day of  July , 2014.  Interested parties should contact 

Jason G. Walker, Purchasing Agent Assistant, Travis County Purchasing Office , P. 

O. Box 1748, Austin, Texas 78767, (512)-854-4562, to obtain bidding instructions 

and the County's standard oil and gas lease form. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



The newspapers listed in this chart were used when the ad was last placed.  All costs include ads being 
published three times, once a week.  Deadline information is based on being advertised on Thursday. 
 

NEWSPAPER PHONE POC EMAIL DEADLINE PUBLISHED COST 
Abilene Reporter-News 325-670-5230 April Smith april.smith@reporternews.com Prior day by 4PM daily $725.04 
Amarillo Globe News 806-345-3239 Diane Maynard diane.maynard@amarillo.com Tues. by 3PM daily $520.80 
Austin American Statesman 512-445-3832 Carrie Kline legals@statesman.com Tues. by 12PM Daily-Thurs Rate $1,081.20 
Lubbock Avalanche Journal 806-766-8643 Valarie Rodriguez valarie.rodriguez@lubbockonline.com Tues. by 2PM daily $745.26 
Midland Reporter Telegram 432-687-8821 Valerie House vhouse@mrt.com Tues. by 5PM daily $404.64 
Times Record News 
(Wichita) 

940-763-7511 Kathy Salan salank@timesrecordnews.com Prior day by 3PM daily $619.35 

Graham Leader 940-549-7800 Samantha Brazee classified@grahamleader.com Weds=Mon. by 5 
Sun=Thurs. by 5 

Weds/Sun. $278.40 

TOTAL      $4374.69 
 
 

REQUIRE PREPAYMENT BEFORE AD IS PLACED 
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

mailto:diane.maynard@amarillo.com
mailto:legals@statesman.com
mailto:vhouse@mrt.com


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: June 24, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: David Walch 46663; Marvin Brice 49765 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Contract No.  4400001972, Talking Points 
Psychotherapy, to provide Trauma Focused Therapy for youth 
referred from the COPE Mental Health Court and Crossover Unit. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

The Contractor will provide Trauma Focused Therapy for youth identified 
and referred by the Travis County Juvenile Probation Department in 
coordination with the Collaborative Opportunities for Positive Experience 
(COPE) Mental Health Court and/or Travis County Juvenile Probation 
Department Crossover Unit.   

Section 4.10 of the contract states: Pursuant to TEX. LOC. GOV’T. 
CODE ANN. § 262  et seq., Commissioners Court hereby orders that 
this Agreement is exempt from the requirements of the County 
Purchasing Act because it is a contract for the purchase of personal or 
professional services.   

Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $0.00 has been spent 
against this contract/requirement. 
 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount:  As-Needed Contract   
Contract Type:  Professional Services Agreement 
Contract Period:  June 24, 2014 – September 30, 2014 

 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 9Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 Funding Information: 
  SAP Shopping Cart #:  
  Funding Account(s): Grant:  800258; Internal Order: 100609; Product 

Code:  85121701; Commitment Item:  511010 
  Comments:  As Needed contract. 

  
 

 
 
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


4400001972
Page 1 of 26

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT/CONTRACT

BETWEEN

TRAVIS COUNTY

AND

TALKING POINTS PSYCHOTHERAPY

FOR

TRAUMA FOCUSED THERAPY

COLLABORATIVE OPPORTUNITIES FOR POSITIVE EXPERIENCE
(COPE) PROGRAM & CROSSOVER UNIT

CONTRACT NO. 4400001972

OF

Travis County Purchasing Office

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



F

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0 Definitions 3
2.0 Term 4
3.0 Contractor’s Responsibilities 4
4.0 Compensation, Billing and Payment 7
5.0 Records, Confidentiality and Access 9
6.0 Amendments/Modifications 9
7.0 Other Provisions 10

Approvals 15

Attachments

Attachment A — Scope of Services & Performance Measures 16
Attachment B — Fee Schedule 18
Attachment C — Insurance Requirements 19
Attachment D — Ethics Affidavit including 22

Exhibit 1 - List of Key Contracting Persons 23
Attachment E — Certification regarding Debarment 25

4400001972
Page 2 of 26

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001972
Page 3 of 26

STATE OF TEXAS §
§

COUNTY OF TRAVIS §

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
FOR INDIVIDUAL AND FAMILY COUNSELING SERVICES

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between the following parties: Travis County, Texas, (the
“COUNTY”) and Talking Points Psychotherapy, (the “CONTRACTOR”).

WHEREAS, COUNTY desires to obtain the services of a qualified counselor to provide Trauma Focused
Therapy for Travis County referred participants of the Collaborative Opportunities for Positive Experiences
(COPE) Program & The Crossover Unit, for Travis County and;

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR has the professional ability and expertise, and any necessary professional
degrees, licenses, and certifications to provide these services;

NOW, THEREFORE, COUNTY and CONTRACTOR agree as follows:

1.0 DEFINITIONS

In this Agreement,

1.1 “Commissioners Court” means the Travis County Commissioners Court.

1.2 “Purchasing Agent” means Travis County Purchasing Agent Cyd V. Grimes or her successor.

1.3 “County Auditor” means Travis County Auditor Nicki Riley or her successor.

1.4 “Parties” mean Travis County and Talking Points Psychotherapy,

1.5 “Is doing business” and “has done business” mean:

1.5.1 paying or receiving in any calendar year any money or valuable thing which is worth
more than $250 in the aggregate in exchange for personal services or for the purchase of any
property or property interest, either real or personal, either legal or equitable; or,

1.5.2 loaning or receiving a loan of money; or goods or otherwise creating or having in
existence any legal obligation or debt with a value of more than $250 in the aggregate in a
calendar year;

1.5.3 but does not include

1.5.3.1 any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a Key Contracting Person at a
posted, published, or marked price available to the public,

1.5.3.2 any fmancial services product sold to a Key Contracting Person for personal,
family or household purposes in accordance with pricing guidelines applicable to

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001972
Page 4 of 26

similarly situated individuals with similar risks as determined by Contractor in the
ordinary course of its business; and

1.5.3.3 a transaction for a financial service or insurance coverage made on behalf of
Contractor if Contractor is a national or multinational corporation by an agent, employee
or other representative of Contractor who does not know and is not in a position that he or
she should have known about the Contract.

1. 6 “Key Contracting Person” means any person or business listed in Exhibit 1 to the Affidavits
attached to this contract and marked as Attachment D.

1.7 “DIRECTOR” means the Chief Juvenile Probation Officer of Travis County Juvenile Probation
Department or her designee.

2.0 TERM

2.1 Initial Term. The Initial Term of this Agreement shall commence upon complete execution by
all parties and shall continue through September 30, 2015, unless sooner terminated as provided herein.

2.2 Renewal Term(s). Subject to continued funding by the Commissioners Court, this Agreement
shall thereafter automatically renew on October 1 of each year for five (5) succeeding terms of one year
unless sooner terminated by either party as provided herein.

2.3 Termination. Either party may terminate this Contract at any time by giving the other party
written notice of such termination at least thirty (30) days before the effective date of the termination.

3.0 CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES

3.1 Scope of Services. CONTRACTOR shall perform, in a timely manner, the services and activities
described in the Scope of Services set forth as Attachment A to this Agreement, which is expressly
incorporated herein and made a part hereof

3.2 Ethical Standards. CONTRACTOR shall perform all services and exercise all discretionary
powers in a manner consistent with applicable canons of professional ethics and his best professional
judgment.

3.3 Subcontracting. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, CONTRACTOR is
prohibited from hiring or subcontracting with any other person to perform any of the
CONTRACTOR’S obligations under this Agreement.

3.4 Civil Rights/ADA Compliance. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services and activities
pursuant to this Agreement in compliance with the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Public Law 93-1122, Section 504, and with the provisions of the Americans
with Disabilities Act of 1990, Public Law l01336 [S.933].

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001972
Page 5 of 26

3.5 Legal Compliance. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all federal, state, county, and city laws,
rules, regulations and ordinances applicable to the provision of the services described herein and the
performance of all obligations undertaken pursuant to this Agreement.

3.6 Payment of Property Taxes. CONTRACTOR warrants that CONTRACTOR is not currently
delinquent in payment of property taxes to the Travis County Tax Assessor Collector.

3.7 Insurance Requirements CONTRACTOR shall comply with the insurance requirements set out in
Attachment C, “Insurance Requirements”, which is incorporated herein by reference and made a part
hereof

3.8 Federal Funds. CONTRACTOR warrants that no Federal appropriated funds have been paid or
will be paid, by or on behalf of CONTRACTOR, to any person for influencing or attempting to
influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with awarding of any Federal
contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

3.9 Communications. CONTRACTOR may communicate all requests for direction and factual
information relating to services performed pursuant to this Agreement to the DIRECTOR and may rely
on all factual information supplied by the DIRECTOR in response to these requests. However
DIRECTOR shall not serve as the agent of County or the Commissioners Court or any elected official of
County for any other purpose than conveying factual information.

3.10 CONTRACTOR expressly acknowledges that, in entering into this Agreement, COUNTY has
relied on the representations of CONTRACTOR about the persons who will be performing the services
and their qualifications and that any other person except staff must be approved by COMMISSIONERS
COURT before providing services under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR warrants that all work done
will be done by the employees or members of CONTRACTOR that are presented as performing the
services in CONTRACTOR’S proposal.

3.11 Professional Licensure/Certification. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain all necessary licenses
and certifications related to the Counseling services being provided hereunder. In the event licensure or
certification expires, is revoked, suspended, probated, or is canceled, CONTRACTOR shall inform
COUNTY of such event within five (5) working days.

3.12 Duty to Report. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that suspected or alleged cases of child abuse or
exploitation or neglect of clients served under this Agreement are immediately reported to the Director
and to the appropriate authorities as required by law and in conformity with the procedures detailed in
Chapter 261 of the Texas Family Code. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that its employees, interns,
volunteers, subcontractors, agents, and consultants are properly trained in the reporting requirements and
procedures of Chapter 261 of the Texas Family Code.

3.13 Standard of Care. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, CONTRACTOR
shall perform all services and responsibilities required of CONTRACTOR under this Agreement using
at least that standard of care which a reasonably prudent licensed counselor in Travis County, Texas
would use in similar circumstances. CONTRACTOR warrants the duties within this Agreement shall be

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001972
Page 6 of 26

performed in a good and workmanlike manner. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to relieve
CONTRACTOR of this duty.

3.14 Duty to Disclose Information. CONTRACTOR has an affirmative duty under this Agreement to
promptly ascertain and disclose in sufficient detail all of the following information to Director:

3.14.1 Any and all licensure complaints and any corrective action required by any of
CONTRACTOR’S licensing authorities or funding entities.

3.14.2 Any arrest of any employee, intern, volunteer, subcontractor, agent and/or consultant of
CONTRACTOR.

3.14.3 Any finding of “Reason to Believe” by a state regulatory agency in a child abuse, neglect
and exploitation investigation where an employee, intern, volunteer, subcontractor, agent and/or
consultant of CONTRACTOR was the alleged or designated perpetrator.

3.15 Disqualifying Criminal History

3.15.1 CONTRACTOR agrees to provide documentation to DIRECTOR or her designee that a
criminal background check has been completed on any employee, intern, volunteer,
subcontractor, agent and/or consultant of CONTRACTOR, or CONTRACTOR whose duties in
connection with this CONTRACT may include contact with youth referred under this
CONTRACT. To comply with this requirement, a criminal background check shall include a
fmgerprint-based criminal history search of criminal information databases maintained by the
Federal Bureau of Investigation and by the State of Texas, and shall have been conducted within
two (2) years prior to assignment of services under this CONTRACT.

In addition to the required criminal background check, the DIRECTOR or her designee will
consult any child abuse registry maintained in the State or locality in which any employee, intern,
volunteer, subcontractor, agent and/or consultant of CONTRACTOR, or CONTRACTOR, will
work whose duties in connection with this CONTRACT may include with youth referred under
this CONTRACT. Any employee, intern, volunteer, subcontractor, agent and/or consultant of
CONTRACTOR, or CONTRACTOR, whose name appears on any child abuse registry will be
disqualified from providing services to youth referred under this CONTRACT.

3.15.2 CONTRACTOR shall not assign or allow any employee, volunteers, intern,
subcontractor, agent and/or consultant of CONTRACTOR, or CONTRACTOR, to provide
services to youth referred under this CONTRACT whose criminal background check reflects a
disqualifying criminal history. To comply with this requirement, a disqualifying criminal history
includes: any felony conviction or deferred adjudication within the past ten (10) years; any
jailable misdemeanor conviction or deferred adjudication within the past five (5) years; any
current felony or jailable misdemeanor deferred adjudication, probation or parole; or the
requirement to register as a sex offender.

3.15.3 CONTRACTOR shall not assign or allow any employee, volunteer, intern subcontractor,
agent and/or consultant, or CONTRACTOR, to provide services to youth referred under the
CONTRACT if any of them have:

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001972
Page 7 of 26

1. Engaged in sexual abuse in a prison, jail, lockup, community confmement facility, or
other institution (as defmed in 42 U.S.C. 1997);

2. Been convicted of engaging or attempting to engage in sexual activity in the community
facilitated by force, overt or implied threats of force, or coercion, or if the victim did not
consent or was unable to consent or refuse; or

3. Been civilly or administratively adjudicated to have engaged in the activity described in
subparagraph 2 of this section.

3.16 Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion from
Participation in Contracts Exceeding $100,000.00

The Contractor certifies, by entering into this Contract, that neither it nor its principals are
debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from
participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency. The Contractor shall
include this certification requirement in all subcontracts to this contract that exceed $100,000.00.*Form is provided as Attachment E*

3.17 CONTRACTOR certifies that the individual or business entity named in this Agreement is not
ineligible to receive the state funds or specified grant or payment under Section 231.006 of the Texas
Family Code and acknowledges that this Agreement may be terminated and payment withheld if this
certification is inaccurate.

3.18 Financial Reporting. Upon request, CONTRACTOR shall provide COUNTY copies of profit and
loss statements, annual financial statements, audit reports, and other financial records and reports that
may be requested by COUNTY. COUNTY shall have the right to conduct onsite review of
CONTRACTOR’S financial records and source documents.

3.19 CONTRACTOR is hereby notified that state funds may be used to pay for services rendered to
Travis County Juvenile Probation. For this reason, CONTRACTOR shall account separately for the
receipt and expenditure of all funds received as payment under this Agreement, and shall adhere to
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in the accounting, reporting and auditing of such
funds. Contractor agrees to provide County an independent financial audit of all state funds received
under this Contract at least once a year. The audit shall be prepared in accordance with Generally
Accepted Auditing Standards and any other audit requirements of County or TJPC.

3.20 Monitoring. COUNTY shall have the right to conduct periodic financial and programmatic
monitoring of CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR agrees to cooperate fully with COUNTY’S monitoring
activities.

4.0 COMPENSATION. BILLING AND PAYMENT

4.1 . For and in consideration of the satisfactory performance by CONTRACTOR of the
services described in Attachment A, Scope of Services, and CONTRACTOR’s compliance with the

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001972
Page 8 of 26

terms and conditions of this Agreement, COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR in accordance with the
Fee Schedule which is attached hereto as Attachment B and made a part hereof.

4.1.1 Not to exceed amount: N/A-As needed Basis
4.1.2 Additional Fees: None.

4.2 Satisfactory Completion of Services. COUNTY shall not be responsible for the costs of any
services under this Agreement that are not performed to COUNTY’ S satisfaction and given COUNTY’ S
approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. COUNTY’ S obligation to make any payment to
CONTRACTOR is dependent upon completion of the services invoiced in a timely, good and
professional manner and at a standard acceptable in CONTRACTOR’S profession.

4.3 Timely Payment. The COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR within thirty (30) days after the
receipt of a complete and correct invoice by the COUNTY Department. Accrual and payment of
interest on overdue payments shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code.

4.4 Invoicing. CONTRACTOR shall submit invoicing to COUNTY on a monthly basis and each
invoice shall contain the name of each client served by CONTRACTOR, the type and date of service
provided by CONTRACTOR, the total hours of service provided by CONTRACTOR, the fee assessed
for each service provided by CONTRACTOR and the total amount of payment requested for each client.
Each invoice submitted by CONTRACTOR to COUNTY shall be signed by CONTRACTOR. Original
invoices shall be sent to:

Financial Services
2515 South Congress Avenue.

Austin, Texas 78704.

4.5 Overpayment. CONTRACTOR shall refund to COUNTY any money which has been paid to
CONTRACTOR by COUNTY, which COUNTY determines has resulted in overpayment to
CONTRACTOR. Such refund shall be made by CONTRACTOR to COUNTY within thirty (30) days
after the refund is requested by COUNTY. If COUNTY enters into any subsequent Agreement with
CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR fails to refund any money owed to COUNTY within thirty (30)
days of request, COUNTY may offset the difference against the next advance or payment payable to
CONTRACTOR.

4.6 Taxpayer Identification. CONTRACTOR shall provide COUNTY with an Internal Revenue
Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification that is completed in
compliance with the Internal Revenue Code, its rules and regulations, and a statement of entity status in
a form satisfactory to the County Auditor before any Agreement funds are payable.

4.7 Delincjuent Property Taxes. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if the
CONTRACTOR is delinquent in the payment of property taxes at the time of invoicing, the
CONTRACTOR hereby assigns any payments to be made for services rendered hereunder to the Travis
County Tax Assessor-Collector for the payment of said delinquent taxes.

4.8 Disbursements to Persons with Outstanding Debt.

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001972
Page 9 of 26

4.8.1 In accordance with Section 154.045 of the Local Government Code, If notice of
indebtedness has been filed with the County Auditor or County Treasurer evidencing the
indebtedness of CENTER to the State, the COUNTY or a salary fund, a warrant may not be
drawn on a COUNTY fund in favor of the CENTER, or an agent or assignee of CENTER until:

4.8.1.1 the County Treasurer notifies CONTRACTOR in writing that the debt is
outstanding; and
4.8.1.2 the debt is paid.

4.8.2 “Debt” includes delinquent taxes, fines, fees, and indebtedness arising from written
agreements with the COUNTY.

4.8.3 COUNTY may apply any funds COUNTY owes CONTRACTOR to the outstanding
balance of debt for which notice is made under section 4.8.1.1 above, if the notice includes a
statement that the amount owed by the COUNTY to CONTRACTOR may be applied to reduce
the outstanding debt.

4.9 Period of Services. COUNTY shall not be liable for costs incurred or performances rendered byCONTRACTOR before or after the term of this Agreement.

4.10 Exemption from County Purchasing Act. Pursuant to TEX. LOC. GOV’T. CODE ANN. § 262
q., Commissioners Court hereby orders that this Agreement is exempt from the requirements of theCounty Purchasing Act because it is a contract for the purchase of personal or professional services.

4.11 Funding Out. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if, during budget planning and
adoption, Commissioners Court fails to provide funding for this Contract for the following fiscal year ofCOUNTY, COUNTY may terminate this Contract after giving CONTRACTOR 20 days written noticethat this Contract is terminated due to the failure to fund it.

4.12 CONTRACTOR acknowledges and agrees that COUNTY is under no obligation to refer any
client to CONTRACTOR for services under this Agreement and this Agreement shall not be so
construed.

5.0 RECORDS CONFIDENTIALITY AND ACCESS

5.1 Confidentiality. CONTRACTOR shall establish a method to secure the confidentiality of records
and other information relating to services provided under this Agreement in accordance with the
applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, and applicable professional ethical
standards. This provision shall not be construed as limiting the right of COUNTY access to clientinformation. Upon authorization from COUNTY to render client files anonymous, CONTRACTOR
agrees to mask information identifying clients in a way that will not obstruct COUNTY’ S monitoringand evaluation duties in any way.

5.2 Records Maintenance. CONTRACTOR shall create, maintain, and retain, and shall make
reasonably available to COUNTY, all necessary and appropriate records, information, anddocumentation (including all accounting records) relating to services provided under the terms of this
Agreement for a period of three (3) years after the provision of the services, or until any litigation
concerning any of the services has been satisfactorily resolved, whichever occurs later. CONTRACTOR

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001972
Page 10 of 26

shall provide copies of such records to COUNTY upon written request to CONTRACTOR at a cost
mutually agreed to by COUNTY and CONTRACTOR

5. 3 Access to Records. COUNTY or its duly authorized representatives shall have access to any and
all records, information and documentation of CONTRACTOR, which are directly pertinent to the
services to be performed under this Agreement for the purposes of making audits, examinations,
excerpts, and transcriptions. CONTRACTOR shall maintain the records, information, and
documentation in a readily available state and location, reasonably accessible to COUNTY or their
authorized representatives.

5.4 Right to Contractual Material. All work products produced under this Agreement including
programming, reports, charts, schedules, or other appended documentation to any responses, inquiries,
correspondence, and related material submitted by CONTRACTOR ffl become property of the
COUNTY.

6.0 AMENDMENTS / MODIFICATIONS

6.1 General. Unless specifically provided otherwise in this Agreement, any change to the terms of this
Agreement or any attachments to it shall be in writing and signed by each party. IT IS
ACKNOWLEDGED BY CONTRACTOR THAT NO OFFICER, AGENT, EMPLOYEE OR
REPRESENTATIVE OF COUNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY TO CHANGE THE TERMS OF THIS
AGREEMENT OR ANY ATTACHMENTS TO IT UNLESS EXPRESSLY GRANTED THAT
AUTHORITY BY COMMISSIONERS COURT.

6.2 Requests for Changes. CONTRACTOR shall submit all requests for changes to the terms of this
Agreement or any attachment to it to the Director with a copy to the Purchasing.

6.3 Purchasing Agent Authority. Contractor understands and agrees that the Purchasing Agent has
certain authority to approve an Amendment subject to applicable law (specifically the County
Purchasing Act, TEX. LOC. GOVT CODE, Chapter 262, and other applicable law) and County policy,
as approved by the Commissioners Court. Within that authority, the Purchasing Agent may approve
Amendment requests under this Contract. The Purchasing Agent will advise Contractor as to such
authority upon submission of a request for Amendment; at any time, the Purchasing Agent may submit
any request to the Commissioners Court for approval, regardless of the authority of the Purchasing
Agent to sign the Amendment.

7.0 OTHER PROVISIONS:

7.1 iNDEMNIFICATION. CONTRACTOR AGREES TO AND SHALL INDEMMFY AND HOLD
HARMLESS COUNTY, ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES, FROM AND AGAINST
ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, NEGLIGENCE, CAUSES OF ACTION, SUITS,
AND LIABILITY OF EVERY KiND, INCLUDING ALL EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT
COSTS, AND ATTORNEY’S FEES, FOR iNJURY TO OR DEATH OF ANY PERSON, FOR ANY
ACT OR OMISSION BY CONTRACTOR, OR FOR DAMAGE TO ANY PROPERTY, ARJS1NG
OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE WORK DONE BY CONTRACTOR UNDER THIS
CONTRACT.

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001972
Page 11 of 26

7.2 Copyrights, Patents & Licenses. CONTRACTOR represents and warrants that (i) all applicable
copyrights, patents, licenses, and other proprietary or intellectual property rights which may exist on
materials used in this Agreement have been adhered to and (ii) the County shall not be liable for any
infringement of those rights and any rights granted to the County shall apply for the duration of this
Agreement. Consultant shall indemnify the County, its officers, agents, and employees from all claims,
losses, damages, causes of action, and liability of every kind including expenses of litigation, court costs
and attorney fees for damages to any person or property arising in connection with any alleged or actual
infringement of existing patents, licenses, or copyrights applicable to materials used in this Agreement.

7.3 Claims Notification. If any claim, or other action, including proceedings before an
administrative agency, is made or brought by any person, firm, corporation, or other entity against
CONTRACTOR or COUNTY in relation to the performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall
give written notice to COUNTY of the claim or other action within three (3) working days after being
notified of it or the threat of it; the name and address of the person, firm, corporation or other entity that
made or threatened to make a claim, or that instituted or threatened to institute any type of action or
proceeding; the basis of the claim, action or proceeding; the court or administrative tribunal, if any,
where the claim, action or proceeding was instituted; and the name or names of any person against
whom this claim is being made or threatened. This written notice shall be given in the manner provided
herein. Except as otherwise directed, CONTRACTOR shall furnish to COUNTY copies of all pertinent
papers received by CONTRACTOR with respect to these claims or actions.

7.4 Suspension. If CONTRACTOR fails to comply with any provision herein, COUNTY may,
upon written notification to CONTRACTOR, suspend this Agreement in whole or in part and withhold
further payments to CONTRACTOR, until CONTRACTOR is in compliance with the terms of this
Agreement or Agreement is terminated as provided herein.

7.5 Non-Waiver of Default

7.5.1 No payment, act or omission by COUNTY may constitute or be construed as a waiver of
any breach or default of CONTRACTOR which then exists or may subsequently exist.

7.5.2 All rights of COUNTY under this Agreement are specifically reserved and any payment,
act or omission shall not impair or prejudice any remedy or right to COUNTY under it. Any
right or remedy in this Agreement shall not preclude the exercise of any other right or remedy
under this Agreement or under any law nor shall any action taken in the exercise of any right or
remedy be deemed a waiver of any other rights or remedies.

7.6 Forfeiture of Contract If CONTRACTOR has done business with a Key Contracting Person
during the 365 day period immediately prior to the date of execution of this Agreement or does business
with any Key Contracting Person at any time after the date of execution of this Agreement and prior to
the full performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall forfeit all benefits of this Agreement and
COUNTY shall retain all performance by CONTRACTOR and recover all considerations, or the value
of all consideration, paid to CONTRACTOR pursuant to this Agreement, provided, however, that this
section may be waived by Commissioners Court pursuant to Section 3(g) of the Travis County Ethics
Policy.

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001972
Page 12 of 26

7.7 Entire Agreement

7.7.1 Entire Agreement. All written or oral agreements between the parties to this Agreement
related to the subject matter of this Agreement that were made prior to the execution of this
Agreement have been reduced to writing and are contained in this Agreement or in the policies
and procedures approved by Commissioners Court for County. Any prior agreements, promises,
negotiations, or representations not expressly set forth in this document are of no force and effect.

7.7.2 Attachments. The attachments enumerated and denominated below are hereby made a
part of this Agreement, and constitute promised performances by CONTRACTOR in accordance
with all the provisions of this Agreement.

7.7.2.1 Attachment A — Scope of Services
7.7.2.2 Attachment B — Fee Schedule
7.7.2.3 Attachment C — Insurance Requirements
7.7.2.4 Attachment D — Ethics Affidavit including:

Exhibit 1 - List of Key Contracting Persons
7.7.2.5 Attachment E —Certification Regarding

Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary
Exclusion for Covered Contracts

7.8 Notices:

7.8.1 Written Notice. Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement by
one party to the other shall be in writing and shall be given and deemed to have been given
immediately if delivered in person to the address set forth in this section for the party to whom
the notice is given, or on the third day following mailing if placed in the United States Mail,
postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail with return receipt requested, addressed to the
party at the address herein specified.

7.8.2 County Address. The address of County for all purposes under this Agreement shall be:

Cyd Grimes, C.P.M. CPPO (or her successor)
Travis County Purchasing Agent
P. 0. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767

With copies to (registered or certified mail with return receipt is not required):

Estela Medina (or her successor)
Chief Juvenile Probation Officer
Travis County Juvenile Probation Department
P.O. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767

7.8.3 Contractor Address. The address of CONTRACTOR for all purposes under this
Agreement and for all notices hereunder shall be:

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001972
Page 13 of 26

Talking Points Psychotherapy
3930 Bee Cave Road, Bldg 2, Suite E
Austin, Texas 78746

(512) 627-6592

7.9 Change of Address. Each party may change the address for notice to it by giving written notice
of the change in compliance with Section 7.8. Any change in the address shall be reported within fifteen
(15) days of the change.

7.10 Authority: The DIRECTOR or her designee will act on behalf of COUNTY with respect to the
work to be performed under this Agreement. The DIRECTOR shall have complete authority to interpret
and define in writing COUNTY’S policies and decisions with respect to CONTRACTOR’S services.
The DIRECTOR may designate representatives to transmit instructions and receive information.

7.11 Dispute Resolution - Administration by Purchasing Agent. When the Contractor andlor County
have been unable to successfully resolve any question or issue related to this Contract, the Contractor or
County shall then present the matter to the Purchasing Agent by providing the Purchasing Agent with
written notice of the dispute. Such notice shall contain a specific written description of the issues
involved as well as the Contractor’s requested resolution of the dispute and any other relevant
information which Contractor desires to include. As of the receipt of such notice by the Purchasing
Agent, the Purchasing Agent will act as the County representative in any further issuances and in the
administration of this Contract in relation to the described dispute. Unless otherwise stated in this
Contract, any document, notice or correspondence in relation to the disputes at this stage not issued by or
to the Purchasing Agent is may be considered void. If the Contractor does not agree with any document,
notice or correspondence relating to the dispute issued by the Purchasing Agent or other authorized
County person, the Contractor must submit a written notice to the Purchasing Agent with a copy to the
Director within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the document, notice or correspondence, outlining
the exact point of disagreement in detail. The Purchasing Agent will issue a written notice of the fmal
resolution of the dispute to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of the initial written notice of
dispute by the Purchasing Agent. If this final resolution does not resolve the dispute to the Contractor’s
satisfaction, Contractor may submit a written Notice of Appeal to the Commissioners Court through the
Purchasing Agent. The Purchasing Agent will provide a copy of such response to the Director. This
Notice of Appeal must be submitted within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the unsatisfactory fmal
resolution. Contractor then has the right to be heard by Commissioners Court and the Purchasing Agent
will coordinate placing the matter on the Commissioners Court agenda.

7.12 Mediation. If the Contractor is not satisfied with the resolution of the dispute pursuant to
paragraph 7.11, Contractor shall notifSr the Travis County Management representing this contract, and, if
mediation is acceptable to both Parties in resolving the dispute arising under this Contract, the Parties
agree to use the Dispute Resolution Center of Austin, Texas, or another mediation group as chosen by
County and approved by Contractor, as the provider of mediators for mediation as described in the TEX.
CIV. PRAC. AND REM. CODE, Section 154.023. Unless both Parties are satisfied with the result of
the mediation, the mediation will not constitute a final and binding resolution of the dispute. All
communications within the scope of the mediation shall remain confidential as described in TEX. CIV.
PRAC. AND REM. CODE, Section 154.073, unless both Parties agree, in writing, to waive the
confidentiality.

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001972
Page 14 of 26

7.13 Cooperation and Coordination. CONTRACTOR shall cooperate and coordinate with COUNTY
staff and other contractors as reasonable and necessary and as required by the DIRECTOR.

7.14 Independent Contractor. The parties expressly acknowledge and agree that CONTRACTOR is an
independent contractor, operating solely in that capacity, and assumes all of the rights, obligations and
liabilities applicable to him as an independent contractor. CONTRACTOR shall not be considered an
employee of COUNTY, or gain any rights against COUNTY pursuant to the COUNTY’S personnel
policies.

7.15 Governing Law. The validity of this agreement and of any of its terms or provisions, as well as
the rights and duties of the parties hereunder, shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas.

7.15.1 Severability. Any clause, sentence, provision, paragraph, or article of this Agreement
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or ineffective shall not impair,
invalidate, or nullify the remainder of this Agreement, but the effect thereof shall be limited to
the clause, sentence, provision, paragraph or article so held to be invalid, illegal, or ineffective.

7.15.2 Law and Venue. All obligations under this Agreement shall be performable in Travis
County, Texas. Venue for any litigation concerning this Agreement shall be in the City of
Austin, Travis County.

7.15.3 Assignment. No party may assign any of the rights or duties created by this Agreement
without the prior written approval of the other party. It is acknowledged by CONTRACTOR that
no officer, agent, employee or representative of COUNTY has any authority to assign any part of
this Agreement unless expressly granted that authority by Commissioners Court.

7.16 Binding Contract. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, this Agreement shall
be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR and their respective
successors, executors, administrators, and assigns. Neither the COUNTY nor the CONTRACTOR may
assign, sublet, or transfer his interest in or obligations under this Agreement without the written consent
of the other party hereto.

7.17 Performance of Other Services. As a part of this Agreement, it is understood that
CONTRACTOR is free to provide services outside this Agreement as it sees fit at those times which
CONTRACTOR is not obligated to COUNTY. It is also understood that COUNTY is free to have more
than one contractor providing the type of services included in this Agreement.

7.18 Survival. Conditions and covenants of this Agreement which by their terms are performable
after the termination, expiration, or end of this Agreement shall survive such termination, expiration, or
end and remain fully performable.

7.19 Interpretational Guidelines

7.19.1 Computation of Time. When any period of time is stated in this Agreement, the time
shall be computed to exclude the first day and include the last day of the period. If the last day of
any period falls on a Saturday, Sunday or a day that COUNTY has declared a holiday for its
employees, these days shall be omitted from the computation.

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001972
Page 15 of 26

7.19.2 Number and Gender. Words of any gender in this Agreement shall be construed to
include any other gender and words in either number shall be construed to include the other
unless the context in the Agreement clearly requires otherwise.

7.19.3 Headings. The headings at the beginning of the various provisions of this Agreement
have been included only to make it easier to locate the subject matter covered by that section or
subsection and are not to be used in construing this Agreement.

-

7.20 Conflict of Interest Ouestionnaire: If required by Chapter 176, Texas Local Goveinment Code,
the Consultant shall complete and ifie a Conflict of Interest Questionnaire with the County Clerk,
Elections Division, 5501 Airport Blvd., Austin, Texas 78751. The Consultant shall update this
Questionnaire by September 1 of each year for the duration of this Contract, as required by Chapter 176
of the Local Government Code. In addition, if any statement on a submitted Questionnaire becomes
incomplete or inaccurate, the Consultant shall submit an updated Questionnaire. The Consultant should
note that the law requires the County to provide access to a filed Questionnaire on the official Travis
County Internet website.

7.21 The person or persons signing this Agreement on behalf of CONTRACTOR, or representing
themselves as signing this agreement on behalf of CONTRACTOR, do hereby warrant and guarantee
that he, she or they have been duly authorized by CONTRACTOR to sign this Agreement on behalf of
CONTRACTOR and to bind CONTRACTOR validly and legally to all terms, performances, and
provisions in this Agreement.

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001972
Page 16 of 26

DUPLICATE ORIGINALS

This Agreement will be executed in duplicate originals and be effective when executed by both parties.

Talking Points Psychotherapy Travis County

O-m. CltL

_______________

By:,L 1Y. By: Samuel T. Biscoe
Name and Title (Printed) Travis County Judge

Date: ‘-rrcj 22ol’- Date:______________

Approved as to Legal Form By:

________________________________

Assistant County Attorney

Approved by Purchasing:

________________________________

Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO Purchasing Agent

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001972
Page 17 of 26

Attachment A
Scope of Services

CONTRACTOR, Dianne Arnett, shall provide Trauma Focused Therapy for youth identified and
referred by the Travis County Juvenile Probation Department hereinafter “Department,” in
coordination with the Collaborative Opportunities for Positive Experience (COPE) Mental
Health Court and/or Travis County Juvenile Probation Department, as described below:

1. Youth will be identified and referred to CONTRACTOR for Trauma Focused Therapy by
the Department.

2. The Department will designate services that are to be provided to each youth referred and
CONTRACTOR will only provide the service(s) as designated.

3. CONTRACTOR will give these youth and their families priority in scheduling
appointments for therapy whenever possible.

4. CONTRACTOR agrees to contact the COPE Manager or Crossover Manager for the
Department within twenty-four (24) hours when a family does not attend a scheduled
appointment or a therapy session is cancelled.

5. CONTRACTOR may terminate services, with approval from the COPE Manager and/or
the Crossover Manager for the Department if the family cancels or does not appear at
three (3) consecutive scheduled appointments or sessions

6. CONTRACTOR agrees that no payment will, be provided for therapy sessions that do not
occur, regardless of advance cancellation or failure to appear by client.

7. If therapy services are designated by the Department, then CONTRACTOR shall provide
therapy services to youth/family participants of COPE or the Department during individual
or family sessions, as follows.

7.1 Sessions will be in the CONTRACTOR’S office.

7.2 The first session will be provided within five (5) working days after the initial
intake.

7.3 The length of each individual session will be 60 minutes in duration.

7.4 Sessions will be therapeutic in nature with the goal of reducing behaviors related
to trauma experienced in the child’s past or current trauma that has been
conducive to escalating behaviors or the need for increased intervention by the
Department. Sessions can be used to establish or reestablish parent-child
relationships, teach coping and problem solving skills to the youth and address
specific goals in ‘the COPE or Department’s Individual/family case plan or any
additional goals set forth by the CONTRACTOR.

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001972
Page 18 of 26

7.5 Sessions will be scheduled weekly, unless CONTRACTOR deems it appropriate
to modify frequency.

7.6 All sessions will be completed within nine (9) months of the initial intake session.

7.7 CONTRACTOR will notify the COPE Manager and/or Probation Manager within
forty-eight (48) hours when the number of sessions is decreased due to either lack
of progress in therapy or termination of therapy.

7.8 At no time shall the number of sessions provided per client exceed twelve (12)
unless CONTRACTOR obtains written authorization from Department.

7.9 CONTRACTOR will provide a weekly progress report using a form supplied by
the Department. These progress reports will address the youth and/or their
family’s compliance in keeping appointments and report any failure to appear for
scheduled appointments. The therapist will also provide information on the
youth’s progress with therapy and the youth’s level of engagement.

7.10 CONTRACTOR will provide a final progress report that will contain outcome
information that will include a diagnosis within forty-eight (48) hours after the
final therapy session.

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001972
Page 19 of 26

ATTACHMENT B
FEE SCHEDULE

For and in consideration of full and satisfactory performance of the services and activities described in the Scope of Service,
Attachment A, Travis County shall pay Contractor at a rate of:

Trauma Focused Therapy $65.00 per hour

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001972
Page 20 of 26

ATTACHMENT C
INSURANCE REOUIREMENTS

Contractor shall have, and shall rectuire all subcontractors providing services under this Contract to have,
Standard Insurance meeting the General Requirements as set forth below and sufficient to cover the needs of
Contractor and/or Subcontractor pursuant to applicable generally accepted business standards. Depending on
services provided by Contractor and/or Subcontractor(s), Supplemental Insurance Requirements or alternate
insurance options shall be imposed as follows:

I. General Requirements Applicable to All Contractors’ Insurance.

The following requirements apply to the Contractor and to Subcontractor(s) performing services or activities
pursuant to the terms of this Contract. Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the following concerning
insurance requirements applicable to Contractor and subcontractor(s):

A. The minimum types and limits of insurance indicated below shall be maintained throughout the
duration of the Contract.

B. Insurance shall be written by companies licensed in the State of Texas with an A.M. Best rating
of B+ Vifi or higher.

C. Prior to commencing work under this Contract, the required insurance shall be in force
evidenced by a Certificate of Insurance issued by the writing agent or carrier. A copy of the Certificate of
Insurance shall be forwarded to County immediately upon execution of this Contract.

D. Certificates of Insurance shall include the endorsements outlined below and shall be submitted
to the Travis County Purchasing Agent within ten (10) working days of execution of the contract by both
parties or the effective date of the Contract, whichever comes first. The Certificate(s) shall show the Travis
County contract number and all endorsements by number.

E. Insurance required under this Contract which names Travis County as Additional Insured shall be
considered primary for all claims.

F. Insurance limits shown below may be written as Combined Single Limits or structured using
primary and excess or umbrella coverage that follows the form of the primary policy.

G. County shall be entitled, upon its request and without expense, to receive certified copies of
policies and endorsements.

H. County reserves the right to review insurance requirements during term of the Contract and
to require that Contractor make reasonable adjustments when the scope of services has been expanded.

I. Contractor shall not allow any insurance to be cancelled or lapse during y term of this
Contract. Contractor shall not permit the minimum limits of coverage to erode or otherwise be reduced.
Contractor shall be responsible for all premiums, deductibles and self-insured retention. All deductibles and
self-insured retention shall be shown on the Certificates of Insurance.

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001972
Page 21 of26

3. Insurance coverage specified in this Contract is not intended and will not be interpreted to limit
the responsibility or liability of the Contractor or subcontractor(s).

II. Specific Requirements

The following requirements (ll.A - ll.E, inclusive) apply to the Contractor and Subcontractor(s performing
services or activities pursuant to the terms of this Contract. Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the
following concerning insurance requirements applicable to Contractor and subcontractor(s):

A. Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability Insurance

1. Coverage shall be consistent with statutory benefits outlined in the Texas Workers’
Compensation Act.

2. Employers’ Liability limits are:

$500,000 bodily injury each accident
$500,000 bodily injury by disease
$500,000 policy limit

3. Policies under this Section shall apply to State of Texas and include the following
endorsements in favor of Travis County and City of Austin:

a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304)
b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form 420601)

B. Commercial General Liability Insurance

1. Minimum limit:
$ 500,000* per occurrence for coverage A and B with a
$1,000,000 policy aggregate

2. The Policy shall contain or be endorsed as follows:
a. Blanket contractual liability for this Contract
b. Independent Contractor Coverage

3. The Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor of Travis County

4. a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form CG 2404)
b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form CG 0205)
c. Travis County named as additional insured (Form CG 2010)

* Supplement Insurance Requirement If child care, or housing arrangements for clients is provided, the
required limits shall be:

$ 1,000,000 per occurrence with a
$ 2,000,000 policy aggregate

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001972
Page 22 of 26

C. Business Automobile Liability Insurancet

1. If any form of transportation for clients is provided, coverage for all owned, non-owned, and
hired vehicles shall be maintained with a combined single limit of $3 00,000* per occurrence
2. Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor of Travis County

a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form TE 2046A)
b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form TE 0202A)
c. Travis County named as additional insured (Form TE 9901 B)

t Alternative Insurance Requirement
If NO transportation services of any type is provided, and use of a motor vehicle is strictly limited to travel to

and from work or work sites, evidence of Personal Auto Policy coverage with limits of
$1 00,000/$300,000/$50,000

may be provided in lieu of Business Automobile Liability Insurance

D. Professional Liability/E & 0 Insurance

1. Coverage shall be provided with a mrnimum limit of $1,000,000 per claim /$3,000,000
aggregate to cover injury to a child while the child is in the care of Contractor or Subcontractor and
to cover negligent acts, sexual harassment, errors, or omissions arising out of Professional Services
under this Contract.

2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date
this Contract is signed and/or effective, whichever comes first. Coverage shall include a three (3)
year extended reporting period from the date this Contract expires or is terminated. Certificate of
Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims made and shall contain both the retroactive date of
coverage and the extended reporting dates.

3. Subcontractor(s) who are not covered under Contractor’s professional liability insurance shall
provide Contractor with current certificates of insurance annually on the renewal date of their
insurance policy.

E. Blanket Crime Policy Insurance

1. If an advance against Contract Funds is requested or received in an amount greater than
$5,000, a Blanket Crime Policy shall be required with limits of the Contract Funds allocated in the
Contract or the amount of scheduled advances.

2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date
services begin under this Contract or the effective date of this Contract, whichever comes first.
Coverage shall include a three- (3) year extended reporting period from the date this Contract expires
or is terminated. Certificate of Insurance shall c1arif’ coverage is claims made and fl contain both
the retroactive date of coverage and the extended reporting period date.

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF TRAVIS

Date:

ATTACHMENT D
ETHICS AFFIDAVIT

ETHICS AFFIDAVIT

4400001972
Page 23 of 26

Signature os’c <as—. zAddress
c_II,kh:cZ S_

_____________on

,2OI’f

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

IV’7%

Notary PubliAtate of___________

Typed or printed name of notarr
My commission expires: ‘j

Name of Afflant:___________________________________
Title of Affiant:________________________________________
Business Name of Proponent:
County of Proponent:

Affiant on oath swears that the following statements are true:

1. Affiant is authorized by Proponent to make this affidavit for Proponent.

2. Affiant is fully aware of the facts stated in this affidavit.

3. Affiant can read the English language.

4. Proponent has received the list of key contracting persons associated with this solicitation which is attached to this affidavit asExhibit “1”.

5. Affiant has personally read Exhibit ‘1” to this Affidavit.

6. Affiant has no knowledge of any key contracting person on Exhibit “1” with whom Proponent is doing business or has donebusiness during the 365 day period immediately before the date of this affidavit whose name is not disclosed in thesolicitation.
ICN-w.

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me by I\ &

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001972
Page 24 of 26

EXHIBIT 1
LIST OF KEY CONTRACTING PERSONS

March 26, 2014

CURRENT
Name of Individual Name of Business

Position Held Holding Office/Position Individual is Associated

County Judge Samuel T. Biscoe
County Judge (Spouse) Donalyn Thompson-Biscoe
Executive Assistant Cheryl Brown
Executive Assistant Melissa Velasquez
Executive Assistant Josie Z. Zavala
Executive Assistant David Salazar
Commissioner, Precinct 1 Ron Davis
Commissioner, Precinct 1 (Spouse) Annie Davis Seton Hospital
Executive Assistant Deone Wilhite
Executive Assistant Felicitas Chavez
Executive Assistant Sue Spears
Commissioner, Precinct 2 Bruce Todd*
Commissioner, Precinct 2 (Spouse) Elizabeth Christian Consultant
Executive Assistant Sara Krause*
Executive Assistant Joe Hon
Executive Assistant Peter Einhorn
Commissioner, Precinct 3 Gerald Daugherty*
Commissioner, Precinct 3 (Spouse) Charyln Daugherty Consultant
Executive Assistant Bob Moore*
Executive Assistant Martin Zamzow*
Executive Assistant Madison A. Gessner* -

Commissioner, Precinct 4 Margaret Gomez -

Executive Assistant Edith Moreida
Executive Assistant Norma Guerra ...

County Treasurer Dolores Ortega-Carter
County Auditor Nicld Riley
County Executive, Administrative Vacant :t - HiLt ,;;..H4

County E*ecutive, Planning&Budgef Leslie Browder
County Executive, Emergency Services Danny Hobby
County Executive, Health/Human Services Sherri E. Fleming
County Executive, TNR Steven M. Manilla, P.E.
County Executive, Justice & Public Safety Roger Jefferies
Director, Facilities Management Roger El Khoury, M.S.,
Chief Information Officer Tanya Acevedo
Director, Records Mgment & Communications Steven Broberg
Travis County Aftorney David Escamilla
First Assistant County Attorney Steve Capelle
Executive Assistant, County Attorney James Collins
Director, Land Use Division Tom Nuckols
Attorney, Land Use Division Julie Joe
Attorney, Land Use Division Christopher Gilmore
Director, Transactions Division John Hille
Aftorney, Transactions Division Daniel Bradford
Attorney, Transactions Division Elizabeth Winn
Attomey, Transactions Division Mary Etta Gerhardt
Attorney, Transactions Division Barbara Wilson
Attomey, Transactions Division Jennifer Kraber*
Attorney, Transactions Division Tenley Aidredge
Director, Health Services Division Beth Devery

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001972
Page 25 of 26

Attorney, Health Services Division Prema Gregerson
Purchasing Agent Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO
Assistant Purchasing Agent Marvin Brice, CPPB
Assistant Purchasing Agent Bonnie Floyd, CPPO, CPPB, CTPM
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV CW Bruner, CTP
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Lee Perry
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jason Walker
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Richard Villareal
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Patrick Strittmatter
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Lori Clyde, CPPO, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Scott Wilson, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Loren Breland, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV John B. Pena, CTPM
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Rosalinda Garcia
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Angel Gomez
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jesse Herrera, CTP, CTPM, CTCM
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Shannon Pleasant, CTPM
Purchasing Agent Assistant III David Walch
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Michael Long, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Sydney Ceder
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Ruena Victorino*
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Rachel Fishback*
Purchasing Agent Assistant II Vacant
Purchasing Agent Assistant II L. Wade Laursen
Purchasing Agent Assistant II Sam Francis
HUB Coordinator Sylvia Lopez
HUB Specialist Betty Chapa
HUB Specialist Jerome Guerrero
Purchasing Business Analyst Scott Worthington
Purchasing Business Analyst Vacant

FORMER EMPLOYEES

Name of Individual
Position Held Holding Office/Position Date of Expiration
Commissioner, Precinct 2 Sarah Eckhardt 05/ 31/14
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Nancy Barchus, CPPB 06/28/14
Purchasing Business Analyst Jennifer Francis 11/29/14
Executive Assistant Barbara Smith 01/15/15
Attorney, Transactions Division Jim Connolly 02/28/15

- .
.. ‘.rJ 2 1

*
- Identifies employees who have been in that position less than a year.

. . -
.:

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



4400001972
Page 26 of 26

ATTACHMENT E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION FOR
COVERED CONTRACTS

Federal Executive Order 12549 requires Travis County to screen each covered potential contractor to determine whether each has a right to obtain a
contract in accordance with federal regulations on debarment, suspension, ineligibility, and voluntary exclusion. Each covered contractor must also
screen each of its covered subcontractors.

In this certification “contractor” refers to both contractor and subcontrnctor ‘contract” refers to both contract and subcontract.

By signing and submitting this certification, the contractor/potential contractor accepts the following terms:

1. The certification herein below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this contract was entered into. If it is
later determined that the potential contractor knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the
federal government or Travis County may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

2. The potential contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this certification is submitted if at any time the potential
contractor learns that the certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

3. The words “covered contract,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “participant,” “person,” “principle,” “proposal,” and “voluntarily
excluded,” as used in this certification have meanings based upon matenals in the Definitions and Coverage sections of federal rules
implementing Executive Order 12549.

4. The potential contractor agrees by submitting this certification that, should the proposed covered contract be entered into, it shall not knowingly
enter into any subcontract with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by a federal department or agency, and/or Travis County, as applicable.

Do you have or do you anticipate having subcontractors under this proposed contract? YES NO

5. The potential contractor fi.srther agrees by submitting this certification that it will include this certification titled “Certification Regarding
Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts “without modification, in all covered subcontracts”; and
in solicitations for all covered subcontracts.

6. A contractor may rely upon a certification of a potential subcontractor that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from
the covered contract, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A contractor must at a minimum, obtain certifications from its covered
subcontractors upon each subcontract’s initiation and upon each renewal.

7. Nothing contained in all the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the
certification required by this certification document. The knowledge and information of a contractor is not required to exceed that which is
normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

8. Except for contracts authorized under paragraph4 of these terms, if a contractor in a covered contract knowingly enters into a covered
subcontract with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to
other remedies available to the federal government, any federal agency and/or Travis County may pursue available remedies, including
suspension and/or debarment.

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION FOR COVERED
CONTRACTS

Indicayn the appropriate box which statement applies to the covered contractor/potential contractor:

L.E] The contractor/potential contractor certifies, by submission of this certification, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred,
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this contract by any federal department or
agency, the State of Texas, or Travis County.

L1 The contractor/potential contractor is unable to certi1’ to one or more of the terms in this certification. In this instance, the
contractor/potential contractor must attach an explanation for each of the above terms to which he is unable to make certification. Attach the
explanation(s) to this certification.

Name of Contractor Vendor ID. or Social Security No.

cLr_

_______________

TW PJc

___________

Signature of Authorized Representative ate Printed/Typed Name & Title of Authonzed Representative

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  June 24, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  Loren Breland, 854-4854 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve contract award for Cafeteria and 
Vending Concession Services, RFS No. S1312-003-LD to Accent Food 
Services. 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

RFS No. S1312-003-LD was issued on January 17, 2014.  One 
response was received from Accent Food Services on February 10, 
2014.  Vendors contacted for reason for not responding indicated the 
size of services needed were not of large enough volume to justify 
responding. 

Facilities Management has reviewed the proposal from Accent Food 
Services and recommends award.  This contract is a revenue generating 
contract for Cafeteria Services and Vending Machine Service.  The 
commission structure for the contract recommended for action is 17% 
commission on vending services with a guaranteed minimum yearly 
amount of $40,000.00 for the first year.  Commission percentage 
increases to 19% for after the first year.  Guaranteed minimum yearly 
amount increases to $42,500 in the third and fourth contract extension 
option years.  No commissions are received from cafeteria services. 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount:  N/A, Revenue Generating Contract   
Contract Type:  Revenue Generating  
Contract Period: October 1, 2014 – September 31, 2015.  
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 10Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 Solicitation-Related Information: 

Solicitations Sent:  20  Responses Received: 1  
HUB Information:  % HUB Subcontractor:  

 
 Funding Information: 

  SAP Shopping Cart #: 
  Funding Account(s):  
  Comments:  Revenue generating contract. 

 
 

 
 
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



310593_1 

 

CAFETERIA AND VENDING MACHINE 
CONCESSION SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
 This Contract is for cafeteria and vending machine concession services ("Contract"). It is 
entered into by and between Travis County, Texas, a political subdivision of the State of Texas 
("County"), and Accent Food Services LLC d/b/a Sawyer Vending Service, a company 
authorized to do business in Texas ("Contractor"). 
 
 County requested proposals from qualified companies to procure these services (the 
“Services”) for Travis County's use under RFS# S1312-003-LD and all amendments, 
modifications and addenda to it (the "RFS"). And Contractor submitted a successful proposal 
under the RFS (the "Proposal").  As such, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth in 
this Contract and for other good and valuable consideration, the parties agree as follows: 
 
1.0 INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS 
 

1.1 The documents enumerated below are integral to and incorporated into this 
Contract by reference and constitute promised performances by Contractor in 
accordance with Section 3.0 of this Contract: 

 
(i) Contractor's emailed Best and Final Offer of 04/01/2014 (the "BAFO") 
(ii) Proposal  

 (iii) the RFS 
  
1.2  Order of Precedence. In the event of inconsistency between the documents 
 composing this Contract, or any clauses contained in these documents, the 
 inconsistency will be resolved by giving precedence in the following descending 
 order: 
 

(i) Sections 1-5 of the Contract 
 (ii) BAFO 

(iii) Proposal 
 (iv) the RFS   
   

2.0 TERM OF CONTRACT 
 

2.1 Term of Contract.  This contract will be for a twelve (12) month period, with 
four (4) additional one (1) year periods, commencing upon award by the Travis 
County Commissioners Court, or October 1, 2014, whichever is later (the 
“Contract Term”). 

 
2.2 Option to Extend. County may unilaterally extend this Contract for (i) four  
 (4) additional twelve-month periods and (ii) three (3) additional one-month 
 periods (individually, an “Option to Extend” and collectively,  the “Options to 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



310593_1 

 

 Extend”), and all provisions of this Contract, except for term and price, will 
 remain unchanged and in full force and effect.  County will exercise an Option 
 to Extend no sooner than ninety (90) days before expiration of the then-
 current term.  The total term of this Contract, including the Options to Extend, 
 will not exceed sixty-three (63) months.  County has the right to exercise all or 
 a portion of the Options to Extend in any combination it deems necessary.    

 
3.0 CONTRACTOR REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES; IMPLIED SERVICES 
 

3.1 Contractor warrants that Contractor has thoroughly examined the general 
 provisions and specific requirements, schedules, instructions and all other 
 Contract documents. Contractor has made all investigations necessary to be 
 thoroughly informed regarding the requirements for materials, equipment 
 and/or services as required by the RFS. Further, Contractor warrants that 
 Contractor is fully satisfied that the RFS specifications accurately describe or 
 indicate that all conditions, site or otherwise, have been taken into account in 
 determining the offered prices.  There will be no change to the quoted 
 Contract prices based upon Contractor’s misunderstanding or lack of 
 knowledge about the intent of the RFS solicitation.  

 
3.2 If any services, functions or responsibilities not specifically described in this 

Contract are required to perform and provide the Services, they will be deemed 
to be implied by and included within the scope of the Services to the same 
extent and in the same manner as if specifically described in this Contract.  
Except as otherwise expressly provided in the Contract, Contractor is 
responsible for providing the facilities, personnel, and other resources as 
necessary to provide the Goods and Services. 

 
 
4.0 CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR 
 

5.1 For purposes of monitoring performance, establishing requirements, approving 
  and coordinating schedules, users, and equipment, the county department 
  named below will act as contract administrator on behalf of Travis County: 

 
Travis County Department of Facilities Management 

1010 Lavaca St., Suite 400 
Austin, TX  78701 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



310593_1 

 

5.0 ENTIRE CONTRACT 
 

5.1 This Contract represents the final written agreement between the parties with 
 respect to the subject matter herein and supersedes any and all prior 
 negotiations, representations, or agreements, either oral or written. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Contract as of the date(s) below.  
The effective date of this Contract (the “Effective Date”) will, for all purposes, be the date of 
the execution of the last to sign, whether County or Contractor. 
 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS: 
 
By:        
 Samuel T. Biscoe 
 Travis County Judge 
 
Date:        
 
ACCENT FOOD SERVICES, INC: 
 
By:_____________________________ 
Name:___________________________ 
Title:____________________________ 
 
Date:___________  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
        
County Attorney 
 
 
COMPLIANCE WITH LAW AND POLICY CONFIRMED AND APPROVED: 
 
        
Cyd V. Grimes, Travis County Purchasing Agent 
 
Date:                                                             

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  June 24, 2104 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  Loren Breland, 854-4854 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve contract award for Grounds Maintenance 
TNR Parks, IFB No. 1404-001-LD, to the lowest responsive bidder, 
International Building Services. 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

This contract will provide grounds maintenance for TNR Parks. 

IFB No. 1404-001-LD was issued on April 7, 2014 to 30 vendors.  Two 
bids were received on April 28, 2014.  TNR has reviewed the bids and 
recommends award to the lowest responsive bidder, International 
Building Services.  The references provided by the low bidder, WCD 
Enterprises, were not sufficient to support experience necessary for 
consideration.  Purchasing requested additional references from WCD 
similar grounds maintenance experience and they provided unrelated 
janitorial references or references that were non responsive to requests 
for information. 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount:  Estimated $37,630.00   
Contract Type:  Annual Term Contract   
Contract Period: July 1, 2014 - June 30, 2015  

 Solicitation-Related Information: 

Solicitations Sent:  30  Responses Received:  2  
HUB Information:  % HUB Subcontractor:  

 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 11Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 

 Special Contract Considerations:   

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 
  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been 

notified. 
  Comments:   

 
 Funding Information: 

  SAP Shopping Cart #: 
  Funding Account(s):  SAP cost center 1490220001 
  Comments:  Requirements contract. 

 
 

 
 
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Bid #1404-001-LD - GROUNDS MAINTENANCE - TNR PARKS

Creation Date  Apr 1, 2014 End Date Apr 28, 2014 10:00:00 AM CDT
Start Date Apr 7, 2014 12:19:17 PM CDT Awarded Date  Not Yet Awarded

1404-001-LD--01-01   Group A Mowing Services per Specifications: Mary Quinlan Park
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

WCD ENTERPRISES, LLC [Ad] First Offer -  $117.60     15 / job $1,764.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: one hundred seventeen dollars and sixty 
cents
Total Amount Text: one thousand seven hundred sixty four 
dollars and zero cents
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes: unit price is per job   

International Building Services First Offer -  $120.00     15 / job $1,800.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: one hundred twenty dollars
Total Amount Text: one thousand eight hundred dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

1404-001-LD--01-02   Group A Mowing Services per Specifications: Selma Hughes Park
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

WCD ENTERPRISES, LLC [Ad] First Offer -  $117.60     15 / job $1,764.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: one hundred seventeen dollars and sixty 
cents
Total Amount Text: one thousand seven hundred sixty four 
dollars and zero cents
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes: unit price is per job   

International Building Services First Offer -  $120.00     15 / job $1,800.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: one hundred twenty dollars
Total Amount Text: one thousand eight hundred dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

1404-001-LD--01-03   Group A Mowing Services per Specifications: Fritz Hughes Park
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

WCD ENTERPRISES, LLC [Ad] First Offer -  $117.60     15 / job $1,764.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: one hundred seventeen dollars and sixty 
cents
Total Amount Text: one thousand seven hundred sixty four 
dollars and zero cents
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes: unit price is per job   

International Building Services First Offer -  $120.00     15 / job $1,800.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: one hundred twenty dollars
Total Amount Text: one thousand eight hundred dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

1404-001-LD--01-04   Group A Mowing Services per Specifications: Nootsie Office
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

International Building Services First Offer -  $100.00     6 / job $600.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: one hundred dollars
Total Amount Text: six hundred dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

WCD ENTERPRISES, LLC [Ad] First Offer -  $137.20     6 / job $823.20   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: one hundred thirty seven dollars and twenty 
cents
Total Amount Text: eight hundred twenty three dollars and 
twenty cents
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes: unit price is per job   

Bid 1404-001-LDTravis County

BidSync4/29/2014 p. 2

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



1404-001-LD--01-05   Group A Mowing Services per Specifications: Loop 360 Boat Ramp
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

WCD ENTERPRISES, LLC [Ad] First Offer -  $117.60     15 / job $1,764.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: one hundred seventeen dollars and sixty 
cents
Total Amount Text: one thousand seven hundred sixty four 
dollars and zero cents
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes: unit price is per job   

International Building Services First Offer -  $180.00     15 / job $2,700.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: one hundred eighty dollars
Total Amount Text: two thousand seven hundred dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

1404-001-LD--01-06   Group A Mowing Services per Specifications: Windmill Run Park
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

WCD ENTERPRISES, LLC [Ad] First Offer -  $58.80     15 / job $882.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: fifty eight dollars and eighty cents
Total Amount Text: eight hundred eighty two dollars and zero 
cents
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes: unit price is per job   

International Building Services First Offer -  $60.00     15 / job $900.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: sixty dollars
Total Amount Text: nine hundred dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

1404-001-LD--01-07   Group A Mowing Services per Specifications: Allen Park
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

WCD ENTERPRISES, LLC [Ad] First Offer -  $29.40     15 / job $441.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: twenty nine dollars and forty cents
Total Amount Text: four hundred forty one dollars and zero 
cents
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes: unit price is per job   

International Building Services First Offer -  $30.00     15 / job $450.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: thirty dollars
Total Amount Text: four hundred fifty dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

1404-001-LD--01-08   Group A Mowing Services per Specifications: Sandy Creek
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

WCD ENTERPRISES, LLC [Ad] First Offer -  $186.20     6 / job $1,117.20   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: one hundred eighty six dollars and twenty 
cents
Total Amount Text: one thousand one hundred seventeen 
dollars and twenty cents
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes: unit price is per job   

International Building Services First Offer -  $220.00     6 / job $1,320.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: two hundred twenty dollars
Total Amount Text: one thousand three hundred twenty dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

1404-001-LD--01-09   Group A Mowing Services per Specifications: Cypress Creek
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

WCD ENTERPRISES, LLC [Ad] First Offer -  $156.80     6 / job $940.80   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: one hundred fifty six dollars and eighty cents
Total Amount Text: nine hundred forty dollars and eighty cents

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes: unit price is per job   

Bid 1404-001-LDTravis County

BidSync4/29/2014 p. 3

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Agency Notes:
International Building Services First Offer -  $160.00     6 / job $960.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: one hundred sixty dollars
Total Amount Text: nine hundred sixty dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

1404-001-LD--01-10   Group A Mowing Services per Specifications: Little Webberville Park
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

WCD ENTERPRISES, LLC [Ad] First Offer -  $127.40     15 / job $1,911.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: one hundred twenty seven dollars and forty 
cents
Total Amount Text: one thousand nine hundred eleven dollars 
and zero cents
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes: unit price is per job   

International Building Services First Offer -  $130.00     15 / job $1,950.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: one hundred thirty dollars
Total Amount Text: one thousand nine hundred fifty dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

1404-001-LD--01-11   Group A Mowing Services per Specifications: Snowden House
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

WCD ENTERPRISES, LLC [Ad] First Offer -  $196.00     6 / job $1,176.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: one hundred ninety six dollars and zero 
cents
Total Amount Text: one thousand one hundred seventy six 
dollars and zero cents
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes: unit price is per job   

International Building Services First Offer -  $200.00     6 / job $1,200.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: two hundred dollars
Total Amount Text: one thousand two hundred dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

1404-001-LD--01-12   Group A Mowing Services per Specifications: TNR Parks West
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

International Building Services First Offer -  $200.00     6 / job $1,200.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: two hundred dollars
Total Amount Text: one thousand two hundred dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

WCD ENTERPRISES, LLC [Ad] First Offer -  $215.60     6 / job $1,293.60   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: two hundred fifteen dollars and sixty cents
Total Amount Text: one thousand two hundred ninety three 
dollars and sixty cents
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes: unit price is per job   

1404-001-LD--02-01   Group A Litter Pick-up and Restroom Cleaning Services per Specifications: Mary 
Quinlan Park
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

WCD ENTERPRISES, LLC [Ad] First Offer -  $19.60     74 / job $1,450.40   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: nineteen dollars and sixty cents
Total Amount Text: one thousand four hundred fifty dollars 
and forty cents
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes: unit price is per job   

International Building Services First Offer -  $30.00     74 / job $2,220.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: thirty dollars
Total Amount Text: two thousand two hundred twenty dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

Bid 1404-001-LDTravis County

BidSync4/29/2014 p. 4

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



1404-001-LD--02-02   Group A Litter Pick-up and Restroom Cleaning Services per Specifications: Selma 
Hughes Park
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

WCD ENTERPRISES, LLC [Ad] First Offer -  $19.60     74 / job $1,450.40   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: nineteen dollars and sixty cents
Total Amount Text: one thousand four hundred fifty dollars 
and forty cents
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes: unit price is per job   

International Building Services First Offer -  $25.00     74 / job $1,850.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: twenty five dollars
Total Amount Text: one thousand eight hundred fifty dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

1404-001-LD--02-03   Group A Litter Pick-up and Restroom Cleaning Services per Specifications: Fritz 
Hughes Park
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

WCD ENTERPRISES, LLC [Ad] First Offer -  $19.60     74 / job $1,450.40   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: nineteen dollars and sixty cents
Total Amount Text: one thousand four hundred fifty dollars 
and forty cents
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes: unit price is per job   

International Building Services First Offer -  $30.00     74 / job $2,220.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: thirty dollars
Total Amount Text: two thousand two hundred twenty dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

1404-001-LD--02-04   Group A Litter Pick-up and Restroom Cleaning Services per Specifications: Loop 360 
Boat Ramp
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

WCD ENTERPRISES, LLC [Ad] First Offer -  $19.60     74 / job $1,450.40   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: nineteen dollars and sixty cents
Total Amount Text: one thousand four hundred fifty dollars 
and forty cents
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes: unit price is per job   

International Building Services First Offer -  $40.00     74 / job $2,960.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: forty dollars
Total Amount Text: two thousand nine hundred sixty dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

1404-001-LD--02-05   Group A Litter Pick-up and Restroom Cleaning Services per Specifications: Windmill 
Run Park
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

WCD ENTERPRISES, LLC [Ad] First Offer -  $19.60     74 / job $1,450.40   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: nineteen dollars and sixty cents
Total Amount Text: one thousand four hundred fifty dollars 
and forty cents
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes: unit price is per job   

International Building Services First Offer -  $25.00     74 / job $1,850.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: twenty five dollars
Total Amount Text: one thousand eight hundred fifty dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

1404-001-LD--02-06   Group A Litter Pick-up and Restroom Cleaning Services per Specifications: Allen Park
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

WCD ENTERPRISES, LLC [Ad] First Offer -  $19.60     74 / job $1,450.40   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: nineteen dollars and sixty cents

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes: unit price is per job   

Bid 1404-001-LDTravis County

BidSync4/29/2014 p. 5

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Total Amount Text: one thousand four hundred fifty dollars 
and forty cents
Agency Notes:
International Building Services First Offer -  $20.00     74 / job $1,480.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: twenty dollars
Total Amount Text: one thousand four hundred eighty dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

1404-001-LD--02-07   Group A Litter Pick-up and Restroom Cleaning Services per Specifications: Little 
Webberville Park
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

WCD ENTERPRISES, LLC [Ad] First Offer -  $27.44     74 / job $2,030.56   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: twenty seven dollars and forty four cents
Total Amount Text: two thousand thirty dollars and fifty six 
cents
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes: unit price is per job   

International Building Services First Offer -  $30.00     74 / job $2,220.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: thirty dollars
Total Amount Text: two thousand two hundred twenty dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

1404-001-LD--03-01   Group B Mowing Services per Specifications: Greenway Properties
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

WCD ENTERPRISES, LLC [Ad] First Offer -  $49.00     15 / acre $735.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: forty nine dollars and zero cents
Total Amount Text: seven hundred thirty five dollars and zero 
cents
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes: unit price is per acre   

International Building Services First Offer -  $60.00     15 / acre $900.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: sixty dollars
Total Amount Text: nine hundred dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

1404-001-LD--03-02   Group B Mowing Services per Specifications: Additional Flood Plain Lots
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

WCD ENTERPRISES, LLC [Ad] First Offer -  $49.00     15 / job $735.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: forty nine dollars and zero cents
Total Amount Text: seven hundred thirty five dollars and zero 
cents
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes: unit price is per job   

International Building Services First Offer -  $150.00     15 / job $2,250.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: one hundred fifty dollars
Total Amount Text: two thousand two hundred fifty dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

1404-001-LD--03-03   Group B Mowing Services per Specifications: Thoroughbred Farms
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

WCD ENTERPRISES, LLC [Ad] First Offer -  $196.00     15 / job $2,940.00   Y Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: one hundred ninety six dollars and zero 
cents
Total Amount Text: two thousand nine hundred forty dollars 
and zero cents
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes: unit price is per job; note that we have 
uploaded 2 attachments here on this line item: our Hub 
Plan Exception Statement and Additional Company 
Information.

International Building Services First Offer -  $200.00     15 / job $3,000.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: two hundred dollars
Total Amount Text: three thousand dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

Bid 1404-001-LDTravis County

BidSync4/29/2014 p. 6

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Supplier Totals
  WCD ENTERPRISES, LLC [Ad] $30,783.76    (22/22 items) 
 Bid Contact Wes Dryden 

wes.dryden@yahoo.com
Ph 480-415-3416   
Fax 480-683-0011

 Address 28150 N Alma School Pkwy #103-452
Scottsdale, AZ 85262 

 Qualifications  WBE   
Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

  International Building Services $37,630.00    (22/22 items) 
 Bid Contact Hye Kim 

yosan80@hotmail.com
Ph 512-833-8466   

 Address 8204 N. Lamar Blvd.,B-16
Austin, TX 78753 

 Qualifications  CISV   SB   
Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

**

Bid 1404-001-LDTravis County

BidSync4/29/2014 p. 7

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  June 24, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Lori Clyde/44205 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Modification No. 30 to Contract No. 
4400000562 (H.T.E. Contract No. MA960322), Easy Access, Inc., for 
Tax Office Computer System. 
 
 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs with 

department and recommends approval of requested action. This procurement 
action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by the statutes. 
 
The County Clerk recommends modifying the contract to enhance the 
functionality of the EZ-VIP and EZ-VOTE modules as follows: 
 
A.  Add new field on voter qualification screen; 
B.  Add new column on search screen; 
C.  Configurable number if labels to print on Initial Record Vote Button; 
D.  Reprint Button should always print 1 label regardless of item 1 setting; 
E.  New Button for Convention List for Republican Party; and 
F. Print all Voter Precinct History records associated to a polling place. 
 
The total cost of these enhancements will be $3,600.00 (24 hours @ 
$150/hour) and will not affect the annual maintenance cost. 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last ___ months $0.00 has been spent 
against this contract/requirement. 

 Contract Modification Information: 

Modification Amount:  $3,600.00  
Modification Type:    Enhancements 
Modification Period:  Through February 2015 

 Funding Information: 
  SAP Shopping Cart #: 1000041305 and 1000062413 
  Funding Account(s):  
  Comments: 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 12Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


 

 

 

Dana DeBeauvoir  Travis County Clerk 

PO Box 149325, Austin TX 78714-9325  |  Phone: (512) 854-9188  |  Website: www.traviscountyclerk.org 

 

Recording, Elections, Computer Resources, Accounting, and Administration Divisions  
5501 Airport Boulevard, Austin, Texas 78751-1410 

Misdemeanor Records, Civil/Probate/Commissioners Court Minutes, and Records Management Divisions 
1000 Guadalupe, Austin, Texas 78701-2328 

 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 

 

TO:   Lori Clyde, Purchasing Agent Assistant IV 

 

 

FROM:  Dana DeBeauvoir, County Clerk 

 

 

DATE:  April 28, 2014 

 

 

SUBJECT:  Modification of Contract 4400000562 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

The County Clerk’s Office wishes to modify the above cited contract with Easy Access Inc. to 

enhance the functionality of EZ-VIP and EZ-VOTE. The requested modifications are as follows: 

 

A. Add new field on voter qualification screen 

B. Add new column on search screen  

C. Configurable number if labels to print on Initial Record Vote Button  

D. Reprint Button should always print 1 label regardless of item 1 setting 

E. New Button for Convention List for Republican Party 

F. Print all Voter Precinct History records associated to a polling place 

 

The cart numbers for these modifications are 1000041305 for $600 and 1000062413 for $3,600. 

 

If you have any questions or need further information, please contact Denise Bell at 854-3997. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER:   4400000562/MA960322 – Tax Office Computer System                     
PAGE 1 OF 3 PAGES 

 
ISSUED BY: PURCHASING OFFICE 

                                  700 LAVACA, SUITE 800 

                                  AUSTIN, TX 78701 

 
PURCHASING AGENT ASST:  Lori Clyde  

TEL. NO:   (512) 854-9700 

FAX NO:   (512) 854-9185 

 
DATE PREPARED: 

June 11, 2014 

 
ISSUED TO: 
Easy Access, Inc. 

4200–A N Bicentennial Dr. 

McAllen, Texas  78504 

(956) 682-3466 (v) 

(956) 682-0906 (f) 

MODIFICATION NO.:  

 

30 

EXECUTED DATE OF ORIGINAL 
CONTRACT:  

 

December 13, 1994 

ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES:  February28, 2003–February 29, 2004 CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES: March 1, 2014– February 28, 2015 

 
FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY:        

Original Contract Amount: $_288,850.00__   Current Modified Amount $1,035,029.24 . 

 
DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES:  Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as heretofore 

modified, remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 

 

 

The above mentioned contract is hereby modified as follows: 

 

1) Enhancements to EZ-VIP per quote 2374 to include: 

a) Add a new field on the Voter Qualification Screen to display FORMER NAME; and 

b) Add a column on Search Results Screen to display the FORMER NAME. 

                                                                             4 hours @ $150.00 for a total of $600.00 

 

2) Enhancements to EZ-VIP per quote 2745 to include:  

a) Configurable number of labels to print (1or 2) on Initial Record Vote Button;  

b) Reprint Button should always print 1 label regardless of item 1 setting; 

c) New Button for Convention List for Republicans; and 

d) Print all Voter Precinct History records associated to a POLLING PLACE regardless of how or 

where they vote.                                                20 hours @ $150/hour for a total of $3,000.00 

  

 

The total cost of this modification is $3,600.00. 
 
 

Note to Vendor:  

[  X  ] Complete and execute (sign) your portion of the signature block section below for all copies and return all signed copies to Travis County. 

[    ] DO NOT execute and return to Travis County.  Retain for your records. 
 
 
LEGAL BUSINESS NAME:        

 

     BY:            
          SIGNATURE 

 

     BY:            
          PRINT NAME 

 

TITLE:            
            ITS DULY AUTHORIZED AGENT 

□ DBA 

□ CORPORATION 

□ OTHER 

 
DATE: 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 
 

BY:            

      CYD V. GRIMES, C.P.M., CPPO, TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT  

 

 
DATE: 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 
 

BY:            

      SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE  
 

 
DATE: 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



EZAccess
4200-A N Bicentennial Dr
McAllen, Texas   78504

Phone: (956) 682-3466 -:- Fax: (956) 682-0906

        Quote Number:                    Quotation Date:

          

      Client: Ship To:                   

This quotation is valid for a period of 30 days unless modified in writing by Easy Access.

ITEM QTY
MODEL 

NUMBER
DESCRIPTION $ PRICE/HOUR

EXTENDED $ 

AMOUNT

EZ-VIP Enhancement

1. 2 EZ-VIP

Add a new field on the Voter Qualification Screen to 

display FORMER NAME 150.00 $300.00

2. 2 EZ-VIP

Add a new column on Search Results Screen to 

display the FORMER NAME 150.00 $300.00

Delivery dates will be confirmed upon acceptance of this quotation. Sub Total $600.00 

Sales Tax Not Applicable

Special Instructions: Installation Not Applicable

Freight Not Applicable

Insurance Not Applicable

Gross Amount $600.00 

Easy Access Inc:

         Authorized Signature: William C Hamer
                     Typed Name:     Mr William C Hamer/rme                          Title: CEO                             Date: 08/27/2013

As an authorized agent, I accept the items above and the General Terms & Conditions attached hereto or incorporated 

herein and hereby acknowledged.

Authorized Client Signature: 

                      Typed Name:                                                                  Title:                                 Date:

Travis County Clerk
Elections Division
5501 Airport Blvd
Austin TX, 78701
Attn:  Mr Michael Winn

Same

08/27/20132734

2728 CCSF IBM BRMS & Install Page 1 of  1 10:05 AM  8/27/2013

4400000562 (MA960322) Page 2 of 3 Pages
Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



EZAccess
4200-A N Bicentennial Dr
McAllen, Texas   78504

Phone: (956) 682-3466 -:- Fax: (956) 682-0906

        Quote Number:                    Quotation Date:

          

      Client: Ship To:                   

This quotation is valid for a period of 30 days unless modified in writing by Easy Access.

ITEM QTY
MODEL 

NUMBER
DESCRIPTION $ PRICE/HOUR

EXTENDED $ 

AMOUNT

EZ-VIP Enhancement

1. 20 EZ-VIP Enhancements to EZ-VIP: 150.00 $3,000.00
* Configurable number of labels to print (1 or 2) on
   Initial Record Vote Button
* Reprint Button should always print 1 label regardless
   of item 1 setting
* New Button for Convention List for Republicans
* Print all Voter Precinct History records associated
  to a POLLING PLACE regardless of how or where
  they voted

Delivery dates will be confirmed upon acceptance of this quotation. Sub Total $3,000.00 
Sales Tax Not Applicable

Special Instructions: Installation Not Applicable
Freight Not Applicable

Insurance Not Applicable
Gross Amount $3,000.00 

Easy Access Inc:

         Authorized Signature: William C Hamer
                     Typed Name:     Mr William C Hamer/rme                          Title: CEO                             Date: 01/23/2014
As an authorized agent, I accept the items above and the General Terms & Conditions attached hereto or incorporated 
herein and hereby acknowledged.
Authorized Client Signature: 

                      Typed Name:                                                                  Title:                                 Date:

Travis County 
Elections Division 
5501 Airport Blvd 
Austin TX, 78701 
Attn:  Mr Michael Winn 

Same 

01/23/2014 2745 

2745 Travis County Elections Page 1 of  1 3:25 PM  1/24/2014

4400000562 (MA960322) Page 3 of 3 Pages
Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  June 24, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Lori Clyde/44205 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Modification No. 5 to Contract No. 
4400000257 (H.T.E. Contract No. CM090255LC), SAP Public Sector, 
Inc., for BEFIT Software and Maintenance Support. 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 
 
On December 7th 2010, Commissioners’ Court approved contract 
CM090255LC for the procurement of SAP licenses at a total one-time 
cost of $1,366,528 and annual software and maintenance cost of 
$250,062 for FY2011-2015. 
 
During the fall of 2011 as we finalized our new financial and 
procurement processes, an additional set of licenses were purchased as 
a result of changed and improved business processes and in order for 
the vendors Labyrinth Solutions Inc. (LSI) and SAP Public Services Inc 
(SAP) to meet requirements in the RFP. The total cost for the additional 
licenses were $667,050 with the County’s portion at $324,842. The 
County’s increase in ongoing costs was $71,885. 
 
At this time, the Auditor’s Office recommends purchasing an SAP 
product called Process Orchestration that is already being utilized by the 
County.  This product is crucial for the development of any future 
software interfaces with SAP. 
 
Process Orchestration is a separate SAP module that allows external 
software programs to interface with SAP.  Currently, the County uses 
SAP Process Orchestration to interface with the newly implemented 
Criminal Courts software (IDA), which fully automated indigent attorney 
invoicing and payment in SAP.  In the near future, Process 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 13Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

Orchestration will be needed for the following interface developments. 
 
     1) Human Resources Management Department:  Benefit Enrollment 
and Maintenance interface. 

     2) Transportation and Natural Resources:  Fleet System interface. 

The total one-time cost for the new licenses is $234,651.60, which is a 
75% discount and expires on June 30, 2014.  The ongoing annual 
maintenance cost is 22% of the original license cost and calculates to 
$51,623.35. 
 
The license cost of $234,651.60 will be funded by the existing BEFIT 
project budget by using a portion of the Certificates of Obligation budget 
set aside for the implementation of Governance Risk and Compliance 
(GRC), which is a stand-alone SAP module.  The GRC module is an 
audit related product that the Auditor’s Office was interested in at the 
time of the debt issuance used to fund the implementation of SAP.  
Therefore, implementation costs of $703,720 were included for GRC in 
that issuance.  However, the licenses for this stand-alone module were 
not subsequently purchased, because a more cost-effective solution 
was implemented.  At this time, we recommend releasing the GRC 
implementation costs of $703,720, so that this amount can be utilized for 
other SAP modules. 
 
The ongoing annual maintenance costs for Process Orchestration will be 
offset by the elimination of ongoing maintenance costs for Nakisa Talent 
Management/Org Chart (44,695.64), and Claims Management Property 
and Casualty for Self Insurance ($6,852.73), which was purchased as 
part of Phase II of the SAP Implementation).    
 
These products reside with the Human Resources Management 
Department (HRMD).  After many discussions with HRMD, we are all in 
agreement that 1) Nakisa Talent Management/Org Chart would be too 
costly to fully implement and maintain for the benefit that would be 
gained, and 2) Claims Management Property and Casualty for Self 
Insurance is not a product that suits the County’s needs.  The Auditor 
has discussed this issue with Debbie Maynor, Director of Human 
Resources, and they are in agreement with terminating the licenses for 
Nakisa Talent Management/Org Chart and SAP Claims Management 
Property & Casualty for Self Insurance for the above reasons. 
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

Overall, the net difference in ongoing costs would increase the annual 
ongoing costs by $74.98, which will be funded by the existing General 
Fund BEFIT project budget.  The breakdown of the annual increase is 
as follows: 
 
  

Product Total Fee ($) 

Process Orchestration 51,623.35 

Nakisa Talent Management 

/Org Chart 
-44,695.64 

SAP Claims Management 

Property & Casualty for 

Self Insurance 

-6,852.73 

Increase in Ongoing Cost 74.98 

 
It is imperative that we purchase these licenses for Process 
Orchestration, as this product is already being utilized by Travis County.  
We believe this price is a good value to the County considering the large 
discount negotiated.  This is true with regards to the one-time cost and 
also the ongoing cost, since it is a percentage of the original license 
cost.  We, therefore, support the procurement of this software and 
associated ongoing software maintenance cost. 

 Contract Modification Information: 

Modification Amount:   $234,651.60 
Modification Type:    Purchase of Additional Licenses 
Modification Period:  Through December 31, 2014 

 
 Funding Information: 

  SAP Shopping Cart #:  300001195 
  Funding Account(s):  
  Comments: 

 
 

 
 
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Item 14Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Item 15Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Item 16Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Item 17Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 
Meeting Date: June 24, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number:   Christy Moffett / 854-3460 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  
Sherri E. Fleming, County Executive of Travis County Health and Human Services & 
Veterans Service  
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and take appropriate action on the draft Program Year 2014-2018 
Consolidated Plan and Program Year 2014 Action Plan for public comment. 

 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:  
Under the provisions of Title 1 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 
(42 USC 5301), the Federal government through the U.S Department of Housing 
sponsors a program that provides Community Development Block Grants (CDBG) to 
cities and counties to develop viable urban communities by providing decent housing 
and a suitable living environment and by expanding economic opportunities for low and 
moderate income persons.  Since 2006, Travis County has received CDBG funds from 
HUD on an annual basis.  Community engagement and participation is an essential goal 
of this program. 
 
Travis County anticipates receiving an estimated $997,649 for Program Year 2014. The 
County is required to prepare a Consolidated Plans that includes data on community 
needs and strategic goals for program.  The County is currently working under a three 
year Consolidated Plan spanning from program years 2011-2013.  The next 
Consolidated Plan will span 5 years, taking effect on October 1, 2014 and end 
September 30, 2019. The Consolidated Plan includes an Action Plan for the next 
program year (PY14) that outlines the projects and goals for the program year. The 
Travis County Commissioners Court approved the projects for inclusion on June 10, 
2014 with the location of the Rental Housing project still to be determined.  The public is 
invited to comment on the Consolidated Plan and Action Plan and proposed projects.   
 
Starting in 2012, HUD required all jurisdictions to draft and submit Consolidated Plans 
using an automated tool called the eCon Planning Suite.  This is the first cycle for Travis 
County to use the tool. The Consolidated Plan created using the eCon Planning Suite 
will be organized differently than the past Consolidated Plans.  As with any new tool, 
glitches and problems occur.  While HUD has worked to fix several problems, significant 
errors remain.  Please refer to the issues and opportunities section for a more detailed 
list of anticipated problems and solutions with the upcoming Consolidated Plan.   
 

 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 18Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



For Travis County to be in compliance with its Citizen Participation Plan (CPP) and 24 
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 91, a 30-day public comment period must be 
held to allow the public to comment on the Consolidated Plan, proposed uses for CDBG 
funds, and the 2014 Action Plan.  For Travis County to be in compliance with its CPP 
and 24 CFR Part 91, two public hearings must be held during the Commissioners 
Court’s approved 30-day comment period.  The draft and a summary document (both in 
English and Spanish) will be available on the Travis County website and at the seven 
Travis County Community Centers for public comment beginning June 27, 2014 through 
July 28, 2014.  Two public hearings will also be held at Commissioners Court on July 1 
and July 8, 2014. 
 
Notices of the comment period and public hearing dates were posted in newspapers of 
general circulation, at the 7 Travis County Community Centers during the week of June 
9th and on the County’s website, TCTV 17, CDBG’s Facebook and Twitter during the 
week of June 16th.   
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 

A. Staff recommends the approval of the attached draft Program Year 2014- 2018 
Consolidated Plan and Program Year 2014 Action Plan for public comment.    

 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
The consolidated planning process allows the County to compile a comprehensive 
overview of the needs and gaps in services identified in the unincorporated areas.  This 
document can be used to further advocate for grant funds and services outside of the 
CDBG grant.   
 

The eConPlan suite is presenting a series of issues as staff moved through the 
tool, some of which are: 

1. HUD auto populated CHAS data for disproportionate need do not tie to 
each other and are not comparable to other sets of CHAS data making 
analysis difficult.  CHAS data is a special data set that HUD creates 
using Census data and cross tabulations that look at the housing 
market in conjunction with  income, race/ethnicity and disability, among 
others; 

2. Some HUD auto populated data tables have zeroes or errors that 
cannot be corrected.  While staff can provide alternate data sources, 
the incorrect data tables must remain, which will be confusing to the 
public reviewing the document; 

3. When printing, not all of the tables or materials print, meaning that 
what is in the eConPlan tool is not accurately reflected in the printed 
public comment document.  Furthermore some of the labels for data 
tables reverse in the printed document making the table incorrect; and 

4. Mapping tool is unwieldy to use, often taking long periods of time to 
create a map.   

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Solutions to the issues are as follows: 
1. CDBG Staff will not use any maps from the eConPlan mapping tool.  It 

is not required; 
2. Staff outreached to HUD for technical assistance in February and had 

a conference call on 2/24/14 with HUD staff in Washington DC to 
troubleshoot issues.  To date, the issue with the CHAS data 
disproportionate tables has not been resolved; 

3. Staff are making notes about the nature of any auto-populated data 
inaccuracies, using alternate sources, when available, and/or 
referencing the last ConPlan when we know the data trend will have 
stayed the same or worsened; 

4. Staff will tried to format and fix as much as possible prior to publishing 
for public comment, however, time will be limited and staff will not 
guarantee that all issues will be resolved.  Staff have notified HUD of 
this and HUD has not provided a requirement to fix any flaws that 
occur between what exists in the tool and what prints from the tool; and  

5. Staff will publish a supplement that replicates the detail of the PY11-13 
ConPlan.  This document will better inform the community of the 
conditions that exist in the unincorporated areas and provide more up 
to date data than what is currently available in HUD’s tool. 

 
The specific information on the two different project locations for the Rental Housing 
Project can be found in Appendix B “Maps” on the map entitled “CDBG PY14 Projects 
and Alternate Projects” and in Appendix E “Projects” on page 1.   
 
Approving the draft for comment allows the timeline to move forward as identified in our 
Citizen Participation Plan. Not approving the draft will mean the County will not meet 
deadlines for an on-time submission resulting in forgoing CDBG funding next year.  

 
 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
The CDBG grant brings dollars to the County that provides the ability to augment 
existing or develop new programming that supports the mutual goals of HUD and Travis 
County.  
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:  
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Travis County HHS/VS
CDBG Office

502 E. Highland Mall Blvd.
P.O. Box 1748

Austin, TX 78767

Travis County HHS/VS
CDBG Office

502 E. Highland Mall Blvd.
P.O. Box 1748

Austin, TX 78767

Travis County HHS/VS
CDBG Office

502 E. Highland Mall Blvd.
P.O. Box 1748

Austin, TX 78767

Consolidated Plan
& aCtion Plan

Travis CounTy, Texas

Py 2014-2018Py 2014-2018Py 2014-2018
Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Travis County HHS/VS
CDBG Office
502 E. Highland Mall Blvd.
P.O. Box 1748
Austin, TX 78767

Contributing Community Partners
Caritas of Austin

City of Austin Neighborhood Housing & Community Development (NHCD)
Ending Community Homelessness Coalition (ECHO)

Housing Authority of Travis County
Travis County Department of Transportation & Natural Resources

Travis County Health & Human Services and Veterans Service/Family Support Services

Contributing Writers
Travis County Department of Transportation and Natural Resources: Lee Turner

HHS/VS Research & Planning Division: Blanca Tapia Leahy/Division Director
Tara Carmean

Rachel Coff
Koren Darling

Courtney Bissonnet Lucas
Lawrence Lyman

Lori Miranda
Brook Son

Sandra Valenzuela
Elizabeth Vela

Questions or Comments?
Please contact the CDBG Office at cdbg@co.travis.tx.us

County Executive
Sherri E. Fleming

Lead Writers
Christy Copeland Moffett
Martha Brown
Elena Rivera

Travis County, Texas 
Consolidated Plan & Action Plan

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Travis County HHS/VS
CDBG Office
502 E. Highland Mall Blvd.
P.O. Box 1748
Austin, TX 78767

Prepared by:
Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service (HHS/VS)

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program
Office of the County Executive

Public Comment Draft:
June 24, 2014

Consolidated Plan 
Program Years 2014-2018

Annual Action Plan 
Program Year 2014

An In-Depth Look At The Unincorporated Areas of Travis County

Travis County, Texas 
Consolidated Plan & Action Plan

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Ron Davis
County Commissioner

Precinct One

Samuel T. Biscoe
Travis County Judge

Travis County, Texas 
Commissioners Court

Bruce Todd
County Commissioner

Precinct Two

Margaret Gómez
County Commissioner

Precinct Four

Gerald Daugherty
County Commissioner

Precinct Three

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
NOTE ON THE DRAFT 
 
 
Starting in 2012, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) required all 
jurisdictions to draft and submit Consolidated Plans using an automated tool called the eCon Planning 
Suite.  This is the first cycle for Travis County to use the tool. The Consolidated Plan created using the 
eCon Planning Suite will be organized differently than the past Consolidated Plans.  As with any new 
tool, glitches and problems occur.   
 
Many of the tables in the draft were auto-populated with data, and specifically all the tables relating to 
housing problems were auto-populated using a data set referred to as CHAS data. CHAS data is a 
special data set that HUD creates using cross tabulations of Census data relating to household type and 
housing problems.  The total number of households in the CHAS data tables varies widely across the 
required tables.  This makes it difficult to provide accurate analysis or comparison with prior year’s 
data. 
 
Additionally, in some cases data points appear as zeroes, when a number should be provided. When 
possible CDBG staff found an alternate source of data and added it to tables, but in certain cases no 
alternate was available and a zero still appears in the table, which may also result in inaccurately 
calculated percentages.   
 
Other formatting errors, such as reversal of column headings also occurred.  Staff made every attempt 
to correct these errors in the draft, but some errors may still remain. Should any such errors be 
identified they will be corrected in the final draft.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

 

 

ACRONYMS 
Throughout this report, the reader will note the following acronyms: 
 
 
ADA Americans with Disabilities Act 
AI Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice 
AP Action Plan 
CAPER Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report  
CDBG   Community Development Block Grant 
CFR Code of Federal Regulation 
Con Plan Consolidated Plan (governs CDBG Programs) 
CPD Community Planning and Development (part of HUD) 
CPP Citizen Participation Plan 
EA Environmental Assessment 
ESG  Emergency Shelter Grant 
FHA Federal Housing Administration (part of HUD) 
FSS Family Support Services (a Travis County Social Service Program) 
HACT Housing Authority of Travis County 
HHS/VS Travis County Department of Health & Human Service and Veteran Services 
HOME  HOME Investment Partnership Program (HUD’s Program) 
HOPWA Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS (HUD’s Program) 
HTE Accounting Software used by Travis County 
HUD United States Department of Housing and Urban Development 
IDIS Integrated Disbursement Information System  

(HUD's Financial Management System) 
LMI Low- and Moderate-Income (80% or below median household income) 
MFI Median Family Income 
OMB Office of Management and Budget 
PY Program Year 
PY14 Program Year 2014 
RFP Request for Proposals 
RFQ Request for Qualifications 
TC Travis County 
TCHFC Travis County Housing Finance Corporation 
TxDOT Texas Department of Transportation  
TNR Travis County Department of Transportation and Natural Resources 
URA Uniform Relocation Act 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
SECTION I: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY .............................................................................................................................. 1     
 
SECTION II: THE PROCESS ........................................................................................................................................... 5 
  

A.  Lead and Responsible Agencies ............................................................................................................... 5 
B.  Consultation      ........................................................................................................................................  6 
C.  Citizen Participation   .............................................................................................................................  24 

 
 
SECTION III: NEEDS ASSESSMENT ............................................................................................................................. 32 
 

A. Housing Needs Assessment .................................................................................................................. 34 
B. Homeless Needs Assessment ............................................................................................................... 56 
C. Non-Homeless Special Needs Assessment ........................................................................................... 62 
D. Non-Housing Community Development Needs .................................................................................... 66 

 
SECTION IV: HOUSING MARKET ANALYSIS ............................................................................................................... 72 
 

A.  Number of Housing Units ....................................................................................................................... 73 
B.  Cost of Housing ....................................................................................................................................... 77 
C.  Condition of Housing .............................................................................................................................. 80 
D.  Public and Assisted Housing ................................................................................................................... 83 
E.  Homeless Facilities and Services ............................................................................................................ 86 
F.  Special Needs Facilities and Services ...................................................................................................... 86 
G.  Barriers to Affordable Housing .............................................................................................................. 92 
H.  Non-Housing Community Development Assets ..................................................................................... 94 

 
SECTION V: STRATEGIC PLAN ................................................................................................................................. 104 
 

A.  Geographic Priorities ............................................................................................................................ 105   
B.  Anticipated Resources .......................................................................................................................... 113 
C.  Institutional Delivery Structure ............................................................................................................ 115 
D.  Goals Summary  ................................................................................................................................... 119 
E.  Barriers to Affordable Housing ............................................................................................................. 122 
F.  Homelessness Strategy ......................................................................................................................... 124 
G.  Lead Based Paint Hazards .................................................................................................................... 126 
E.  Anti-Poverty Strategy ........................................................................................................................... 127 
G.  Lead Based Paint Hazards .................................................................................................................... 126 
H.  Anti-Poverty Strategy ........................................................................................................................... 127 
I.  Monitoring  .....................................................................................................................................  128 
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

 

 
SECTION VI: ANNUAL ACTION PLAN     ................................................................................................................... 130 
 

A.  Expected Resources.............................................................................................................................. 130   
B.  Annual Goals and Objectives ................................................................................................................ 133 
C.  Projects  ...................................................................................................................................... 135 
D.  Geographic Distribution ....................................................................................................................... 142 
E.  Affordable Housing ............................................................................................................................... 143 
F.  Public Housing   ..................................................................................................................................... 144 
G.  Homeless and Other Special Needs Activities ..................................................................................... 145 
H.  Barriers to Affordable Housing ............................................................................................................ 146 
H.  Other Actions    ..................................................................................................................................... 147 
I.  Program Specific Requirements ...........................................................................................................  149 

 

APPENDICES 
 

A. Public Participation ............................................................................................................................ TBD  
B. Maps                    ................................................................................................................................. TBD  
C. Housing Inventory .............................................................................................................................. TBD  
D. Additional Text for Public Services..................................................................................................... TBD 
E. PY14 Projects                    .................................................................................................................... TBD  
F. Key Findings from the Needs Assessment ......................................................................................... TBD 

  
 

 
 
 
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     1 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 

 

Executive Summary  

Executive Summary  
Introduction 

Under the provisions of Title 1 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 (42 USC 5301), 
the Federal government through the U.S Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 
sponsors a program that provides Community Development Block Grants (CDBG) to cities and counties 
to develop viable urban communities by providing decent housing and a suitable living environment and 
by expanding economic opportunities for low and moderate income persons.  Since 2006, Travis County 
has received CDBG funds from HUD on an annual basis.   

Designated as the lead agency by the Travis County Commissioners Court, the Health and Human 
Services & Veterans Service Department (HHS/VS) prepares and submits this Consolidated Plan to 
HUD.  HHS/VS oversees the public notification process, approval of projects, and the administration of 
these grants. 

The Consolidated Plan, PY 2014 – PY 2018, presents a coordinated approach for addressing Travis 
County’s housing and community development needs for the next five years.  A new Consolidated Plan 
is prepared every three to five years.  It combines, in one report, important information about Travis 
County demographics, as well as information on the housing and other community development needs 
of its residents, focusing on the unincorporated areas and the Village of Webberville.  For each 
succeeding year, the County is required to prepare a one-year Action Plan to notify the public and HUD 
of the County’s intended actions during that fiscal year.   

The Action Plan for program year 2014 is the County’s strategy for addressing the community’s critical 
housing and community development needs in the CDBG service area.  This Plan is developed under the 
guidelines established by HUD. The Plan allocates a total of $997,649 for Project Year 2014, which will 
assist low and moderate income Travis County households in the unincorporated areas with 
infrastructure improvements, home rehabilitation and public services.     

Community engagement and participation is an essential goal of this program and the residents of Travis 
County were instrumental in developing this Plan.  County staff drew on a variety of data sources to 
provide a quantitative analysis of community need and provided multiple opportunities to collect public 
input.  The draft Consolidated Plan and Annual Action Plan will be available for public review and 
additional comments will be received at two public hearings and considered in the final preparation of 
the Plan.  

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     2 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

At the end of each fiscal year, the County must also prepare a Consolidated Annual Performance 
Evaluation Report (CAPER) to provide information to HUD and the public to evaluate the County’s 
performance and to determine whether the activities undertaken during the program year helped to 
meet the County’s three year goals and to address priority needs identified in the Consolidated Plan and 
the Annual Action Plan.  This annual performance report, prepared with public review and comment, 
must be submitted to HUD annually, no later than December 31.   

Summary of the objectives and outcomes identified in the Plan Needs Assessment Overview 

The following table summarizes the priorities for the Consolidated Plan period.  For a detailed discussion 
of priorities and objectives for the Consolidated Plan period please refer to the Strategic Plan.  For a 
detailed discussion of projects please refer to the Action Plan.   

After considering the housing, community development and public service needs of Travis County’s low 
to moderate income residents in the Needs Section of this Plan, and public engagement efforts, Travis 
County Commissioners Court identified the following priorities as the focus for the five year 
consolidated planning period. 

Category Ranking 
Infrastructure High 
Housing High 
Community Services High 
Populations with Specialized Needs High 
Public Buildings and Facilities Low 
Business and Jobs Low 

     Table 1 - Priorities for the PY14-PY18 Consolidated Plan 

Based on these priorities, the following projects were approved by the Commissioners Court for Project 
Year 2014: 

Project Allocation 
Acquisition of Land to Support New Rental Housing $343,010 
Street Improvements: Forest Bluff $125,000 
Owner Occupied Housing:  Home Rehabilitation $200,000 
Social Work Expansion $80,110 
Tenants Rights & Fair Housing Counseling $ 50,000 
Administration & Planning $199,529 

                                   Table 2 - PY14 Projects 

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     3 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Evaluation of past performance 

The 2013 program year marked the eighth year Travis County has received CDBG funds. Funds from 
program years 2008-2013 are being spent concurrently. As the projects are implemented, internal 
monitoring is taking place to assure grant compliance and project effectiveness. HUD monitored Travis 
County’s CDBG program in April 2010 and June 2013 with no findings and one concern related to timely 
spending of funds.  The County's external auditor reviewed the Program in 2013 as well and had no 
findings.  

As part of the mandate from Congress to administer the CDBG program, each year HUD determines 
whether each CDBG entitlement is carrying out its activities “in a timely manner.” HUD conducts an 
analysis of each entitlement’s timeliness of spending 10 months into each grant year. For Travis County, 
the test occurs every August. The threshold for compliance with timeliness is having no more than 1.5 
times the current year’s allocation unspent. While the Program has struggled to achieve timeliness 
throughout its history, it is on track to achieve compliance this year.  

Since timeliness has been a key issue for the Program, strategic decisions were made with the PY14 
projects as well as the PY14-18 goals.  Projects and funding amounts were influenced by the following 
four factors:  1) create a list of alternative street improvements projects which do not have to be 
designed and can be implemented by County employees (this allows the County to swap out a slow 
project as late as April or May and still achieve timeliness); 2) fully fund administration and planning to 
increase the half time planner to three quarter time, increasing capacity to administer the program; 3) 
fund projects in smaller pieces; and 4) restrict the amount of funding to any particular project to less 
than $400,000 resulting in the Program not being dependent on one project's success to achieve 
timeliness.  

Summary of citizen participation process and consultation process 

For the PY 2014-2018 Consolidated Plan and PY14 Action Plan, information on community needs was 
gathered through a variety of mechanisms. During the months of February and March 2014, the public 
and service providers had the opportunity to provide input by 1) attending one of six public hearings, 2) 
completing a Needs Assessment survey, 3) completing a project proposal form, and 4) attending a forum 
for service providers. After presentation to the Commissioners Court, the draft of the Consolidated Plan 
will be posted for public comment for thirty days.   

• 22 people attended the public hearings; 
• 65 responses were received for the Needs Assessment Survey; 
• 7 project proposals were received; and 
• 19 individuals representing 17 agencies attended the Service Providers Forum.   

For more details and the full results of the process, please refer to "Appendix A: Public Participation."    

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     4 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Summary of public comments 

Comments received during the public engagement hearings in February and March can be found in 
“Appendix A: Public Participation.”  Comments received during the 30 day public comment period will 
be added to the final draft after it has concluded.   

Summary of comments or views not accepted and the reasons for not accepting them 

To be added to the final draft after the 30 public comment period has concluded.   

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     5 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

The Process 

Lead & Responsible Agencies  
Describe agency/entity responsible for preparing the Consolidated Plan and those 
responsible for administration of each grant program and funding source 

The following are the agencies/entities responsible for preparing the Consolidated Plan and 
those responsible for administration of each grant program and funding source. 

Agency Role Name Department/Agency 
CDBG Administrator TRAVIS COUNTY Health and Human 

Services and Veterans 
Services 

Table 3 – Responsible Agencies 
 
Narrative 

The HHS/VS Department is the lead County agency responsible for the administration of the County’s 
CDBG funding. This Department has the primary responsibility of assessing community needs, 
developing the Consolidated Plan and annual Action Plans, managing project activities in conjunction 
with other county departments and community partners, administering the finances, and monitoring 
and reporting. The CDBG office is located in the Office of the County Executive within HHS/VS. The 
Department reports to the Travis County Commissioners Court for oversight authority. 

 

Consolidated Plan Public Contact Information 

Christy Copeland Moffett, MSSW  
CDBG Planning Manager 
Office of the County Executive 
Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service 
 P.O. Box 1748, Austin, TX  78767 
P: 512.854.3460 F: 512.854-7140 
www.traviscountytx.gov/cdbg 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     6 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Consultation  
Introduction 

For the PY 2014-2018 Consolidated Plan and PY14 Action Plan, service providers had the opportunity to 
provide input by 1) attending a forum, 2) completing a Needs Assessment survey, and 3) and providing 
data and information through individual consultations with CDBG staff.  

To assist in determining the spending priorities for Program Years 2014 – 2018, service providers were 
asked to rank six categories on a scale of 1 to 6, with 1 being the most important issue area to address 
and 6 being the least important.  Providers were also asked to rank specific activities within each 
category, with 1 being the most important need to address.   

To assist in determining the spending priorities for Program Year 2014, service providers were asked to 
rank three of the six categories as “most urgent” “urgent” and “important” needs for the PY 2014 
period.  Additionally, project proposals were solicited from residents, non-profits and Travis County 
departments to identify potential projects for PY2014 and help determine community needs for the 
PY2014-2018 Consolidated Plan. 

Finally, a forum for service providers was held to help identify needs and gaps in service in the 
unincorporated areas, and opportunities for coordination over the Consolidated Planning period. As 
needed, individual consultations were conducted with specific agencies to collect necessary data and 
information.   

Provide a concise summary of the jurisdiction’s activities to enhance coordination between 
public and assisted housing providers and private and governmental health, mental health 
and service agencies (91.215(I)). 

On March 21, 2014, Travis County Health & Human Services, CDBG Program staff held a public forum for 
service providers and agencies whose current or planned service area includes, or potentially includes, 
communities in need within the CDBG service area. The forum was held at the Del Valle Community 
Center, which is located in the unincorporated area. Since the need for services outside the urban core 
is increasing as the population continues to be displaced outside the urban core, especially due to rising 
housing prices and lack of affordable housing, this location was specifically selected to get service 
providers out into the CDBG service area. 

The overall goal of the forum was to help identify potential opportunities for collaboration or 
coordination to supplement or expand existing services within the CDBG service area over the next five 
years. More specifically, the forum sought to determine which services are available and which are 
lacking in the CDBG service area, in order to help service providers determine what services they can 
provide in these outlying areas; and to discuss how the County’s CDBG Program staff can help support 
this shift to extending services into the unincorporated areas. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     7 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

As a result of this forum, CDBG staff plan to undertake several actions that will assist providers in 
extending services into the unincorporated areas.  These actions include: producing a document that 
can be used by service providers that includes information on specific neighborhoods including maps, 
demographics, and currently available services; van tours of neighborhoods to familiarize providers with 
the area and its conditions; and the ongoing provision of information about the unincorporated areas 
and advocacy for its residents.   

Between direct invitations via email and indirect invitations via email and/or newsletters sent out by 
Community Action Network (CAN) and/or OneVoice Central Texas (coalitions that bring together 
government, non-profit, private and faith-based organizations who provide services in Central Texas), 
over 100 agencies were invited to the forum. Nineteen providers attended the forum, representing 17 
agencies. 

 Describe coordination with the Continuum of Care and efforts to address the needs of 
homeless persons (particularly chronically homeless individuals and families, families with 
children, veterans, and unaccompanied youth) and persons at risk of homelessness 

The CDBG funded Social Work project will assist in piloting the Coordinated Assessment system in areas 
outside the urban core.  Additionally, HHS staff participate on the Independent Review Team, 
Membership Council, Housing Committee and the Family Support Services Division provide 
homelessness prevention services.  Finally, HHS provides general fund dollars to variety of agencies that 
work on homelessness issues through its social service contract investments. 

Describe consultation with the Continuum(s) of Care that serves the jurisdiction's area in 
determining how to allocate ESG funds, develop performance standards and evaluate 
outcomes, and develop funding, policies and procedures for the administration of HMIS 

The jurisdiction does not have ESG funds.  However, CDBG staff do participate in ECHO's Membership 
Council which serves as a liaison between the ECHO Board and the ECHO Members. The Council 
oversees and coordinates for homeless planning, housing, events and activities in addition to working 
with the Board to address policy, communication, and funding issues. 

Describe Agencies, groups, organizations and others who participated in the process and 
describe the jurisdictions consultations with housing, social service agencies and other 
entities 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     8 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

1 Agency/Group/Organization Ending Community Homelessness Coalition (ECHO) 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-homeless 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 
Homelessness Strategy 
Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless 
Homeless Needs - Families with children 
Homelessness Needs - Veterans 
Homelessness Needs - Unaccompanied youth 
Market Analysis 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

CDBG staff worked directly with ECHO staff to 
complete sections of the plan related to 
homelessness.  ECHO staff provided data and language 
for inclusion and reviewed sections drafted by CDBG. 
Additionally, ECHO staff attended the Forum for 
Providers and completed the Needs Assessment 
Survey. CDBG staff anticipates working with ECHO 
over the Consolidated Planning period to bring the 
coordinated assessment system outside the urban 
core. 

2 Agency/Group/Organization Housing Authority of Travis County (HATC) 

Agency/Group/Organization Type PHA 
Other government – Local 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 
Public Housing Needs 
Market Analysis 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

CDBG staff worked directly with HATC staff to 
complete sections of the plan related to public 
housing.  HATC staff provided data and language for 
inclusion and reviewed sections drafted by CDBG. 
CDBG and HATC will look for opportunities to create 
Multi-family housing units outside of the urban core 
and work together to implement goals identified in 
the Fair Housing Plan. 

3 Agency/Group/Organization Vaughn House 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Persons with Disabilities 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     9 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 
which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 
the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 
investment for the next program year. 

4 Agency/Group/Organization Ascend Center for Learning 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Education 
Services-Employment 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 
which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 
the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 
investment for the next program year. 

5 Agency/Group/Organization Easter Seals of Central Texas 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing 
Services - Housing 
Services-Children 
Services-Persons with Disabilities 
Services-Health 
Services-Education 
Services-Employment 
Service-Fair Housing 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 
which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 
the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 
investment for the next program year. 

6 Agency/Group/Organization AIDS SERVICES OF AUSTIN 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing 
Services-Persons with HIV/AIDS 
Services-homeless 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     10 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency attended the Provider's Forum.  It is 
anticipated that CDBG staff and the agency will be 
able to coordinate efforts to expand service provision 
outside the urban core over the Consolidated Planning 
period. The agency also completed the Needs 
Assessment survey which is used to help identify 
strategic priorities for the Consolidated Planning 
period and areas of investment for the next program 
year. 

7 Agency/Group/Organization Austin Community College 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Education 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 
which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 
the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 
investment for the next program year. 

8 Agency/Group/Organization Boys and Girls Club of the Austin Area 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Children 
Services-Education 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency attended the Provider's Forum.  It is 
anticipated that CDBG staff and the agency will be 
able to coordinate efforts to expand service provision 
outside the urban core over the Consolidated Planning 
period. The agency also completed the Needs 
Assessment survey which is used to help identify 
strategic priorities for the Consolidated Planning 
period and areas of investment for the next program 
year. 

9 Agency/Group/Organization Volunteer Healthcare Clinic 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Health Agency 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     11 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 
which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 
the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 
investment for the next program year. 

10 Agency/Group/Organization Austin ISD 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Education 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency attended the Provider's Forum.  It is 
anticipated that CDBG staff and the agency will be 
able to coordinate efforts to expand service provision 
outside the urban core over the Consolidated Planning 
period. The agency also completed the Needs 
Assessment survey which is used to help identify 
strategic priorities for the Consolidated Planning 
period and areas of investment for the next program 
year. 

11 Agency/Group/Organization Austin's Colony HOA 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Civic Leaders 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The organization completed the Needs Assessment 
survey which is used to help identify strategic 
priorities for the Consolidated Planning period and 
areas of investment for the next program year. 

12 Agency/Group/Organization Jeremiah Program 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing 
Services-Children 
Services-homeless 
Services-Education 
Services-Employment 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     12 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 
which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 
the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 
investment for the next program year. 

13 Agency/Group/Organization Groups United Advocating Responsible Development 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Education 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 
which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 
the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 
investment for the next program year. 

14 Agency/Group/Organization Out Youth 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Children 
Services-Persons with HIV/AIDS 
Services-homeless 
Services-Education 
Child Welfare Agency 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 
which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 
the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 
investment for the next program year. 

15 Agency/Group/Organization CARITAS OF AUSTIN 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing 
Services-Persons with Disabilities 
Services-homeless 
Services-Education 
Services-Employment 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     13 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 
which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 
the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 
investment for the next program year. 

16 Agency/Group/Organization Wright House Wellness Center 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Persons with HIV/AIDS 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 
which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 
the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 
investment for the next program year. 

17 Agency/Group/Organization Child Protective Services 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Children 
Child Welfare Agency 
Other government – Local 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 
which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 
the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 
investment for the next program year. 

18 Agency/Group/Organization Capital IDEA Inc. 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Employment 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 
which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 
the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 
investment for the next program year. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     14 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

19 Agency/Group/Organization CITY OF AUSTIN- NEIGHBORHOOD HOUSING 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing 
Other government – Local 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 
Market Analysis 
Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

CDBG staff worked with COA staff to identify units for 
the affordable housing inventory.  Additionally, COA 
staff completed the Needs Assessment survey which is 
used to help identify strategic priorities for the 
Consolidated Planning period and areas of investment 
for the next program year. 

20 Agency/Group/Organization Planned Parenthood of Greater Texas 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Health 
Services-Education 
Health Agency 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency attended the Provider's Forum.  It is 
anticipated that CDBG staff and the agency will be 
able to coordinate efforts to expand service provision 
outside the urban core over the Consolidated Planning 
period. The agency also completed the Needs 
Assessment survey which is used to help identify 
strategic priorities for the Consolidated Planning 
period and areas of investment for the next program 
year. 

21 Agency/Group/Organization Any Baby Can 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Children 
Services-Persons with Disabilities 
Services-Victims of Domestic Violence 
Services-Health 
Services-Education 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     15 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency attended the Provider's Forum.  It is 
anticipated that CDBG staff and the agency will be 
able to coordinate efforts to expand service provision 
outside the urban core over the Consolidated Planning 
period. The agency also completed the Needs 
Assessment survey which is used to help identify 
strategic priorities for the Consolidated Planning 
period and areas of investment for the next program 
year. 

22 Agency/Group/Organization YWCA of Greater Austin 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Mental Health 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency attended the Provider's Forum.  It is 
anticipated that CDBG staff and the agency will be 
able to coordinate efforts to expand service provision 
outside the urban core over the Consolidated Planning 
period. The agency also completed the Needs 
Assessment survey which is used to help identify 
strategic priorities for the Consolidated Planning 
period and areas of investment for the next program 
year. 

23 Agency/Group/Organization Workers Assistance Program 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Children 
Services-Persons with HIV/AIDS 
Services-Health 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 
which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 
the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 
investment for the next program year. 

24 Agency/Group/Organization TX Dept. of State Health Services 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Health Agency 
Other government – State 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     16 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 
which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 
the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 
investment for the next program year. 

25 Agency/Group/Organization Seedling Foundation 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Children 
Services-Education 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 
which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 
the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 
investment for the next program year. 

26 Agency/Group/Organization Sustainable Food Center 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Food Insecurity, Food Resources 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 
which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 
the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 
investment for the next program year. 

27 Agency/Group/Organization The Arc of the Capital Area 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Persons with Disabilities 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 
which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 
the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 
investment for the next program year. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     17 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

28 Agency/Group/Organization Workforce Solutions 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Employment 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 
which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 
the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 
investment for the next program year. 

29 Agency/Group/Organization Communities in Schools 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Children 
Services-Education 
Publicly Funded Institution/System of Care 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 
which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 
the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 
investment for the next program year. 

30 Agency/Group/Organization Pflugerville ISD 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Employment 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 
which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 
the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 
investment for the next program year. 

31 Agency/Group/Organization Goodwill of Central Texas 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Persons with Disabilities 
Services-Victims of Domestic Violence 
Services-homeless 
Services-Education 
Services-Employment 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     18 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 
which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 
the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 
investment for the next program year. 

32 Agency/Group/Organization Skillpoint Alliance 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Education 
Services-Employment 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency attended the Provider's Forum.  It is 
anticipated that CDBG staff and the agency will be 
able to coordinate efforts to expand service provision 
outside the urban core over the Consolidated Planning 
period. The agency also completed the Needs 
Assessment survey which is used to help identify 
strategic priorities for the Consolidated Planning 
period and areas of investment for the next program 
year. 

33 Agency/Group/Organization FAMILY ELDERCARE 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Elderly Persons 
Services-Persons with Disabilities 
Services-homeless 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 
which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 
the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 
investment for the next program year. 

34 Agency/Group/Organization Big Brothers Big Sisters of Central Texas 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Children 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     19 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 
which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 
the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 
investment for the next program year. 

35 Agency/Group/Organization Capital Area Food Bank of Texas 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Children 
Services-Elderly Persons 
Services-Persons with Disabilities 
Services-homeless 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency attended the Provider's Forum.  It is 
anticipated that CDBG staff and the agency will be 
able to coordinate efforts to expand service provision 
outside the urban core over the Consolidated Planning 
period. The agency also completed the Needs 
Assessment survey which is used to help identify 
strategic priorities for the Consolidated Planning 
period and areas of investment for the next program 
year. 

36 Agency/Group/Organization H.A.N.D. 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Elderly Persons 
Services-Persons with Disabilities 
Services-Health 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency attended the Provider's Forum.  It is 
anticipated that CDBG staff and the agency will be 
able to coordinate efforts to expand service provision 
outside the urban core over the Consolidated Planning 
period. The agency also completed the Needs 
Assessment survey which is used to help identify 
strategic priorities for the Consolidated Planning 
period and areas of investment for the next program 
year. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     20 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

37 Agency/Group/Organization CHILD INC. EARLY DEV 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Children 
Services-Education 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency attended the Provider's Forum.  It is 
anticipated that CDBG staff and the agency will be 
able to coordinate efforts to expand service provision 
outside the urban core over the Consolidated Planning 
period. The agency also completed the Needs 
Assessment survey which is used to help identify 
strategic priorities for the Consolidated Planning 
period and areas of investment for the next program 
year. 

38 Agency/Group/Organization AUSTIN TENANTS COUNCIL 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Elderly Persons 
Services-Persons with Disabilities 
Service-Fair Housing 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency attended the Provider's Forum.  It is 
anticipated that CDBG staff and the agency will be 
able to coordinate efforts to expand service provision 
outside the urban core over the Consolidated Planning 
period. The agency also completed the Needs 
Assessment survey which is used to help identify 
strategic priorities for the Consolidated Planning 
period and areas of investment for the next program 
year. 

39 Agency/Group/Organization Safe Place 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Victims of Domestic Violence 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     21 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 
which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 
the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 
investment for the next program year. 

40 Agency/Group/Organization City of Round Rock 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing 
Other government - Local 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 
which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 
the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 
investment for the next program year. 

41 Agency/Group/Organization Greendoors 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services - Housing 
Services-homeless 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Homelessness Needs - Veterans 
Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency attended the Provider's Forum.  It is 
anticipated that CDBG staff and the agency will be 
able to coordinate efforts to expand service provision 
outside the urban core over the Consolidated Planning 
period. 

42 Agency/Group/Organization Austin Travis County Integral Care (ATCIC) 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Persons with Disabilities 
Publicly Funded Institution/System of Care 
Services-Mental Health 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency attended the Provider's Forum.  It is 
anticipated that CDBG staff and the agency will be 
able to coordinate efforts to expand service provision 
outside the urban core over the Consolidated Planning 
period. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     22 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

43 Agency/Group/Organization Meals on Wheels and More, Inc. 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services - Housing 
Services-Elderly Persons 
Services-Persons with Disabilities 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 
Market Analysis 
Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

CDBG staff consulted with MOWAM staff to assist in 
the assessment of the need for home repairs in the 
unincorporated areas.  Additionally, the agency 
attended the Provider's Forum.  It is anticipated that 
CDBG staff and the agency will be able to coordinate 
efforts to expand service provision outside the urban 
core over the Consolidated Planning period. 

44 Agency/Group/Organization American YouthWorks 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency attended the Provider's Forum.  It is 
anticipated that CDBG staff and the agency will be 
able to coordinate efforts to expand service provision 
outside the urban core over the Consolidated Planning 
period. 

45 Agency/Group/Organization Community Action Network (CAN) 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Regional organization 
Planning organization 

What section of the Plan was addressed 
by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 
Agency/Group/Organization consulted 
and what are the anticipated outcomes 
of the consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The agency attended the Provider's Forum.  It is 
anticipated that CDBG staff and the agency will be 
able to coordinate efforts to expand service provision 
outside the urban core over the Consolidated Planning 
period. 

Table 4 – Agencies, groups, organizations who participated 
 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     23 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Identify any Agency Types not consulted and provide rationale for not consulting 

The invitation to attend the Provider's Forum and complete the Needs Assessment survey was sent 
through a variety of channels, including the Community Action Network (CAN) newsletter.  Business 
leaders were included in the invitation list, however none chose to participate.   

Other local/regional/state/federal planning efforts considered when preparing the Plan 

Name of Plan Lead Organization How do the goals of your Strategic Plan 
overlap with the goals of each plan? 

Continuum of Care ECHO No specific goals are included for Federal 
funding, however non-Federal sources of 
funding are coordinated. 

COA Consolidated 
Plan 

COA NHCD Housing is a high priority for both plans 

Table 5 – Other local / regional / federal planning efforts 
 

Describe cooperation and coordination with other public entities, including the State and any 
adjacent units of general local government, in the implementation of the Consolidated Plan 
(91.215(l)) 

CDBG staff will work with the Housing Authority of Travis County and the Travis County Housing Finance 
Corporation to implement the actions outlined in the Fair Housing Plan.  CDBG staff will also work to 
coordinate efforts with the transportation agencies Capital Metro and CARTS to expand access to 
transportation to residents of the unincorporated areas.   

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     24 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Citizen Participation 
Summary of citizen participation process/Efforts made to broaden citizen participation 
Summarize citizen participation process and how it impacted goal-setting 
 

For the PY 2014-2018 Consolidated Plan and PY14 Action Plan, information on community needs was gathered through a variety of mechanisms. 
During the months of February and March 2014, the public and service providers had the opportunity to provide input by 1) attending one of six 
public hearings, 2) completing a survey, 3) completing a project proposal form, and 4) attending a forum for service providers.  

To assist in determining the spending priorities for Program Years 2014 – 2018, residents and service providers were asked to rank six categories 
on a scale of 1 to 6, with 1 being the most important issue area to address and 6 being the least important.  Residents and providers were also 
asked to rank specific activities within each category, with 1 being the most important need to address.   

To assist in determining the spending priorities for Program Years 2014, residents and service providers were asked to rank three of the six 
categories  as “most urgent” “urgent” and “important” needs for the PY 2014 period.  Additionally, Project Proposals were solicited from 
residents, non-profits and Travis County departments to identify potential projects for PY2014 and help determine community needs for the 
PY2014-2018 Consolidated Plan. 

Finally, a forum for service providers was held to help identify needs and gaps in service in the unincorporated areas, and opportunities for 
coordination over the Consolidated Planning period.  

After presentation to the Commissioners Court, the draft of the Consolidated Plan will be posted for public comment for thirty days.   

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     25 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 Citizen Participation Outreach 

 Mode of  
Outreach 

Target of  
Outreach 

Summary of  
response/attendance 

Summary of  
comments received 

Summary of  
comments not 

accepted 
and reasons 

URL  

1 Public 
Hearing 

Non-
targeted/ 

broad 
community 

Two meetings were held at Travis 
County Commissioners Court 
during the normally scheduled 
voting session.  These public 
hearings were held in the 
traditional public hearing format 
with oral testimony. Two 
individuals provided comments. 
Two additional hearings will be 
held to receive comments on the 
draft of the Consolidated Plan 
during the public comment 
period. 

One individual requested 
information on the amount of 
the CDBG grant, number of 
beneficiaries and qualifications 
for the program.  One 
individual stated that he 
thought ECHO's 2014 Point-In-
Time count did not accurately 
reflect the homeless 
population of Austin/Travis 
County. Please refer to the 
“Appendix A: Public 
Participation" for a full 
transcript of comments 
received. 

 Not applicable   

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     26 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 Mode of  
Outreach 

Target of  
Outreach 

Summary of  
response/attendance 

Summary of  
comments received 

Summary of  
comments not 

accepted 
and reasons 

URL  

2 Public 
Meeting 

Non-
targeted/ 

broad 
community 

A total of 20 people attended the 
four community meetings held in 
each of the four precincts. 

Participants were asked for 
input regarding their housing, 
community development and 
public service needs. These 
meetings were structured as an 
information session regarding 
the uses of CDBG, with 
facilitated discussion and 
decision-making for 
meaningful, comprehensive 
input from participants 
regarding their housing, 
community development and 
public service needs. For 
detailed results please refer to 
the “Appendix A: Public 
Participation." 

Not applicable   

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     27 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 Mode of  
Outreach 

Target of  
Outreach 

Summary of  
response/attendance 

Summary of  
comments received 

Summary of  
comments not 

accepted 
and reasons 

URL  

3 Newspaper 
Ad 

Minorities 
  
Non-
English 
Speaking - 
Specify 
other 
language: 
Spanish 
  
Non-
targeted/ 

broad 
community 

An advertisement for the 
community meetings appeared in 
the following newspapers of 
general circulation: The Austin 
Chronicle, Pflugerville Pflag, Hill 
Country News, Oak Hill Gazette, 
and The Villager. To reach the 
Spanish speaking population the 
advertisement appeared in the 
Spanish language newspaper 
Ahora Si.  The invitation to 
comment on Draft of the 
Consolidated Plan will be released 
through all the same channels. For 
copies of the ads please refer to 
the “Appendix A: Public 
Participation." 

Not applicable Not applicable   

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     28 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 Mode of  
Outreach 

Target of  
Outreach 

Summary of  
response/attendance 

Summary of  
comments received 

Summary of  
comments not 

accepted 
and reasons 

URL  

4 Internet 
Outreach 

Non-
English 
Speaking - 
Specify 
other 
language: 
Spanish 
  
Non-
targeted/ 

broad 
community 

The advertisement for community 
meetings was placed on the Travis 
County CDBG website in both 
English and Spanish and a link to 
the ads was placed on the main 
page of the Travis County website.  
Additionally, the public 
participation form was available 
on the Travis County CDBG 
website in both English and 
Spanish. Finally, an email with 
information about the community 
meetings was sent to the general 
CDBG email list which includes 
residents, service providers and 
other entities that have indicated 
an interest in receiving 
information on the CDBG 
program. The invitation to 
comment on Draft of the 
Consolidated Plan will be released 
through all the same channels. 

Not applicable Not applicable http://www
.co.travis.tx.
us/health_h
uman_servi
ces/cdbg/pa
rticipate.asp 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     29 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 Mode of  
Outreach 

Target of  
Outreach 

Summary of  
response/attendance 

Summary of  
comments received 

Summary of  
comments not 

accepted 
and reasons 

URL  

5 Survey Non-
English 
Speaking - 
Specify 
other 
language: 
Spanish 
  
Non-
targeted/b
road 
community 

A total of 59 surveys were 
completed by representatives 
from non profit agencies and units 
of local government. A total of 6 
residents completed surveys to 
provide input on the Consolidated 
Plan. The resident survey was 
available in English and Spanish. 

Residents ranked 
"Infrastructure," "Community 
Services," and "Housing" as the 
most important needs for the 
Consolidated Planning period.  
Providers ranked "Housing," 
"Community Services," and 
"Populations with Specialized 
Needs" as the most important 
needs for the period. Residents 
ranked "Infrastructure," 
"Housing," and "Community 
Services" as the most urgent 
needs for the PY14 Action Plan 
period.  Providers ranked 
"Housing," "Community 
Services," and "Populations 
with Specialized Needs" as the 
most urgent needs for the 
period. For detailed results 
please refer to the “Appendix 
A: Public Participation." 

Not applicable   

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     30 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 Mode of  
Outreach 

Target of  
Outreach 

Summary of  
response/attendance 

Summary of  
comments received 

Summary of  
comments not 

accepted 
and reasons 

URL  

6 Mail Out Non-
English 
Speaking - 
Specify 
other 
language: 
Spanish 
  
Non-
targeted/ 

broad 
community 

The notice advertising the 
community meetings (in English 
and Spanish) was mailed to the 
general CDBG mailing list which 
includes residents, service 
providers and other entities that 
have indicated an interest in 
receiving information on the 
CDBG program. The invitation to 
comment on the Draft 
Consolidated Plan will be mailed 
to the same list. 

Not applicable Not applicable   

7 Social 
Media 

Non-
targeted/ 

broad 
community 

Information about all public 
hearings, the Needs Assessment 
survey and the invitation to 
comment on the draft document 
were posted to the CDBG 
Facebook page and Twitter 
account. 

Not applicable Not applicable https://twit
ter.com/Tra
visCoCDBG 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     31 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 Mode of  
Outreach 

Target of  
Outreach 

Summary of  
response/attendance 

Summary of  
comments received 

Summary of  
comments not 

accepted 
and reasons 

URL  

8 Media-
Television 

Non-
targeted/ 

broad 
community 

Information about the public 
hearings scheduled during the 
public comment period, and the 
invitation to comment on the 
draft will run on the Travis County 
Television station throughout the 
public comment period. 

Not applicable Not applicable   

Table 6– Citizen Participation Outreach 
 

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     32 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Needs Assessment 

Overview 
Needs Assessment Overview 

The following section provides an analysis of the needs of the residents of the CDBG service area.  It is 
based on a variety of data sources and information gathered during the public participation process and 
surveys.  A brief summary of key findings follows, for a more detailed summary of data please refer to 
"Appendix F: Key Findings from the Needs Assessment."   

Housing 

• Rapid population growth in the Austin area has resulted in an imbalance between supply and 
demand in the housing market, the most recent data shows a historically low housing inventory. 

• Housing prices and rents have been steadily increasing in Travis County, while median incomes 
have not increased at the same rate. 

• Cost burden (paying more than 30% of income towards housing costs) is the most prevalent 
housing problem facing Travis County residents.  

• Residents of the unincorporated areas indicate that the most urgent need related to housing is 
repairs for owner occupied housing.  

Infrastructure 

• Residents consistently rank Infrastructure as the highest priority need in the unincorporated 
area. 

• Precincts 1, 3, and 4, in particular, have a high need for water/wastewater improvements. 
• Many residents of unincorporated areas rely on septic systems, many of which are in need of 

repair or replacement, which can be very costly. 
• There are approximately 400 miles of roadway in unincorporated areas that are not on the 

County maintained system. 
• Neighborhoods may apply to the County’s Substandard Road Program for funds; however, the 

only option for low and moderate income neighborhoods may be through the CDBG program. 
• Due to recent severe flood events, significant flood drainage improvements and/or repairs are 

needed, especially in the E/SE parts of the county. 

Community Services 

• Residents and Social Service Agencies both rank Community Services as the second highest 
priority for the planning period. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     33 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

• Of the current social service contract investments made by the Department, approximately 5% 
of the services are being provided to persons living in the unincorporated areas, and another 
25% to residents in areas that are mixed incorporated and unincorporated. 

Public Buildings and Facilities 

• Residents, primarily from E/SE and W/SW Travis County, have requested the following types of 
public facilities: neighborhood parks (including playgrounds and walking trails), recreational 
centers, community centers, health facilities, and childcare centers 

• Some of these types of public facilities, in particular, parks and community centers, are available 
in the unincorporated areas, even these public facilities may not be accessible to residents 
without, or with limited, access to personal or public transportation 

Populations with Specialized Needs 

• Approximately 5% of clients receiving services for the elderly, persons with disabilities, victims 
of domestic violence, or persons living with HIV/AIDS were from the unincorporated areas of the 
county.  Another 24% live in areas that are a mix of incorporated and unincorporated.  

Business and Jobs 

• According to the Texas Workforce Commission, in 2013, there was an increase in the number of 
jobs in every major industry in Texas. 

• And as of December 2013, the unemployment rate for Travis County (4.5%) has consistently 
remained lower than the state (5.6%) and national (6.5%) rates.  

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     34 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Housing Needs Assessment 
Summary of Housing Needs 

The following section assesses the housing needs and problems faced by residents of Travis County.  A 
variety of data sets are used including U.S. Census data, information gathered through the public 
outreach process and a special tabulation of Census data prepared by the U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development (HUD), referred to as CHAS data.  Please note that there appear to be 
discrepancies between the totals reported in the various CHAS data tables.  At the time of report 
drafting, the Travis County CDBG office has requested clarification from HUD regarding these 
discrepancies but has not yet received a response.  Analysis is based on the data that is available, but 
comparisons cannot be made across all tables. 

Housing problems are defined as a household having any one of the following: a cost burden greater 
than 30% of income, overcrowding and/or housing without complete kitchen or plumbing 
facilities.  According to CHAS data, a total of 15,468 households in the unincorporated areas of Travis 
County have at least one housing problem. 

Very Low Income households are defined as earning less than 30% of Area Median Income (AMI); Low 
Income households are defined as earning between 30% and 50% of AMI; Moderate Income Households 
are defined as earning between 50% and 80% AMI.  AMI is calculated annually by the U.S. Department 
of Housing and Urban Development. Very low income and low income households face housing 
problems at the highest rates:  89% of very low income households and 82% of low income households 
face at least one housing problem.  By comparison, 57 % of moderate income households face one or 
more housing problem. 

Having a cost burden is the most prevalent housing problem for residents of the unincorporated 
areas.  Thirty-four percent of households report paying more than 30% of income toward housing 
costs.  By contrast, only 1% of households report the next most common problem, overcrowding. 

Demographics Base Year:  2000 Most Recent Year:  2010 % Change 
Population 124,153 163,923 32% 
Households 44,681 58,685 31% 
Median Income $46,761.00 $54,074.00 14% 

Table 7 - Housing Needs Assessment Demographics 
 

Data Source: 2000 Census (Base Year), 2006-2010 ACS (Most Recent Year) 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     35 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Number of Households Table 

 0-30% 
HAMFI 

>30-50% 
HAMFI 

>50-80% 
HAMFI 

>80-100% 
HAMFI 

>100% 
HAMFI 

Total Households * 4,649 5,195 9,445 5,220 34,170 
Small Family Households * 1,654 2,238 4,419 2,445 21,010 
Large Family Households * 345 714 1,159 640 3,459 
Household contains at least one 
person 62-74 years of age 644 644 1,098 645 4,519 
Household contains at least one 
person age 75 or older 338 430 535 175 1,155 
Households with one or more 
children 6 years old or younger * 1,050 1,453 2,339 1,160 7,078 

* the highest income category for these family types is >80% HAMFI 
Table 8 - Total Households Table 

Data Source: 2006-2010 CHAS 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     36 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Housing Needs Summary Tables 

1. Housing Problems (Households with one of the listed needs) 

 Renter Owner 
0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 

NUMBER OF HOUSEHOLDS 
Substandard 
Housing - 
Lacking 
complete 
plumbing or 
kitchen facilities 30 15 40 0 85 130 40 70 0 240 
Severely 
Overcrowded - 
With >1.51 
people per 
room (and 
complete 
kitchen and 
plumbing) 35 35 10 0 80 35 0 69 15 119 
Overcrowded - 
With 1.01-1.5 
people per 
room (and none 
of the above 
problems) 65 113 50 24 252 60 120 250 55 485 
Housing cost 
burden greater 
than 50% of 
income (and 
none of the 
above 
problems) 1,984 1,175 200 50 3,409 1,200 1,169 1,145 379 3,893 
Housing cost 
burden greater 
than 30% of 
income (and 
none of the 
above 
problems) 164 1,070 1,344 320 2,898 299 544 2,219 945 4,007 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     37 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 Renter Owner 
0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 

Zero/negative 
Income (and 
none of the 
above 
problems) 195 0 0 0 195 129 0 0 0 129 

Table 9 – Housing Problems Table 
Data 
Source: 

2006-2010 CHAS 

 

Housing Problems 2 (Households with one or more Severe Housing Problems: Lacks kitchen or 
complete plumbing, severe overcrowding, severe cost burden) 

 Renter Owner 
0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 

NUMBER OF HOUSEHOLDS 
Having 1 or more 
of four housing 
problems 2,119 1,334 300 74 3,827 1,425 1,329 1,545 449 4,748 
Having none of 
four housing 
problems 254 1,295 3,039 1,910 6,498 534 1,234 4,574 2,795 9,137 
Household has 
negative income, 
but none of the 
other housing 
problems 195 0 0 0 195 129 0 0 0 129 

Table 10 – Housing Problems 2 
Data 
Source: 

2006-2010 CHAS 

 

Cost Burden > 30% 

 Renter Owner 
0-30% 
AMI 

>30-50% 
AMI 

>50-80% 
AMI 

Total 0-30% 
AMI 

>30-50% 
AMI 

>50-80% 
AMI 

Total 

NUMBER OF HOUSEHOLDS 
Small Related 944 1,030 660 2,634 570 912 1,869 3,351 
Large Related 135 163 129 427 190 260 395 845 
Elderly 204 270 110 584 479 357 414 1,250 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     38 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 Renter Owner 
0-30% 
AMI 

>30-50% 
AMI 

>50-80% 
AMI 

Total 0-30% 
AMI 

>30-50% 
AMI 

>50-80% 
AMI 

Total 

Other 975 875 645 2,495 400 210 795 1,405 
Total need by 
income 

2,258 2,338 1,544 6,140 1,639 1,739 3,473 6,851 

Table 11 – Cost Burden > 30% 
Data 
Source: 

2006-2010 CHAS 

 

Cost Burden > 50% 

 Renter Owner 
0-30% 
AMI 

>30-50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

Total 0-30% 
AMI 

>30-50% 
AMI 

>50-80% 
AMI 

Total 

NUMBER OF HOUSEHOLDS 
Small Related 840 615 35 1,490 500 642 530 1,672 
Large Related 120 113 45 278 110 190 135 435 
Elderly 179 165 10 354 290 174 230 694 
Other 955 360 100 1,415 375 185 285 845 
Total need by 
income 

2,094 1,253 190 3,537 1,275 1,191 1,180 3,646 

Table 12 – Cost Burden > 50% 
Data 
Source: 

2006-2010 CHAS 

 

Crowding (More than one person per room) 

 Renter Owner 
0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 

NUMBER OF HOUSEHOLDS 
Single family 
households 50 62 60 24 196 50 100 135 15 300 
Multiple, unrelated 
family households 45 85 0 0 130 45 15 209 55 324 
Other, non-family 
households 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Total need by 
income 

95 147 60 24 326 95 115 344 70 624 

Table 13 – Crowding Information – 1/2 
Data 
Source: 

2006-2010 CHAS 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     39 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 Renter Owner 
0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

Total 0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

Total 

Households with 
Children Present 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Table 14 – Crowding Information – 2/2 
Data Source 
Comments:  

 

Describe the number and type of single person households in need of housing assistance. 

This answer will be provided in the final draft.  

Estimate the number and type of families in need of housing assistance who are disabled or 
victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and stalking. 

Children under age 18 comprise about 24% (260,108) of Travis County's total population. This segment 
of the population has grown by 3% from 2008 to 2012. In 2012, there were 13,211 alleged victims of 
child abuse/neglect in Travis County, with 3,045 confirmed victims and 478 children removed from their 
homes. In the same year there were 8,893 incidents of family violence in Travis County, an increase from 
7,777 incidents of family violence in 2011. Additionally, the 2014 Point-In-Time Homeless Count found 
there were 416 are homeless victims of domestic violence, 305 sheltered and 111 unsheltered.  

Analysis done by Mullin & Lonergan shows that the most common type of disability among persons ages 
18 to 64 was ambulatory, referring to difficulty moving from place to place that makes it impossible or 
impractical to walk as a means of transportation. Of County residents between ages 18 and 64, 23,690 
(3.4%) reported this type of difficulty, which translates to a need for accessible housing options.  

What are the most common housing problems? 

Having a cost burden is the most prevalent housing problem for residents of the unincorporated 
areas.  Thirty-four percent of households report paying more than 30% of income toward housing 
costs.  By contrast, only 1% of households report the next most common problem, overcrowding. 

Information gathered over several years of public outreach and through the implementation of the 
home repair and social service programs have identified a high level of need for home repair in the 
unincorporated areas.  As part of the needs assessment for the Consolidated Plan, residents ranked 
"Home Repair" as the most urgent need among housing activities.   

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     40 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Are any populations/household types more affected than others by these problems? 

Very low-income households are most likely to face a severe cost burden, with 68% of these households 
paying more than 50% of income towards housing costs.   

According to 2012 ACS data, there are slightly more homeowners (51% of population) in Travis County 
than renters (49% of population.) Although owner costs skew higher than renter costs, renter incomes 
tend to be lower than owner incomes. The difference is striking: Travis County’s owner-occupied median 
household income is $84,477, while the renter-occupied median household income is $38,273. 

A large percentage of both renters and owners in Travis County experience a housing cost burden, 
However, the percentage of households that are cost burdened is much higher among renters than 
owners: 49% of renter households in Travis County spend 30% or more of their income on rent, and 25% 
of them spend at least half of their income on rent. Comparatively, 28% of owner households spend 30% 
or more of their income on housing costs and 12% spend at least half. Since 2006, the percentage of 
cost burdened renter households has increased from 44% to 49%. Conversely the percentage of cost 
burdened owner households has declined slightly from 32% to 28%. The percentage of severely cost 
burdened renter and owner households has remained relatively consistent over this same time period. 

Describe the characteristics and needs of Low-income individuals and families with children 
(especially extremely low-income) who are currently housed but are at imminent risk of 
either residing in shelters or becoming unsheltered 91.205(c)/91.305(c)). Also discuss the 
needs of formerly homeless families and individuals who are receiving rapid re-housing 
assistance and are nearing the termination of that assistance 

Low income individuals and families with children comprise a large percentage of extremely cost 
burdened households in Travis County. Each has different housing and supportive service needs. Youth 
who have no supervision at home after-school, and who lack after-school activities, may become at-risk. 

Young children from low-income families can be at risk of nutrition deficits, vocabulary and other 
learning delays and undiagnosed or untreated health, behavioral, or developmental issues. 

Formerly homeless families and individuals receiving rapid re-housing assistance or are nearing the 
termination of temporary assistance may have difficulty transitioning to self- sufficiency and providing 
for their families. It is important to maintain processes that help families or individuals identify their 
needs and prepare short- and long-term plans for action. 

If a jurisdiction provides estimates of the at-risk population(s), it should also include a 
description of the operational definition of the at-risk group and the methodology used to 
generate the estimates: 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     41 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Specify particular housing characteristics that have been linked with instability and an 
increased risk of homelessness. 

The most fundamental characteristic shared by the homeless and at risk populations is their extreme 
poverty. From a financial standpoint, the housing characteristic most linked with instability would 
include the higher housing cost burden, including higher housing plus transportation cost  burden as 
discussed above, inability to pay rent, as well as defaulting on a mortgage or a foreclosure. Some of the 
factors leading to instability are the loss of a parent through death, divorce, separation, or incarceration; 
serious illness; job loss; and mental illness.   At risk groups include youth aging out of foster care, 
persons who have previously experienced homelessness, single female headed households, individuals 
paying more than 50% of their income for housing (including utilities).  Risk factors can include 
unemployment history/lack of job skills, rent/mortgage arrears, transportation problems, doubled up, 
lack of education, language barriers, and eviction/foreclosure. 

Discussion 

Travis County has undergone rapid population growth that is currently outpacing a commensurate 
increase in the housing supply.  As a result, housing costs are rising and there is considerable demand 
for available housing. As demonstrated above, housing cost burden affects a significant number of Travis 
County households. A majority (68%) of very-low income households pay more than 50% of their 
income towards housing and nearly half (49%) of renter households pay more than 30% of their income 
towards housing.   

The results of public outreach for the Consolidated Plan, confirm that housing ranks as a significant need 
for Travis County households.  Service providers ranked "Housing" as the most urgent need for the 
Consolidated Planning period, and residents ranked it as the third most urgent need.   

Population is projected to continue to grow over the Consolidated Planning period, and while builders 
are increasing new housing starts in response to demand, it is unlikely that enough new housing will be 
produced to significantly alleviate cost burden for very low income households.   

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     42 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Disproportionately Greater Need: Housing Problems  
Assess the need of any racial or ethnic group that has disproportionately greater need in comparison to 
the needs of that category of need as a whole. 

Introduction 

Housing problems are defined as a household having any one of the following: a cost burden greater 
than 30% of income, more than one person per room, and/or housing without complete kitchen or 
plumbing facilities. Disproportionately greater need exists when the percentage of persons in a category 
of need, who are members of a particular racial or ethnic group, is at least ten percentage points higher 
than the percentage of persons in the category as a whole.   

0%-30% of Area Median Income 

Housing Problems Has one or more 
of four housing 

problems 

Has none of the four 
housing problems 

Household has 
no/negative income, but 

none of the other 
housing problems 

Jurisdiction as a whole 44,360 3,765 4,045 
White 19,120 1,580 2,000 
Black / African American 5,620 900 500 
Asian 2,490 105 550 
American Indian, Alaska 
Native 160 50 0 
Pacific Islander 0 0 0 
Hispanic 16,590 1,105 960 

Table 15 - Disproportionally Greater Need 0 - 30% AMI 
Data Source: 2006-2010 CHAS 

 
*The four housing problems are:  
1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing facilities, 3. More than one person per 
room, 4.Cost Burden greater than 30%  
 
 
30%-50% of Area Median Income 

Housing Problems Has one or more of 
four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has 
no/negative income, 
but none of the other 

housing problems 
Jurisdiction as a whole 36,095 8,570 0 
White 15,995 3,715 0 
Black / African American 3,985 985 0 
Asian 1,660 300 0 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     43 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Housing Problems Has one or more of 
four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has 
no/negative income, 
but none of the other 

housing problems 
American Indian, Alaska 
Native 55 25 0 
Pacific Islander 0 0 0 
Hispanic 13,680 3,390 0 

Table 16 - Disproportionally Greater Need 30 - 50% AMI 
Data Source: 2006-2010 CHAS 

 
*The four housing problems are:  
1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing facilities, 3. More than one person per 
room, 4.Cost Burden greater than 30%  
 
 
50%-80% of Area Median Income 

Housing Problems Has one or more 
of four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has 
no/negative income, but 

none of the other housing 
problems 

Jurisdiction as a whole 32,665 36,980 0 
White 18,075 18,115 0 
Black / African American 3,235 4,480 0 
Asian 1,010 1,280 0 
American Indian, Alaska Native 30 230 0 
Pacific Islander 90 15 0 
Hispanic 9,745 12,040 0 

Table 17 - Disproportionally Greater Need 50 - 80% AMI 
Data Source: 2006-2010 CHAS 

 
*The four housing problems are:  
1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing facilities, 3. More than one person per 
room, 4.Cost Burden greater than 30% 

80%-100% of Area Median Income 

Housing Problems Has one or more of 
four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has 
no/negative income, 
but none of the other 

housing problems 
Jurisdiction as a whole 10,565 29,165 0 
White 6,335 16,975 0 
Black / African American 645 2,435 0 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     44 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Housing Problems Has one or more of 
four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has 
no/negative income, 
but none of the other 

housing problems 
Asian 500 1,135 0 
American Indian, Alaska 
Native 0 45 0 
Pacific Islander 10 0 0 
Hispanic 3,020 8,230 0 

Table 18- Disproportionally Greater Need 80 - 100% AMI 
Data Source: 2006-2010 CHAS 

 
*The four housing problems are:  
1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing facilities, 3. More than one person per 
room, 4.Cost Burden greater than 30% 

Discussion 

According to the CHAS data the only categories that experience disproportionately greater need are 
Pacific Islanders in the income brackets of 50-80% and 80%-100% of median income. While 47% of 
households earning 50-80% MFI report one or more housing problem, 85% of Pacific Islander 
households do. Twenty-seven percent of households earning 80-100% MFI report a housing problem 
and 100% of Pacific Islander households in this bracket do.  It should be noted, that Pacific Islander 
households represent a very small sample of total households, with 105 out of 69,645 households at 50-
80% MFI and 10 out of 39,730 at 80-100% MFI. While the margin of error is not available for this data 
set, based on analysis of other ACS data sets, it is possible that data points this small may not be 
statistically reliable.   

Additionally, while this data set does not differentiate between owner and renter households by race 
and ethnicity, analysis done for the previous Consolidated Plan showed that among Owner Households, 
a disproportionate percentage of Hispanic and African American Households have a housing problem, at 
42% and 40% respectively, compared to 30% for the County as a whole. It is unlikely that this has 
changed significantly in the intervening years.   

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     45 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Disproportionately Greater Need: Severe Housing Problems  
Assess the need of any racial or ethnic group that has disproportionately greater need in comparison to 
the needs of that category of need as a whole. 

Introduction 

Severe housing problems are defined as a household having any one of the following: a cost burden 
greater than 50% of income, more than 1.5 persons per room, and/or housing without complete kitchen 
or plumbing facilities.  

0%-30% of Area Median Income 

Severe Housing Problems* Has one or more 
of four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has 
no/negative income, 
but none of the other 

housing problems 
Jurisdiction as a whole 39,580 8,540 4,045 
White 17,600 3,100 2,000 
Black / African American 4,915 1,600 500 
Asian 2,285 315 550 
American Indian, Alaska Native 160 50 0 
Pacific Islander 0 0 0 
Hispanic 14,255 3,435 960 

Table 19– Severe Housing Problems 0 - 30% AMI 
Data Source: 2006-2010 CHAS 

 
*The four severe housing problems are:  
1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing facilities, 3. More than 1.5 persons per 
room, 4.Cost Burden over 50%  
 
 
30%-50% of Area Median Income 

Severe Housing Problems* Has one or more of 
four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has 
no/negative 

income, but none 
of the other 

housing problems 
Jurisdiction as a whole 16,770 27,895 0 
White 7,365 12,345 0 
Black / African American 1,640 3,330 0 
Asian 700 1,255 0 
American Indian, Alaska Native 10 65 0 
Pacific Islander 0 0 0 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     46 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Severe Housing Problems* Has one or more of 
four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has 
no/negative 

income, but none 
of the other 

housing problems 
Hispanic 6,655 10,415 0 

Table 2 – Severe Housing Problems 30 - 50% AMI 
Data Source: 2006-2010 CHAS 

 
*The four severe housing problems are:  
1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing facilities, 3. More than 1.5 persons per 
room, 4.Cost Burden over 50%  
 
 
50%-80% of Area Median Income 

Severe Housing Problems* Has one or more of 
four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has 
no/negative income, 
but none of the other 

housing problems 
Jurisdiction as a whole 10,100 59,545 0 
White 5,080 31,115 0 
Black / African American 930 6,790 0 
Asian 440 1,850 0 
American Indian, Alaska Native 15 245 0 
Pacific Islander 90 15 0 
Hispanic 3,400 18,380 0 

Table 21 – Severe Housing Problems 50 - 80% AMI 
Data Source: 2006-2010 CHAS 

 
*The four severe housing problems are:  
1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing facilities, 3. More than 1.5 persons per 
room, 4.Cost Burden over 50%  
 
 
80%-100% of Area Median Income 

Severe Housing Problems* Has one or more of 
four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has 
no/negative income, 
but none of the other 

housing problems 
Jurisdiction as a whole 2,765 36,965 0 
White 1,610 21,700 0 
Black / African American 70 3,005 0 
Asian 160 1,470 0 
American Indian, Alaska Native 0 45 0 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     47 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Severe Housing Problems* Has one or more of 
four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has 
no/negative income, 
but none of the other 

housing problems 
Pacific Islander 0 10 0 
Hispanic 915 10,330 0 

Table 22 – Severe Housing Problems 80 - 100% AMI 
Data Source: 2006-2010 CHAS 

 

*The four severe housing problems are:  
1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing facilities, 3. More than 1.5 persons per 
room, 4.Cost Burden over 50%  
 
 
Discussion 

According to the CHAS data the only category that experiences disproportionately greater need are 
Pacific Islanders in the income bracket of 50-80% MFI. While 15% of households earning 50-80% MFI 
report one or more severe housing problem, 85% of Pacific Islander households do. It should be noted, 
that Pacific Islander households represent a very small sample of total households, with 105 out of 69, 
645 households. While the margin of error is not available for this data set, based on analysis of other 
ACS data sets, it is possible that data points this small may not be statistically reliable.   

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     48 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Disproportionately Greater Need: Housing Cost Burdens  
Assess the need of any racial or ethnic group that has disproportionately greater need in comparison to 
the needs of that category of need as a whole. 

Introduction:  

Cost burden is defined as paying more than 30% of income towards housing costs.  As discussed in 
sections above, cost burden is the most prevalent housing problem experienced by households in Travis 
County.   

Housing Cost Burden 

Housing Cost Burden <=30% 30-50% >50% No / negative 
income (not 
computed) 

Jurisdiction as a whole 243,500 72,240 60,125 4,355 
White 158,205 39,310 31,135 2,125 
Black / African American 16,405 6,615 7,085 540 
Asian 11,680 3,125 3,330 600 
American Indian, Alaska 
Native 810 100 190 0 
Pacific Islander 160 45 50 0 
Hispanic 52,730 22,070 17,470 1,040 

Table 23 – Greater Need: Housing Cost Burdens AMI 
Data Source: 2006-2010 CHAS 

 

Discussion:  

According to the CHAS data, African Americans experience a disproportionate cost burden.  While 35% 
of the jurisdiction as whole has a cost burden, 45% of African Americans do.   

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     49 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Disproportionately Greater Need: Discussion  
Are there any Income categories in which a racial or ethnic group has disproportionately 
greater need than the needs of that income category as a whole? 

According to the CHAS data the income categories that experience disproportionately greater need are 
Pacific Islanders in the income brackets of 50-80% and 80%-100% of median income.  It should be noted, 
that Pacific Islander households represent a very small sample of total households. While the margin of 
error is not available for this data set, based on analysis of other ACS data sets, it is possible that data 
points this small may not be statistically reliable. 

It is worth noting that there are disparities in income across racial and ethnic groups in Travis County 
that may contribute to higher need among certain categories. According to analysis done by Mullin & 
Lonergan, Whites had the highest Median Household Income (MHI) at $60,809. The MHI for Asian 
households was $59,690. It was substantially lower for Blacks and Hispanics, at $36,227 and $40,948, 
respectively. As suggested by the lower median incomes among these groups, minority residents in 
Travis County experienced poverty at greater rates than White residents. Less than 13% of White 
residents were living in poverty in 2010, compared with 24.7% of Hispanics and 24.6% of Blacks. Asian 
households reported poverty at a rate of 16.1%. 

If they have needs not identified above, what are those needs? 

The following section is excerpted from the Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice, conducted 
for Travis County by Mullin & Lonergan.  

Home Ownership 

Historically, minorities tend to have lower home ownership rates than Whites. In 2010 in Travis County, 
Whites had a home ownership rate of 57.4%. By comparison, Asians owned their homes at a rate of 
47.9%; Hispanics at 40.6% and Blacks at a rate of 38.1%. Ownership was higher across all racial and 
ethnic groups in unincorporated areas of the County, where about eight in every 10 White or Asian 
households were homeowners. Outside of city and village borders, two-thirds of Hispanic households 
and 51.8% of Black households owned homes. 

As previously noted, the median income for Black and Hispanic households in Travis County is drastically 
lower than the median for Whites. This is one among several factors that contribute to the generally 
lower rates of home ownership among minority families. 

Crowding 

In the Urban County, minorities were more likely than Whites to live in households with three or more 
people. In 2010, 45.2% of White households had three or more people. By comparison, 49% of Black 
households, 64.7% of Asian households and 67% of Hispanic households were considered to be large. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     50 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

To adequately house larger families, a sufficient supply of larger dwelling units consisting of three or 
more bedrooms is necessary. In the Urban County, there are fewer options to rent a unit to 
accommodate large families. Of the 14,711 rental units in 2010, only 41.5% had three or more 
bedrooms, compared to 90.7% of the owner housing stock. 

Affordability 

The maximum affordable home purchase prices for Whites and Asians was substantially higher than the 
affordable home prices for Black and Hispanic homebuyers. The maximum affordable purchase price at 
the median household income for Blacks was 45.4% of the median sales price and only 47.7% of the 
maximum affordable purchase price for the County overall. 

 Are any of those racial or ethnic groups located in specific areas or neighborhoods in your 
community? 

For a discussion of the geographic concentration of racial and ethnic categories refer to section MA-50 
of the Consolidated Plan.  Please refer to "Appendix B: Maps" for maps that display the distribution of 
racially and/or ethnically concentrated block groups in the unincorporated areas of Travis County.   

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     51 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Public Housing 
Introduction 

The Housing Authority of Travis County (HATC) manages three public housing sites, a Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program, and three 
Shelter Plus Care Projects. 

 

 Totals in Use 

Program Type 
 Certificate Mod-

Rehab 
Public 

Housing 
Vouchers 

Total Project -
based 

Tenant -
based 

Special Purpose Voucher 
Veterans 

Affairs 
Supportive 

Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Disabled 
* 

# of units vouchers in use 0 0 104 563 17 543 0 0 1 
Table 24 - Public Housing by Program Type 

*includes Non-Elderly Disabled, Mainstream One-Year, Mainstream Five-year, and Nursing Home Transition  
 

Data Source: PIC (PIH Information Center) 

 

 

Please note, the data provided in the table above refers to units that are located outside the Travis County CDBG service area. There are 
currently no Public Housing Units in the Travis County CDBG service area. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     52 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 Characteristics of Residents 

 
Program Type 

 Certificate Mod-
Rehab 

Public 
Housing 

Vouchers 
Total Project -

based 
Tenant -

based 
Special Purpose Voucher 

Veterans 
Affairs 

Supportive 
Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Average Annual Income 0 0 11,713 13,376 11,348 13,380 0 0 
Average length of stay 0 0 4 6 2 6 0 0 
Average Household size 0 0 2 2 1 2 0 0 
# Homeless at admission 0 0 1 20 0 19 0 0 
# of Elderly Program Participants 
(>62) 0 0 15 81 10 71 0 0 
# of Disabled Families 0 0 18 166 6 159 0 0 
# of Families requesting accessibility 
features 0 0 104 563 17 543 0 0 
# of HIV/AIDS program participants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
# of DV victims 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Table 3 – Characteristics of Public Housing Residents by Program Type  
 

Data Source: PIC (PIH Information Center) 
 

 

Please note, the data provided in the table above refers to units that are located outside the Travis County CDBG service area. There are 
currently no Public Housing Units in the Travis County CDBG service area. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     53 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 Race of Residents 

Program Type 
Race Certificate Mod-

Rehab 
Public 

Housing 
Vouchers 

Total Project -
based 

Tenant -
based 

Special Purpose Voucher 
Veterans 

Affairs 
Supportive 

Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Disabled 
* 

White 0 0 34 175 10 164 0 0 0 
Black/African American 0 0 68 380 7 371 0 0 1 
Asian 0 0 2 5 0 5 0 0 0 
American Indian/Alaska 
Native 0 0 0 3 0 3 0 0 0 
Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
*includes Non-Elderly Disabled, Mainstream One-Year, Mainstream Five-year, and Nursing Home Transition 

Table 4 – Race of Public Housing Residents by Program Type 
Data Source: PIC (PIH Information Center) 

 

Ethnicity of Residents 

Program Type 
Ethnicity Certificate Mod-

Rehab 
Public 

Housing 
Vouchers 

Total Project -
based 

Tenant -
based 

Special Purpose Voucher 
Veterans 

Affairs 
Supportive 

Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Disabled 
* 

Hispanic 0 0 25 85 0 84 0 0 0 
Not Hispanic 0 0 79 478 17 459 0 0 1 
*includes Non-Elderly Disabled, Mainstream One-Year, Mainstream Five-year, and Nursing Home Transition 

Table 27 – Ethnicity of Public Housing Residents by Program Type 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     54 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Data Source: PIC (PIH Information Center) 

 

 

Please note, the data provided in the table above refers to units that are located outside the Travis County CDBG service area. There are 
currently no Public Housing Units in the Travis County CDBG service area. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     55 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Section 504 Needs Assessment: Describe the needs of public housing tenants and applicants 
on the waiting list for accessible units: 

Please note, the data provided in the table above refers to units that are located outside the Travis 
County CDBG service area. There are currently no Public Housing Units in the Travis County CDBG 
service area. 

Most immediate needs of residents of Public Housing and Housing Choice voucher holders 

Please note, the data provided in the table above refers to units that are located outside the Travis 
County CDBG service area. There are currently no Public Housing Units in the Travis County CDBG 
service area. 

How do these needs compare to the housing needs of the population at large 

Please note, the data provided in the table above refers to units that are located outside the Travis 
County CDBG service area. There are currently no Public Housing Units in the Travis County CDBG 
service area. 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     56 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Homeless Needs Assessment  
Introduction: 

The Ending Community Homelessness Coalition (ECHO) in Austin/Travis County, defines what it means to be homeless as: 

 An individual or family who lacks a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime residence meaning: 

(1)    Has a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place not meant for human habitation (cars, parks, sidewalks, abandoned 
buildings); or 

(2)    Is living in a publicly or privately operated shelter designated to provide temporary living arrangements (including congregate shelters[1], 
transitional housing, and hotels and motels paid for by charitable organizations or by federal, state, and local government programs); or 

(3)   Is exiting an institution where s/he has resided for 90 days or less and who resided in an emergency shelter or place not meant for 
habitation immediately before entering that institution. 

The primary causes of homelessness in the U.S. are poverty and the lack of affordable housing. Some other major factors that can contribute to 
homelessness include: economic factors such as insufficient income or loss of employment, domestic violence, mental illness, and substance 
abuse. Additionally, release from incarceration without sufficient transitional assistance and aging out of foster care may also contribute to 
homelessness for specific populations. Homelessness can be short-term or long-term, or even a chronic condition. 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     57 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Homeless Needs Assessment  

 Population Estimate the # of persons 
experiencing homelessness 

on a given night 

Estimate the # 
experiencing 

homelessness 
each year 

Estimate the # 
becoming 
homeless 
each year 

Estimate the # 
exiting 

homelessness 
each year 

Estimate the # 
of days persons 

experience 
homelessness 

 Unsheltered Sheltered     
Persons in Households with Adult(s) 
and Child(ren) 4 696 2,706 0 447 0 
Persons in Households with Only 
Children 2 11 50 0 817 0 
Persons in Households with Only 
Adults 442 832 4,947 0 8 0 
Chronically Homeless Individuals 169 177 1,444 0 217 0 
Chronically Homeless Families 35 4 160 0 26 0 
Veterans 49 127 1,221 0 115 0 
Unaccompanied Child 2 11 240 0 8 0 
Persons with HIV 7 6 50 0 8 0 

Table 28 - Homeless Needs Assessment  
 Alternate Data Source Name:  
Community Data on Shelter, Housing and Services 
 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     58 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 

Rural Homeless Needs Assessment 

 Population Estimate the # of persons 
experiencing homelessness 

on a given night 

Estimate the # 
experiencing 

homelessness 
each year 

Estimate the # 
becoming 
homeless 
each year 

Estimate the # 
exiting 

homelessness 
each year 

Estimate the # 
of days persons 

experience 
homelessness 

 Unsheltered Sheltered     
Persons in Households with Adult(s) 
and Child(ren) 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Persons in Households with Only 
Children 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Persons in Households with Only 
Adults 91 0 353 0 0 0 
Chronically Homeless Individuals 56 0 217 0 0 0 
Chronically Homeless Families 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Veterans 19 0 73 0 0 0 
Unaccompanied Youth 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Persons with HIV 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Table 5 - Homeless Needs Assessment  
 

 Alternate Data Source Name:  
Community Data on Shelter, Housing and Services 
 Data Source Comments:    

 

 

 

Indicate if the homeless population is: Partially Rural Homeless 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     59 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

For persons in rural areas who are homeless or at risk of homelessness, describe the nature and extent of unsheltered and 
sheltered homelessness with the jurisdiction:  

The majority of homeless individuals in rural areas are single men living in make-shift campsites. Based on anecdotal interactions 
during the Point-In-Time count, it seems that most of these individuals choose isolation rather than shelter housing as it is not 
socially feasible. As discussed in the Market Analysis, there are currently no units of shelter housing in the unincorporated areas.   

If data is not available for the categories "number of persons becoming and exiting homelessness each year," and "number of 
days that persons experience homelessness," describe these categories for each homeless population type (including chronically 
homeless individuals and families, families with children, veterans and their families, and unaccompanied youth): 

Estimates for "number exiting homeless" and "number of days that persons experience homelessness," are new metrics that have not been 
tracked by the Continuum of Care before and a methodology for providing a reliable estimate was not available at time of report drafting.  The 
County will work with the CoC to develop a means to track these metrics over the planning period.   

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     60 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Nature and Extent of Homelessness: (Optional) 

Race: Sheltered: Unsheltered (optional) 

White 7,357 0 
Black or African American 4,691 0 
Asian 324 0 
American Indian or Alaska 
Native 109 0 
Pacific Islander 65 0 
Ethnicity: Sheltered: Unsheltered (optional) 

Hispanic 4,282 0 
Not Hispanic 9,144 0 
 

Table 30 – Nature and Extent of Homelessness 
 

  

Estimate the number and type of families in need of housing assistance for families with 
children and the families of veterans. 

This answer will be added to the final draft.  

Describe the Nature and Extent of Homelessness by Racial and Ethnic Group. 

Available data shows that in 2013 a disproportionate percentage of people receiving homeless services 
in Austin/Travis County were African American. While approximately 8% of the total population of Travis 
County is African American, 33% of people receiving services were African American. Conversely, the 
percentages of  White (52%) and Asian (2%) people receiving homeless services were lower than the 
percentages of these populations for the county as a whole (72% and 6% respectively.)  The percentage 
of Hispanic that received services is roughly the same as the total percentage for the county (30% versus 
33%.)     

Describe the Nature and Extent of Unsheltered and Sheltered Homelessness. 

The 2014 Annual Homelessness Count provided a point-in-time snapshot of the Austin area homeless 
population, at a total of 1,987 homeless individuals.  Seventy-seven percent (1,539) of these individuals 
were sheltered at the time of the count and 23% (448) were unsheltered. It should be noted that there 
are individuals without permanent housing who do not fall within traditional definitions of 
homelessness and who may not be included in the point-in-time count (for example, families who have 
lost their homes but are residing with friends or relatives). Therefore the point-in-time number gives us 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     61 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

an indication of the size of the homeless population, but may not demonstrate the extent of a 
community’s homelessness needs. 

A fuller picture of homelessness needs may be gained by looking at the total number of individuals 
receiving some type of service related to homelessness. Homelessness services encompass a spectrum 
that may include rental assistance, case management, shelter stays and permanent supportive housing, 
as well as programs that provide job search training, substance abuse counseling, and mental health 
care services. During 2013, a total of 14,147 people received homelessness services in Travis County. It is 
important to note that this number includes not only individuals who are currently homeless, but also 
those at-risk for homelessness, and formerly homeless individuals who are currently sheltered. Of those 
served, 8,109 individuals were sheltered. 

Additionally, among those receiving services, the following subpopulations were tracked: chronically 
homeless (1,602), chronic substance abusers (1,142), Veterans (1,220), people with severe mental illness 
(2,617), and unaccompanied children (240). The co-occurrence of two or more of these issues for many 
homeless individuals is part of what makes homelessness a very complex issue to address, requiring an 
array of services and interventions. 

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     62 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Non-Homeless Special Needs Assessment  
Introduction:  

This section describes the characteristics of special needs populations in Travis County and their needs. 
In particular, the needs of the following populations are discussed: elderly, persons with one or more 
disability, persons living with HIV/AIDS, and victims of domestic violence. 

During the public outreach for the Consolidated Plan, residents ranked the need for supportive services 
as follows: elderly, disabled, victims of domestic violence, homeless, special housing needs, substance 
abuse, mental health, and HIV/AIDS supportive services. 

Describe the characteristics of special needs populations in your community: 

ELDERLY 

Based on 2012 American Community Survey (ACS) 1-year data, there were 85,458 people 65 years of 
age in all of Travis County in 2012, or 7.8% of the total population. The 65 and over population in Travis 
County grew by 36% between 2000 and 2010. During the same time period, the Austin-Round Rock 
metropolitan area had the fastest growing “pre-senior” population (age 55 to 64) in the nation, with a 
110% change from 2000 to 2010, and was ranked second in senior population (age 65 and over) growth, 
with a 53% change. Given this substantial growth, and as the population ages, it is likely that individuals 
65 and over will comprise a larger percentage of the total population in the future. 

DISABLED 

As the population in Travis County continues to grow, so will the number of people living with a 
disability who may need services and supports. Per 2012 ACS 1-yr data, in 2012, 97,251 people in Travis 
County or approximately 9% of the Travis County population had one or more disabilities. This figure 
jumps to about one in five (22%) for individuals age 65 to 74 and more than half (51%) of individuals age 
75 and over, per 2008-2012 ACS 5-yr data. 

PERSONS LIVING WITH HIV/AIDS  

The Austin Transitional Grant Area (TGA) covers 4,281 square miles in Central Texas and comprises 
Bastrop, Caldwell, Hays, Travis and Williamson counties. In 2011, the Austin TGA population was 1.8 
million, with the majority (57.3%) of residents living within Travis County boundaries. 

According to the “Austin Area Comprehensive HIV Planning Council 2012, Comprehensive PLAN: 3-Year 
HIV/AIDS Services Plan (2012-14),” at the end of 2010, there were 1,791 individuals living with HIV and 
2,561 living with AIDS in the Austin TGA. Relative to growth in the general population, the number of 
Persons Living With HIV/AIDS (PLWHA) in the Austin TGA continues to increase each year. The Texas 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     63 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Department of State Health Services (DSHS) estimates the number of PLWHA (living in the Austin TGA) 
with unmet need at 1,095 persons or 25.2% of the entire PLWHA population. 

Half of PLWHA are White non-Hispanic (49.1%), and 84.4% are males, but African Americans bare the 
highest burden of disease. Of particular note, the HIV infection among African American males is 2.5 
times higher than White males. Likewise, the rate among African American females is eleven times 
higher than among white females. 

VICTIMS OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE 

Children who are abused or neglected, including those who witness domestic violence, often exhibit 
emotional, cognitive, and behavioral problems, such as depression, low self-esteem, poor school 
performance, and lack of conflict resolution skills. These children are also more likely to have a higher 
tolerance for and use of violence in relationships and enter into violent relationships as teens and adults 
or abuse their own children.  

Children under age 18 comprise about 24% (260,108) of Travis County’s total population. This segment 
of the population has grown by 3% from 2008 to 2012. In 2012, there were 13,211 alleged victims of 
child abuse/neglect in Travis County, with 3,045 confirmed victims and 478 children removed from their 
homes. In the same year there were 8,893 incidents of family violence in Travis County, an increase from 
7,777 incidents of family violence in 2011. 

Per ECHO, the 2014 Point-In-Time Homeless Count found there were 1,987 persons in Travis County - 
1,539 were sheltered and 448 were unsheltered. Of these, 416 are homeless victims of domestic 
violence, 305 sheltered and 111 unsheltered. According to the nonprofit Greendoors, 18% of homeless 
individuals in Travis County have experienced domestic violence.   

What are the housing and supportive service needs of these populations and how are these 
needs determined?    

ELDERLY & DISABLED PERSONS 

Travis County funds services for the elderly such as in-home care services, bill payer services, meals, and 
case management. Services for persons with physical disabilities center on employment and job-
readiness, case management, early childhood intervention, basic needs assistance, and 
social/recreational opportunities. 

Based on 2008-2012 ACS 5-year data, the majority, 77%, of elderly households in Travis County reside in 
owner-occupied housing. More than half (54.1%) of all Elderly Renter households pay more than 30% of 
income towards housing compared to 49.5% of all Renter households. Whereas, only 27.1% of Elderly 
Owner-Occupied households pay more than 30% of income toward housing, which is slightly lower than 
the percentage for all Travis County households (28.6%). 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     64 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

According to CHAS data, a higher percentage of households with one or more members with a disability 
experience a housing problem, than all Travis County Households. This is true for both renter and 
owner-occupied households. Due to changes in data reporting, the most recent available CHAS data is 
from 2005-2007.  However more current data shows that disabled households have a lower median 
income than all Travis County households and that housing costs throughout the county have increased. 
It is therefore likely that disabled households continue to experience housing problems at a higher rate.  

PERSONS LIVING WITH HIV/AIDS 

Travis County funded services for persons living with HIV/AIDS center around advocacy, crisis 
management, emergency shelter, transitional housing, counseling, case management, primary medical 
care retention, client advocacy, medication adherence assistance, food bank assistance, nutritional 
counseling, home health, prevention, and support groups. 

The Austin Area Comprehensive HIV/AIDS Planning Council (HIV PC) is responsible for planning services 
that support the use of HIV medical care among people living with HIV/AIDS (PLWHA) in the Austin 
Transitional Grant Area (TGA). Significant service gaps reported in the Austin Area Comprehensive HIV 
Planning Council’s 2012 Comprehensive Plan: 3-Year HIV/AIDS Services Plan include non-medical case 
management, AIDS drug assistance, transportation, and oral health services. The Texas Department of 
State Health Services (DSHS) estimates the number of PLWHA (living in the Austin TGA) with unmet need 
at 1,095 persons or 25.2% of the entire PLWHA population. 

According to the 2010 Austin Transitional Grant Area Comprehensive Needs Assessment (by  Dr. Jemel P. 
Aguilar, University of Texas at Austin), the top five needs of PLWHA were ranked as follows: 1) 
emergency financial assistance, 2) transportation, 3) housing services, 4) legal assistance, and 5) food 
bank and home-delivered meals. 

Currently, two agencies provide housing services under the City of Austin’s HOPWA Program; however, 
Project Transitions (PT) is the only organization in the Austin area that provides HIV/AIDS specific 
housing. PT provides assistance to clients at three sites in the unincorporated areas, but there is no 
dedicated HIV/AIDS housing in the unincorporated areas. 

VICTIMS OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE 

Travis County funds services for victims of domestic violence such as advocacy, crisis management, 
emergency shelter, transitional housing, counseling, life-skills training, and childcare. Safe Place is the 
principal service provider for victims of domestic violence in Travis County. Safe Place maintains an 
emergency shelter with assistance from the Salvation Army, along with some transitional housing, all in 
incorporated areas of Travis County. 

Discuss the size and characteristics of the population with HIV/AIDS and their families within 
the Eligible Metropolitan Statistical Area:  

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     65 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Not applicable since Travis County is not a HOPWA Grantee. However, see the discussion on the services 
and needs of persons living with HIV or AIDs under the previous question titled “Describe the 
characteristics of special needs populations in your community.” 

Discussion: 

An analysis of Travis County HHS/VS social service contracts reveals that, overall, 64% of services 
specifically directed to the elderly, disabled, victims of domestic violence, and/or persons with HIV/AIDS 
were provided to residents living in the incorporated areas of the county, 24% to those living in areas 
that are a mix of incorporated and unincorporated, and only 7% to residents living in primarily in the 
unincorporated areas of the county. As the population of Travis County continues to grow, it is likely 
that people will increasingly move outside the urban core.  CDBG staff are working with service 
providers to strategically expand services into unincorporated areas of the county.   

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     66 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Non-Housing Community Development Needs 
Describe the jurisdiction’s need for Public Facilities: 

During the public outreach for the Consolidated Plan, Travis County residents ranked parks, health 
clinics, recreational, neighborhood and/or community centers, and child care centers and most 
important. Whereas some of these types of public facilities, in particular, parks and community centers, 
are available in the unincorporated areas, residents that live further out and/or who have limited or no 
access to public or other types of transportation have difficulty accessing these. 

PARKS 

According to Travis County Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR) Department’s Travis County 
Parks and Natural Areas Master Plan, approximately 12% of land in Travis County consists of publicly 
owned parks and natural areas. This includes land and parks owned by municipalities, the Lower 
Colorado River Authority (LCRA), the State of Texas, and Travis County. The Travis County park system is 
managed by Travis County’s Department of Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR), and includes 
approximately 11,000 acres of land.    

A higher percentage of park land is located on the western side of the county. Much of this land consists 
of the Balcones Canyonlands Preserve (BCP), an area that preserves the habitat of a number of 
endangered species. At this time, the Preserve consists of approximately 28,000 acres. When preserve 
land (which is not available for recreation purposes) is excluded, the discrepancy between the eastern 
and western side of the county is less dramatic.   

As development continues to push into eastern Travis County, agricultural and rural land is increasingly 
converted to developed land. Additionally, as discussed elsewhere in this report, the demographics of 
the eastern part of the county include higher concentrations of low income households who may rely on 
public facilities for recreational activities. Finally, as the population of the county grows it is likely that 
existing facilities will have to support increased usage. Taken together, these factors may indicate the 
need for expanded recreation areas or activities in eastern Travis County.  

COMMUNITY CENTERS 

In addition to park facilities, residents of the unincorporated areas have access to seven community 
centers located throughout the county that are managed by Travis County Health and Human Services & 
Veterans Service (HHS&VS). The community centers house a variety of programs including senior 
luncheon program, utility and rent/mortgage assistance, food assistance and medical care. The centers 
also offer the following types of social services: case management services, including referrals for 
employment, housing, medical, and mental health needs; goal planning and assessment; brief 
counseling sessions, including crisis intervention, individual/family counseling, and youth services; and 
community outreach services. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     67 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

These centers are important to the unincorporated community as they provide centralized locations—
five outside of the urban core—for residents to access social services and community meeting rooms. 
However, as the population continues to be pushed further out in the unincorporated area, even these 
public facilities may not be accessible to residents without, or with limited, access to personal or public 
transportation.  

How were these needs determined? 

Each year, the CDBG program engages the public to solicit needs and feedback on the CDBG proposed 
projects and performance. As a result of that work, the Program has a good data set of the needs and 
interests of those living in and serving the unincorporated areas. Since 2006, a consistent message of 
the need for increased access to services, quality infrastructure facilities, and safe and decent housing 
has been voiced.  

The need for recreational and other public facilities in eastern Travis County is supported by comments 
received during the CDBG Public Engagement process. Through public meetings and surveys, residents, 
primarily from east/southeast and west/southwest Travis County, have requested public facilities such 
as neighborhood parks, recreational centers, health facilities, and childcare centers. 

Overall, needs are determined through analyzing census data and social service contract data, and 
through information obtained through our public engagement (e.g., public hearings and surveys), 
collaboration forums with service providers, and individual consultations within other Travis County 
departments, and other agencies and organizations. For more information, please refer to the sections 
on Public Engagement and Consultation. 

Describe the jurisdiction’s need for Public Improvements: 

Many areas of unincorporated Travis County are in need of infrastructure improvements. In the most 
recent public engagement effort, residents ranked infrastructure as the top priority, with water and 
sewer, streets, and drainage improvements as the top three priorities. 

WATER & WASTEWATER 

Water demand in Travis County is expected to increase over the next fifty years, doubling by 2060. A 
prolonged drought has put a strain on existing water supplies, particularly in the most economically 
depressed areas of eastern Travis County. 

While residents of towns and cities have access to the infrastructure of the municipalities in which they 
reside, residents of the unincorporated areas instead rely on wells or they pay to connect to the nearest 
municipal water line, which can be a significant financial burden for low and moderate income residents. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     68 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Since the inception of the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program, there has been strong 
interest in water and wastewater projects from residents in the unincorporated areas. To date, the 
Travis County CDBG office has received public requests for $16 million in water infrastructure projects 
and $12 million in wastewater infrastructure projects. In particular, residents in economically 
disenfranchised areas communicated that they lacked access to running water, had wells running dry, 
and were without infrastructure and/or funding to access the area water utility. Many of these residents 
rely on onsite septic systems that need costly repairs to be brought to current standards. 

Travis County does not have a local mechanism for funding water or wastewater infrastructure projects. 
The cost of must be borne by either the immediate beneficiaries of the improvements or the customers 
of the system as a whole. CDBG may therefore play a vital role for low to moderate income residents. 

ROADWAYS 

Local roadways in Travis County that are outside of any municipal jurisdiction fall under the jurisdiction 
of the county’s Department of Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR). Unmaintained roads may 
make it difficult for property owners, school buses, and emergency service providers to access 
properties. Bringing these roads to standard to qualify for the county’s maintenance program may 
require environmental and geotechnical review; roadway drainage, surface, and signage improvements; 
surveying; and more. This is a competitive program and projects that include funds from the 
Neighborhood Homeowner’s Association receive preference. Typically low income neighborhoods will 
not be able to contribute these resources; therefore, these neighborhoods may rely on the CDBG funds 
for assistance. The total estimated cost for all CDBG requests for roadway projects is approximately $18 
million. 

FLOOD DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS 

The Travis County, Texas: 2011 Hazard Mitigation Plan, which covers the unincorporated areas of the 
county, and three of the municipalities located in the county, assessed eight hazards and concluded that 
the county is at greatest risk for floods. Between 1950 and 2009 Travis County experienced 113 floods. 
As of spring of 2010, there were 96 properties in unincorporated Travis County that were categorized as 
“Repetitive loss” with respect to flood. 

On October 31, 2013, a major flood event caused damage to homes, streets, water quality structures, 
and parks within Travis County. Subsequently, the County Judge provided a flood disaster declaration, 
which was followed by a State Disaster Proclamation by the Governor, and a Presidential Major Disaster 
Declaration in December 2013. Several parks and drainage facilities were affected by the flood. All but 
two of the facilities are used by and/or benefit primarily low-to-moderate income households. Estimates 
for restoring these damaged areas to their pre-flood state are in excess of $1.5 million. 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     69 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

How were these needs determined? 

Each year, the CDBG program engages the public to solicit needs and feedback on the CDBG proposed 
projects and performance. As a result of that work, the Program has a good data set of the needs and 
interests of those living in and serving the unincorporated areas. Since 2006, a consistent message of 
the need for increased access to services, quality infrastructure facilities, and safe and decent housing 
has been voiced.  

The need for public improvements in Travis County is supported by comments received during the CDBG 
Public Engagement process. Public Engagement efforts with residents of Travis County revealed a high 
need for community infrastructure implementation or improvements. Through recent public meetings 
and surveys, residents, primarily from east/southeast and west/southwest Travis County, have 
expressed the need for road improvements and repairs, and utility infrastructure, such as water and 
wastewater systems. 

Overall, needs are determined through analyzing census data and social service contract data, and 
through information obtained through our public engagement (e.g., public hearings and surveys), 
collaboration forums with service providers, and individual consultations within other Travis County 
departments, and other agencies and organizations. For more information, please refer to the sections 
on Public Engagement and Consultation. 

Describe the jurisdiction’s need for Public Services: 

Public services, traditionally called social or community services, meet an array of community needs, 
from basic needs and children and youth programs through workforce development and public health. 
Public services, referred to as social services in the remainder of this section, are funded through public 
and private dollars and are provided by nonprofits, faith-based organizations and local government. 

The Travis County Commissioners Court, through Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans 
Service Department (TCHHS/VS), annually invests over $15 million in community-based contracted social 
service programs. Annually, investments in direct service and contracted services total approximately 
$17 million and $15 million respectively, resulting in an investment over the next five years of 
approximately $32 million in direct and contracted services. 

On an annual basis, TCHHS/VS Department’s Research and Planning Division (R&P) produces a report, 
Community Impact Report 2013 (CIR 2013), on a subset ($8.8 million in 2013) of the contracted 
investments. The information in this section is based on this report, with additional analysis by CDBG 
staff that focuses on conditions in the unincorporated areas, and information from other local, state, 
federal, institutional, academic, and nonprofit agencies. 

Economics, demographics, as well as social structures and systems, all influence the level of need within 
a community and the resources available to successfully address community needs. Most social service 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     70 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

programs and needs described below pertain to Travis County residents who live in or near poverty. 
Some programs assist vulnerable populations, such as those experiencing abuse and neglect, regardless 
of their income. Other current conditions that elevate the need for social services for Travis County 
residents include the following: 

• The Travis County population continues to grow rapidly. According to Census estimates, the 
county’s growth rate of 33% from 2000 to 2012 is faster than the state overall (24%).The county 
population in the unincorporated areas has grown even more rapidly, up 73% from 2000 to 
2012. 

• In 2012, 7.8% of Travis County residents were aged 65 and older. By 2020, that figure is 
expected to rise to 10.4%. 

• Based on 2012 census data, about 18% of Travis County residents live in poverty, while more 
than one-third live in households with incomes at or below 200% of the poverty level. The 
poverty rate among children under 18 (26%) is higher than the overall poverty rate for Travis 
County. 

• Of all the persons served in 2013 for whom demographics data was obtained (73-99% of 
persons), close to half (42%) had incomes below 50% of the Federal Poverty Income Guidelines 
(FPIG) and 26% had incomes between 50 and 100% of FPIG. 

An analysis of our social service contracts reveals that, overall, 56% of services specifically directed to 
social services addressing basic needs, behavioral health, child and youth development, education, 
public health, and workforce development were provided to residents living in the incorporated areas of 
the county, 30% to those living in areas that are a mix of incorporated and unincorporated, and only 7% 
to residents living primarily in the unincorporated areas of the county. 

For additional information please refer to "Appendix D: Additional Text for Public Services."  

How were these needs determined? 

Each year, the CDBG program engages the public to solicit needs and feedback on the CDBG proposed 
projects and performance. As a result of that work, the Program has a good data set of the needs and 
interests of those living in and serving the unincorporated areas. Since 2006, a consistent message of 
the need for increased access to services, quality infrastructure facilities, and safe and decent housing 
has been voiced.  

During the current Consolidated Planning process, the message continues to resonate with social service 
providers and residents alike. In a survey of community need, both residents and providers ranked 
public services (identified as community services in the survey) as the 2nd highest priority need. 
However, residents ranked youth programs and services for seniors and disabled as their top priorities, 
while providers identified case management and outreach for both adults and youth along with job 
training as top priorities within the community (public) services category. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     71 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Based on public input received throughout the life of the Travis County CDBG Program, lack of 
transportation is an ongoing concern for low income residents of the unincorporated areas. Lack of 
transportation can make it difficult for residents to access both public services and basic needs such as 
food stores, which tend to be located in more densely populated urban areas. In order to help meet this 
need the CDBG Program funds a home-based social worker program, to help link residents to existing 
services.  

Overall, needs are determined through analyzing census data and social service contract data, and 
through information obtained through our public engagement (e.g., public hearings and surveys), 
collaboration forums with service providers, and individual consultations within other Travis County 
departments, and other agencies and organizations. For more information, please refer to the sections 
on Public Engagement and Consultation. 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     72 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Housing Market Analysis 

Overview 
Housing Market Analysis Overview: 

Both the economy and housing market of the Austin Metropolitan region have outperformed the nation 
over the course of the recent recession and the ongoing economic recovery. The strength of the regional 
economy supports ongoing in-migration which has resulted in rapid population growth in Travis County. 
According to the Real Estate Center at Texas A&M University, in February 2014 the Austin area had the 
nation's highest growth rate among metro areas with more than 1 million people at 2.6 percent, with an 
estimated 4,000 people a month moving to Austin.  This population growth has resulted in increased 
demand in the housing market, driving up both local housing prices and rents. In February 2014, both 
the level of sales in the Austin MSA and home prices reached historic highs with the average home price 
reaching $293,746; and the situation is no better for renter households with rents in Austin rising by 8% 
in 2013(TAMU Real Estate Center.)  A recent report by the Austin Board of Realtors showed that in 
February 2014, there were only two months of housing inventory in the market. All data indicates that 
the regional housing market is likely to remain extremely competitive over the next year. 

One likely result of the increasing housing costs is that lower income population will move farther 
outside the urban core and into the unincorporated areas and smaller towns in Travis County. Housing 
development in the unincorporated areas is strongly influenced by development in the incorporated 
areas, and reflects many of the trends observable in the county as a whole.  However, there are unique 
conditions in the unincorporated areas that allow for different patterns to emerge. Most of the rural 
land and land dedicated to agriculture in Travis County can be found in the unincorporated areas. The 
value of rural land is significantly affected by proximity to urban areas, with values generally declining as 
the distance from Austin increases.  Land values to the west of Austin tend to be stronger than land 
values to the east.  Over the last ten years rural land values generally increased.  The vast majority of 
housing in the unincorporated area consists of single family owner-occupied housing, as compared to 
the urban areas of the county which are more evenly distributed between single and multi-family units. 

 

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     73 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Number of Housing Units  
Introduction 

Seventy two percent of the housing supply of unincorporated Travis County consists of one-unit 
structures, while 15% of the housing supply consists of 2 or more units. The unincorporated areas have a 
higher proportion of one-unit structures than the county as a whole, which is more evenly split between 
one-unit structures (56%), and multi-unit structures (40%).   This difference can be accounted for by the 
lack of densely populated urban areas in the unincorporated areas, as well as a large student population 
in the City of Austin which may skew housing towards multi-unit structures. Additionally, the 
unincorporated areas have a much higher proportion of mobile homes and other types of housing (RVs, 
boats, etc.) with 12% of the housing supply, versus 3% for the county as a whole. 

This difference in the distribution of unit types is confirmed by an analysis of housing permits over the 
last 10 years. As indicated by the number of housing permits issued, the vast majority of housing 
development in the unincorporated areas has been single unit structures.  No permits for multi-unit 
structures were issued for the unincorporated areas from 2009-2013.  

Owner occupied housing structures in the unincorporated areas consist primarily of units with 3 or more 
bedrooms.  This is a much higher percentage than rental units which are more evenly divided between 
1-,2- and 3-bedroom units.  

All residential properties by number of units 

Property Type Number Percentage 
1-unit detached structure 45,409 71% 
1-unit, attached structure 831 1% 
2-4 units 1,792 3% 
5-19 units 4,344 7% 
20 or more units 3,692 6% 
Mobile Home, boat, RV, van, etc 7,920 12% 
Total 63,988 100% 

Table 6 – Residential Properties by Unit Number 
Data Source: 2006-2010 ACS 

 

 Texas  Travis 
County 

 Unincorporated 
Travis County 

 

 Number percentage Number Percentage Number Percentage 
1 Unit 6,621,453 68% 240,831 56% 46,240 72% 
2 or 
more 
units 

2,333,546 24% 172,677 40% 9,828 15% 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     74 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Mobile 
Home, 
RV, Boat, 
etc. 

763,471 8% 14,083 3% 7,920 12% 

 Source: U.S. 
Census, 2006-
2010 American 
Community 
Survey 

     

Table 32 - Housing Unit by Type 

Unit Size by Tenure 

 Owners Renters 
Number % Number % 

No bedroom 116 0% 118 1% 
1 bedroom 512 1% 4,444 30% 
2 bedrooms 3,465 8% 4,046 28% 
3 or more bedrooms 39,881 91% 6,103 41% 
Total 43,974 100% 14,711 100% 

Table 33 – Unit Size by Tenure 
Data Source: 2006-2010 ACS 

 

Program 
Type 

Year Development Name Population 
Served 

Total 
Units 

LIHTC 
Units 

Disabled 
Units 

9% HTC 1998 The Lodge at 
Merrilltown 

Elderly 204 204 33 

4% 2000 Southwest Trails General 160 160 12 
4% 2002 Eagle's Landing 

Apartments 
General 240 240 0 

4% 2004 Rosemont at Old 
Manor 

General 250 250 18 

9% 2013 Windy Ridge 
Apartments 

General 120 120 0 

Source: TDHCA HTC Property Inventory, Current as of April 10, 2014 
Table 34 - Tax Credit Properties in Unincorporated Travis County 

 

Describe the number and targeting (income level/type of family served) of units assisted with 
federal, state, and local programs. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     75 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

The majority of housing units in Travis County that target low and moderate income households are 
located within the City of Austin, which is not part of the Travis County CDBG service area. The CDBG 
program has worked to identify projects in the unincorporated areas to assist in increasing the number 
of affordable housing units.  In partnership with Austin Habitat for Humanity, the County provided CDBG 
funds for the purchase of 31 single-family home lots in eastern Travis County. Austin Habitat for 
Humanity will build affordable single-family housing, of which 17 units will be dedicated to low-income 
families (25-50% Median Family Income) and 14 units will be dedicated to moderate-income families (up 
to 80% Median Family Income). Construction of the homes will be complete by July 2016.  Financing for 
the lots is available to homeowners as a 10-year forgivable loan.  

There are five tax credit multifamily projects located in unincorporated Travis County.  Please refer to 
the table above for number of units and population served.   

For a full inventory of affordable housing in Travis County please refer to the "Appendix C: Housing 
Inventory."   

Provide an assessment of units expected to be lost from the affordable housing inventory for 
any reason, such as expiration of Section 8 contracts. 

No units are expected to be lost from the affordable housing inventory over the Consolidated Planning 
period.  

Does the availability of housing units meet the needs of the population? 

The historically low housing market inventory and rapidly increasing cost of housing indicates that the 
housing market in Travis County is currently out of balance and becoming increasing unaffordable.  For 
moderate and especially low-income households this results in a scarcity of affordable housing units for 
both renters and homebuyers. Additionally, there are a limited number of rental units at any price point 
in the unincorporated area.   

Describe the need for specific types of housing: 

According to analysis done by Mullin & Lonergan, in 2010 a household earning median income in Travis 
County could afford to purchase less than half of homes on the market. Housing prices have only 
increased since that time, while median income has increased only slightly indicating the need for more 
homes affordable to moderate and low income households.   

A recent report by the Urban Institute estimates that for every 100 extremely low income residents of 
Travis County (defined as a household of four that earns less than $22,750) there are only 13 units of 
affordable rental housing.  This translates into a gap of 43,508 units of affordable rental housing. The 
population of the unincorporated areas of Travis County represents approximately 18% of the total 
population. Eighteen percent of the total gap in rental housing calculated by the Urban Institute 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     76 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

translates into a gap of at least 7,831 affordable rental units in the unincorporated areas.  Given that the 
majority of units in the unincorporated areas are owner occupied, and there are relatively few rental 
units at any price level, the gap may be even greater. 

Discussion 

Demand for housing in Travis County currently outpaces supply, and this is driving up housing costs in 
both the owner occupied and rental markets.  Builders are responding to the demand with an increase 
in new housing starts. According to a report released by the housing consulting firm Metrostudy, 9,400 
new homes were built in the MSA in 2013, the highest level in six years and an additional 10,000 - 
10,500 houses are forecast to be built in 2014.  During the first quarter of 2014, new housing starts were 
up 16% from the same period in 2013. Analysis of building permits issued in Travis County, show that 
this trend applies to the unincorporated areas as well.  During the first quarter of 2013, 187 building 
permits were issued in the unincorporated, while during the first quarter of 2014, 254 permits were 
issued.  Additionally, 24 of these permits were issued for multi-family structures, while no permits for 
multi-family structures were issued from 2009-2013. However, population growth is also forecast to 
continue throughout the region, so it is unclear to what degree the increase in the housing supply will 
alleviate the current pressure on housing costs.   

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     77 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Housing Market Analysis: Cost of Housing  
Introduction 

Over the last decade, Austin’s owner housing market has become increasingly expensive, as the price 
distribution of available housing stock has skewed towards higher-priced housing.  For example, in 2003, 
41% of the homes sold in Austin were priced below $140,000; in 2013 year-to-date, only 17% of the 
homes sold were in this price range. Conversely, in 2003, 13% of the homes sold in Austin were priced at 
$300,000 or more; in 2013, 31% of all homes sold were in this range. 

Austin’s housing market also remains expensive as compared to other markets in the state of Texas.  In 
2013 (year-to-date), the Austin MLS had the fourth-highest median home price ($222,400) and the 
highest average home price ($285,600) of the 48 Texas MLS areas tracked by the Real Estate Center at 
Texas A&M University.  

Cost of Housing 

 

Table 35 - Cost of Housing, Travis County 

 
 

Rent Paid Number Percentage 
Less than $500 1,531 10.4% 
$500-999 9,418 64.0% 
$1,000-1,499 2,618 17.8% 
$1,500-1,999 702 4.8% 
$2,000 or more 442 3.0% 
Total 14,711 100.0% 

Table 36 - Rent Paid 
Data Source: 2006-2010 ACS 

 

For the county as a whole, the median value of houses has increased by 48.7% since 2000, and the 
median value of rent has increased by 22.6%.  

 

 2000 2010 Percent 
Change 

Median Home Value $134,700 $200,300 48.7% 
Median Contract Rent $727 $891 22.6% 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2000 Census and 2006-2010 
American Community Survey 

   

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     78 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Housing Affordability 

% Units affordable to Households 
earning  

Renter Owner 

30% HAMFI 178 No Data 
50% HAMFI 2,082 2,095 
80% HAMFI 8,585 7,771 
100% HAMFI No Data 11,413 
Total 10,845 21,279 

Table 37 – Housing Affordability 
Data Source: 2006-2010 CHAS 

 
 
Monthly Rent  

Monthly Rent ($) Efficiency (no 
bedroom) 

1 Bedroom 2 Bedroom 3 Bedroom 4 Bedroom 

Fair Market Rent 696 853 1,074 1,454 1,762 
High HOME Rent 0 0 0 0 0 
Low HOME Rent 0 0 0 0 0 

Table 38 – Monthly Rent 
 
 
Is there sufficient housing for households at all income levels? 

Demand for housing in the Austin area is currently outpacing the housing supply, and this is driving up 
housing costs and resulting in a shortage of affordable housing. According to analysis done by Mullin & 
Lonergan, between 1990 and 2010, median housing value (adjusted for inflation to 2010 dollars using 
BLS indices) increased 55.2% across Travis County, while real median income rose only 17.7% in real 
dollars. In 2010, a household earning median income could afford less than half of the homes on the 
market, and housing prices have only increased since that time.   

Median gross rent increased a comparable 52.8% over the same timeframe. Between 2000-2010 the 
number of affordable rental units declined and the number of units renting for less than $500 fell by 
more than half (55.6%). During the same time, the number of units renting for more than $1,000 per 
month increased from 2,403 to 6,666, or 177%. While these conditions affect households at all income 
levels, escalating housing costs and low inventory impacts moderate and especially low-income 
households more severely. 

  

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     79 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

How is affordability of housing likely to change considering changes to home values and/or 
rents? 

Austin Business Journal summary reporting of real estate research firm data indicates an estimated 94-
95% apartment occupancy rate in the Austin metro area during 2013 and 2014. During the first quarter 
of 2014, (apartment) occupancy rates came in at 94 percent, a drop of 0.85 percent from the previous 
quarter. That puts the annual decrease at 1.14 percent, which is the largest drop since 2009. The 
average of 4.7 percent apartment vacancy rates may be due in part to the delivery of new inventory in 
the far south Austin submarket, as well as Cedar Park, San Marcos and the downtown 
submarkets. While vacancy rates are increasing, this has not yet resulted in lower rents. During the first 
quarter of 2014, rental rates increased 1.44 percent to an average of $1.20 per square foot across all 
classes of properties. 

It is likely that demand for housing in Travis County will continue to be extremely competitive over the 
Consolidated Planning period and the affordability gap for both renters and owner households will only 
become more severe. As housing prices continue to rise, particularly in the centrally located 
neighborhoods in Austin, it is likely that low- and moderate-income residents will increasingly look for 
housing outside of the City.  

How do HOME rents / Fair Market Rent compare to Area Median Rent? How might this 
impact your strategy to produce or preserve affordable housing? 

In the Austin area rental market, fair market rents (the federal standard for what is considered 
affordable), have shown a general upward trend since 2009, with the exception of efficiency apartments 
which saw a slight decline in FY 2014 from prior years. For FY 2014, Austin’s fair market rents for one-
bedroom, two-bedroom, three-bedroom and four-bedroom units are the highest of all Texas 
metropolitan areas, and fair market rents for efficiency apartments are the second highest. 

American Community Survey data confirm that actual rent costs in Travis County are rising. Between 
2008 and 2012, median contract rent rose 13%, from $744 to $839. The Austin area also has high 
occupancy rates, at 94% for the first quarter of 2014. These conditions create a tight rental market, 
especially for those seeking more affordable housing. 

Given the need for more affordable rental housing, the Travis County CDBG program would consider 
funding a multi-family rental project during the Consolidated Planning period if a feasible project is 
proposed.  

 

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     80 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Housing Market Analysis: Condition of Housing  
Introduction 

Information gathered over several years of public outreach and through the implementation of the 
home repair and social service programs have identified a high level of need for home repair in the 
unincorporated areas.  As part of the needs assessment for the Consolidated Plan, residents ranked 
"Home Repair" as the most urgent need among housing activities.  While housing in the unincorporated 
areas is generally newer than housing in the county as a whole, there are also fewer standards that 
builders in the unincorporated areas have to meet and this may result in housing of poor quality.   

Definitions 

The quality of some of the housing in the unincorporated housing is very poor.  Housing in substandard 
condition is a house that cannot have the health and safety repairs addressed through the resources 
available.  Any other home is considered substandard condition, but suitable for rehabilitation.  

Condition of Units 

Condition of Units Owner-Occupied Renter-Occupied 
Number % Number % 

With one selected Condition 12,894 29% 6,726 46% 
With two selected Conditions 281 1% 271 2% 
With three selected Conditions 56 0% 28 0% 
With four selected Conditions 0 0% 0 0% 
No selected Conditions 30,743 70% 7,686 52% 
Total 43,974 100% 14,711 100% 

Table 39 - Condition of Units 
Data Source: 2006-2010 ACS 

 
 
Year Unit Built 

Year Unit Built Owner-Occupied Renter-Occupied 
Number % Number % 

2000 or later 16,931 39% 5,409 37% 
1980-1999 19,930 45% 6,662 45% 
1950-1979 6,458 15% 2,266 15% 
Before 1950 655 1% 374 3% 
Total 43,974 100% 14,711 100% 

Table 40 – Year Unit Built 
Data Source: 2006-2010 CHAS 

 
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     81 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Risk of Lead-Based Paint Hazard 
Risk of Lead-Based Paint Hazard Owner-Occupied Renter-Occupied 

Number % Number % 
Total Number of Units Built Before 1980 7,113 16% 2,640 18% 
Housing Units build before 1980 with children present 4,195 10% 23,781 162% 

Table 7 – Risk of Lead-Based Paint 
Data Source: 2006-2010 ACS (Total Units) 2006-2010 CHAS (Units with Children present) 

 
 
Vacant Units 

 Suitable for 
Rehabilitation 

Not Suitable for 
Rehabilitation 

Total 

Vacant Units 0 0 0 
Abandoned Vacant Units 0 0 0 
REO Properties 0 0 0 
Abandoned REO Properties 0 0 0 

Table 8 - Vacant Units 
Data Source: 2005-2009 CHAS 

 
 
Need for Owner and Rental Rehabilitation 

The need for owner rehabilitation is high due to the poor condition of housing in the service 
area.  Mobile homes makes up a large majority of the housing stock as well as housing built in the early 
to mid 1990s.  Many of the low to moderate income homeowners are cost burdened making home 
maintenance difficult to finance.  Unaddressed, routine maintenance becomes major 
repairs.  While multi-family rental properties do not make up a vast majority of the rental housing stock 
in the service area, rental of single family homes and manufactured housing does.  Renters experience 
similar issues as owners.  

Estimated Number of Housing Units Occupied by Low or Moderate Income Families with LBP 
Hazards 

Lead was banned from residential paint in 1978, prior to which it was a major ingredient in most interior 
and exterior oil-based house paint.  Housing built before 1978, therefore, may present a lead hazard if 
any coat of paint contains lead.  The older the home, the more likely it is to contain lead based 
paint.  Eighty-three percent of private housing and 86% of public housing built prior to 1980 contain 
some lead-based paint.  

House paints peel, chip, chalk and crack as they deteriorate.  Exterior paints can contaminate soil, and 
interior paints can contaminate dust when dry scraped or sanded or when paint surfaces rub 
together.  Young children most frequently become exposed by inadvertently ingesting dust or soil 
containing lead through the course of normal play and hand-to-mouth activities, or during the 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     82 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

remodeling or the repair of older homes.  Small children may also be exposed to lead by touching or 
chewing on high-use surfaces such as windows, doors, stairs, porches and fences.  Older plumbing 
fixtures, painted toys and furniture, and lead-glazed ceramic ware or pottery are less common sources 
of lead hazards found in homes. 

 Lead is poisonous and exposure is hazardous to anyone, but children ages six and younger are at the 
highest risk, because their bodies are growing rapidly, and because they tend to put things in their 
mouths.  For these children, low-level exposure to lead can cause nervous and kidney system damage, 
reduction in IQ, reading and learning disabilities, increased hyperactivity and behavioral problems, poor 
muscle coordination, decreased muscle and bone growth, and hearing damage.  High-level exposure for 
children can cause seizures, unconsciousness, and death.  For adults exposed to lead, effects can include 
increased chance of illness during pregnancy, harm to a fetus, fertility problems in men and women, 
high blood pressure, digestive problems, nerve disorders, memory and concentration problems, and 
muscle and joint pain. 

Lead poisoning affects children of every demographic group. Low-income families, however, are 
disproportionately affected. Housing that has not been adequately maintained is potentially the most 
hazardous to young children due to the likelihood of chipping, peeling, or flaking paint. Much of the 
older housing stock available to low-income families is likely to be in deteriorated condition. 

According to ACS data,  16% of the Owner Occupied housing units and 18% of Renter households were 
built prior to 1980, and therefore at risk of containing lead based paint. Most of these older housing 
units in Travis County are located within city or town limits.    

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     83 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Public and Assisted Housing 
Introduction 

The Housing Authority of Travis County (HATC) manages three public housing sites, a Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program, and three 
Shelter Plus Care Projects. 

There are currently no Public Housing Units in the Travis County CDBG service area. The three public housing sites have a total of 105 housing 
units and are located within the City of Austin. Additionally, HATC manages 33 units of Senior Housing in Manor, and 16 duplex units in Del Valle. 
The Housing Authority's affiliated entity, Strategic Housing Finance Corporation, is the general partner in  three tax credit multifamily properties, 
including 208 units of Senior Housing  in Pflugerville, 70 units of  senior housing in Austin, and a 192-unit family property in Austin. 

The Shelter Plus Care projects provide rental assistance for homeless people with chronic disabilities in the Austin-Travis County area. The 
program utilizes integrated rental housing and flexible and intensive support services to promote community tenure and independence. 

In the unincorporated areas, HATC administers the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program, assisting very low income, disabled and elderly 
families or individuals. 

Totals Number of Units 

Program Type 
 Certificate Mod-Rehab Public 

Housing 
Vouchers 

Total Project -
based 

Tenant -
based 

 

Special Purpose Voucher 
Veterans 

Affairs 
Supportive 

Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Disabled 
* 

# of units vouchers 
available 0 0 105 568 5 563 0 0 507 
# of accessible units                   
*includes Non-Elderly Disabled, Mainstream One-Year, Mainstream Five-year, and Nursing Home Transition 

Table 43– Total Number of Units by Program Type 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     84 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Data Source: PIC (PIH Information Center) 

 

Please note, the data provided in the table above refers to units that are located outside the Travis County CDBG service area. There are 
currently no Public Housing Units in the Travis County CDBG service area.  

Describe the supply of public housing developments:  

Describe the number and physical condition of public housing units in the jurisdiction, including those that are participating in an 
approved Public Housing Agency Plan: 

There are currently no Public Housing Units in the Travis County CDBG service area.  

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     85 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Public Housing Condition 

Public Housing Development Average Inspection Score 
No data provided No data provided 

Table 44 - Public Housing Condition 
 

Describe the restoration and revitalization needs of public housing units in the jurisdiction: 

There are currently no Public Housing Units in the Travis County CDBG service area.  

Describe the public housing agency's strategy for improving the living environment of low- 
and moderate-income families residing in public housing: 

There are currently no Public Housing Units in the Travis County CDBG service area. 

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     86 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Homeless Facilities and Services  
Introduction 

The following table summarizes the units available to various types of homeless households.  All of these facilities are located in incorporated 
areas of Travis County. For a full inventory of units please refer to "Appendix C: Housing Inventory."  

 

Facilities and Housing Targeted to Homeless Households 

 Emergency Shelter Beds Transitional 
Housing Beds 

Permanent Supportive Housing 
Beds 

Year Round Beds 
(Current & New) 

Voucher / 
Seasonal / 

Overflow Beds 

Current & New Current & New Under 
Development 

Households with Adult(s) and 
Child(ren) 280 40 404 453 25 
Households with Only Adults 364 124 58 645 5 
Chronically Homeless Households 0 0 0 369 0 
Veterans 26 0 32 428 58 
Unaccompanied Youth 20 0 16 0 0 

Table 45 - Facilities and Housing Targeted to Homeless Households 
Data Source Comments:  

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     87 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Describe mainstream services, such as health, mental health, and employment services to the 
extent those services are use to complement services targeted to homeless persons 

Services provided include those that help to meet basic needs such as food and housing, as well as the 
provision of other services to meet the critical needs of the homeless and to assist them in becoming 
self-sufficient.  Supportive services include assistance with health and substance abuse issues, 
employment, education, childcare, transportation, case management, and counseling in areas such as 
life skills and mental health. Outreach services including mortgage, rental and utilities assistance, 
counseling and advocacy, and legal assistance are also available. 

Annual ECHO sponsored SOAR training (SSI/SSDI Outreach Assistance & Recovery) trainings ensure 
personnel in every CoC funded program are trained to assist clients in accessing SSI and SSDI.  ECHO CoC 
Work Group sponsors a meeting with TANF representatives and programs that serve homeless or 
formerly homeless families to identify ways to streamline communication and successfully complete the 
application process.  Homeless services providers work closely with ATCIC, the local mental health 
authority to ensure homeless persons get needed mental health services, this includes having ATCIC 
staff located at the primary homeless day resource center, the ARCH.  Goodwill employment specialists 
are located across the city but have co-located staff on site at the ARCH and The Salvation Army in 
addition to partnering with PSH programs.  Homeless Service Providers work closely with 
CommUnityCare Health Centers providing services at 23 locations across the county.    CommUnityCare 
provides outpatient primary healthcare, dental care, limited specialty care, behavioral health services, 
and care for the homeless at the ARCH. These services are provided to Travis County residents whose 
incomes and lack of private health insurance qualify them for enrollment. 

List and describe services and facilities that meet the needs of homeless persons, particularly 
chronically homeless individuals and families, families with children, veterans and their 
families, and unaccompanied youth. If the services and facilities are listed on screen SP-40 
Institutional Delivery Structure or screen MA-35 Special Needs Facilities and Services, 
describe how these facilities and services specifically address the needs of these populations. 

Emergency Shelter can be defined as "any facility with overnight sleeping accommodations, the primary 
purpose of which is to provide temporary shelter for the homeless in general or for specific populations 
of homeless persons. The length of stay can range from one night up to as much as three months." 
According to the 2013 homeless housing inventory, there were 828 emergency shelter beds in 
Austin/Travis County.  Currently there are no emergency shelter housing units in the unincorporated 
areas of the county. 

HUD defines transitional housing as "a project that is designed to provide housing and appropriate 
support services to homeless persons to facilitate movement to independent living within 24 months. In 
2013, there were a total of 478 units of transitional housing in Travis County. 

The Austin Community has a wide variety of Permanent Housing units serving the needs of the homeless 
and chronically homeless communities. In 2013, there were a total of 1,128 units of Permanent 
Supportive Housing constructed or under development in the community. Many of these PSH programs 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     88 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

also include additional services that help to meet basic and critical needs, such as food and housing, as 
well as other services to assist the homeless population in becoming self- sufficient.  Supportive services 
include assistance with health and substance abuse issues, employment, education, childcare, 
transportation, case management, and counseling in areas such as life skills and mental health. 
Outreach services including mortgage, rental and utilities assistance, counseling and advocacy, and legal 
assistance are also available. Many of these services are available to participants on the same site as 
their housing. 

 

 

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     89 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Special Needs Facilities and Services  
Introduction 

This section describes the supportive housing needs for a variety of populations including the elderly, 
disabled persons, persons living with HIV/AIDS and Victims of Domestic Violence.  Additionally, it 
includes information on services available to persons being discharged from health care settings.  For 
more information on units available for elderly and disabled persons, Nursing and Assisted Living 
facilities, and Permanent Supportive Housing please refer to "Appendix C: Housing Inventory."  

 

Including the elderly, frail elderly, persons with disabilities (mental, physical, developmental), 
persons with alcohol or other drug addictions, persons with HIV/AIDS and their families, 
public housing residents and any other categories the jurisdiction may specify, and describe 
their supportive housing needs 

ELDERLY & DISABLED PERSONS 

Travis County funds services for the elderly such as in-home care services, bill payer services, meals, and 
case management. Services for persons with physical disabilities center on employment and job-
readiness, case management, early childhood intervention, basic needs assistance, and 
social/recreational opportunities. 

Based on 2008-2012 ACS 5-year data, the majority, 77%, of elderly households in Travis County reside in 
owner-occupied housing. More than half (54.1%) of all Elderly Renter households pay more than 30% of 
income towards housing compared to 49.5% of all Renter households. Whereas, only 27.1% of Elderly 
Owner-Occupied households pay more than 30% of income toward housing, which is slightly lower than 
the percentage for all Travis County households (28.6%). 

According to CHAS data, a higher percentage of households with one or more members with a disability 
experience a housing problem, than all Travis County Households. This is true for both renter and 
owner-occupied households. Due to changes in data reporting, the most recent available CHAS data is 
from 2005-2007.  However more current data shows that disabled households have a lower median 
income than all Travis County households and that housing costs throughout the county have increased. 
It is therefore likely that disabled households continue to experience housing problems at a higher rate.  

PERSONS LIVING WITH HIV/AIDS 

Travis County funded services for persons living with HIV/AIDS center around advocacy, crisis 
management, emergency shelter, transitional housing, counseling, case management, primary medical 
care retention, client advocacy, medication adherence assistance, food bank assistance, nutritional 
counseling, home health, prevention, and support groups. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     90 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

According to the 2010 Austin Transitional Grant Area Comprehensive Needs Assessment (by  Dr. Jemel P. 
Aguilar, University of Texas at Austin), the top five needs of PLWHA were ranked as follows: 1) 
emergency financial assistance, 2) transportation, 3) housing services, 4) legal assistance, and 5) food 
bank and home-delivered meals. 

Currently, two agencies provide housing services under the City of Austin’s HOPWA Program; however, 
Project Transitions (PT) is the only organization in the Austin area that provides HIV/AIDS specific 
housing. PT provides assistance to clients at three sites in the unincorporated areas, but there is no 
dedicated HIV/AIDS housing in the unincorporated areas. 

VICTIMS OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE 

Per ECHO, the 2014 Point-In-Time Homeless Count found there were 1,987 persons in Travis County - 
1,539 were sheltered and 448 were unsheltered. Of these, 416 are homeless victims of domestic 
violence, 305 sheltered and 111 unsheltered. According to the nonprofit Greendoors, 18% of homeless 
individuals in Travis County have experienced domestic violence.  Travis County funds services for 
victims of domestic violence such as advocacy, crisis management, emergency shelter, transitional 
housing, counseling, life-skills training, and childcare. Safe Place is the principal service provider for 
victims of domestic violence in Travis County. Safe Place maintains an emergency shelter with assistance 
from the Salvation Army, along with some transitional housing, all in incorporated areas of Travis 
County. 

Describe programs for ensuring that persons returning from mental and physical health 
institutions receive appropriate supportive housing 

ECHO members have taken a two pronged approach to ensuring that persons are not routinely 
discharged from health care settings into homelessness. The Central Texas Recuperative Care Program 
identifies clients who are homeless and too sick to be discharged to a shelter or the streets, but not sick 
enough to warrant acute hospital placement. They are placed in a nursing home for the duration of their 
illness. Front Steps provides intensive case management to address income, housing, & self-care needs. 
The EMS ER Community Collaboration Coalition meets monthly. Providers discuss “high alert” patients 
and identify safety net services and plans. Seton hospital identifies individuals who are homeless during 
the intake process and flags them as high alert. Case managers are trained in service and housing 
options. Front Steps collaborates with the high alert program at Seton and contacts them when it is felt 
there have been “unsafe” discharges to the shelter to review where the breakdown occurred. 

The Central Texas Recuperative Care Program is a collaboration between Front Steps, Central Health, 
and The Religious Coalition for the Homeless. The EMS ER Community collaboration includes Seton 
UMCB hospital, the Salvation Army, Austin Travis County Integral Care, Front Steps, Safe Place (domestic 
violence shelter), St. David’s hospital, Community Care (local clinic system), Central Health (the local 
healthcare district), Foundation for the Homeless, Department of Family and Protective Services, and 
the Austin Travis County Emergency Medical Services. Also, ECHO and Catholic Charities are in 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     91 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

discussion to see how their involvement might bring resources to the system. The State of Texas & 
Austin Travis County Integral Care (ATCIC), the local mental health authority, developed a discharge 
planning policy protocol to prevent or reduce the number of persons identified as homeless upon entry 
or exit from the Austin State Hospital (ASH), a state-funded psychiatric hospital, from being released into 
homelessness. Austin Travis County Integral Care is a key ECHO member and staff provides leadership to 
the Housing Work Group. ECHO and ATCIC are joint applicants in a state grant focused on increasing 
housing and support services for the chronically homeless with mental illness. 

ECHO provides advocacy to ensure that housing and services are available when leaving ASH. At 
discharge, an individual is offered treatment at the Inn, a 16 bed facility providing short-term 
community based residential crisis treatment. The Inn is open 24/7 and is co-located with Psychiatric 
Emergency Services, the Mobile Crisis Outreach Team and the 24/7 Crisis Hotline. If individuals need 
more time to recover and stabilize, they can stay at ATCIC's crisis respite program, Next Step, which 
provides short-term psychiatric respite services for adults recovering from a psychiatric crisis. Those who 
choose not to participate are provided options for boarding homes and transitional living facilities. The 
Housing Work Group provides Mental Health First Aid training for landlords to mitigate and prevent 
evictions and reviews the implementation and effectiveness of discharge planning policies. ECHO 
advocated for an 1115 waiver that will provide more PSH options for individuals with severe mental 
illness.  

Specify the activities that the jurisdiction plans to undertake during the next year to address 
the housing and supportive services needs identified in accordance with 91.215(e) with 
respect to persons who are not homeless but have other special needs. Link to one-year 
goals. 91.315(e) 

The CDBG program will fund the Home Repair and Social Work projects over the next year.  The Home 
Repair project helps address the housing needs of elderly and disabled populations through the 
implementation of repairs that improve accessibility of housing units.  The Social Work project provides 
supportive services to a range of populations.   

For entitlement/consortia grantees: Specify the activities that the jurisdiction plans to 
undertake during the next year to address the housing and supportive services needs 
identified in accordance with 91.215(e) with respect to persons who are not homeless but 
have other special needs. Link to one-year goals. (91.220(2)) 

The CDBG program will fund the Home Repair and Social Work projects over the next year.  The Home 
Repair project helps address the housing needs of elderly and disabled populations through the 
implementation of repairs that improve accessibility of housing units.  The Social Work project provides 
supportive services to a range of populations. 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     92 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Barriers to Affordable Housing  
Negative Effects of Public Policies on Affordable Housing and Residential Investment 

Lack of Funding for Affordable Housing 

Funding for affordable housing requires many different products to achieve the desired 
affordability levels needed in a community. Funding mechanisms including the HOME Investment 
Program, tax credits, Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), Federal Housing Administration 
loans, and down-payment assistance are key to increasing the affordable housing stock. Currently, Travis 
County does not receive a HOME formula allocation, which is a major funding source for many 
entitlement communities to develop affordable housing.  

Utility Costs 

The cost of utilities may make homeownership unaffordable for low-income households in the 
unincorporated areas. The Public Utility of Commission of Texas has limited ability to regulate these 
rates.  

The following section is excerpted from the AI, prepared by the consulting firm Mullin & Lonergan. 

Comprehensive Planning and Land Use Authority   

A community’s comprehensive plan is a statement of policies relative to new development and 
preservation of existing assets. In particular, the land use element of the comprehensive plan defines 
the location, type and character of future development. The housing element of the comprehensive 
plan expresses the preferred density and intensity of residential neighborhoods within the 
county. Taken together, the land use and housing elements of the comprehensive plan define a vision of 
the type of place that a community wishes to become. 

Travis County has not adopted a comprehensive plan or similar document that contains broad objectives 
for land use or housing. Like all Texas counties, Travis County is limited by state law in the extent of its 
land use authority. In unincorporated areas, Texas counties may approve the subdivision of land, 
construct and maintain subdivision roads and assess costs to landowners, and may specify 
minimum standards for road construction and drainage.  

Building Standards 

Texas, a Dillon’s rule state, does not allow counties to adopt home rule; therefore, the powers they 
may exercise are limited to those explicitly granted by state government. For Texas counties, this 
does not include the authority to adopt building codes. What applies outside of incorporated boundaries 
are the standards of the International Building Code, which has been effectively adopted by the state. 
The responsibility for compliance is on builders, who submit construction reports to county 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     93 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

governments. Even if such a report indicates that a builder has not met an aspect of the code, however, 
counties do not wield direct enforcement power. Therefore, Travis County’s authority over 
new residential construction projects concerns only the issuance of three permits: driveway (if the 
property is on a county-maintained road), floodplain and septic system. The absence of meaningful local 
control over the design and construction of new residential structures is one possible reason for 
reported instances of noncompliance with federal and state accessibility requirements.  

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     94 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Non-Housing Community Development Assets  
Introduction 

Nearly two-thirds of all jobs in the U.S., and the majority of jobs paying a living wage, require education beyond high school and/or additional 
training. Programs aimed at job training, education, and job placement can help generate high taxpayer returns by increasing employment, 
revenue, and families’ economic security. Increasing opportunities for higher education and for building skills are important for making increased 
earnings and employment stability attainable and creating a workforce that meets the demands. Despite the benefits to individuals and 
employers, and to the community as a whole, workforce development investments, federal and state funding for employment and training 
services, including adult and technical education, have been declining. In order to remain competitive in today’s global economy, a trained, 
skilled workforce is needed. 

Travis County has been consistently outperforming the state and nation in terms of jobs. The unemployment rate for Travis County went from 
5.7% in January 2013 to 4.5% in December 2013. This is the lowest unemployment rate for Travis County since 2007. By comparison, state and 
national rates were 5.6% and 6.5%, respectively. 

Economic Development Market Analysis 

Business Activity 

Business by Sector Number of 
Workers 

Number of 
Jobs 

Share of 
Workers 

% 

Share of Jobs 
% 

Jobs less 
workers 

% 
Agriculture, Mining, Oil & Gas Extraction 515 332 1 1 0 
Arts, Entertainment, Accommodations 7,319 3,419 13 13 0 
Construction 3,901 6,753 7 27 20 
Education and Health Care Services 8,435 1,998 15 8 -7 
Finance, Insurance, and Real Estate 5,016 1,796 9 7 -2 
Information 1,984 673 4 3 -1 
Manufacturing 5,242 2,086 9 8 -1 
Other Services 2,517 880 4 3 -1 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     95 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Business by Sector Number of 
Workers 

Number of 
Jobs 

Share of 
Workers 

% 

Share of Jobs 
% 

Jobs less 
workers 

% 
Professional, Scientific, Management Services 7,571 2,007 13 8 -5 
Public Administration 149 130 0 1 1 
Retail Trade 7,554 2,242 13 9 -4 
Transportation and Warehousing 1,541 696 3 3 0 
Wholesale Trade 4,831 2,314 9 9 0 
Total 56,575 25,326 -- -- -- 

Table 46 - Business Activity 
Data Source: 2006-2010 ACS (Workers), 2010 Longitudinal Employer-Household Dynamics (Jobs) 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     96 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Labor Force 

Total Population in the Civilian Labor Force 87,516 
Civilian Employed Population 16 years and over 82,373 
Unemployment Rate 5.88 
Unemployment Rate for Ages 16-24 15.67 
Unemployment Rate for Ages 25-65 3.92 

Table 47 - Labor Force 
Data Source: 2006-2010 ACS 

 

Occupations by Sector Number of People 

Management, business and financial 26,523 
Farming, fisheries and forestry occupations 3,846 
Service 6,382 
Sales and office 13,088 
Construction, extraction, maintenance and 
repair 6,827 
Production, transportation and material moving 3,667 

Table 48 – Occupations by Sector 
Data Source: 2006-2010 ACS 

 

Travel Time 

Travel Time Number Percentage 
< 30 Minutes 40,709 55% 
30-59 Minutes 29,277 39% 
60 or More Minutes 4,275 6% 
Total 74,261 100% 

Table 49 - Travel Time 
Data Source: 2006-2010 ACS 

 

Education: 

Educational Attainment by Employment Status (Population 16 and Older) 

Educational Attainment In Labor Force  
Civilian Employed Unemployed Not in Labor Force 

Less than high school graduate 5,791 474 2,814 
High school graduate (includes 
equivalency) 12,686 737 3,902 
Some college or Associate's degree 20,089 1,086 5,237 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     97 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Educational Attainment In Labor Force  
Civilian Employed Unemployed Not in Labor Force 

Bachelor's degree or higher 32,760 1,375 6,508 
Table 50- Educational Attainment by Employment Status 

Data Source: 2006-2010 ACS 

 

Educational Attainment by Age 

 Age 
18–24 yrs 25–34 yrs 35–44 yrs 45–65 yrs 65+ yrs 

Less than 9th grade 350 1,169 1,094 1,585 985 
9th to 12th grade, no diploma 2,421 1,775 1,465 1,991 814 
High school graduate, GED, or 
alternative 3,864 4,802 4,527 8,096 2,545 
Some college, no degree 4,440 5,679 5,249 8,976 2,180 
Associate's degree 268 1,683 1,996 2,904 473 
Bachelor's degree 1,024 6,435 8,450 11,276 2,217 
Graduate or professional degree 74 2,146 4,653 7,699 1,510 

Table 51 - Educational Attainment by Age 
Data Source: 2006-2010 ACS 

 

 

Based on the Business Activity table above, what are the major employment sectors within 
your jurisdiction? 

According to data for 2006-2010 in the Business Activity table above, the major employment sectors 
within Travis County in terms of the number of jobs are Construction (27%); Arts, Entertainment, 
Accommodations (13%); and Wholesale Trade (9%). 

According to data from the Texas Workforce Commission for the 3rd quarter of 2013, federal, state, and 
local government together comprise the largest industry sector in Travis County, providing 20% of 
634,831 total jobs. Other leading industries for the same time period include Professional and Business 
Services (18%) and Trade, Transportation, and Utilities (15%). 

Describe the workforce and infrastructure needs of the business community: 

According to the Business Activity table above, there is a shortage of workers in the Construction 
industry and a shortage of jobs primarily in the Education and Health Care Services; Professional, 
Scientific, Management Services; and Retail Trade sectors in Travis County. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     98 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Based on 5-year estimates (2006-2010), as shown in the Labor Force table above, the unemployment 
rate in the 16-24 age group (15.67%) is almost four times that of the 25-65 age group (3.92%). The 
majority (94%) of those working (not including military workers) in Travis County are at least 16 years 
old. 

Of the occupations sectors listed in Table 3 above, more people worked in Management, Business and 
Financial than in any other sector, with Sales and Office and Construction, Extraction, Maintenance, and 
Repair being the next two sectors employing the most people in Travis County. 

Based on data averaged over the 2006-2010 time period, the majority (55%) of workers had travel times 
to work under 30 minutes, while 39% had travel times that ranged between 30 and 59 minutes, and a 
small percentage (6%) took an hour or more to travel to work. 

Describe any major changes that may have an economic impact, such as planned local or 
regional public or private sector investments or initiatives that have affected or may affect 
job and business growth opportunities during the planning period. Describe any needs for 
workforce development, business support or infrastructure these changes may create. 

Travis County experienced an increase in the number of jobs within every major industry over 2013. 
Industries adding the largest number of jobs between 2012 and 2013 (according to third quarter figures) 
include professional and business services, leisure and hospitality, and trade, transportation and 
utilities. 

Unemployment rates in Travis County dropped from 5.2% in March 2013 to 4.3% in March 2014. 
Historically, since at least 2004, the unemployment rates in Travis County have remained lower than the 
state rates (5.3% in March 2014). 

Construction jobs are expected to continue to increase in the Travis County area, in particular in the 
Austin MSA, to meet the increasing housing demand and the City of Austin’s new comprehensive plan, 
Imagine Austin, which includes the City’s extra-territorial jurisdiction (ETJ) and which aims to invest in a 
compact Austin. 

Current minimum wage in Texas is $7.25 per hour. According to the Center for Public Policy Priorities 
Family Budget Estimator project, a single adult with employer-sponsored health insurance and no 
children must earn $10.81 per hour, almost one-and-a-half times the minimum wage, to live in the 
Austin-Round Rock MSA without relying on public assistance. For a two-parent, two-child household 
without employer-sponsored health insurance, the required wage increases up to $31.51 per hour, 
more than four times the minimum wage. 

How do the skills and education of the current workforce correspond to employment 
opportunities in the jurisdiction? 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     99 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

According to the Texas Workforce Commission’s Projected Labor Market Structure for 2016, more than 
one-quarter (26%) of jobs will be high-skilled, high-wage jobs that require a bachelor’s degree or more; 
nearly 30% of jobs in 2016 will require technical skills, like trade construction or health care skills; and 
almost one-half (45%) of the labor market will require short-term training. These projected percentages 
highlight the need for short-term and long-term training, as well as efforts to increase enrollment in 
postsecondary education. 

According to Labor Market & Career Information data from the Texas Workforce Commission, a job 
listings search for the last 90 days of 2013 in the Austin MSA revealed that the top 15 jobs, more than 
half (53%) required an associate or bachelor degree, 20% provided some degree of on-the-job training, 
and the remaining 27% required related experience. Six (40%) of the listings were for 
computer/information technology positions, and the rest for a variety ranging from sales to customer 
service to food prep. And among the 18 projected fastest growing occupations in Texas for the 2010-
2010 time period, 50% require an associate’s or higher degree; 33% require a high school diploma or 
GED; and the remaining 17% do not require a high school diploma. 

A powerful correlation between educational attainment and earnings persists. Among Travis County 
residents 25 and over with earnings in 2012, those who graduated high school earn 42% more per year 
than those who did not; those with some college or an associate’s degree earn 25% more than those 
whose formal education stopped after high school; those with a bachelor’s degree earned 47% more 
than those with some college or an associate’s degree; and those with a graduate or professional degree 
earn 39% more than those with a bachelor’s degree. Overall, those with a bachelor’s degree earned 84% 
more than those with only a high school degree. Among Travis County workers between the ages of 25 
and 64, almost one-half (48%) have a bachelor’s degree or higher, and another one-quarter (25%) have 
some college or an associate’s degree. High school graduates comprise 16% of the labor force. For Travis 
County overall, 2012 median earnings were $36,029. However, median earnings for men ($40,767) were 
30% higher than those for women ($31,432). 

Workforce trends generally predict that as education levels increase, unemployment rates decrease. In 
Travis County, those with the highest educational levels have the lowest unemployment (less than 4% 
unemployment for those with a bachelor’s degree or higher), and those with the lowest educational 
levels have the highest unemployment (about 12% for those with less than a high school degree). 

Describe any current workforce training initiatives, including those supported by Workforce 
Investment Boards, community colleges and other organizations. Describe how these efforts 
will support the jurisdiction's Consolidated Plan. 

The County’s investments in workforce development can be divided into two broad categories based on 
service length: short-term and long-term. Investments in short-term (under 12 months) training tend to 
produce substantial improvement for participants immediately after receiving services; however, those 
benefits fade over time, indicating a need for more ongoing support and continued skill development to 
increase stability and advancement. Longer-term training (12 months or greater) results in significant 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     100 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

improvement in earnings over time, as well as a reduction in public assistance benefits that constitutes a 
significant return on investment to taxpayers; however, among residents in need, jobs and income are 
an immediate requirement, so a commitment to long-term training prior to employment may not be a 
viable option. This indicates a need for pathways that integrate long-term training concurrent with 
employment so that residents do not have to forgo needed earnings in the present to secure greater 
earnings in the future. 

Does your jurisdiction participate in a Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy 
(CEDS)? 

No 

If so, what economic development initiatives are you undertaking that may be coordinated 
with the Consolidated Plan? If not, describe other local/regional plans or initiatives that 
impact economic growth. 

On January 14, 2014 the Commissioners Court adopted the "Travis County Economic Development 
Program Policy Guidelines and Criteria." The purpose of this Policy includes the following: 

(i) to encourage economic stimulation and prosperity by attracting new businesses to the County; 

(ii) to enhance the County tax base by attracting new businesses that will make significant investments 
in new construction; 

(iii) to assist with workforce development in the County by attracting companies that offer significant 
numbers of new jobs and/or training to current residents who are unemployed or under-employed; 

(iv) to encourage diversity of the County's economy by attracting businesses that will contribute to the 
economy by broadening the scope of business and industry within the 

County; and 

(v) to attract significant new businesses that also help promote the growth of other new businesses 
needed to provide supporting services or supplies, particularly small companies. 

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     101 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Needs and Market Analysis Discussion  
Are there areas where households with multiple housing problems are concentrated? 
(include a definition of "concentration") 

Information gathered over several years of public outreach and through the implementation of the 
home repair and social service programs have identified neighborhoods throughout the jurisdiction that 
have high levels of housing in need of repair, as well as a lack of neighborhood infrastructure. Because 
these are small neighborhoods that are geographically dispersed throughout the county, it would be 
more accurate to describe them as scattered areas with multiple housing problems rather than a 
concentration.  Staff plan to produce a supplement to the Consolidated Plan in the fall of 2014 which 
will provide a more in-depth analysis of specific neighborhoods in the unincorporated areas.  

Are there any areas in the jurisdiction where racial or ethnic minorities or low-income 
families are concentrated? (include a definition of "concentration") 

The following section is excerpted from The Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice, conducted 
for Travis County by Mullin & Lonergan.   

A concentrated area is any in which the percentage of a single ethnic or minority group is at least 10 
percentage points higher than across the County overall. Across Travis County in 2010, Blacks comprised 
8.5% of the population. Therefore, an area of Black concentration would include any block group where 
the percentage of Black residents is 18.5% or higher. Of the 87 block groups across the Urban County, 
seven (8%) met this criterion, all of which were also areas of Hispanic concentration. An area of Asian 
concentration, by the same definition, would include any tract where the percentage of Asian residents 
is 15.9% or higher. Of the 87 block groups in the Urban County, two met this criterion. In Hispanic-
concentrated block groups, at least 43.5% of the population is Hispanic. Of 87 total unincorporated 
block groups, 20 (23%) met this definition. 

The CDBG program includes a statutory requirement that at least 70% of funds invested benefit low and 
moderate income (LMI) persons. As a result, HUD provides the percentage of LMI persons in each 
census block group for entitlements such as Travis County. Travis County invests its CDBG funds 
primarily in areas where the percentage LMI persons is 45.14% or higher (LMI areas). Generally, the LMI 
percentage required for CDBG eligibility is 51%. However, due to a more affluent population in some 
areas of the County, HUD has established an “exception criteria” that lowers the LMI percentage 
requirement for Travis County to 45.14%. Block groups where at least 45.14% of persons are considered 
low- or moderate-income by HUD standards and are racially/ethnically concentrated are referred to as 
impacted block groups.   

Please refer to the "Appendix B: Maps" for maps that display the distribution of racially and/or ethnically 
concentrated block groups and impacted block groups in the unincorporated areas of Travis county.   

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     102 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

What are the characteristics of the market in these areas/neighborhoods? 

The following section is excerpted from The Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice, conducted 
for Travis County by Mullin & Lonergan.   

To describe the variation in neighborhood opportunity across metropolitan regions, the Kirwan Institute 
for the Study of Race and Ethnicity at The Ohio State University has developed the “Communities of 
Opportunity” model, a fair housing and community development framework that assigns each 
neighborhood a score reflecting the degree to which its residents have access to determinants of 
positive life outcomes, such as good schools, jobs, stable housing, transit and the absence of crime and 
health hazards. The Communities of Opportunity model is highly spatial and is therefore map-based, 
representing the geographic footprint of inequality. The process of creating opportunity maps involves 
building a set of potential indicators of high and low opportunity, reflecting local issues as well as 
research literature validating connections between indicators and opportunity. Data is collected at the 
smallest geographic unit possible for each indicator and organized into sectors (education, mobility, 
etc.), which are then combined to create a composite opportunity map. The resulting maps allow 
communities to analyze opportunity “comprehensively and comparatively, to communicate who has 
access to opportunity-rich areas and who does not; and to understand what needs to be remedied in 
opportunity-poor communities.”  

The Kirwan Institute applied this methodology to produce opportunity index distributions for the 
Greater Austin region. Five dimensions were identified, consistent with research best practices and 
issues of local relevance: education, economic, mobility/transportation, health/environment and 
neighborhood quality. Each dimension includes a collection of variables describing conditions for each 
census tract in the region.  

 On the basis of the composite index, combining all identified dimensions, the study found that higher-
opportunity areas were primarily concentrated west of I-35, with the most opportunity-rich areas in the 
entire region located directly west of the highway in Travis County. Concentrations of lower-income 
minorities are most prevalent in the eastern crescent outside of Austin and the majority of impacted 
block groups are concentrated in low- and moderate-opportunity neighborhoods. The report also found 
that more than half of linguistically isolated people were located in very-low- or low-opportunity 
tracts.  These areas of lower opportunity are characterized by higher poverty and unemployment rates, 
lower median income, fewer transit options and longer commute times, and worse educational 
outcomes, among other indicators. Please refer to "Appendix B: Maps" for a map that shows impacted 
block groups and areas of opportunity.    

Are there any community assets in these areas/neighborhoods? 

Most of the areas are in proximity to one of the Travis County Community Centers, and to Travis County 
parks.  Staff are planning to produce a supplement to the Consolidated Plan in the fall of 2014 which will 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     103 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

provide a more in-depth analysis of specific neighborhoods in the unincorporated areas and will include 
identification of community assets.   

Are there other strategic opportunities in any of these areas? 

In consultation with non-profit service providers, CDBG staff are looking for ways to strategically expand 
services into the unincorporated areas of the county.  As the first step in this process, staff are preparing 
a supplement to the Consolidated Plan that will provide non-profits with an in-depth analysis of specific 
neighborhoods that includes community conditions and identification of services currently available 
and/or gaps in service.  

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     104 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Strategic Plan 

Overview 
Strategic Plan Overview 

The priority needs for housing and non-housing community development efforts were determined using 
data presented in the Needs and Housing Market Analysis of this Plan, and through public hearings, 
surveys, consultation with County staff and consultation with service providers serving low and 
moderate income residents of Travis County.  Key factors affecting the determination of the three-year 
priorities included: 1) the types of target income households and populations with the greatest need for 
assistance; 2) those activities that will best address their needs; 3) the limited amount of funding 
available to meet those needs.  Activities to be undertaken over the consolidated planning period were 
organized into six broad categories as follows: Infrastructure, Housing, Community Services, Populations 
with Specialized Needs, Public Facilities and Business and Jobs.  The categories were ranked, as High or 
Low Priorities, which indicate the following:  

High Priority: Travis County plans to use funds made available for activities that address this unmet 
need during the period of time designated in the Strategic Plan.  

Low Priority:  If funds are available, activities to address this unmet need may be funded by Travis 
County during the period of time designated in the Strategic Plan.  Also, Travis County will take actions 
to locate other sources of funds to address this identified unmet need.  

The table below summaries the priorities for the next five years.  

Category Priority 
Infrastructure High 
Housing High 
Community Services High 
Populations with Specialized Needs and Services High 
Public Facilities Low 
Business & Jobs Low 

                                        Table 52 - Prioritization of Categories for the PY 2014- 2018 Consolidated Plan 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     105 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Geographic Priorities 
 
General Allocation Priorities 

Describe the basis for allocating investments geographically within the jurisdiction (or within the EMSA 
for HOPWA) 

The jurisdiction of the County's CDBG program is the unincorporated areas of the County and the Village 
of Webberville.  While the program does not specifically target geographic areas within the jurisdiction, 
geography is a consideration when evaluating different types of projects.  In impacted areas, primarily in 
the Southeastern parts of the jurisdiction, projects that improve access to services and improve 
neighborhood quality are prioritized.  New housing development projects are prioritized in non-
impacted areas of high opportunity that would further fair housing goals.  Infrastructure projects are 
considered in areas of need throughout that jurisdiction and are typically located in neighborhoods 
characterized by isolated pockets of poverty.   

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     106 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Priority Needs  
Priority Needs 

1 Priority Need 
Name 

Infrastructure 

Priority Level High 

Population Extremely Low 
Low 
Moderate 
Non-housing Community Development 

Geographic 
Areas 
Affected 

 Not Applicable  

Associated 
Goals 

Street Improvements 

Description Residents of the unincorporated areas have consistently indicated a need for 
water/wastewater systems and roads. In particular, residents in economically 
disenfranchised areas lack access to running water and are without infrastructure 
or funding to access the area water utility. Request for water and wastewater over 
the last five years totals an estimated $28 million. Requests for street 
improvements over the last five years total an estimated $18 million. Drainage 
improvements often are associated with other street improvement work. Bike 
paths and sidewalks as an added benefit can provide more livable, sustainable 
neighborhoods. 

Basis for 
Relative 
Priority 

Since the inception of the CDBG program, infrastructure has been at the forefront 
of the program. It is the project type that caused communities to organize and 
request funds, and still remains the most requested project by neighborhoods. 
During the Public Participation process, Residents ranked "Infrastructure" as the 
most urgent need for the Consolidated Planning period and for the next program 
year. Over the last three years, almost $1 million of CDBG funds has been invested 
in improving substandard roads. 

 

 

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     107 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

2 Priority Need 
Name 

Community Services 

Priority Level High 

Population Extremely Low 
Low 
Moderate 
Non-housing Community Development 

Geographic 
Areas 
Affected 

 Not Applicable 

Associated 
Goals 

Tenants Rights and Fair Housing Counseling 
Expansion of Social Work Services 

Description Travis County is home to over 180,000 school-age children between the ages of 5 
and 17. The poverty rate among children is higher than the overall poverty rate for 
all residents of Travis County. Recent data shows that most students in low income 
areas of Travis County were not served by afterschool programs although: - 
Research shows that afterschool and other youth programs have positive impacts 
on student behavior and performance, and - A 2011 survey of high school students 
points to a greater risk for poor outcomes among Texas students, compared to 
youth nationally, due to greater risky behaviors that threaten the health and safety 
of youth. Elderly: In 2012, there were 85,458 adults aged 65 and older living in 
Travis County, comprising 7.8% of the population. By 2020, that figure is expected 
to rise to 10.4% of the county population, and with it the need for services. 

Basis for 
Relative 
Priority 

Since the inception of the CDBG program, access to social services for residents of 
the unincorporated areas has been an issue. While 18% of Travis County residents 
live in the unincorporated areas, during 2013, 5% of services funded through Travis 
County's social service contracts were provided in the unincorporated areas (with 
an additional 25% provided to residents of areas that include both incorporated and 
unincorporated geographies.) During the Public Participation process, both 
residents and social service providers confirm the need for Community Services, 
with both groups ranking it as the second most urgent need for the Consolidated 
Planning period. Over the last three years, over $377,000 of CDBG funds has been 
invested in improving access to case management, fair housing and tenant's rights 
counseling and other needed services. 

 

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     108 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

3 Priority Need 
Name 

Housing 

Priority Level High 

Population Extremely Low 
Low 
Moderate 
Elderly 
Frail Elderly 
Persons with Physical Disabilities 

Geographic 
Areas 
Affected 

 Not Applicable 

Associated 
Goals 

Owner Occupied Home Rehabilitation 
Creation of New Rental Units 

Description Rapid population growth in the Austin area has resulted in an imbalance between 
supply and demand in the housing market, the most recent data shows a 
historically low housing inventory. Housing prices and rents have been steadily 
increasing in Travis County, while median incomes have not increased at the same 
rate. Cost burden (paying more than 30% of income towards housing costs) is the 
most prevalent housing problem facing Travis County residents. 

Basis for 
Relative 
Priority 

Housing costs have become increasingly expensive in Travis County over the last 
several years, and there is a scarcity of housing affordable to low-income 
households. This trend is likely to continue over at least the next year. Housing was 
ranked as the highest need among service providers and the third highest need by 
residents during the public input process. Residents of the unincorporated areas 
indicate that the most urgent need related to housing is repairs for owner occupied 
housing. 

4 Priority Need 
Name 

Populations with Specialized Needs and Services 

Priority Level High 

Population Extremely Low 
Low 
Moderate 
Non-housing Community Development 

Geographic 
Areas 
Affected 

 Not Applicable 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     109 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Associated 
Goals 

 Expansion of Social Work Services 

Owner Occupied Home Rehabilitation 

Description • Approximately 5% of clients receiving services for the elderly, persons with 
disabilities, victims of domestic violence, or persons living with HIV/AIDS 
were from the unincorporated areas of the county.  Another 24% live in 
areas that are a mix of incorporated and unincorporated. Currently, there is 
no housing in the unincorporated areas that is specifically for disabled 
persons. 

• Elderly renter households are more likely to have a housing problem than 
either owner-occupied households or non-elderly households. In 2012, 
about 8% of the Travis County population consisted of adults aged 65 and 
older, and close to a quarter of individuals aged 65 to 74 and over half of 
individuals 75 and older had a disability. Since the elderly population is 
expected to rise and the rate of disability is known to increase with age, the 
needs for services for the elderly and disabled is expected to grow as well. 

 

Basis for 
Relative 
Priority 

Data indicates that elderly and disabled households, in particular, are in need of 
more directed services. Due to the high demand for services in the unincorporated 
areas, whether the person is considered part of a special population or not, specific 
program targeting only to a particular population is not a best practice.  Through 
sub recipient contracts, staff will direct sub recipients to develop specific marketing 
strategies to ensure inclusion and access for these populations to the more 
generalist program funding as they relate to housing and community services. 

5 Priority Need 
Name 

Public Facilities and Buildings 

Priority Level Low 

Population Extremely Low 
Low 
Moderate 
Non-housing Community Development 

Geographic 
Areas 
Affected 

 Not Applicable 

Associated 
Goals 

 None 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     110 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Description Parks: 

• Eastern Travis County currently has less park acreage than western parts of 
the county, and the need for additional recreational areas in the eastern 
parts of the county is likely to increase. 

• As development continues to push into eastern Travis County, agricultural 
and rural land is increasingly converted to developed land. 

• Additionally, the demographics of the eastern part of the county include 
higher concentrations of low income households who may rely on public 
facilities for recreational activities. 

• Finally, as the population of the county grows, it is likely that existing 
facilities will have to support increased usage. Taken together, these factors 
may indicate the need for expanded recreation areas or activities in eastern 
Travis County. 

Community Centers: 

• Community centers are important to the unincorporated community as 
they provide centralized locations—five outside of the urban core—for 
residents to access social services and community meeting rooms. 
However, as the population continues to be pushed further out in the 
unincorporated area, even these public facilities may not be accessible to 
residents with limited transportation options. 

 

Basis for 
Relative 
Priority 

While public interest for these types of facilities is high it is often in conjunction 
with expanded community services.  Access to funding from other sources is better 
suited to address this type of capital expansion. CDBG staff recommends providing 
advocacy and communication about the interests expressed by the public during 
the public comment periods rather than prioritizing funding during this strategic 
planning period. 

• Residents, primarily from E/SE and W/SW Travis County, have requested 
the following types of public facilities: neighborhood parks (including 
playgrounds and walking trails), recreational centers, community centers, 
health facilities, and childcare centers.   Often times, the discussion around 
public facilities also centers on access to community services, which 
residents rank as a more pressing need. 

• Whereas some of these types of public facilities, in particular, parks and 
community centers, are available in the unincorporated areas, even these 
public facilities may not be accessible to residents without, or with limited, 
access to personal or public transportation. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     111 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

6 Priority Need 
Name 

Business and Jobs 

Priority Level Low 

Population Extremely Low 
Low 
Moderate 
Non-housing Community Development 

Geographic 
Areas 
Affected 

 Not Applicable 

Associated 
Goals 

 None 

Description According to the Texas Workforce Commission, in 2013, there was an increase in 
the number of jobs in every major industry in Texas. And as of December 2013, the 
unemployment rate for Travis County (4.5%) has consistently remained lower than 
the state (5.6%) and national (6.5%) rates. Approximately 7% of the services related 
to workforce development reach the residents of the unincorporated areas of the 
county, and another 30% reach residents in areas that are a mix of incorporated 
and unincorporated. This shows that residents throughout the unincorporated 
areas are in need of improved access to workforce development and jobs. Programs 
and services within this issue area provide employment and training services to help 
individuals improve workplace skills, obtain employment, succeed in the workplace, 
and help employers secure a skilled workforce. 

Basis for 
Relative 
Priority 

Having job centers disbursed throughout the County is preferable to reduce traffic 
and promote sustainable living. The development of job centers has not paced with 
the sprawl and growth of the unincorporated areas. Due to the high cost and 
economic development tools needed to attract businesses to particular locations, it 
may be preferable that CDBG focuses on linking clients from the community 
services projects and housing projects to current workforce programs. 

Table 53 – Priority Needs Summary 
 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     112 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Influence of Market Conditions  
Influence of Market Conditions 

Affordable Housing 
Type 

Market Characteristics that will influence  
the use of funds available for housing type 

Tenant Based Rental 
Assistance (TBRA) 

The County is not planning to use CDBG funds for TBRA over the Consolidated 
Planning period.  

TBRA for Non-
Homeless Special 
Needs 

The County is not planning to use CDBG funds for TBRA over the Consolidated 
Planning period.  

New Unit Production The increasing cost of housing in Travis County supports production of new 
affordable housing units. Additionally, the scarcity of affordable rental units in 
the unincorporated areas supports development of multifamily housing.   

Rehabilitation The scarcity of affordable housing units and increasing housing costs supports 
the need to preserve existing housing for low and moderate income 
households through rehabilitation of homes.    

Acquisition, including 
preservation 

There is a scarcity of rental units in the unincorporated areas. Since most 
existing units are not in the jurisdiction, market conditions support the 
acquisition of land that could be used for the construction of new units.   

Table 54 – Influence of Market Conditions 
 

 
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     113 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Anticipated Resources 

Introduction  

For the Consolidated Planning period, the County anticipates receiving an estimated 4.9 million dollars.  This estimate is based off the County 
receiving increased allocation over the last couple of years in spite of reduced or level funding at the federal level.  The increased funding occurs 
due to the increased growth of population and poverty in the CDBG service area.  Due to tightening domestic spending, the CDBG allocation is 
expected to remain level or likely decrease over the next four years, however, staff believe the population growth will offset an allocation 
reduction. In Program Year 2014, the County expects to receive $997,649.  Additionally, three projects from prior years will continue to be 
implemented: 1) Lake Oak Estates Street Improvement Project; 2) Land Acquisition to Support Affordable Single Family Home Development; and 
3) Owner Occupied Home Rehabilitation Project.  

Anticipated Resources 

Program Source of 
Funds 

Uses of Funds Expected Amount Available Year 1 Expected 
Amount 

Available 
Reminder 
of ConPlan  

$ 

Narrative Description 
Annual 

Allocation: 
$ 

Program 
Income: $ 

Prior Year 
Resources: 

$ 

Total: 
$ 

CDBG public - 
federal 

Acquisition 
Admin and Planning 
Economic 
Development 
Housing 
Public 
Improvements 
Public Services 997,649 0 0 997,649 3,990,596 

CDBG Funding for Program 
Year 2014. 

Table 55 - Anticipated Resources 
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     114 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Explain how federal funds will leverage those additional resources (private, state and local funds), including a description of how 
matching requirements will be satisfied 

No matching requirements exist for CDBG funding, however, several projects expect to use private, state or local funds. 

If appropriate, describe publically owned land or property located within the jurisdiction that may be used to address the needs 
identified in the plan 

Not applicable. 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     115 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Institutional Delivery Structure  

Explain the institutional structure through which the jurisdiction will carry out its consolidated plan 
including private industry, non-profit organizations, and public institutions. 

Responsible Entity Responsible Entity 
Type 

Role Geographic Area Served 

Travis County HHS & VS Government Planning Other 
Travis County 
Commissioners Court 

Government Planning Other 

Travis County 
Transportation and 
Natural Resources 

Government Planning 
neighborhood 
improvements 

Other 

Travis County Auditor's 
Office 

Government Planning Other 

Travis County 
Purchasing Office 

Government Planning Other 

Travis County Housing 
Finance Corporation 

Government Ownership 
Rental 

Other 

Housing Authority of 
Travis County (HATC) 

Government Public Housing Other 

Ending Community 
Homelessness Coalition 
(ECHO) 

Non-profit 
organizations 

Homelessness Region 

Table 56 - Institutional Delivery Structure 
 

Assess of Strengths and Gaps in the Institutional Delivery System 

The CDBG Program is concluding its eighth year now and with time and experience, its capacity to 
implement programs and work within the institutional structure has grown.  Staff know where to push 
in the system to increase the speed with which projects are implemented.  Furthermore, the same staff 
in various departments have been implementing CDBG so most everyone else in a supportive role to 
CDBG understands the program as well.  

Within the community, ECHO, the Housing Authority of Travis County and the Housing Finance 
Corporation has grown and strengthened as well.  ECHO became a 501 (c) (3), taken on the oversight of 
HMIS, has begun to implement the changes the HEARTH Act requires as well as supports the changes to 
the Continuum of Care program.  The Housing Authority of Travis County has moved from a troubled 
designation at the time of our last Consolidated Plan to no longer having that designation associated 
with it.  The Travis County Housing Finance Corporation had a complete in staff four years ago, and has 
gained the experience in the last three years to become a strong partner in housing development again.  

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     116 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

As far as gaps in the institutional delivery system, there is a lack of resources to meet the demand for 
services.  The CDBG program cannot currently fund all the projects, particularly infrastructure projects, 
for which there is a demonstrated need.  Additionally, service providers are also working with limited 
funds and have indicated that pushing services out into the unincorporated area has challenges that 
may be cost prohibitive.   

During the Providers Forum conducted as part of the Needs Assessment for the Consolidated Plan, 
service providers indicated that a primary barrier to serving the unincorporated areas was a lack of 
information about the demographics, income levels and needs of the residents. Service providers also 
indicated that they were unclear on the boundaries of the service and the services that are currently 
available. Additional barriers that were identified include a lack of space to provide services and the lack 
of transportation options for clients. 

 Availability of services targeted to homeless persons and persons with HIV and mainstream 
services 

Homelessness Prevention 
Services 

Available in the 
Community 

Targeted to 
Homeless 

Targeted to People 
with HIV 

Homelessness Prevention Services 
Counseling/Advocacy X X X 
Legal Assistance X X X 
Mortgage Assistance X     
Rental Assistance X X X 
Utilities Assistance X     

Street Outreach Services 
Law Enforcement         
Mobile Clinics X       
Other Street Outreach Services X       

Supportive Services 
Alcohol & Drug Abuse X       
Child Care X       
Education X       
Employment and Employment 
Training X       
Healthcare X       
HIV/AIDS X    X 
Life Skills X       
Mental Health Counseling X       
Transportation X       

Table 57 - Homeless Prevention Services Summary 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     117 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Describe how the service delivery system including, but not limited to, the services listed 
above meet the needs of homeless persons (particularly chronically homeless individuals and 
families, families with children, veterans and their families, and unaccompanied youth) 

The Ending Community Homelessness Coalition (ECHO) is a collaborative funding and planning nonprofit 
that is the lead agency for the Austin/Travis County continuum of care. The organization is charged with 
bringing together other nonprofit resources and making them accessible to the homeless 
population. ECHO utilizes a system of outreach to assess and determine the needs of men, women, 
children, veterans and families who are homeless or at-risk of becoming homeless. Working with a 
group of nonprofits, homeless individuals are connected to resources including prevention strategies, 
emergency shelters, rapid re-housing and permanent housing. 

As detailed in the Market Analysis, there are units of emergency and transitional housing specifically 
targeted to families with children, veterans and unaccompanied youth in which each of these groups 
can be housed and receive appropriate services.   

Describe the strengths and gaps of the service delivery system for special needs population 
and persons experiencing homelessness, including, but not limited to, the services listed 
above 

ECHO is outreaching to the County to ensure that coordinated assessment is occurring outside the urban 
core.  The Travis County Community Centers play a key role in providing a location for service delivery . 

There are not sufficient resources to meet the demand for services.  Additionally, there is a need for a 
coordinated system for intake and assessment of clients.  The community has acknowledged the great 
need for services as demonstrated by the support for the creation of additional Permanent Supportive 
Housing (PSH) units.   

Provide a summary of the strategy for overcoming gaps in the institutional structure and 
service delivery system for carrying out a strategy to address priority needs 

The initial goal to create 350 units of PSH, is close to being met and the community is continuing to work 
together to create additional units of PSH.  Additionally, collaborative work is currently underway to 
improve coordination and create a coordinated intake and assessment system.    

To address the lack of capacity to administer federal funds among subrecipients and contractors, CDBG 
staff will create additional materials and provide training and technical assistance related to reporting 
requirements, income determination and other issues involved in administration of the program.   

To address the need for information that was identified during the Service Providers Forum, CDBG staff 
will create a document that can be used by service providers and includes zip code level maps and data 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     118 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

on neighborhoods in the unincorporated areas as well as an inventory of services currently being 
provided to residents.  

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     119 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Goals Summary 

Goals Summary Information  

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category Geographic 
Area 

Needs 
Addressed 

Funding Goal Outcome Indicator 

1 Street Improvements 2014 2018 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

  Infrastructure CDBG: 
$1,000,000 

Public Facility or Infrastructure 
Activities other than 
Low/Moderate Income Housing 
Benefit: 
6106 Persons Assisted 

2 Owner Occupied 
Home Rehabilitation 

2014 2018 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

  Housing CDBG: 
$2,000,000 

Homeowner Housing 
Rehabilitated: 
72 Household Housing Unit 

3 Creation of New 
Rental Units 

2014 2016 Affordable Housing   Housing CDBG: 
$343,000 

Rental units constructed: 
192 Household Housing Unit 

4 Tenants Rights and 
Fair Housing 
Counseling 

2014 2018 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

  Community 
Services 

CDBG: 
$250,000 

Public service activities other 
than Low/Moderate Income 
Housing Benefit: 
340 Persons Assisted 

5 Expansion of Social 
Work Services 

2014 2018 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

  Community 
Services 

CDBG: 
$400,000 

Public service activities other 
than Low/Moderate Income 
Housing Benefit: 
2000 Persons Assisted 

Table 58 – Goals Summary 
 

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     120 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Goal Descriptions 

1 Goal Name Street Improvements 

Goal Description Improve streets in low to moderate income areas to improve sustainability and quality of neighborhoods.  

2 Goal Name Owner Occupied Home Rehabilitation 

Goal Description Provide needed repairs to low to moderate income homeowners to improve and/or maintain affordable housing stock.  

3 Goal Name Creation of New Rental Units 

Goal Description Land Acquisition to support the creation of new, affordable multi-family housing rental units.  

4 Goal Name Tenants Rights and Fair Housing Counseling 

Goal Description Increase access for tenants rights and fair housing counseling.  

5 Goal Name Expansion of Social Work Services 

Goal Description Provides increased access to social work services in the CDBG service area, a traditionally underserved area.  
Table 59 – Goal Descriptions 

 

Estimate the number of extremely low-income, low-income, and moderate-income families to whom the jurisdiction will provide 
affordable housing as defined by HOME 91.315(b)(2) 

One project is slated to provide affordable housing during the strategic planning period: Creation of New Rental Housing.  This project will focus 
on rental housing (1 to 3 bedroom units) for people living at or below 60% of Median Family Income.  

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     121 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Public Housing Accessibility and Involvement  
Need to Increase the Number of Accessible Units (if Required by a Section 504 Voluntary 
Compliance Agreement)  

N/A There are currently no units of public housing the CDBG jurisdiction. 

Activities to Increase Resident Involvements 

N/A There are currently no units of public housing the CDBG jurisdiction. 

Is the public housing agency designated as troubled under 24 CFR part 902? 

No 

Plan to remove the ‘troubled’ designation  

N/A 

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     122 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Barriers to affordable housing  
Barriers to Affordable Housing 

Lack of Funding for Affordable Housing 

Funding for affordable housing requires many different products to achieve the desired 
affordability levels needed in a community. Funding mechanisms including the HOME Investment 
Program, tax credits, Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), Federal Housing Administration 
loans, and down-payment assistance are key to increasing the affordable housing stock. Currently, Travis 
County does not receive a HOME formula allocation, which is a major funding source for many 
entitlement communities to develop affordable housing.  

Utility Costs 

The cost of utilities may make homeownership unaffordable for low-income households in the 
unincorporated areas. The Public Utility of Commission of Texas has limited ability to regulate these 
rates.  

The following section is excerpted from the AI, prepared by the consulting firm Mullin & Lonergan. 

Comprehensive Planning and Land Use Authority   

A community’s comprehensive plan is a statement of policies relative to new development and 
preservation of existing assets. In particular, the land use element of the comprehensive plan defines 
the location, type and character of future development. The housing element of the comprehensive 
plan expresses the preferred density and intensity of residential neighborhoods within the 
county. Taken together, the land use and housing elements of the comprehensive plan define a vision of 
the type of place that a community wishes to become. 

Travis County has not adopted a comprehensive plan or similar document that contains broad objectives 
for land use or housing. Like all Texas counties, Travis County is limited by state law in the extent of its 
land use authority. In unincorporated areas, Texas counties may approve the subdivision of land, 
construct and maintain subdivision roads and assess costs to landowners, and may specify 
minimum standards for road construction and drainage.  

Building Standards 

Texas, a Dillon’s rule state, does not allow counties to adopt home rule; therefore, the powers they 
may exercise are limited to those explicitly granted by state government. For Texas counties, this 
does not include the authority to adopt building codes. What applies outside of incorporated boundaries 
are the standards of the International Building Code, which has been effectively adopted by the state. 
The responsibility for compliance is on builders, who submit construction reports to county 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     123 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

governments. Even if such a report indicates that a builder has not met an aspect of the code, however, 
counties do not wield direct enforcement power. Therefore, Travis County’s authority over 
new residential construction projects concerns only the issuance of three permits: driveway (if the 
property is on a county-maintained road), floodplain and septic system. The absence of meaningful local 
control over the design and construction of new residential structures is one possible reason for 
reported instances of noncompliance with federal and state accessibility requirements.  

Strategy to Remove or Ameliorate the Barriers to Affordable Housing 

To address the rising cost of housing in Travis County, The CDBG program will fund land acquisition for 
the development of affordable rental housing and will continue investment in the rehabilitation of 
owner-occupied housing. The County will encourage the Housing Finance Corporation to continue its 
efforts to provide down payment assistance to income-eligible households and work with developers to 
create affordable units through the single-family and multi-family bond programs.  

The CDBG Office will consult with Travis County Office of Intergovernmental Relations to explore any 
policy options that may apply to the issue of utility rates. Additionally, the CDBG office will provide data 
and other resources to neighborhoods that request information relating to housing costs and utility 
rates.    

To offset the lack of land use authority, the County will develop a comprehensive Affordable Housing 
Policy for Travis County that includes siting recommendations. The County will continue its legislative 
advocacy efforts in the interest of gaining increased land-use authority and the ability to adopt and 
enforce a building code. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     124 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Homelessness Strategy  
Reaching out to homeless persons (especially unsheltered persons) and assessing their 
individual needs 

For the five year period covered in this Plan, Travis County does not intend to target CDBG funds toward 
efforts to address homelessness. Travis County is a member of the Ending Community Homelessness 
Coalition (ECHO) whose mission is to identify specific strategies and oversee ongoing planning and 
implementation of a plan to end chronic homelessness in Austin and Travis County.  ECHO’s The Plan to 
End Community Homelessness in Austin-Travis County, outlines a model of homeless services 
continuum, intended to address the needs of all persons from those at immediate risk of becoming 
homeless to the chronically homeless.  In accordance with this plan, Travis County invests over $300,000 
in general fund dollars in contracts with social service providers targeting the homeless. 

Over the five year period, CDBG staff will participate in ECHO committees to assist in selection of 
projects for the Continuum of Care grant, point in time count and other planning functions to advocate 
for homeless needs identified in the unincorporated areas of the county. Additionally, staff will review 
the investments of general fund dollars in the homelessness issue area and advocate that investments 
increase or remain at level funding. 

Addressing the emergency and transitional housing needs of homeless persons 

For the five year period covered in this Plan, Travis County does not intend to target CDBG funds toward 
efforts to address homelessness. For information on the County's strategies relating to homelessness 
issues please see the response to the first question in this section.  

Helping homeless persons (especially chronically homeless individuals and families, families 
with children, veterans and their families, and unaccompanied youth) make the transition to 
permanent housing and independent living, including shortening the period of time that 
individuals and families experience homelessness, facilitating access for homeless individuals 
and families to affordable housing units, and preventing individuals and families who were 
recently homeless from becoming homeless again. 

For the five year period covered in this Plan, Travis County does not intend to target CDBG funds toward 
efforts to address homelessness.  For information on the County's strategies relating to homelessness 
issues please see the response to the first question in this section.  

Help low-income individuals and families avoid becoming homeless, especially extremely 
low-income individuals and families who are likely to become homeless after being 
discharged from a publicly funded institution or system of care, or who are receiving 
assistance from public and private agencies that address housing, health, social services, 
employment, education or youth needs 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     125 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

For the five year period covered in this Plan, Travis County does not intend to target CDBG funds toward 
efforts to address homelessness.  For information on the County's strategies relating to homelessness 
issues please see the response to the first question in this section.  

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     126 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Lead based paint Hazards  
Actions to address LBP hazards and increase access to housing without LBP hazards 

Travis County plans to partner with the City of Austin to expand the City's Lead Based Paint Remediation 
program outside of the City's boundaries. Additionally, the CDBG funded Home Repair Project will 
continue to assess homes for lead based paint hazards as part of intake into the program and any work 
performed on homes will be according to the program's prescribed lead based paint standards.   

How are the actions listed above related to the extent of lead poisoning and hazards? 

There are a limited number of homes with lead based paint hazards in the unincorporated areas. The 
strategy outlined above allows lead to be addressed when it is found.  

How are the actions listed above integrated into housing policies and procedures? 

The CDBG program has established Lead Based Paint Guidelines that conform to HUD standards. The 
guidelines are integrated into the program guidelines for any CDBG funded housing project and are 
included in subrecipient manuals that are created by CDBG staff for subrecipients implementing housing 
projects.  

 

 

 

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     127 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Anti-Poverty Strategy  
Jurisdiction Goals, Programs and Policies for reducing the number of Poverty-Level Families 

Travis County's lead agency for administering CDBG funds is the Health and Human Services & Veterans 
Service Department. The goal of the department is to address community needs through internal and 
external investments and services. The department strives to accomplish the following: Maximize 
quality of life for all people in Travis County; Protect vulnerable populations; Invest in social and 
economic well-being; Promote healthy living: physical, behavioral, and environmental; and Build a 
shared understanding of our community. Travis County operates a number of anti-poverty programs 
that assist individuals and families on multiple fronts in transitioning from crisis to self-sufficiency. The 
County carries out its anti-poverty programs both through the direct delivery of services managed by 
HHS/VS and by purchasing services from private and not-for-profit agencies in the community. In 
addition to the provision of direct services, Travis County continually assesses the poverty and basic 
needs of county residents, works with stakeholders in facilitating anti-poverty efforts, and supports 
public policy initiatives that prevent and ameliorate conditions of poverty. For more information on 
specific social service contract investments please refer to Section NA-45, Non-Homeless Special Needs 
Assessment. 

How are the Jurisdiction poverty reducing goals, programs, and policies coordinated with this 
affordable housing plan 

The CDBG program intends to continue to fund a social work program to assist residents of the CDBG 
service area. The program anticipates serving 400 people during PY14. As identified in the needs 
assessment of this plan, 5% of social service contract investments made by the Department in 2013 
were provided to persons living in the unincorporated areas (and an additional 25% to residents of areas 
that include a mix of incorporated and unincorporated geographies,) while 18% of the population lives 
in these areas. This program's aim is to improve access to social services to residents of the 
unincorporated areas. Over the entire Consolidated Planning period, CDBG staff intends to review 
investments and participate in planning efforts to address poverty to advocate for services in the 
unincorporated areas. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     128 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Monitoring  
Describe the standards and procedures that the jurisdiction will use to monitor activities 
carried out in furtherance of the plan and will use to ensure long-term compliance with 
requirements of the programs involved, including minority business outreach and the 
comprehensive planning requirements 

As the lead agency for development and implementation of the CDBG Consolidated Plan, the Travis 
County HHS/VS department implements standard policies and procedures for monitoring the 
implementation of CDBG activities. These monitoring activities ensure compliance with program 
regulations and compliance with financial requirements. Federal guidelines that must be followed 
include: OMB A-110, OMB A-122, 24 CFR Part 570.603 (CDBG Labor Standards), 570.901-906 (CDBG), 
the Davis Bacon Act and Contract Work Hours and the Safety Standards Act (CDBG). HHS/VS provides 
contract administration for community development activities in conjunction with the Transportation 
and Natural Resources Department, including but not limited to contract negotiations, compliance 
monitoring, and payment and contract closeout. Travis County's Purchasing Department administers the 
Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) Program to ensure that minority and woman-owned 
businesses receive a fair and equal opportunity to participate in the county's procurement process. 
Subrecipient agreements will be used to conduct housing, community development and public service 
activities. The subrecipient agreement will be the foundation for programmatic monitoring. 
Subrecipients will be monitored for programmatic compliance onsite or remotely in the following 
manner: 1) All invoices and reports will be routed via HHS/VS CDBG staff prior to final approval by 
financial services and the Auditor's Office. 2) All new subrecipients will be desk-audited monthly, and 
quarterly reports will be reviewed and agencies will be monitored at least annually. 

Financial monitoring will be completed as necessary and as directed by the subrecipient fiscal 
performance and the external monitoring needs of the Travis County Auditor's office. Programmatic and 
fiscal monitoring may not occur concurrently. CDBG staff will utilize HUD checklists to conduct 
monitoring, as appropriate. Contractors may be used to provide some housing, community development 
and public services. Contractors will submit periodic reimbursement requests that document and verify 
expenditures. The contract agreement will be used as the primary basis for monitoring. The following 
steps are an integral part of the monitoring process for each contract: 1) Onsite or remote reviews at an 
established periodic interval (prior to project commencement) will occur to ensure compliance with 
terms of the contract, HUD guidelines, state/local building and construction standards, and review of 
engineering plans and specifications. 2) If a contractor is found to be out of compliance, a notice is sent 
stating their contractual obligation and required action. Failure to comply may result in loss of current 
and/or future contracts as well as a hold on any payments. 3) All HHS/VS invoices and HHS/VS and TNR 
Contactor reports will be routed via HHS/VS CDBG staff prior to final approval by financial services and 
the Auditor's Office. Internal Travis County projects will be monitored through Travis County HHS/VS 
CDBG staff. Monitoring activities will include documentation and tracking mechanisms, such as review of 
invoices prior to being paid, regular meetings with project management staff, and review of eligibility 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     129 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

files, if applicable. Travis County HHS/VS staff will maintain files to document each project and meet its 
respective compliance with HUD and related regulations. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     130 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Annual Action Plan 

Expected Resources  
Introduction 

For the Consolidated Planning period, the County anticipates receiving an estimated 4.9 million dollars.  This estimate is based off the County 
receiving increased allocation over the last couple of years in spite of reduced or level funding at the federal level.  The increased funding occurs 
due to the increased growth of population and poverty in the CDBG service area.  Due to tightening domestic spending, the CDBG allocation is 
expected to remain level or likely decrease over the next four years, however, staff believe the population growth will offset an allocation 
reduction. In Program Year 2014, the County expects to receive $997,649.  Additionally, three projects from prior years will continue to be 
implemented: 1) Lake Oak Estates Street Improvement Project; 2) Land Acquisition to Support Affordable Single Family Home Development; and 
3) Owner Occupied Home Rehabilitation Project.  

Anticipated Resources 

Program Source of 
Funds 

Uses of Funds Expected Amount Available Year 1 Expected 
Amount 

Available 
Reminder 
of ConPlan  

$ 

Narrative Description 
Annual 

Allocation: 
$ 

Program 
Income: $ 

Prior Year 
Resources: 

$ 

Total: 
$ 

CDBG public - 
federal 

Acquisition 
Admin and Planning 
Economic 
Development 
Housing 
Public 
Improvements 
Public Services 997,649 0 0 997,649 3,990,596 

CDBG Funding for Program 
Year 2014. 

Table 60 - Expected Resources – Priority Table 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     131 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 
Explain how federal funds will leverage those additional resources (private, state and local funds), including a description of how 
matching requirements will be satisfied 

No matching requirements exist for CDBG funding, however, several projects expect to use private, state or local funds. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     132 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

If appropriate, describe publically owned land or property located within the jurisdiction that 
may be used to address the needs identified in the plan 

Not applicable. 

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     133 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Annual Goals and Objectives 
 

Annual Goals and Objectives 

Goals Summary Information  

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category Needs 
Addressed 

Funding Goal Outcome Indicator 

1 Street Improvements 2014 2018 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

Infrastructure CDBG: 
$125,000 

Public Facility or Infrastructure 
Activities other than Low/Moderate 
Income Housing Benefit: 564 Persons 
Assisted 

2 Owner Occupied 
Home Rehabilitation 

2014 2018 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

Housing CDBG: 
$200,000 

Homeowner Housing Rehabilitated: 8 
Household Housing Unit 

3 Creation of New 
Rental Units 

2014 2016 Affordable Housing Housing CDBG: 
$343,010 

Rental units constructed: 192 
Household Housing Unit 

4 Expansion of Social 
Work Services 

2014 2018 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

Community 
Services 

CDBG: 
$80,110 

Public service activities other than 
Low/Moderate Income Housing 
Benefit: 400 Persons Assisted 

5 Tenants Rights and 
Fair Housing 
Counseling 

2014 2018 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

Community 
Services 

CDBG: 
$50,000 

Public service activities other than 
Low/Moderate Income Housing 
Benefit: 68 Persons Assisted 

Table 61– Goals Summary 
 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     134 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Goal Descriptions 

1 Goal Name Street Improvements 

Goal Description Improve streets in low to moderate income areas to improve sustainability and quality of neighborhoods.  

2 Goal Name Owner Occupied Home Rehabilitation 

Goal Description Provide needed repairs to low to moderate income homeowners to improve and/or maintain affordable housing stock.  

3 Goal Name Creation of New Rental Units 

Goal Description Land Acquisition to support the creation of new, affordable multi-family housing rental units.  

4 Goal Name Tenants Rights and Fair Housing Counseling 

Goal Description Increase access for tenants rights and fair housing counseling.  

5 Goal Name Expansion of Social Work Services 

Goal Description Provides increased access to social work services in the CDBG service area, a traditionally underserved area.  
Table 62– Goal Description 

 

 

 

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     135 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Projects  

Projects  
Introduction  

Travis County residents, services providers and County departments had the opportunity to present 
potential CDBG projects by participating in any of the six public hearings held during the months of 
February and March, 2014. Two hearings were held at the Travis County Commissioners Court and the 
other four were held throughout each of the four County precincts. 

Those that were not able to attend public hearings had the choice of completing a Needs Assessment 
Survey or a Project Proposal Form.  Both of these forms could be accessed on the Travis County Website 
or requested from Travis County CDBG staff. 

The following projects for PY14 were approved by Travis County Commissioners Court on June 10, 2014. 
For a full description of projects, including relevant maps, please refer to the "Appendix E: PY14 
Projects." 

Projects 

# Project Name 
1 PY14 New Rental Housing Units 
2 PY14 Street Improvements 
3 PY14 Owner Occupied Housing 
4 PY14 FSS Social Work Services Expansion Project 
5 PY14 Tenant's Rights and Fair Housing Counseling 
6 PY14 Administrative & Planning 

Table 63 – Project Information 
 
Describe the reasons for allocation priorities and any obstacles to addressing underserved 
needs 

Travis County CDBG staff considered and weighed all potential projects identified by the public. First, the 
CDBG Office staff assessed whether potential projects met one of HUD’s national objectives, were 
eligible CDBG activities, and were feasible to complete in a timely manner.  

Second, CDBG staff further evaluated the projects according to the following criteria: 

Addresses a high priority goal of the Strategic Plan: Projects addressing one of the high priority 
categories identified in the strategic (consolidated) plan are given a priority. 

Feasibility of project: Projects that have the ability to be implemented and completed within 18 months 
receive a more favorable review. Phased projects for which 12-18 months of work would leave an 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     136 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

incomplete project with little to no impact are considered with less priority. 

Impacts a significant number of households: Project scope and the number of persons benefiting are 
considered to determine the level of project impact. 

Benefit to low/moderate-income persons: Projects that benefit low- and moderate-income households 
receive a more favorable review. 

Leverages/matches with funding from another source: Projects that utilize other funds (federal, state, 
local, private) and public/private joint efforts receive a more favorable review. 

In addition, the Action Plan includes approved alternate projects. This allows for the pre-planning of 
unforeseen incidents, and allows the CDBG program to utilize the funds in a timely manner toward pre-
identified alternate projects. Resources, including time and money, that would otherwise be used to add 
or delete projects through the customary Substantial Amendment process described in the Citizen 
Participation Plan can be saved. Please refer to “Appendix E: PY14 Projects” for a list of approved 
Alternate Projects. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     137 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

AP-38 Project Summary 
Project Summary Information 

1 Project Name PY14 New Rental Housing Units 

Target Area   

Goals Supported Creation of New Rental Units 

Needs Addressed Housing 

Funding CDBG: $343,000 

Description This project is a proposed 192-unit affordable multifamily housing development. The apartments will 
feature well-appointed one-, two-, and three- bedroom apartment homes. 

Target Date 9/30/2016 

Estimate the number and type 
of families that will benefit 
from the proposed activities 

The project will consist of 192 units and will serve low- to moderate-income individuals at or below 60% of 
Area Median Income.  

Location Description The project will be located at either 12701 Lowden Lane or 727 FM 1626 in Manchaca or an alternate 
location still to be determined. 

Planned Activities Land Acquisition will occur on or about January 2015.  Completion of construction and rental of units to be 
expected on or about March 2016. 

2 Project Name PY14 Street Improvements 

Target Area   

Goals Supported Street Improvements 

Needs Addressed Infrastructure 

Funding CDBG: $125,000 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     138 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Description Forest Bluff is located in eastern Travis County, Precinct 1. Most of the roads in the subdivision have been 
accepted by Travis County as maintained right-of-way. Several streets were not accepted by the County. 
Lack of regular maintenance has caused the roadway to deteriorate. This project would serve to bring the 
roadway up to Travis County standards and have it accepted for future maintenance as a Travis County 
roadway and make any necessary drainage improvements. 

Target Date 9/30/2016 

Estimate the number and type 
of families that will benefit 
from the proposed activities 

The improvements impact 564 persons (94 households), of which 94.1% are low-to-moderate income. 

Location Description Forest Bluff, Precinct 1 of Travis County. Please refer to the "Appendix E: PY14 Projects" for a map of the 
neighborhood.  

Planned Activities The project will be broken up into three phases and will include improvement to sections of: Arizona Oak 
Lane, Stave Oak Lane, Bigelow Drive, Catsby Court, English Avenue, and Delta Post Drive. The first phase of 
the project, funded with PY14 funds, will include: 1) design services; 2) land surveying services; 3) geo-
technical services; 4) drainage design services; 5) utility location and relocation coordination services; 6) 
environmental review and related regulatory permits; and 7) project management time. Construction will 
be phased over two years. 

3 Project Name PY14 Owner Occupied Housing 

Target Area   

Goals Supported Owner Occupied Home Rehabilitation 

Needs Addressed Housing 

Funding CDBG: $200,000 

Description This project funds minor home repair services for low- and moderate-income homeowners in the 
unincorporated areas of Travis County and the Village of Webberville, to move homes towards Housing 
Quality Standards. 

Target Date 9/30/2015 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     139 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Estimate the number and type 
of families that will benefit 
from the proposed activities 

These funds are targeted toward homeowners at or below 80% MFI in the CDBG service area. Eight 
households will be served with PY14 funds.  

Location Description Households can be located anywhere in the unincorporated areas of Travis County or the Village of 
Webberville.   

Planned Activities The program seeks to improve the energy efficiency, physical living conditions, and safety in owner-
occupied homes. A 0% interest, forgivable 5-year loan up to $24,999 with no required annual or monthly 
payments is available. The loan is forgiven at a pro-rata rate of 20% for each year of home ownership. 
Some of the allocation will be used for project delivery costs of the project and some of the allocation may 
partially fund a CDBG Planner position to complete environmental paperwork, final inspections and sign off 
and any other needed project delivery related costs. 

4 Project Name PY14 FSS Social Work Services Expansion Project 

Target Area   

Goals Supported Expansion of Social Work Services 

Needs Addressed Community Services 

Funding CDBG: $80,110 

Description This program is an internal Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service expansion of 
existing services. The program increases program capacity to provide case management, information and 
referral, non-clinical counseling, crisis intervention and outreach in all four precincts of the unincorporated 
areas. 

Target Date 9/30/2015 

Estimate the number and type 
of families that will benefit 
from the proposed activities 

The project will serve 400 individuals who are at or below 80% MFI.  

Location Description Households can be located anywhere in the unincorporated areas of Travis County or the Village of 
Webberville.   

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     140 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Planned Activities The project will fund the equivalent of one FTE social worker who works at a Travis County HHS&VS facility, 
however, to reduce transportation barriers; the social worker provides the majority of service provision 
through home visits. Additionally, part of the funds may be used for 9 Homeless Management Information 
System (HMIS) licenses to provide access for a new HUD requirement through the Continuum of Care 
called coordinated assessment, which evaluates the vulnerability of homeless or people at-risk of 
homelessness to more rapidly house them. Furthermore, operating expenses necessary to provide home 
based services, mileage, and training, among others may be funded.   

5 Project Name PY14 Tenant's Rights and Fair Housing Counseling 

Target Area   

Goals Supported   

Needs Addressed Community Services 

Funding CDBG: $50,000 

Description The funds are allocated for Tenants Rights and Fair Housing Counseling for residents of the unincorporated 
areas and the Village of Webberville. 

Target Date 9/30/2015 

Estimate the number and type 
of families that will benefit 
from the proposed activities 

The project will serve 68 individuals. At least 51% of the recipients will be at or below 80% of the Median 
Family Income (MFI). Because housing discrimination occurs at all income levels, the project will be 
allowed to service up to 33 households above 80% MFI.  

Location Description Households may be located anywhere in the unincorporated areas of Travis County or the Village of 
Webberville.  

Planned Activities Tenant’s Rights services include: telephone counseling and in-person mediation, as needed. Fair housing 
services include: fair housing counseling, fair housing complaint processing and testing in support of an 
individual complainant. Additionally, part of the funds will be used for allowable program delivery costs 
such as outreach and marketing.  

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     141 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

6 Project Name PY14 Administrative & Planning 

Target Area   

Goals Supported  Not Applicable 

Needs Addressed  Not Applicable 

Funding CDBG: $199,529 

Description The funds allocated for administration and planning will pay for the administration expenses associated 
with the grant. 

Target Date 9/30/2015 

Estimate the number and type 
of families that will benefit 
from the proposed activities 

Not Applicable 

Location Description Not Applicable 

Planned Activities The funds allocated for administration will pay for the operating expenses associated with the grant 
including office supplies, training, contracted services, interpreting, fair housing activities, membership, 
Action Plan, annual report, reporting and other business related expenses. Additionally, the funds will pay 
for a portion (100% and 60%) of the salaries for the two CDBG Planners (one full time and one 3/4 time), 
and a portion (25%) of the salary of a TNR Senior Engineer.  These positions are responsible for project 
development, action plan and annual report development, monitoring, and reporting and other tasks 
relating to administration and planning.  

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     142 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Geographic Distribution  
Description of the geographic areas of the entitlement (including areas of low-income and 
minority concentration) where assistance will be directed  

The jurisdiction of the County's CDBG program is the unincorporated areas of the County and the Village 
of Webberville.  Projects are located in eligible areas throughout the jurisdiction.   

Rationale for the priorities for allocating investments geographically  

While the program does not specifically target geographic areas within the jurisdiction, geography is a 
consideration when evaluating different types of projects.  In impacted areas, primarily in the 
Southeastern parts of the jurisdiction, projects that improve access to services and improve 
neighborhood quality are prioritized. New housing development projects are prioritized in non-impacted 
areas of high opportunity that would further fair housing goals.  Infrastructure projects are considered in 
areas of need throughout that jurisdiction and are typically located in neighborhoods characterized by 
isolated pockets of poverty.   

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     143 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Affordable Housing  

Affordable Housing  
Introduction 

During PY14, the CDBG program will fund acquisition of land for new construction of 192 units of 
affordable rental housing. The project will serve low- to moderate-income individuals at or below 60% of 
Area Median Income. The ongoing Home Repair project is anticipated to repair 8 homes during 
PY14.  While there are no specific goals associated with assisting Disabled and Elderly households, the 
Home Repair project does target these populations.   

 

One Year Goals for the Number of Households Supported Through 
Rental Assistance 0 
The Production of New Units 192 
Rehab of Existing Units 8 
Acquisition of Existing Units 0 
Total 200 

Table 64 - One Year Goals for Affordable Housing by Support Type 

 

 

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     144 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Public Housing 
Introduction 

There are no public housing units in the jurisdiction. Therefore there are no actions related to public 
housing for the CDBG program in PY14.   

Actions planned during the next year to address the needs to public housing 

There are no public housing units in the jurisdiction. Therefore there are no actions related to public 
housing for the CDBG program in PY14.   

Actions to encourage public housing residents to become more involved in management and 
participate in homeownership 

There are no public housing units in the jurisdiction. Therefore there are no actions related to public 
housing for the CDBG program in PY14.   

If the PHA is designated as troubled, describe the manner in which financial assistance will be 
provided or other assistance  

The Housing Authority of Travis County is not designated as troubled.  

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     145 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Homeless and Other Special Needs Activities 
 

Describe the jurisdictions one-year goals and actions for reducing and ending homelessness 
including reaching out to homeless persons (especially unsheltered persons) and assessing 
their individual needs 

The CDBG funded Social Work project will assist in piloting the Continuum of Care's Coordinated 
Assessment system in areas outside the urban core.  In PY14, the project includes funding for 9 HMIS 
licenses for the social workers and their supervisor.   

Addressing the emergency shelter and transitional housing needs of homeless persons 

HHS provides general fund dollars to variety of agencies that work on homelessness issues through its 
social service contract investments. No federal funds will by used in PY14 for emergency or transitional 
housing.   

Helping homeless persons (especially chronically homeless individuals and families, families 
with children, veterans and their families, and unaccompanied youth) make the transition to 
permanent housing and independent living, including shortening the period of time that 
individuals and families experience homelessness, facilitating access for homeless individuals 
and families to affordable housing units, and preventing individuals and families who were 
recently homeless from becoming homeless again 

The social work team, which is partially funded by the CDBG program, holistically assist individuals and 
families in gaining or maintaining housing stability.  Additionally, HHS provides general fund dollars to 
variety of agencies that work on homelessness issues through its social service contract investments. 

Helping low-income individuals and families avoid becoming homeless, especially extremely 
low-income individuals and families and those who are: being discharged from publicly 
funded institutions and systems of care (such as health care facilities, mental health facilities, 
foster care and other youth facilities, and corrections programs and institutions); or, receiving 
assistance from public or private agencies that address housing, health, social services, 
employment, education, or youth needs 

The social work team, which is partially funded by the CDBG program, holistically assist individuals and 
families in gaining or maintaining housing stability.  Additionally, HHS provides general fund dollars to 
variety of agencies that work on homelessness issues through its social service contract investments. 

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     146 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Barriers to affordable housing 
Introduction:  

Texas, a Dillon’s rule state, does not allow counties to adopt home rule; therefore, the powers they 
may exercise are limited to those explicitly granted by state government. For Texas counties, this 
does not include the authority to adopt building codes. What applies outside of incorporated boundaries 
are the standards of the International Building Code, which has been effectively adopted by the 
state. Additionally, Travis County is limited by state law in the extent of its land use authority. In 
unincorporated areas, Texas counties may approve the subdivision of land, construct and maintain 
subdivision roads and assess costs to landowners, and may specify minimum standards for road 
construction and drainage.  

Actions it planned to remove or ameliorate the negative effects of public policies that serve 
as barriers to affordable housing such as land use controls, tax policies affecting land, zoning 
ordinances, building codes, fees and charges, growth limitations, and policies affecting the 
return on residential investment 

To offset the lack of land use authority, the County will develop a comprehensive Affordable Housing 
Policy for Travis County that includes siting recommendations. 

During the 2015 Texas Legislative Session, the County will continue its legislative advocacy efforts in the 
interest of gaining increased land-use authority and the ability to adopt and enforce a building code. 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     147 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Other Actions  
Actions planned to address obstacles to meeting underserved needs 

The CDBG program will continue its advocacy efforts on behalf of the low income residents of the 
unincorporated areas.  These efforts include sponsoring tours of the unincorporated areas for non 
profits and other Travis County departments to raise awareness of need in these neighborhoods, and 
participation in forums where these needs may be discussed. 

To assist providers in strategically moving services into the unincorporated areas, CDBG staff will create 
a document that includes zip code level maps and demographic data on neighborhoods in the 
unincorporated areas as well as an inventory of services currently being provided to residents.  

Actions planned to foster and maintain affordable housing 

During PY14, the CDBG program will fund land acquisition for a proposed 192-unit affordable 
multifamily housing development to be located at either 12701 Lowden Lane or 727 FM 1626 in 
Manchaca or an alternate location to be determined. The project will serve low- to moderate-income 
individuals at or below 60% of Area Median Income, a population that will benefit as rental rates in the 
Austin/Round Rock MSA continue to increase. At time of lease-up, 100% of the units will be occupied by 
low- to moderate- income households, and 51% of the units will have an affordability period of 30 
years.   

The Home Repair program will be funded in PY14, which will assist in maintaining owner occupied 
homes for low- and moderate- income households.  Finally, Street Improvement projects will help 
maintain neighborhood quality, thereby helping to preserving home values of low- and moderate- 
income households.  

Actions planned to reduce lead-based paint hazards 

During PY14, Travis County will partner with the City of Austin to expand the City's Lead Based Paint 
Remediation program outside of the City's boundaries. Additionally, the CDBG funded Home Repair 
Project will continue to assess homes for lead based paint hazards as part of intake into the program 
and any work performed on homes will be according to the program's prescribed lead based paint 
standards.   

Actions planned to reduce the number of poverty-level families 

Travis County's lead agency for administering CDBG funds is the Health and Human Services & Veterans 
Service Department. The goal of the department is to address community needs through internal and 
external investments and services. The department strives to accomplish the following: Maximize 
quality of life for all people in Travis County; Protect vulnerable populations; Invest in social and 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     148 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

economic well-being; Promote healthy living: physical, behavioral, and environmental; and Build a 
shared understanding of our community. Travis County operates a number of anti-poverty programs 
that assist individuals and families on multiple fronts in transitioning from crisis to self-sufficiency. The 
County carries out its anti-poverty programs both through the direct delivery of services managed by 
HHS/VS and by purchasing services from private and not-for-profit agencies in the community. In 
addition to the provision of direct services, Travis County continually assesses the poverty and basic 
needs of county residents, works with stakeholders in facilitating anti-poverty efforts, and supports 
public policy initiatives that prevent and ameliorate conditions of poverty. For more information on 
specific social service contract investments please refer to Section NA-45, Non-Homeless Special Needs 
Assessment. 

Actions planned to develop institutional structure  

During PY14, CDBG staff capacity will be increased by changing one planner position from .5 FTE to .75 
FTE.  Both CDBG staff and staff from partner departments will attend HUD trainings to increase 
expertise, and CDBG staff will continue internal cross training to enhance capacity in the event of staff 
turnover.   

Actions planned to enhance coordination between public and private housing and social 
service agencies 

To assist service providers in extending services into the unincorporated areas, CDBG staff will create a 
document that can be used by service providers and includes zip code level maps and data on 
neighborhoods in the unincorporated areas as well as an inventory of services currently being provided 
to residents.  

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     149 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Program Specific Requirements 
Program Specific Requirements 

Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG)  
Reference 24 CFR 91.220(l)(1)  

Projects planned with all CDBG funds expected to be available during the year are identified in the 
Projects Table. The following identifies program income that is available for use that is included in 
projects to be carried out.  
 

 
1. The total amount of program income that will have been received before the start of the next 
program year and that has not yet been reprogrammed 0 
2. The amount of proceeds from section 108 loan guarantees that will be used during the year to 
address the priority needs and specific objectives identified in the grantee's strategic plan. 0 
3. The amount of surplus funds from urban renewal settlements 0 
4. The amount of any grant funds returned to the line of credit for which the planned use has not 
been included in a prior statement or plan 0 
5. The amount of income from float-funded activities 0 
Total Program Income: 0 

 
Other CDBG Requirements  

 
1. The amount of urgent need activities 0 
  
2. The estimated percentage of CDBG funds that will be used for activities that benefit 
persons of low and moderate income.Overall Benefit - A consecutive period of one, 
two or three years may be used to determine that a minimum overall benefit of 70% 
of CDBG funds is used to benefit persons of low and moderate income. Specify the 
years covered that include this Annual Action Plan. 100.00% 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     150 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Appendix - Alternate/Local Data Sources  

1 Data Source Name 

State of the Cities Data Systems, Building Permits 

List the name of the organization or individual who originated the data set. 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Provide a brief summary of the data set. 

Building Permits Database 

What was the purpose for developing this data set? 

To show trends in the distribution of housing units in the unincorporated areas. 

How comprehensive is the coverage of this administrative data? Is data collection concentrated in one 
geographic area or among a certain population? 

  

What time period (provide the year, and optionally month, or month and day) is covered by this data set? 

2003-2012 

What is the status of the data set (complete, in progress, or planned)? 

Complete 
2 Data Source Name 

2014 Point In Time Count 

List the name of the organization or individual who originated the data set. 

Ending Community Homelessness Coalition (ECHO) 

Provide a brief summary of the data set. 

An annual point-in-time count of homeless population in Travis County.  

What was the purpose for developing this data set? 

To provide a snapshot of the size and composition of the homeless population.  

How comprehensive is the coverage of this administrative data? Is data collection concentrated in one 
geographic area or among a certain population? 

Data is collected throughout the county.  

What time period (provide the year, and optionally month, or month and day) is covered by this data set? 

The count took place on January 24, 2014. 

What is the status of the data set (complete, in progress, or planned)? 

The data set is complete for 2014. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     151 
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

3 Data Source Name 

Homeless Housing Inventory, 2013 

List the name of the organization or individual who originated the data set. 

Ending Community Homelessness Coalition 

Provide a brief summary of the data set. 

An inventory of shelter beds for homeless households and individuals 

What was the purpose for developing this data set? 

To inventory shelter beds by type 

How comprehensive is the coverage of this administrative data? Is data collection concentrated in one 
geographic area or among a certain population? 

Data is for Austin/Travis County 

What time period (provide the year, and optionally month, or month and day) is covered by this data set? 

Data is provided for existing shelter beds in 2013 

What is the status of the data set (complete, in progress, or planned)? 

Complete 
4 Data Source Name 

Community Data on Shelter, Housing and Services 

List the name of the organization or individual who originated the data set. 

Ending Community Homelessness Coalition (ECH0) 

Provide a brief summary of the data set. 

Numbers of people served, numbers of individuals in shelter, and individuals served by 
subpopulation 

What was the purpose for developing this data set? 

To provide data on homelessness 

  

How comprehensive is the coverage of this administrative data? Is data collection concentrated in one 
geographic area or among a certain population? 

Sheltered individuals by a variety of subpopulations in City of Austin/Travis County 

What time period (provide the year, and optionally month, or month and day) is covered by this data set? 

Calendar Year 2013 

What is the status of the data set (complete, in progress, or planned)? 

Complete 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Public 
Participation

Summary of Participation Process
Detailed Results of Participation Process

Testimonies Received During Public Hearing At 
Commissioners Court

Needs Assessment Survey
Public Participation Advertisements

APPENDIX A
Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

 

 

 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 

Public engagement occurs throughout CDBG activities for four main purposes: needs gathering, 

approval of proposed actions, the substantial amendment process (if applicable), and the annual 

report (see chart below).  

 

 

The Consolidated Plan is a Strategic Plan that identifies needs and sets priorities, outcomes, and 

objectives for the CDBG program for a three-, five- or six-year period. Travis County’s Consolidated 

Plan is developed through a collaborative process and Public Engagement is a critical component. The 

Annual Action Plan is a document that outlines needs and projects that will guide how the upcoming 

year’s funding will be allocated. In the year that the Consolidated Plan is developed, the public 

hearings for input on the Annual Action Plan and Consolidated Plan are held at the same time. 

 

 

 

  

 
  

Timeline: 
February/March 

Public 
Engagement:  
5 public hearings 
(1 at Travis 
County 
Commissioners 
Court and 1 at 
each of the 4 
precincts 

Needs 
Gathering 

Process 

Timeline: 
June/July 

Public 
Engagement:  
30-day comment 
period 

2 public hearings 
at Travis County 
Commissioners 
Court 

Proposed 
Activities 
Process 

Timeline:  
Varies 

Public 
Engagement:  
30-day comment 
period 

1 public hearing 
at Travis County 
Commissioners 
Court 

Substantial 
Amendment 

Timeline: 
December 

Public 
Engagement:  
15-day comment 
period 

1 public hearing 
at Travis County 
Commissioners 
Court 

Annual 
Report 

Figure 1: Public Engagement Process 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas      

SUMMARY OF PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
For the Program Year (PY) 2014-2018 Consolidated Plan and PY14 Action Plan, information on 

community needs was gathered through a variety of mechanisms. During the months of February and 

March 2014, the public and service providers had the opportunity to provide input by 1) attending 

one of six public hearings, 2) completing a survey, 3) completing a project proposal form, and 4) 

attending a forum for service providers.  

 

Community Meetings 

Community meetings were held at several locations throughout the County in two different formats: 

public hearings and facilitated discussions. Information was collected to help determine priorities for 

the PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan and PY14 Action Plan, as well as projects for PY14. 

 

Two meetings were held at Travis County Commissioners’ Court during the normally scheduled voting 

session. These public hearings were held in the traditional public hearing format with oral testimony. 

Public hearings were also held in each of the four precincts. Participants were asked for input 

regarding their housing, community development and public service needs. These meetings were 

structured as an information session regarding the uses of CDBG, with facilitated discussion and 

decision-making for meaningful, comprehensive input from participants regarding their housing, 

community development and public service needs.   

 

Public hearings, where information was gathered for the Consolidated Plan and Action, were held 

according to the schedule below. 

Location of Hearings Dates / Times 

Community-
Wide Hearing 

Travis County Commissioners Court,  
700 Lavaca 

Tuesday, February 18, 2014, 9:00 am 
Tuesday March 11, 2014, 9:00 am 

Precinct 1 
 

Travis County Community Center at 
Manor 

Wednesday, February 19, 2014, 6:30 
pm 

Precinct 2 
 

Westside Meeting Hall, Austin 
Thursday, February 20, 2014, 6:30 
pm 

Precinct 3 
Travis County Community Center at Oak 
Hill 

Wednesday, March 5, 2014, 6:30 pm 

Precinct 4 
Travis County Community Center at Del 
Valle 

Thursday, March 6, 2014, 6:30 pm 

 

A total of 22 people attended public hearings to provide input on the Consolidated Plan and Action 

Plan. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas      

Summary of Public Comments Received at February 18th & March 11th Public Hearings 

 Two comments were received at the public hearing at Travis County Commissioners Court on 

February 18, 2014. 

 One individual requested information on the amount of the CDBG grant, the number of 

beneficiaries, and qualifications for the program. 

 One individual stated that he believed ECHO’s Point in Time Homeless count for 2014 was too 

low.  

 No comments were received at the March 11, 2014 hearing.   

 

Advertising  

The opportunity to participate was advertised on the Travis County website 

(www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG), the seven community centers, and the television channel of Travis 

County. The advertisement appeared in the following newspapers of general circulation: Austin 

Chronicle, Pflugerville Pflag, Hill Country News, Oak Hill Gazette, and The Villager. To reach the 

Spanish speaking population the advertisement was placed in the Spanish language newspaper Ahora 

Sí. In addition, notifications by mail and e-mail were sent to service providers via list serves, county 

residents who had previously attended public hearings, community liaison departments of schools 

districts, and neighborhood associations; and were posted on the CDBG Facebook and Twitter pages.   

 

Surveys 

Resident surveys were available online or by postal mail from February 18-March 31, 2014 and were 

offered in English and Spanish. Written surveys were available at public hearings and upon request 

for those without access to a computer or the internet. A total of six residents completed surveys to 

provide input on the Consolidated Plan. 

 

A provider survey was also available to gather input. The survey was available from February 18-

March 31, 2014 and was offered in English only. Several list-serves, including the County’s contracted 

social service providers, were used to send out the link to the online survey through email. A total of 

59 surveys were completed by agencies. 

 

DETAILED RESULTS OF PARTICIPATION PROCESS 
Consolidated Plan Summary of Results  

To assist in determining the spending priorities for PY2014-18, residents and service providers were 

asked to rank six categories on a scale of 1 to 6, with 1 being the most important issue area to 

address and 6 being the least important.   

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas      

Residents 

In total 26 responses were gathered from the public hearings and resident surveys. The table below 

provides the rankings of the categories for investment over the next five years. Infrastructure was 

ranked highest category of need. This was the case during the last Consolidated Planning period as 

well, and resident comments during the meetings confirm a high level of need in this category. 

 

Ranking of Service Categories  

by Residents 

Service Category Ranking 

Infrastructure 1 

Community Services 2 

Housing 3 

Populations with Specialized Needs/Services 4 

Business & Jobs 5 

Public Buildings & Facilities 6 

 

Social Service Providers 

In total, 59 responses were gathered from service provider agencies. Fifty-two of these agencies were 

non-profit organizations, and seven were units of local government. Respondents were asked to rank 

the same six categories as the residents. Providers ranked Housing as the most important for 

investment for PY2014-18. 

 

Ranking of Service Categories  

by Social Service Providers 

Service Category Ranking 

Housing 1 

Community Services 2 

Populations with Specialized Needs/Services 3 

Business & Jobs 4 

Infrastructure 5 

Public Buildings & Facilities 6 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas      

Comparison of Resident and Service Provider Priority Rankings of Service Categories 

Both residents and service providers reported similar priorities with regard to the rankings of 

Housing, (third and first respectively), and Community Services (second for both). However, while 

residents ranked Infrastructure as the most important need over the Consolidated Planning Period, 

providers ranked it fifth. This difference is likely due to residents having more direct experience of the 

infrastructure, or lack thereof, in the unincorporated areas, while service providers may not be aware 

of the degree of need in this area.   

 

Activity Rankings 

Residents and providers were also asked to rank specific activities within each category, with 1 being 

the most important need to address. The results are detailed in the tables that follow.   

 

Business & Jobs 
Resident 

Ranking  

Provider 

Ranking 

Small Business Loans 1 1 

Commercial Exterior Repair 2 3 

Microenterprise Loans 3 2 

 

Community Services 
Resident 

Ranking  

Provider 

Ranking 

Youth Supports or Programs 1 4 

Senior or Disabled Services 2 N/A* 

Homebuyer Assistance/Foreclosure Prevention 3 8 

Transportation Service 4 3 

Literacy/ABE 5 6 

Case Management and Outreach for Adults and Youth 6 1 

Job Training 7 2 

Housing Discrimination, Outreach, Education and Legal Services 8 7 

Interim Housing Assistance 9 5 

*The category “Senior or Disabled Services” was not ranked since it was not included on the  

service provider survey. 

 

Housing 
Resident 

Ranking  

Provider 

Ranking 

Repair of Single Family Homes 1 5 

Homeownership Assistance 2 3 

Repair of Rental Housing 3 4 

Creation of New Single Family Homes 4 2 

Creation of New Rental Housing 5 1 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas      

 

Infrastructure 
Resident 

Ranking  

Provider 

Ranking 

Water and Sewer Improvements 1 4 

Street Improvements 2 1 

Drainage Improvements 3 5 

Other Infrastructure (e.g. sidewalks, curb and gutter, etc.) 4 2 

Slum/Blight Removal 5 3 

 

Public Buildings & Facilities 
Resident 

Ranking  

Provider 

Ranking 

Parks 1 6 

Health Clinics 2 1 

Recreational Facilities 3 7 

Neighborhood or Community Centers 4 4 

Child Care Centers/Day Care Centers 5 5 

Homeless Facilities 6 2 

Senior Citizen Centers 7 N/A* 

Building Accessibility/Architectural Barrier Removal 8 5 

*The category “Senior Citizen Centers” was not ranked since it was not included on the service  

provider survey.   

 

Populations With Specialized Needs 
Resident 

Ranking  

Provider 

Ranking 

Domestic Violence Supportive Services 1 5 

Homeless Outreach and Supportive Services 2 2 

Special Needs Housing 3 3 

Substance Abuse Supportive Services 4 4 

Mental Health Supportive Services 5 1 

HIV/AIDS Supportive Services 6 6 

 

Comparison of Resident and Service Provider Priority Rankings of Activities 

It is interesting to note that while residents and service providers generally agreed on two of the 

three most urgent categories of need (Housing and Community Services) there was less agreement 

between the two groups on what were the most important activities within each of the categories.  

The only top priority ranking that matched was Small Business Loans under the Business and Jobs 

category. Both groups ranked Homeless Outreach and Supportive Services second in the Populations 

with Specialized Needs category, and residents ranked Street Improvements (Infrastructure) and 

Health Clinics (Public Buildings & Facilities) second, both of which were the providers’ highest ranked 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas      

activities in their respective categories. But in several cases there was an inversion in the activities 

that residents perceived as most important compared to the service providers’ ranking. For instance, 

in the Housing category, residents ranked Repair of Single Family Homes as the most important 

activity and Creation of Rental Housing as the least important, whereas service providers ranked 

Creation of Rental Housing as most important, and Repair of Single Family Homes as least important. 

Similarly, residents ranked Water and Wastewater (Infrastructure) as the most important priority, 

while providers ranked it fourth; and residents ranked Parks (Public Buildings & Facilities) as most 

important, while providers ranked it sixth.   

 

Action Plan Summary of Results 

To assist in determining the spending priorities for PY14, residents and service providers were asked 

to rank three of the six categories as “most urgent,” “urgent,” and “important” needs for the PY14 

period.   

 

Residents 

In total 26 responses were gathered from the public hearings and resident surveys. The table below 

provides the rankings of the categories for PY14. Residents’ top three rankings for PY14 were similar 

to the rankings for the Consolidated Planning period, with Infrastructure ranked as the most urgent 

need, but Housing replaced Community Services as the second most urgent need. Additionally, while 

Public Buildings & Facilities was ranked sixth for the Consolidated Plan period, it was ranked fourth 

for PY14.   

 

Ranking of Categories of Need 

by Residents 

Service Category Ranking 

Infrastructure 1 

Housing 2 

Community Services 3 

Public Buildings & Facilities 4 

Populations with Specialized Needs/Services  5 

Business & Jobs 6 

  

Social Service Providers 

In total, 59 responses were gathered from service provider agencies. Fifty-two of these agencies were 

non-profit organizations, and seven were units of local government. Respondents were asked to rank 

the same six categories as residents for the PY14 period. Providers’ rankings of categories for the 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas      

Action Plan period were the same as their rankings for the Consolidated Planning period, with 

Housing ranked as the most important area for investment in PY14. 

 

Ranking of Categories of Need 

by Social Service Providers 

Service Category Ranking 

Housing 1 

Community Services 2 

Populations with Specialized Needs/Services 3 

Business & Jobs  4 

Infrastructure 5 

Public Buildings & Facilities 6 

 

Project Proposals 

Project proposals which identified a community need and provided specific project ideas are 

accepted throughout the year. However, only project proposals received by March 31, 2014 will be 

considered for funding in the next program year. Project proposals can be submitted by Travis County 

Departments, neighborhoods, individuals, and service providers. Proposals can identify potential 

projects for PY14 and helped determine community needs for the PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan. A 

total of seven project proposals were received during the time specified. 

 

Public Comment to Solicit Feedback on Consolidated Plan  

After presentation to Travis County Commissioners Court, the draft PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan will 

be posted for written comment for thirty days, prior to the final approval by the Travis County 

Commissioners Court. Comments on the Consolidated Plan and PY14 Action Plan will be received 

simultaneously and will be accepted in writing via email or regular mail to the Travis County Health 

and Human Services and Veterans’ Service CDBG staff. The Draft Plan will be posted on the Travis 

County website and copies will be located at the seven Travis County Community Centers for public 

review. During the 30-day comment period, two public hearings will be held to inform and enable the 

community to comment on the proposed PY2014-18 priorities and uses of PY14 CDBG funds. These 

two public hearings will be held at the Travis County Commissioners’ Court during the normally 

scheduled voting session, and will be held in the traditional public hearing format with oral 

testimony. Any comments received during the Public Comment period will be added to the final draft. 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas      

Service Providers Forum 

On March 21, 2014, Travis County Health & Human Services, CDBG Program staff held a public forum 

for service providers and agencies whose current or planned service area includes, or potentially 

includes, communities in need within the CDBG service area. The forum was held at the Del Valle 

Community Center, which is located in the unincorporated area. Since the need for services outside 

the urban core is increasing as our population continues to be displaced outside the urban core, 

especially due to rising housing prices and lack of affordable housing, this location was specifically 

selected to get service providers out into the CDBG service area. 

 

The overall goal of the forum was to help identify potential opportunities for collaboration or 

coordination to supplement or expand existing services within the CDBG service area over the next 

five years. More specifically, the forum sought to determine which services are available and which 

are lacking in the CDBG service area, in order to help service providers determine what services they 

can provide in these outlying area, and to discuss how the County’s CDBG Program staff can help 

support this shift to extending services into the unincorporated areas. 

 

Between direct invitations via email and indirect invitations via email and/or newsletters sent out by 

Community Action Network (CAN) and/or OneVoice Central Texas (coalitions that bring together 

government, non-profit, private and faith-based organizations who provide services in Central Texas), 

over 100 agencies were invited to the forum. Nineteen providers attended the forum, representing 

17 agencies. 
 

TESTIMONIES RECEIVED DURING PUBLIC HEARINGS  
AT COMMISSIONERS COURT 
Two people testified at the February 18, 2014 public hearing. The full transcription of testimony 
received at Commissioners Court follows: 
 

Judge Biscoe: This is a public hearing on item number one, the community development block grant 
funds from HUD. If you would like to give comments, please come forward and give us your name. 
We would be happy to get your comments. Dr. Kim. 
 
Koo-hyun Kim: Thank you, thank you, I really appreciate you all. How much benefit will receive each 
person of Travis County if qualified and what is the qualification? And how much total will you receive 
from federal government? 
 
Christy Moffett: We're not sure yet how much we're going to receive from the federal government. 
We received an estimate. We should know in March our final amount. They are still working out the 
numbers. It will be somewhere around $900,000. In terms of individual benefit, it depends on the 
project. But I'm happy to talk with you more about the eligibility criteria. It's all project dependent. 
After the public hearing, I'm happy to talk with you. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

javascript:SetPosition(1323.262)
javascript:SetPosition(1325.297)
javascript:SetPosition(1326.365)
javascript:SetPosition(1326.365)
javascript:SetPosition(1327.266)
javascript:SetPosition(1329.167)
javascript:SetPosition(1330.268)
javascript:SetPosition(1331.369)
javascript:SetPosition(1332.971)
javascript:SetPosition(1335.373)
javascript:SetPosition(1336.207)
javascript:SetPosition(1339.877)
javascript:SetPosition(1343.482)
javascript:SetPosition(1346.251)
javascript:SetPosition(1349.454)
javascript:SetPosition(1349.454)
javascript:SetPosition(1353.191)
javascript:SetPosition(1356.494)
javascript:SetPosition(1359.631)
javascript:SetPosition(1360.432)
javascript:SetPosition(1360.432)
javascript:SetPosition(1361.933)
javascript:SetPosition(1363.868)
javascript:SetPosition(1365.236)
javascript:SetPosition(1366.104)
javascript:SetPosition(1367.138)
javascript:SetPosition(1369.407)
javascript:SetPosition(1370.041)
javascript:SetPosition(1371.909)
javascript:SetPosition(1372.343)
javascript:SetPosition(1374.545)
javascript:SetPosition(1375.145)
javascript:SetPosition(1376.815)
javascript:SetPosition(1378.049)
javascript:SetPosition(1378.550)
javascript:SetPosition(1380.118)
javascript:SetPosition(1384.355)
javascript:SetPosition(1384.856)
javascript:SetPosition(1385.856)
javascript:SetPosition(1387.892)
javascript:SetPosition(1388.893)


 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas      

 
Koo-hyun Kim: What are the qualifications to be eligible to receive the benefits? 
 
Christy Moffett: Again, it depends upon the program. I can explain it so…most people have to be at 
80% of median family income which for a family of four is close to $59,000--sorry, I don't have it 
memorized. It's around $59,000 for a family of four. 
 
Koo-hyun Kim: How can I contact you? 
 
Christy Moffett: Call me at (512)854-3460. 
 
Koo-hyun Kim: 3460. 
 
Christy Moffett: Uh-huh. 
 
Koo-hyun Kim: May I ask the office number? 
 
Christy Moffett: I'm not in this office. I'm in a different building. 
 
Koo-hyun Kim: Okay. Thank you. 
 
Christy Moffett: You're welcome. 
 
Judge Biscoe: Mr. Pena 
 
Gus Pena: Good morning, Judge, Commissioners, Gus Pena. I grew up in East Austin, 2327 East 5th St., 
proud graduate of Johnston High School. I don't know how many years you have been here and 
listening to what I said about the homelessness population. Well, I'm going to leave it at that, but this 
starts the dialogue, positive dialogue. Just had an article in the newspaper, and thank you very much 
Austin American Statesman, “Austin Fewer Homeless” Do I have dumb written on my face? I think it 
calls for a number—it says 1,987 people, a 5% decrease from the year before. All I'm trying to do is 
establish a foundation and basis for dialogue and how some of this funding can be used for housing 
the homeless. This is a serious issue. This is a serious problem in Austin and Travis County. I know this 
has to do with Travis County, but this relates to the funding from HUD. I have spoken to Secretary 
Donovan's office, Chief of Staff of HUD. I'm going to tell you, I don't know what mechanism ECHO is 
using or other organizations to count the homeless population in Austin and Travis County, but it ain't 
this. This is not a correct number of homelessness. Come on now, you go on the streets like I do, you 
go to Salvation Army, you go to Front Steps, you go to any other agency that helps out the homeless, 
it's going to be more than 4,000 people. You know, I don't have a doctorate, I don't have a master's, 
but darn it, I have common sense and my god gave me common sense and  my mom and dad too, 
god rest in peace, I understand it's about $900,000 from them and I understand and I appreciate, but 
one of the things we also need to do is redefine the median family income quotient. It is antiquated. 
We've been saying this for many years. I'll leave it at that. I'll leave it at that. If you listened to 
anything I said and $900,000, thank you very much, but it ain't what it calls for in the paper. 1,900 
homeless people, wrong. That's all I have to say, Judge, but good lord willing, I'll be able to attend the 
public hearings on the county side. On the city side I think I've educated them enough. I have known 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

javascript:SetPosition(1390.460)
javascript:SetPosition(1393.096)
javascript:SetPosition(1393.464)
javascript:SetPosition(1395.033)
javascript:SetPosition(1395.366)
javascript:SetPosition(1397.335)
javascript:SetPosition(1399.470)
javascript:SetPosition(1399.470)
javascript:SetPosition(1401.238)
javascript:SetPosition(1404.908)
javascript:SetPosition(1406.810)
javascript:SetPosition(1408.078)
javascript:SetPosition(1408.078)
javascript:SetPosition(1409.513)
javascript:SetPosition(1410.113)
javascript:SetPosition(1417.454)
javascript:SetPosition(1418.622)
javascript:SetPosition(1419.823)
javascript:SetPosition(1421.558)
javascript:SetPosition(1421.892)
javascript:SetPosition(1423.026)
javascript:SetPosition(1424.828)
javascript:SetPosition(1425.529)
javascript:SetPosition(1426.029)
javascript:SetPosition(1427.297)
javascript:SetPosition(1452.189)
javascript:SetPosition(1454.191)
javascript:SetPosition(1459.128)
javascript:SetPosition(1463.867)
javascript:SetPosition(1463.867)
javascript:SetPosition(1465.702)
javascript:SetPosition(1466.136)
javascript:SetPosition(1466.803)
javascript:SetPosition(1467.704)
javascript:SetPosition(1469.439)
javascript:SetPosition(1471.508)
javascript:SetPosition(1472.876)
javascript:SetPosition(1474.544)
javascript:SetPosition(1474.544)
javascript:SetPosition(1476.112)
javascript:SetPosition(1478.881)
javascript:SetPosition(1479.649)
javascript:SetPosition(1483.153)
javascript:SetPosition(1483.153)
javascript:SetPosition(1486.089)
javascript:SetPosition(1486.489)
javascript:SetPosition(1488.858)
javascript:SetPosition(1488.858)
javascript:SetPosition(1491.928)
javascript:SetPosition(1494.297)
javascript:SetPosition(1495.164)
javascript:SetPosition(1496.465)
javascript:SetPosition(1497.766)
javascript:SetPosition(1499.135)
javascript:SetPosition(1500.370)
javascript:SetPosition(1502.472)
javascript:SetPosition(1502.472)
javascript:SetPosition(1505.108)
javascript:SetPosition(1507.476)
javascript:SetPosition(1508.110)
javascript:SetPosition(1509.311)
javascript:SetPosition(1509.311)
javascript:SetPosition(1510.412)
javascript:SetPosition(1512.281)
javascript:SetPosition(1516.319)
javascript:SetPosition(1517.787)
javascript:SetPosition(1518.655)
javascript:SetPosition(1521.357)
javascript:SetPosition(1523.159)
javascript:SetPosition(1524.060)
javascript:SetPosition(1525.060)
javascript:SetPosition(1525.761)
javascript:SetPosition(1527.196)
javascript:SetPosition(1527.529)
javascript:SetPosition(1529.164)
javascript:SetPosition(1529.832)
javascript:SetPosition(1532.901)
javascript:SetPosition(1532.901)
javascript:SetPosition(1535.037)
javascript:SetPosition(1536.705)
javascript:SetPosition(1537.540)
javascript:SetPosition(1539.508)
javascript:SetPosition(1539.508)
javascript:SetPosition(1541.610)
javascript:SetPosition(1543.479)
javascript:SetPosition(1545.614)
javascript:SetPosition(1547.783)
javascript:SetPosition(1547.783)
javascript:SetPosition(1551.487)
javascript:SetPosition(1553.489)
javascript:SetPosition(1556.291)
javascript:SetPosition(1556.291)
javascript:SetPosition(1557.793)
javascript:SetPosition(1559.361)
javascript:SetPosition(1560.696)
javascript:SetPosition(1560.696)
javascript:SetPosition(1563.165)
javascript:SetPosition(1565.500)
javascript:SetPosition(1566.901)
javascript:SetPosition(1569.038)
javascript:SetPosition(1570.339)
javascript:SetPosition(1572.141)
javascript:SetPosition(1573.575)
javascript:SetPosition(1573.575)
javascript:SetPosition(1575.010)
javascript:SetPosition(1575.010)
javascript:SetPosition(1577.379)
javascript:SetPosition(1579.948)
javascript:SetPosition(1582.884)
javascript:SetPosition(1584.319)
javascript:SetPosition(1584.319)
javascript:SetPosition(1586.388)
javascript:SetPosition(1588.123)
javascript:SetPosition(1589.057)
javascript:SetPosition(1591.026)
javascript:SetPosition(1591.326)
javascript:SetPosition(1593.061)
javascript:SetPosition(1595.663)
javascript:SetPosition(1597.298)


 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas      

homelessness myself and it ain't healthy, it ain't good the family. I'll say this and you might get 
embarrassed, Judge, Judge Biscoe has been one of the people on the forefront to help out people. I 
want to thank you, Judge, and I'm going to say I hope you don't think it's political, I wish you would 
run for election. I would vote for you. I love you as a friend. Anyway, listen to the people. It's more 
than 1,987 homeless people here. Thank you, Judge. 
 
Judge Biscoe: Thank you Mr. Pena.  Anybody else? For this public hearing? Move the public hearing 
be closed.  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

javascript:SetPosition(1597.298)
javascript:SetPosition(1599.967)
javascript:SetPosition(1601.669)
javascript:SetPosition(1603.372)
javascript:SetPosition(1605.540)
javascript:SetPosition(1605.540)
javascript:SetPosition(1606.374)
javascript:SetPosition(1607.809)
javascript:SetPosition(1608.576)
javascript:SetPosition(1610.044)
javascript:SetPosition(1610.044)
javascript:SetPosition(1612.413)
javascript:SetPosition(1615.783)
javascript:SetPosition(1617.251)
javascript:SetPosition(1618.252)
javascript:SetPosition(1619.587)
javascript:SetPosition(1621.790)
javascript:SetPosition(1623.758)
javascript:SetPosition(1623.758)
javascript:SetPosition(1624.325)
javascript:SetPosition(1624.859)


 

 

 

 

 

 

Needs Assessment Survey (English) 

  

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Page 1

Travis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs Survey

• Every year, Travis County receives approximately $909,925 in federal funds from a program called the Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG). 
 
• The program must support housing, community development and public service projects and must benefit residents that 
live in the unincorporated areas of Travis County or the Village of Webberville.  
 
• In the first section of the survey, we would like you to have a voice in how these funds are spent for the next FIVE years 
(October 2014  September 2019) by filling out this survey and telling us where you see the greatest needs in your 
community. 
 
• In the second section of the survey, we would like you to have a voice in how these funds are spent for the NEXT 
program year (October 2014  September 2015) by filling out this survey and telling us where you see the greatest needs 
in your community and provide specific project ideas. 
 
• To learn more about CDBG, visit www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG 

1. Contact Information

2. Please check the category you represent

3. Would you like to receive emails or postal mail notifications about CDBG events?

 
1. Introduction & Contact Information

*
Name:

Company:

Address:

City/Town:

State: 6

ZIP/Postal Code:

Email Address:

Phone Number:

*

 

Resident
 

gfedc

Community Group
 

gfedc

ForProfit Business
 

gfedc

FaithBased Organization
 

gfedc

NonProfit Organization
 

gfedc

Travis County Department
 

gfedc

Email Notices
 

gfedc

Postal Mail Notices
 

gfedc

Not Interested
 

gfedc

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Page 2

Travis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs Survey

In this section, please think of the time period spannng from October 1, 2014 through September 30, 2019. Answer the 
questions with the unincorporated community needs in mind, and identify the categories that you think are important 
enough to be a priority for CDBG funds in the next five year period. 

The following six service categories are listed below: 1) Business & Jobs, 2) Community Services, 3) Housing, 4) 
Infrastructure Needs, 4) Public Buildings and Facilities, and 6) Populations with Specialized Needs/Services. Within each 
service category, tell us which one represents: 
 
 The Most Urgent Need (the most urgent area of investment needed in your community) 
 An Urgent Need (An urgent need but not necessarily the most urgent) 
 An Important Need (An important need but not as urgent).  
 
For categories with more than three needs listed, no more than three needs can be ranked. 

1. Business & Jobs

2. Section 1: Identifying Needs & Priorities for the Next Five Years

 
3. Ranking of Five Year Community Needs

Most Urgent Need Urgent Need Important Need

a. Commercial Exterior 
Repair

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

b. Microenterprise Loans nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

c. Small Business Loans nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Page 3

Travis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs Survey
2. Community Services

3. Housing

Most Urgent Need Urgent Need Important Need

a. Case Management & 
Outreach for Adults and 
Youth

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

b. Homebuyer Assistance 
Counseling or Foreclosure 
Prevention Counseling

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

c. Housing Discrimination 
Outreach, Education & 
Legal Services

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

d. Interim Housing 
Assistance (3 month rental 
assistance  crisis related)

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

e. Job Training nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

f. Literacy/Adult Basic 
Education and English 
Language Proficiency 
Services

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

g. Senior or Disabled 
Services

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

h. Transportation Services nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

i. Youth Supports or 
Programs

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Most Urgent Need Urgent Need Important Need

a. Creation of New Rental 
Housing

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

b. Creation of New Single 
Family Homes

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

c. Homeownership 
Assistance (i.e. down 
payment assistance, etc.)

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

d. Repair of Rental 
Housing

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

e. Repair of Single Family 
Homes

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Page 4

Travis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs Survey
4. Infrastructure Needs

5. Public Buildings and Facilities

6. Populations with Specialized Needs/Services

Most Urgent Need Urgent Need Important Need

a. Drainage Improvements nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

b. Other Infrastructure (e.g. 
sidewalks, curb and gutter, 
etc.)

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

c. Slum/Blight Removal nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

d. Street Improvements nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

e. Water and Sewer 
Improvements

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Most Urgent Need Urgent Need Important Need

a. Building Accessibility/ 
Architectural Barrier 
Removal

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

b. Child Care Centers/Day 
Care Centers

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

c. Health Clinics nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

d. Homeless Facilities nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

e. Neighborhood or 
Community Centers

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

f. Parks nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

g. Recreational Facilities nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Most Urgent Need Urgent Need Important Need

a. Domestic Violence 
Supportive Services

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

b. HIV/AIDS Supportive 
Services

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

c. Homeless Outreach and 
Supportive Services

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

d. Mental Health 
Supportive Services

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

e. Special Needs Housing 
(i.e. HIV, MHMR, substance 
Abuse, etc.)

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

f. Substance Abuse 
Supportive Services

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

 
4. Ranking of Five Year Priority Areas for Funding

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Page 5

Travis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs Survey
1. Using the numbers 16, please rank the following categories of services with 1 being the 
most important issue to address from October 1, 2014 through September 30, 2019, and 6 
being the least important.

In this section, please think of the time period spannng from October 1, 2014 through September 30, 2015 (which 
corresponds to Program Year 2014). Answer the questions with the unincorporated community needs in mind, and 
identify the categories you think are important enough to be a priority for CDBG funds in the next year. 

1. For Program Year 2014, of the six listed funding areas, please rank the top three areas 
by letting us know which one represents: 
 
 The most urgent need (the most urgent area of investment in your community) 
 An urgent need (but not necessarily the most urgent) 
 An important need (but not as urgent) 
 
No more than three categories can be ranked. 
 

1 2 3 4 5 6

Business & Jobs nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Community Services nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Housing nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Infrastructure nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Public Building & Facilities nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Populations with 
Specialized Needs/Services

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

 
5. 2014 Needs & Project Ideas

 
6. Identifying Needs for 2014

Most Urgent Need Urgent Need Important Need

Populations with 
Specialized 
Needs/Services

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Community Services nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Infrastructure nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Housing nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Public Buildings & 
Facilities

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Business & Jobs nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Page 6

Travis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs Survey

1. Please provide ideas for potential projects for Program Year 2014. Include the 
community need, the type of project and the location. 
 
For Example: 
Community Need: Poor roads 
Project Idea: Road Improvement Project 
Location: Hill Country Subdivision, 10041207 ABC Road, Austin, TX 78717 
 
Please note you may also provide a proposal for a specific project by filling out a Project 
Proposal Form available at the CDBG webpage at www.co.travis.tx.us/cdbg

 

2. For an additional comment or project idea, use the space below:

 

The next section is optional, but helpful to help the CDBG Office understand the extent to which housing discrimination 
may be occurring in the unincorporated areas. 

Housing discrimination based on your race, color, national origin, religion, sex, family status, or disability is illegal by 
federal law. Please answer the following questions about housing discrimination. Completion of this section is optional.  

1. Do you believe housing discrimination is an issue in your neighborhood?

2. Have you ever experienced discrimination in housing?

7. Identifying Projects for 2014

55

66

55

66

 
8. Optional Housing Discrimination Section

 
9. Housing Discrimination

Yes
 

nmlkj

No
 

nmlkj

Yes
 

nmlkj

No
 

nmlkj

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Page 7

Travis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs Survey
3. If so, who do you believe discriminated against you? Check all that apply.

4. On what basis do you believe you were discriminated against? Check all that apply.

5. If you believe you were discriminated against, did you report the incident?

6. If not, WHY? Check all that apply.

To find out more information about fair housing or how to report discriminating housing practices contact the CDBG program by calling 512854
3460 or visit http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/cdbg/fair_housing.asp 

Thank you for participating in this survey. Your assistance will help the County to plan for the future. If you have questions 
regarding this survey, please contact the Travis County CDBG Program at: (512) 8543460, email: cdbg@co.travis.tx.us 
or visit www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG 
 
If we mailed this survey to you, please return it to: CDBG Program, TCHHS/VS, P.O. Box 1748, Austin , TX 78767, 
postmarked no later than March 31, 2014. 

 
10. Thank You!

Landlord
 

gfedc

Mortgage Insurer
 

gfedc

Mortgage Lender
 

gfedc

Real State Agent
 

gfedc

Other
 

gfedc

Color
 

gfedc

Disability
 

gfedc

Family Status (single parent with children, family with children or expecting a child)
 

gfedc

Gender
 

gfedc

National Origin (country where you were born)
 

gfedc

Religion
 

gfedc

Race
 

gfedc

Yes
 

nmlkj

No
 

nmlkj

Don't know where to report
 

gfedc

Too much trouble
 

gfedc

Afraid of retaliation
 

gfedc

Don't believe it makes a difference
 

gfedc

Other
 

gfedc

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

 

 

 

 

 

Needs Assessment Survey (Spanish) 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Page 1

Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19

§  Todos los años, el Condado de Travis recibe aproximadamente $909,925 en fondos federales que provienen de un 
programa llamado Subsidio Global para el Desarrollo Comunitario (CDBG).  
 
§  El programa debe ayudar a financiar proyectos de viviendas, desarrollo comunitario y servicios públicos y debe 
beneficiar a los residentes que viven en las áreas no incorporadas del Condado de Travis o en el Pueblo de Webberville.  
 
§  En la primera sección de esta encuesta, nos gustaría que usted exprese sus opiniones sobre cómo se deberían 
gastar estos fondos en los próximos cinco años del programa (octubre de 2014septiembre de 2019). Para esto, debe 
completar esta encuesta para indicar dónde cree que se encuentran las mayores necesidades en su comuni.  
 
§  En la segunda sección de la encuesta, nos gustaría que usted exprese sus opiniones sobre cómo se deberían gastar 
estos fondos durante el próximo año programático (octubre de 2014septiembre de 2015). Para esto, debe completar 
esta encuesta para indicar dónde cree que se encuentran las mayores necesidades en su comunidad y proveer ideas de 
proyectos específicos.  
 
Para obtener más información sobre el programa CDBG, visite www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG 

1. Información de contacto

2. Por favor, marque la categoría que representa

 
1. Introducción e información de contacto

*
Nombre: 

Empresa:

Domicilio:

Ciudad/pueblo: 

Estado: 6

Código Postal:

Dirección de correo 
electrónico:

Número de teléfono: 

*
Residente

 
gfedc

Grupo comunitario
 

gfedc

Empresa con fines de lucro
 

gfedc

Organización religiosa
 

gfedc

Organización sin fines de lucro
 

gfedc

Departamento del Condado de Travis
 

gfedc

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Page 2

Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19
3. ¿Le gustaría recibir notificaciones sobre los eventos del programa CDBG por correo 
electrónico o por correo postal?

En esta sección, favor de pensar sobre el período desde el 1 de octubre de 2014 hasta el 30 de septiembre de 2019. 
Pensando en las necesidades de las comunidades en las áreas no incorporadas del Condado de Travis, conteste las 
siguientes preguntas e idenfique las categorías que usted piensa tienen suficiente importancia para ser una prioridad 
para los fondos de CDBG durante el período de los próximos cinco años. 

Las siguientes seis categorías están enumeradas: 1) Empresas y empleos, 2) Servicios comunitarios, 3) Vivienda, 4) 
Necesidades de infraestructura, 5) Edificios e instalaciones públicas, y 6) Necesidades especiales.  
 
Dentro de cada una de las categorías de servicio, díganos cuál representa: 
 
• La necesidad más urgente (el área de su comunidad que necesita inversión con más urgencia) 
• Una necesidad urgente (una necesidad urgente pero no necesariamente la más urgente) 
• Una necesidad importante (una necesidad importante pero no tan urgente) 
 
Dentro de cada categoría que tiene más de tres necesidades, sólo se pueden clasificar tres necesidades.  

1. Empresas y empleos

 
2. Seccion 1: Identificando necesidades y prioridades durante 20142019

 
3. Clasificación de las necesidades de la comunidad durante 20142019

*
Necesidad más urgente Necesidad urgente Necesidad importante

a. Reparación de fachadas 
comerciales

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

b. Préstamos para micro
emprendimientos

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

c. Préstamos para 
pequeñas empresas

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Notificaciones por correo electrónico
 

gfedc

Notificaciones por correo postal
 

gfedc

No estoy interesado
 

gfedc

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Page 3

Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19
2. Servicios comunitarios

3. Vivienda

*
Necesidad más urgente Necesidad urgente Necesidad importante

a. Administración de casos 
y ayuda para adultos y 
jóvenes

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

b. Asesoramiento y ayuda 
para compradores de casas 
o asesoramiento para la 
prevención de ejecución 
de hipoteca

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

c. Ayuda para casos de 
discriminación de vivienda, 
educación y servicios 
legales

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

d. Ayuda provisoria para 
vivienda (3 meses de 
ayuda con la renta en 
caso de crisis)

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

e. Capacitación laboral nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

f. Servicios de 
alfabetización / educación 
básica para adultos y 
capacitación en idioma 
inglés

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

g. Servicios para ancianos 
o descapacitados

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

h. Servicios de transporte nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

i. Programas o servicios de 
apoyo para jóvenes

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

*
Necesidad más urgente Necesidad urgente Necesidad importante

a. Creación de nuevas 
viviendas para alquiler

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

b. Creación de nuevas 
casas unifamiliares

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

c. Ayuda para la compra 
de vivienda (p.ej. ayuda 
con el pago inicial, etc.)

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

d. Reparación de viviendas 
para alquiler

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

e. Reparación de casas 
unifamiliares

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Page 4

Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19
4. Necesidades de infraestructura 

5. Edificios e instalaciones públicas 

*
Necesidad más urgente Necesidad urgente Necesidad importante

a. Mejoras en el drenaje nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

b. Otra infraestructura (p.ej. 
veredas, cordones y 
alcantarillas, etc.)

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

c. Remoción de 
vecindarios 
pobres/arruinados

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

d. Mejoras de las calles nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

e. Mejoras en el servicio de 
agua y cloacas

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

*
Necesidad más urgente Necesidad urgente Necesidad importante

a. Remoción de barreras 
arquitectónicas / acceso a 
edificios

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

b. Centro de cuidado 
infantil / Centros de 
cuidado durante el día

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

c. Clínicas de salud nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

d. Instalaciones para 
personas sin hogar

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

e. Centros comunitarios o 
de vecindarios

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

f. Parques nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

g. Instalaciones recreativas nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Page 5

Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19
6. Necesidades especiales  

1. Por favor, usando los números del 1 al 6 clasifique las siguientes categorías de 
servicios: use el 1 para los asuntos más importantes y el 6 los menos importantes que se 
deberían abordar desde el 1 de octubre de 2014 hasta el 30 de septiembre de 2019. 

Es esta sección, piense acerca del período desde el 1 de octubre de 2014 al 30 de septiembre de 2015 (el Año 
Programático 2014). Conteste las preguntas acerca de las necesidades de las comunidades en las áreas no 
incorporadas del Condado, e idenfique las categorías que usted piensa deben tener prioridad para los fondos del 
Programa CDBG durante el próximo año programático.  

*
Necesidad más urgente Necesidad urgente Necesidad importante

a. Servicios de apoyo para 
casos de violencia 
doméstica

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

b. Servicios de apoyo para 
enfermos de VIH/SIDA

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

c. Servicios de apoyo y de 
alcance para personas sin 
hogar

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

d. Servicios de apoyo para 
salud mental

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

e. Viviendas para personas 
con necesidades 
especiales (p.ej. VIH, salud 
mental  MHMR, abuso de 
sustancias, etc.)

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

f. Servicios de apoyo para 
personas que abusan de 
sustancias

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

 
4. Clasificación de áreas para fondos durante 201419

*

1 2 3 4 5 6

Empresas y empleos nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Servicios comunitarios nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Vivienda nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Infraestructura nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Edificios e instalaciones 
públicas

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Población con necesidades 
especiales

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

 
5. Necesidades e ideas para proyectos para el Año Programático 2014

 
6. Identificación de necesidades para el Año Programático 2014

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Page 6

Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19

1. De las seis áreas o categorías disponibles, favor de clasificarlas dejándonos saber cuál 
representa: 
 
 La necesidad más urgente (El área de inversión más urgente en su comunidad.) 
 Una necesidad urgente (pero no necesariamente la más urgente) 
 Una necesidad importante (pero no urgente) 
 
Sólo se pueden clasificar o escoger tres de las seis áreas/categorías.

1. Favor de proveer ideas para proyectos posibles para el Año Programático 2014. Incluya 
la necesidad comunitaria, el tipo de proyecto, y la localización. 
 
Por ejemplo: 
Necesidad comunitaria: Carreteras en mal estado 
Idea de proyecto: Proyecto para mejorar las carreteras 
Localización: Hill Country Subdivision, 10041207 ABC Road, Austin, TX 78717 
 
Si usted tiene una idea para un proyecto específico, puede someterlo a través de un 
Formulario De Proyecto Propuesto disponsible en el sitio del web de CDBG: 
www.co.travis.tx.us/cdbg. 

 

2. Use este espacio para comentarios o ideas de proyectos adicionales.

 

Necesidad más urgente Necesidad urgente Necesidad importante

Población con 
necesidaded especiales

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Servicios de comunidad nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Infraestructura nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Viviendas nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Edificios y instalaciones 
públicas

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Negocios y empleos nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

 
7. Identificación de proyectos para el Año Programático 2014

55

66

55

66

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Page 7

Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19

Esta sección es opcional, pero ayuda a la oficina del programa de CDBG a entender cuán extensivo es la discriminación 
de vivienda en las áreas no incorporadas del Condado de Travis. 

Las leyes federales prohiben la discriminación en materia de vivienda basada en su raza, color, nacionalidad, religión, 
sexo, estado civil, o descapacidad. Por favor, responda las siguientes preguntas sobre la discriminación en materia de 
vivienda. Esta sección es opcional. 

1. ¿Usted cree que la discriminación en materia de vivienda es un problema en su 
vecindario ?

2. ¿Alguna vez ha sido víctima de discriminación en la vivienda?

3. De ser así, ¿quién cree usted que lo discriminó? Marque todos los cuadros que 
correspondan. 

8. Sección opcional acerca de discriminación de vivienda

 
9. Discriminación de vivienda

*

*

Sí
 

nmlkj

No
 

nmlkj

Sí
 

nmlkj

No
 

nmlkj

Dueño
 

gfedc

Asegurador hipotecario
 

gfedc

Proveedor del crédito hipotecario
 

gfedc

Agente de bienes raíces
 

gfedc

Otro
 

gfedc

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Page 8

Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19
4. ¿Por qué cree usted que fue discriminado? Marque todos los cuadros que 

correspondan. 

5. Si usted cree que fue discriminado, ¿denunció el incidente?

6. Si no, ¿por qué no lo hizo? Marque todos los cuadros que correspondan. 

Para obtener más información sobre vivienda justa o sobre cómo denunciar casos de discriminación en la vivienda, póngase en contacto con el 
programa CDBG llamando al 5128543460 o visite el sitio http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/cdbg/fair_housing.asp 
 

Gracias por participar en esta encuesta. Su asistencia ayudará al Condado en planificar para el futuro. Si tiene alguna 
pregunta en cuanto a esta encuesta, por favor póngase en contacto con el Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis por 
teléfono al (512) 8543460, por correo electrónico: cdbg@co.travis.tx.us, o visite el sitio web: www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG. 
 
Si le enviamos esta encuesta por correo, favor de devolverla a: CDBG Program, TCHHS/VS, P.O. Box 1748, Austin, TX 
78767, con marca postal a no mós tarde del 31 de marzo de 2014. 

*

 
10. ¡Gracias!

Color
 

gfedc

Discapacidad
 

gfedc

Situación familiar (padre o madre solo con hijos, familia con hijos o esperando un hijo)
 

gfedc

Sexo
 

gfedc

Nacionalidad de origen (país de nacimiento)
 

gfedc

Religión
 

gfedc

Raza
 

gfedc

Sí
 

nmlkj

No
 

nmlkj

No sabe dónde deben realizarse las denuncias
 

gfedc

Es demasiado problema
 

gfedc

Teme ser víctima de represalias
 

gfedc

No cree que sirva de nada
 

gfedc

Otro
 

gfedc

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

 

 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION ADS 

(in English & Spanish): 

Forum to help identify community needs  

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service 
P.O. Box 1748, Austin, Texas 78767 

(512) 854-4100  Fax (512) 854-4115 

 

Help Identify Community Needs in Travis County 
During Public Meetings in February & March 2014 

 

Travis County invites the public to participate in community forums where residents will have an opportunity to 

present community needs and recommend projects for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds for 

usage in the unincorporated areas of Travis County. The information collected in the forums will guide the 

selection of CDBG projects for the Program Year 2014 (October 2014-September 2015) and help determine the 

priorities for the funding of the next five program years (October 2014 – September 2018). 

 

The CDBG program is funded by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to 

benefit Travis County low- to moderate-income residents who live in the Village of Webberville or outside any 

other city limit. The program supports community development activities aimed at revitalizing neighborhoods, 

improving affordable housing options, and providing improved community facilities and services. For the 

current program year, Travis County anticipates to receive an estimated $909,925. 

 

The forums will be held according to the following schedule: 
 

Tuesday, 

February 18, 2014 

at 9:00 am, and 

Tuesday,  

March 11, 2014 at 

9:00 am 

Wednesday, 

February 19, 2014 

at 6:30 pm 

Thursday, 

February 20, 2014 

at 6:30 pm 

Wednesday, 

March 5, 2014 

at 6:30 pm 

Thursday, 

March 6, 2014 

at 6:30 pm 

 

Travis County 

Commissioners 

Court 

700 Lavaca St. 

Austin, TX 78701 

 

Travis County 

Community Center 

at Manor 

600 W. Carrie Manor St. 

Manor, TX 78653 

 

 

Westside Meeting 

Hall 

(Austin) 

4501 FM 620 

Austin, TX 78732 

 

 

Travis County 

Community Center  

at Oak Hill 

8656-A Hwy 71W,  

Ste. 1000 

Austin, TX 78735 

 

Travis County 

Community Center 

at Del Valle 

3518 FM 973 

Del Valle, TX 78617 

 

 

Beginning February 18, 2014, if you cannot attend any of the forums, you can participate by filling out a 

Participation Form found at the Travis County Website at www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG/, at one of the seven Travis 

County Community Centers or by requesting that it be mailed to you by calling 512-854-3460. 

 

For additional information, contact the CDBG office at cdbg@co.travis.tx.us or call 512-854-3460. To request 

that an American Sign Language or Spanish interpreter be present at any of the public hearings, please contact 

CDBG staff at least five business days in advance. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG/
mailto:cdbg@co.travis.tx.us


Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service 
P.O. Box 1748, Austin, Texas 78767 

(512) 854-4100  Fax (512) 854-4115 

 

Solicitamos Su Ayuda Identificando  
Necesidades Comunitarias 

Durante Foros Públicos En Febrero Y Marzo de 2014 
 

El Condado de Travis invita al público a participar en foros comunitarios donde residentes tendrán la 

oportunidad de identificar necesidades comunitarias y de recomendar proyectos para el uso de los fondos del 

Programa de Subsidios Globales de Desarrollo Comunitario (CDBG) que se enfoca en las áreas no incorporadas 

del condado de Travis. La información recaudada en los foros guiará la selección de proyectos CDBG para el 

Año Programático 2014 (desde octubre de 2014 a septiembre de 2015) y ayudará determinar las prioridades de 

financiamiento para los próximos cinco años programáticos (desde octubre de 2014 a septiembre de 2018). 
 

El  Programa  de  CDBG  recibe  fondos  del  Departamento  de Vivienda y Desarrollo Urbano de los EE.UU. 

para beneficiar a residentes de bajo y medianos ingresos que viven en el Pueblo de Webberville o en las otras 

áreas no incorporadas del condado de Travis. El programa apoya actividades de desarrollo comunitarias que 

tienen como propósito revitalizar comunidades, mejorar opciones de viviendas, y proporcionar servicios e 

instalaciones comunitarias mejoradas. Para el Año Programático 2013, el Condado de Travis anticipa recibir un 

estimado de $909,925 en fondos CDBG. 
 

Los foros públicos se llevarán a cabo de acuerdo al siguiente horario: 
Martes, 

18 de febrero de 2014 

a las 9:00 am y 

martes, 11 de marzo 

de 2014 a las 9:00 am 

Miércoles, 

19 de febrero 

de 2014 

a las 6:30 pm 

Jueves, 

20 de febrero 

de 2014 

a las 6:30 pm 

Miércoles, 

5 de marzo 

de 2014 

a las 6:30 pm 

Jueves, 

6 de marzo 

de 2014 

a las 6:30 pm 

Travis County 

Commissioners 

Court 

700 Lavaca St. 

Austin, TX 78701 

Travis County 

Community Center 

at Manor 

600 W. Carrie Manor St. 

Manor, TX 78653 

Westside Meeting 

Hall 

(Austin) 

4501 FM 620 

Austin, TX 78732 

Travis County 

Community Center 

at Oak Hill 

8656-A Hwy 71W, 

Ste. 1000 

Austin, TX 78735 

Travis County 

Community Center 

at Del Valle 

3518 FM 973 

Del Valle, TX 78617 

 
 

Comenzando el 18 de febrero de 2014, si no puede asistir a los foros, usted puede participar llenando una 

Planilla de Participación ubicada en la página web www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG/ o en uno de los siete Centros 

Comunitarios del Condado de Travis, o puede solicitar que se le envíe una planilla por correo llamando al 512-

854-3460. 
 

Para más información, comuníquese con la oficina de CDBG a través del correo electrónico al 

cdbg@co.travis.tx.us o llamando al 512-854-3460. Para solicitar que haya un intérprete en español o de 

lenguaje americano de señas en alguna de estas reuniones, por favor contacte al personal de CDBG por lo 

menos con cinco días hábiles de anterioridad. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG/
mailto:cdbg@co.travis.tx.us


 

 

 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION ADS 

(in English & Spanish): 

Invitation to comment on PY14-18 Consolidated 

Plan and PY14 Action Plan 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



          TRAVIS COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG)  

 

Travis County is eligible to receive an estimated $997,649 in Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to benefit Travis County low- 
to moderate-income residents who live in the unincorporated areas of the county or the Village of Webberville. 
The funds are for the program year 2014, which goes from October 1, 2014 to September 30, 2015. 
 
CDBG activities are aimed at revitalizing neighborhoods, improving affordable housing options, and 
providing improved community facilities and services. The County prepares a Consolidated Plans that includes 
data on community needs and strategic goals for the program.  The next Consolidated Plan will span 5 years, taking 
effect on October 1, 2014 and ending September 30, 2018. The Consolidated Plan includes an Action Plan for the next 
program year (PY14) that outlines the projects and goals for the program year. You can comment on the draft 
document by attending one of two public hearings or by sending your comments in writing via postal mail or 
e-mail. 
 

COMMENT PERIOD AND DRAFT DOCUMENT 

 

 

3518 FM 973, 
Del Valle 

 

15822 Foothills 
Farm Loop, 

Bldg. D, 
Pflugerville 

 

8656 
Hwy 71W, 
Bldg. A, 
Oak Hill 

 

18649 FM 1431, 
Jonestown 

 

600 W. Carrie 
Manor St., 

Manor 

 

100 N. IH-35, 
Suite 1000, 

Austin 

 
 

2201 Post Rd.,  
Suite 101, 

Austin 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

MAILING YOUR COMMENTS 

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG
mailto:cdbg@co.travis.tx.us


          TRAVIS COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG)  

 

 

PERÍODO DE COMENTARIO Y DOCUMENTO PRELIMINAR 

 

 

3518 FM 973, 
Del Valle 

 

15822 Foothills 
Farm Loop, 

Bldg. D, 
Pflugerville 

 

8656 
Hwy 71W, 
Bldg. A, 
Oak Hill 

 

18649 FM 1431, 
Jonestown 

 

600 W. Carrie 
Manor St., 

Manor 

 

100 N. IH-35, 
Suite 1000, 

Austin 

 

2201 Post Rd.,  
Suite 101, 

Austin 

AUDIENCIA PÚBLICA 

ENVÍO DE COMENTARIOS 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

mailto::%20cdbg@co.travis.tx.us


Maps

CDBG Service Area
Race/Ethnic Concentrations & LMI

Percent of African American Residents by Census Block Group
Percent of Asian Residents by Census Block Group

Percent of Hispanic Residents by Census Block Group
Percent of White Residents by Census Block Group

Affordable Housing Units
Regional Composite Opportunity Map

CDBG PY14 Projects & Alternate Projects

APPENDIX B
Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



VILLAGE OF WEBBERVILLE

IH
 35 SH 130

US 183
SH 71

US 290

MO-PA
C

FM 620

LO
OP

 36
0

SH 45 s

BEN WHITE

SH 45

MO
PA

C

US 290

SH 45

SH 71

±0 5 102.5
Miles

Incorporated Areas of Travis County
Village of Webberville
Major county roads
Water Created By: E. Rivera, Travis County HHS/VS, CDBG Office, 2014

Source: U.S. 2010 Census Data

CDBG Service Area:
Unincorporated Areas of Travis County, TX

and the Village of Webberville

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



IH
 35 SH 130

US 183
SH 71

US 290

MO-PA
C

FM 620

LO
OP

 36
0

SH 45 s

BEN WHITE

SH 45

MO
PA

C

US 290

SH 45

SH 71

±0 5 102.5
Miles

Incorporated Areas of Travis County
Water

Created By: E. Rivera, Travis County HHS/VS, CDBG Office, 2014
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 SF-1 for Race and Ethnicity data

Percent of White Residents (Census 2010) by Census Block Group
Unincorporated Areas, Travis County, TX

Percent of Residents at Low-to-Moderate Income
0.00 - 45.13%
45.14 - 100.00%

Racial/Ethnic Concentration 10% or more above County average
African American
African American and Hispanic
Asian
Hispanic
White

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



IH
 35 SH 130

US 183
SH 71

US 290

MO-PA
C

FM 620

LO
OP

 36
0

SH 45 s

BEN WHITE

SH 45

MO
PA

C

US 290

SH 45

SH 71

±0 5 102.5
Miles

Incorporated Areas of Travis County
Water

Percentage of African American Residents by Block Groups
0.00 - 5.70%
5.71 - 14.20%
14.21 - 30.10%
30.11 - 63.20% Created By: E. Rivera, Travis County HHS/VS, CDBG Office, 2014

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 SF-1 for Race and Ethnicity data

Percent of African American Residents (Census 2010) by Census Block Group
Unincorporated Areas, Travis County, TX

Percent of Residents at Low-to-Moderate Income
0.00 - 45.13%
45.14 - 100.00%

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



IH
 35 SH 130

US 183
SH 71

US 290

MO-PA
C

FM 620

LO
OP

 36
0

SH 45 s

BEN WHITE

SH 45

MO
PA

C

US 290

SH 45

SH 71

±0 5 102.5
Miles

Incorporated Areas of Travis County
Water

Percentage of Asian Residents by Block Groups
0.00 - 3.80%
3.81 - 9.30%
9.31 - 18.30%
18.31 - 49.50% Created By: E. Rivera, Travis County HHS/VS, CDBG Office, 2014

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 SF-1 for Race and Ethnicity data

Percent of Asian Residents (Census 2010) by Census Block Group
Unincorporated Areas, Travis County, TX

Percent of Residents at Low-to-Moderate Income
0.00 - 45.13%
45.14 - 100.00%

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



IH
 35 SH 130

US 183
SH 71

US 290

MO-PA
C

FM 620

LO
OP

 36
0

SH 45 s

BEN WHITE

SH 45

MO
PA

C

US 290

SH 45

SH 71

±0 5 102.5
Miles

Incorporated Areas of Travis County
Water

Percentage of Hispanic Residents by Block Groups
1.56 - 20.64%
20.65 - 40.18%
40.19 - 61.91%
61.92 - 90.52% Created By: E. Rivera, Travis County HHS/VS, CDBG Office, 2014

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 SF-1 for Race and Ethnicity data

Percent of Hispanic Residents (Census 2010) by Census Block Group
Unincorporated Areas, Travis County, TX

Percent of Residents at Low-to-Moderate Income
0.00 - 45.13%
45.14 - 100.00%

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



IH
 35 SH 130

US 183
SH 71

US 290

MO-PA
C

FM 620

LO
OP

 36
0

SH 45 s

BEN WHITE

SH 45

MO
PA

C

US 290

SH 45

SH 71

±0 5 102.5
Miles

Incorporated Areas of Travis County
Water

Percentage of White Residents by Block Groups
22.90 - 46.60%
46.61 - 64.00%
64.01 - 80.90%
80.91 - 99.00% Created By: E. Rivera, Travis County HHS/VS, CDBG Office, 2014

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 SF-1 for Race and Ethnicity data

Percent of White Residents (Census 2010) by Census Block Group
Unincorporated Areas, Travis County, TX

Percent of Residents at Low-to-Moderate Income
0.00 - 45.13%
45.14 - 100.00%

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



IH 
35

SH 130

US 183

SH 71

US 290

MO-PA
C

FM 620

LO
OP

 36
0

SH 45 s

BEN WHITE

SH 45

MO
PA

C
US 290

SH 71

Placement of addresses is approximate.
Source of property addresses: TDHCA HTC Property Inventory, current as of April 10, 2014.
Source of GIS data: Zip code data from City of Austin GIS data set.
Map created by: E. Rivera, Travis County HHS/VS, CDBG Office, 2014

Affordable Housing Units within 
the Unincorporated areas of Travis County

 8405 Bee Cave Rd, Austin, TX 78746
 10910 RM-620, Austin, TX 78726
 14745 Merrilltown Dr, Austin, TX 78728
 9371 US-290 E, Austin, TX 78724 8000 Decker Ln, Austin, TX 78724
 5412 Gilbert Rd, Austin, TX, 78724






Travis County

¯ 0 10 205
Miles

Unincorporated Travis County  

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



IH
 35 SH 130

US 183
SH 71

US 290

MO-PA
C

FM 620

LO
OP

 36
0

SH 45 s

BEN WHITE

SH 45

MO
PA

C

US 290

SH 45

SH 71

Regional Composite Opportunity Index
Very Low
Low
Moderate
High
Very High

Regional Composite Opportunity Map
Unincorporated Areas, Travis County, TX

0 5 102.5
Miles

Created By: E. Rivera, Travis County HHS/VS, CDBG Office, 2014
Source of GIS data: Regional Composite Opportunity Index data from Kirwan Institute

for the Study of Race and Ethnicity, The Ohio State University, 2012

±

Incorporated Areas of Travis County
Water

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



IH
 3

5

SH
 130

U
S 183

SH 71

US 290

M
O-P

AC
FM 620

LO
O

P 
36

0

SH 45 s

BEN WHITE

SH 45

M
O

PA
C

US 290
SH 71

Created By: E. Rivera, Travis County HHS/VS
CDBG Office, 2014.  Source: U.S. 2010 Census Data

CDBG PY14 Proposed and Alternate Projects

Percent of Residents at Low-to-Moderate 
(LMI) Income

0.00 - 45.13%

45.14 - 100.00%

Serving the Unincorporated Areas in Travis County
and the Village of Webberville

Note: Project locations are approximate.

*Final location to be determined by August 5, 2014.
**Location not mapped since not applicable or located throughout the 
CDBG service area.

±0 5 102.5
Miles

Incorporated Areas, Travis County

Village of Webberville

Major county roads
Water

P#1a: Land Acquisition for New Rental Housing - Option A
P#1b: Land Acquisition for New Rental Housing - Option B
P#2: Forest Bluff Street Improvements
P#3: Home Rehabilitation**
P#4: Social Work Services**
P#5: Tenants’ Rights & Fair Housing Counseling**
P#6: Administration & Planning**

AP#1: Home Rehabilitation**
AP#2: Sustainability Onsite at Las Lomitas
AP#3&4: Forest Bluff Phases 2&3
AP#5-12: Street Improvements - Various roads
AP#13&14: Street Improvements - Ross Rd
AP#15: Street Improvements - Shadowglen Trace

PROJECTS

ALTERNATE PROJECTS

%LMI in Village of Webberville

P#1a P#1b
AP#2

AP#3-12

AP#13
AP#14

AP#15

P#2 and

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Appendix C:
Housing Inventory

Tax Credit Properties in Travis County 
 Travis County Housing Finance Corporation Properties 

Housing Authority of Travis County Properties
Emergency Shelter Beds, Austin/Travis County

Transitional Housing Beds, Austin/Travis County
Permanent Supportive Housing, Austin/Travis County

HUD Subsidized Multifamily Housing Units
Licensed Senior Housing in Travis County (Nursing Homes)
Licensed Senior Housing in Travis County (Assisted Living)

APPENDIX C
Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

 

HOUSING INVENTORY  
 

 

TAX CREDIT PROPERTIES IN TRAVIS COUNTY 

Program 
Type 

Year Development Name 
Zip 

Code 
Total 
Units 

LIHTC 
Units 

Population 
Served 

Disabled 
Units 

9%HTC 1990 Quail Park Village AKA French Embassy 78758 142 142 General 0 

9%HTC 1991 Scattered Coop Infill Housing 78702 26 26 General 0 

9%HTC 1992 Lindy's Landing          . 78704 52 52 General 8 

9%HTC 1994 Gateway Apartments 78752 10 10 General 0 

9%HTC 1994 Arrowhead Park Apartments 78753 290 290 General 4 

9%HTC 1994 Springhollow Apartments 78723 99 99 General 3 

9%HTC 1994 Paradise Oaks Apartments 78741 248 248 General 0 

9%HTC 1994 Country Club Creek 78741 212 212 General 11 

9%HTC 1995 Windcrest On Yager Lane 78753 160 160 General 18 

9%HTC 1995 Windcrest Parkside Apartments 78753 228 228 General 34 

9%HTC 1996 Gardens Of Decker Lake 78724 200 150 General 24 

9%HTC 1996 Timbers 78723 104 78 General 17 

9%HTC 1996 Rollins Martin 78721 16 15 General 3 

9%HTC 1997 Douglas Landings 78741 96 96 General 16 

9%HTC 1998 The Lodge at Merriltown 78728 204 204 Elderly 33 

9%HTC 1998 Trails at the Park 78748 200 148 General 12 

9%HTC 1998 St. John's Village 78752 156 117 General 25 

4%HTC 1999 Village at Collinwood 78753 174 174 Elderly 0 

9% HTC 1999 Spring Valley Townhomes 78744 230 173 General 23 

4% HTC 1999 Mountain Ranch Apartments 78741 196 196 General 30 

9% HTC 2000 
Heatherwilde Park Retirement 
Apartments 

78660 168 128 Elderly 17 

9% HTC 2000 Villas of Cordoba 78744 156 93 General 16 

4% HTC 2000 Fairway Village 78741 128 127 General 0 

4% HTC 2000 South Congress Apartments 78704 172 170 General 0 

4% HTC 2000 Springdale Apartments 78723 98 97 General 1 

4% HTC 2000 Santa Maria Village Apartments 78753 176 175 General 1 

4% HTC 2000 Southwest Trails 78735 160 160 General 12 

4% HTC 2000 Fort Branch Landing Apartments 78721 250 248 General 0 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas   

Program 
Type 

Year Development Name 
Zip 

Code 
Total 
Units 

LIHTC 
Units 

Population 
Served 

Disabled 
Units 

4% HTC 2001 Primrose of Shadow Creek 78723 176 174 Elderly 0 

9% HTC 2001 Springdale Estates 78721 43 25 General 3 

4% HTC 2001 Blunn Creek Apartments 78704 280 280 General 28 

4% HTC 2001 Riverside Meadows 78741 248 248 General 25 

4% HTC 2001 Circle S Apartments 78745 200 200 General 0 

4% HTC 2001 Westchester Woods 78660 250 250 General 13 

9% HTC 2002 Rosemont at Williamson Creek 78744 163 130 General 12 

4% HTC 2002 Pleasant Valley Courtyards 78741 280 280 General 0 

4% HTC 2002 Eagle's Landing Apartments 78724 240 240 General 0 

4% HTC 2002 Town Vista Apartments 78741 280 280 General 0 

4% HTC 2002 Woodway Village Apartments 78744 160 160 General 16 

4% HTC 2002 Woodway Square Apartments 78744 240 240 General 0 

4% HTC 2002 Rosemont at Heather Bend 78660 256 256 General 13 

9% HTC 2003 Heritage Pointe 78721 240 192 Elderly 0 

9% HTC 2003 Grove Place Apartments 78741 184 146 General 18 

4% HTC 2003 
Park at Summer Grove FKA Century 
Park 

78727 240 240 General 0 

9% HTC 2004 King Fisher Creek 78744 35 35 General 4 

9% HTC 2004 Villas on Sixth Street 78702 160 136 General 12 

9% HTC 2004 Pleasant Hill Apartments 78741 100 100 General 0 

4% HTC 2004 Rosemont at Old Manor 78724 250 250 General 18 

9% HTC 2005 Parker Lane Seniors Apartments 78741 70 68 Elderly 5 

9% HTC 2005 Cambridge Villas 78660 208 200 Elderly 15 

4% HTC 2005 Harris Branch Apartments 78754 248 248 General 0 

9% HTC 2006 Picadilly Estates 78660 168 168 Elderly 12 

9% HTC 2006 La Vista de Guadalupe 78702 22 22 General 0 

9% HTC 2006 Skyline Terrace 78704 100 100 General 18 

4% HTC 2006 Southpark Apartments 78748 192 192 General 0 

4% HTC 2007 Park Place at Loyola 78723 252 252 General 25 

4% HTC 2007 Santora  Villas 78741 192 192 General 19 

4% HTC 2007 Runnymede Apartments 78758 252 252 General 13 

4% HTC 2007 The Residences at Onion Creek 78744 224 224 General 16 

9% HTC 2008 Parker Lane Seniors Apartments 78741 0 0 Elderly 0 

9% HTC 2008 Cambridge Villas 78660 0 0 Elderly 0 

9% HTC 2009 Malibu Apts 78753 476 428 General 0 

9% HTC 2009 M Station 78702 150 135 General 11 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas   

Program 
Type 

Year Development Name 
Zip 

Code 
Total 
Units 

LIHTC 
Units 

Population 
Served 

Disabled 
Units 

9% HTC 2010 Wildflower Terrace 78723 200 170 Elderly 0 

9% HTC 2010 Shady Oaks 78745 238 238 General 17 

4% HTC 2010 Elm Ridge Apartments 78702 130 130 General 0 

9% HTC 2012 Capital Studios 78701 135 135 
Supportive 

Housing 
0 

4% HTC 2013 Paddock at Norwood 78753 228 228 General 0 

4% HTC 2013 Forest Park Apartments 78753 0 0 General 0 

4% HTC 2013 Silver Springs Apartments 78753 0 0 General 0 

4% HTC 2013 Parmer Place Apartments 78753 252 252 General 0 

9% HTC 2013 Windy Ridge Apartments 78726 120 120 General 0 

9% HTC 2013 Oak Creek Village 78704 173 173 General 0 

9% HTC 2013 Homestead Apartments 78748 140 126 General 7 

4% HTC 2013 William Cannon Apartments 78744 252 252 General 0 

4% HTC 2014 Villages of Ben White 78741 183 183 Elderly 0 

4% HTC 2014 The Point at Ben White 78741 250 250 General 0 

Current as of April 10, 2014 
 

Travis County Housing Finance Corporation Financed Properties 
with Affordable Units 

Development Name Address City 

Argosy at Crestview 1003 Justin Lane Austin 

Circle S Apartments 7201 S. Congress Drive Austin 

Village of Collinwood (Senior) 1001 Collinwood W. Drive Austin 

Eagles Landing 8000 Decker Lane Austin 

Fort Branch (at Truman’s) Landing 5800 Techni Center Drive Austin 

Rosemont at Heather Bend 16701 Heatherwilde Blvd. Pflugerville 

Metropolis Apartments 2200 S. Pleasant Valley Road Austin 

Park at Wells Branch 1915 Wells Branch Parkway Austin 

Rosemont at Hidden Creek 9371 US Highway 290 East Austin 

Towne Vista 2201 Montopolis Drive Austin 

Travis Station 6600 Ed Bluestein Boulevard Austin 

Westchester Woods 19600 N. Heatherwilde Blvd. Pflugerville 

Woodway Square 1700 Teri Road Austin 

Current as of February 19, 2014 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas   

Housing Authority of Travis County Properties 
Development Name Number of Units 

Alexander Oaks 51 

Eastern Oaks 30 

Summit Oaks 24 

Carson Creek 8 

Manor Town 33 

Cambridge Villas 16 

Cityview at the Park Senior Apartments 70 

Southpark Apartments 192 

Current as of June 9, 2014 
 

Emergency Shelter Beds, Austin/Travis County 

Organization 
Name 

Program Name 

Beds 
Households 

with 
Children 

Beds 
Households 

without 
Children 

Beds 
Households 

only 
Children 

Year-
Round 
Beds 

Overflow 
Beds 

Total 
Beds 

A New Entry 
(HCHV/RT) 
Veterans Program 

0 12 0 12 0 12 

Casa 
Marianella 

Adult Shelter 0 28 0 28 9 37 

Casa 
Marianella 

Posada Esperanza 33 
 

0 33 0 33 

Foundation 
for the 
Homeless 

Interfaith 
Hospitality 
(Passages) 

28 0 0 28 0 28 

Front Steps 
Emergency Night 
Shelter 

0 100 0 100 115 215 

Front Steps Recuperative Care 0 4 0 4 0 4 

Life Works Youth Shelter 0 0 20 20 0 20 

McCabe 
Center 

(HCHV/RT) 
Medical Housing 
for Homeless Vet 

0 14 0 14 0 14 

Safe Place 
Family/ Women's 
Shelter 

96 10 0 106 0 106 

Salvation 
Army 

Austin Women's 
and Children 
Shelter 

54 6 0 60 0 60 

Salvation 
Army 

Salvation Army 
Downtown Shelter 

69 190 0 259 40 299 

Total 280 364 20 664 164 828 

Current as of January 2014 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas   

Transitional Housing Beds, Austin/Travis County 

Organization 
Name 

Program Name 

Beds 
Households 

with 
Children 

Beds 
Households 

without 
Children 

Beds 
Households 

only 
Children 

Total 
Beds 

Blackland CDC Blackland Transitional 29 0 0 29 

Frontsteps Transitional Housing 0 5 0 5 

Green Doors (GPD) Veteran Housing Program 0 32 0 32 

LifeWorks SHP HUD 16 5 0 21 

LifeWorks SHP NON-HUD 11 0 0 11 

LifeWorks Transitional Living 0 0 16 16 

LifeWorks Young Moms and Babies 12 0 0 12 

Safe Place Supportive Housing 120 8 0 128 

Salvation Army Passages Rapid ReHousing Initiative 94 0 0 94 

Salvation Army Passages TBRA 122 8 0 130 

Total 404 58 16 478 

Current as of January 2014 
  

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas   

Permanent Supportive Housing, Austin/Travis County 

Organization Name Program Name 

Beds 
Households 

with 
Children 

Beds 
Households 

without 
Children 

Chronically 
Homeless 

Beds 

Year-
Round 
Beds 

ATCMHMR-Housing Authority 
City of Austin 

Shelter Plus Care Project #1 16 40 3 56 

ATCMHMR-Housing Authority 
City of Austin 

Shelter Plus Care Project #2 0 27 15 27 

ATCMHMR-Housing Authority 
of Travis County 

Shelter Plus Care SP1 22 84 3 106 

ATCMHMR-Housing Authority 
of Travis County 

Shelter Plus Care SP2 0 29 28 29 

Caritas of Austin Marshall Apartments 50 0 0 50 

Caritas of Austin My Home 0 32 0 32 

Caritas of Austin My Home Too 0 21 21 21 

Caritas of Austin Partnership Housing 0 20 20 20 

Caritas of Austin Spring Terrace 0 20 20 20 

Caritas of Austin Terraza PSH 0 27 25 27 

Caritas of Austin Terraza PSH 0 13 0 13 

Foundation Communities 
Children's HOME Initiative 
S+C 

30 0 0 30 

Foundation Communities Garden Terrace Mod Rehab 0 50 0 50 

Front Steps City of Austin PSH 0 18 0 18 

Front Steps First Steps 0 10 8 10 

Front Steps Homefront 0 6 6 6 

Front Steps Samaritan 0 20 20 20 

Green Doors Glen Oaks Corner 16 0 0 16 

Housing Authority City of 
Austin 

(VASH) Austin Veteran PSH 217 228 200 445 

Vin Care Services Saint Louise House 102 0 0 102 

Total 453 645 369 1098 

Current as of January 2014 
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas   

HUD Subsidized Multifamily Housing Units 

Property Address Type 

Number of bedrooms 

1 2 3 4 5+ 

BENJAMIN TODD 
APTS. 

1507 West 39 1/2 St Austin, TX 78756-3800    x x      

CHARLES PLACE 
APTS 

1339 Lamar Square Dr  Austin, TX 78704-2209    x        

COBBLESTONE 2101 Davis Ln  Austin, TX 78745-7600  Elderly  x        

EAST 12TH STREET 
APARTMENTS 

3005 E 12th St  Austin, TX 78702-2590  Disabled x        

EASTER SEALS 
CENTRAL TEXAS 

3204 Manchaca Road  Austin, TX 78704     x x      

EBERTHART PLACE 808 Eberhart Ln  Austin, TX 78745-2993  Elderly x        

ELM RIDGE 
APARTMENTS 

1161 Harvey Ln  Austin, TX 78702-2516  Family x x x    

ESCT AUSTIN 
HOUSING 

1201 Grove Blvd Apt. 
504  

Austin, TX 78741-3474    x x      

ESCT AUSTIN 
HOUSING II 

7685 Northcross Dr Austin, TX 78757-1727    x        

ESCT AUSTIN 
HOUSING III, INC. 

3204 Manchaca Rd  Austin, TX 78704-8894    x x      

FAIRWAY VILLAGE 6118 Fairway St  Austin, TX 78741-5136  Family x x x x  

FOURTH STREET 
APARTMENTS 

2402 S Fourth St  Austin, TX 78720-0624  Disabled x        

FRANKLIN 
GARDENS 

3522 E Martin Luther 
King Jr Blvd 

Austin, TX 78721-1100  Elderly x        

FRENCH EMBASSY 
APARTMENTS 

9920 Quail Blvd Austin, TX 78758-5111  Family  x x x    

GUADALUPE I & II 7102 Guadalupe St Austin, TX 78752    x        

MANCHACA ROAD 
APTS 

3810 Manchaca Rd Austin, TX 78704-7560  Disabled  x        

MANOR HOUSE 5905 Manor Rd Austin, TX 78723-3607  Disabled  x        

MARSHALL 
APARTMENTS 

1157 Salina St Austin, TX 78702-2769  Family  x x x x  

MARY LEE 
FLAGSHIP 

1312 Lamar Square Austin, TX 78704    x   
     

MASON MANOR 1137 Gunter St Austin, TX 78721-1829  Family  x x x    

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas   

 
  

HUD Subsidized Multifamily Housing Units (continued) 

Property Address Type 

Number of bedrooms 

1 2 3 4 5+ 

MOSAIC HOUSING 
CORPORATION XI 

3015 Jubilee Trail  Austin, TX 78748-1203  Disabled  x        

MOSIAC HOUSING 
CORPORATION X 

9803 Willers Way Austin, TX 78748-5972  Disabled  x        

MOUNT CARMEL 
VILLAGE 

2504 New York Dr  Austin, TX 78702-2246  Family  x x x x  

NORTH PLAZA APTS 9125 N Plaza Austin, TX 78753-4565  Family  x x x    

OAK CREEK 
VILLAGE APTS 

2324 Wilson St  Austin, TX 78704-5527  Family  x x x x  

OAK SPRINGS 
VILLAS 

3001 Oak Springs Dr Austin, TX 78702-2593  Elderly  x        

PLEASANT HILL 2501 Anken Dr Austin, TX 78741-4566  Family  x x x    

REBEKAH BAINES 
JOHNSON 

21 Waller St Austin, TX 78702-5216  Elderly  x        

ROSEWOOD 
SENIOR GARDENS 

2720 Lyons Rd Austin, TX 78702-3660    x        

SANTA MARIA 
VILLAGE 

8071 N Lamar Blvd Austin, TX 78753-6200  Family  x x x    

ST GEORGE'S SR 
HOUSING, INC 

1443 Coronado Hills Dr  Austin, TX 78752-2965  Elderly  x x      

STASSNEY 
APARTMENTS 

5600 Nancy  Austin, TX 78745-3033  Disabled  x        

THE HEIGHTS ON 
CONGRESS/115-
N1001 

2707 S Congress Ave Austin, TX 78704-6404  Family  x x      

TRAVIS PARK APTS 1110 E Oltorf St Austin, TX 78704-5726  Family  x x x    

VILLAGE CHRISTIAN 
APTS 

7925 Rockwood Ln Austin, TX 78757-8150  Elderly  x x      

VOLUNTEERS OF 
AMERICA-AUSTIN 

2404 Roehampton Dr Austin, TX 78735-6904  Disabled  x        

WALNUT CREEK 
APTS/115-N1002 

6409 Springdale Rd Austin, TX 78723-3805  Family  x x x    

WESTERN TRAILS 
2422 Western Trails 
Blvd 

Austin, TX 78745-1683  Elderly x x      

Current as of January 14, 2010 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas   

 

Licensed Senior Housing in Travis County (Nursing Homes) 

Nursing Homes Total Licensed Beds 

Buckner Villa Siesta Home 76 

Cedar View Rehabilitation and Healthcare Center 124 

Emeritus at Spicewood Springs 46 

Govalle Care Center 83 

Gracy Woods II Living Center 110 

Gracy Woods Nursing Center 118 

Heartland Healthcare Center 120 

Heritage Rehabilitation and Nursing Center 203 

Longhorn Village 60 

Maggie Johnson Nursing Center 54 

Marbridge Villa 92 

Monte Siesta Nursing and Rehabilitation LP 126 

Oakcrest Manor Nursing Home 67 

Park Bend SN Health Center 124 

Pflugerville Care Center 111 

Pfugerville Nursing and Rehabilitation Center 120 

Querencia at Barton Creek 42 

Regency Village Care Center 118 

Retirement and Nursing Center Austin 157 

Riverside Rehabilitation and Health Care Center 122 

South Congress Care and Rehabilitation 170 

South Oaks Rehabilitation and Healthcare Center 120 

Southwood Care Center LP 118 

Stonebridge SN Health Center 120 

The Summit at Lakeway Healthcare Center 98 

The Summit at Westlake Hills 90 

Walnut Hills Convalescent Center Inc 120 

West Oaks Rehabilitation and Healthcare 125 

Westminster Health Care Center 90 

Windsor Nursing and Rehabilitation Center of Duval 162 

Total Beds 3,286 

Source: Texas Department of Aging and Human Services 
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas   

Licensed Senior Housing in Travis County (Assisted Living) 

Assisted Living Total Licensed Beds 

An Angel's Place 9 

Angels too Assisted Living 10 

Arden Courts of Austin 60 

Arveda Alzheimer's Family Care 22 

Austin North Assisted Living 15 

Austin Senior Care 7 

Barton Hills Assisted Living 35 

Barton Hills Guest House 9 

Barton Hills Lodge Assisted Living 16 

Brookside Farm 10 

Carestpne at Austin 133 

Collinfield 9205 LLC 7 

Colonial Gardens of Austin A-1 16 

Colonial Gardens of Austin A-2 16 

Elizabeth Tenorio - Euresti 4 

Emeritus at Beckett Meadows 95 

Emeritus at North Austin 112 

Emeritus at Spicewood Springs 109 

Glovers Foster Home 4 

Grace House of Lake Travis East 16 

Grace House of Lake Travis West 16 

Harper House Personal Care Facility 10 

Heartland Health Care Center Austin P C Unit 60 

Heatherwilde Assisted Living 20 

Heatherwilde Assisted Living 40 

Hycrest House 5 

Longhorn Village 16 

Longhorn Village 20 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas   

Licensed Senior Housing in Travis County (Assisted Living) (contined) 
Assisted Living Total Licensed Beds 

Mabee Village at Marbridge 84 

Marbridge Ranch 99 

Marilyn M Campbell Center 80 

Mary Lee Foundation Rehabilitation Center 16 

Merrill Gardens at Parmer Woods 112 

Merrill Gardens at Parmer Woods 36 

Onion Creek Plantation 4 

Parsons House Austin 120 

Querencia at Barton Creek 73 

Renaissance at Austin 44 

Ridge Oak 16 

Shady Hollow Assisted Living 6 

Shady Hollow II Assisted Living 6 

Shady Hollow III Assisted Living 6 

South Austin Assisted Living 6 

Southern Hospitality Home 15 

Texas Neuro Rehab Center 8 

Texas Residential and Vocational Services 16 

Texas Residential and Vocational Services 6 

The Heritage at Gaines Ranch 40 

The Pavilion at Great Hills 35 

The Pavilion at Great Hills 130 

The Summit at Lakeway 132 

The Summit at Lakeway 16 

The Summit at Northwest Hills 240 

The Summit at Westlake Hills 30 

Vista Oaks of Lakeway 75 

Total Beds 2,343 

Source: Texas Department of Aging and Human Services 
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Additional Text For 
“Public Services” 

Under NA-50 Non-Housing Community 
Development Needs – 91.215 (F)

APPENDIX D

Basic Needs: With Emphasis on Access to Food
Public Health and Access to Healthcare

Behavioral Health
Child and Youth Development

Education
Workforce Development

Transportation

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     1 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 

 

ADDITIONAL TEXT FOR  
“PUBLIC SERVICES”  

UNDER NA-50  
NON-HOUSING COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT NEEDS – 91.215 (F) 

NOTE: Due to character limitations within IDIS, this information is being provided  
as an appendix in addition to the text content under “Public Services” 

 

BASIC NEEDS: With Emphasis on Access to Food 
Programs and services within the basic needs issue area are intended to meet urgent, short-

term food, housing, clothing and transportation needs. The TCHHS/VS Department is the 

largest provider of basic needs assistance for individuals and families within Travis County.  

Income is the primary determinant of whether one can meet basic needs. Current minimum 

wage in Texas is $7.25 per hour. According to the Center for Public Policy Priorities Family 

Budget Estimator project, a single adult with employer-sponsored health insurance and no 

children must earn $10.81 per hour, almost one-and-a-half times the minimum wage, to live 

in the Austin-Round Rock MSA without relying on public assistance. For a two-parent, two-

child household without employer-sponsored health insurance, the required wage increases 

up to $31.51 per hour, more than four times the minimum wage.  

The cost of living also affects the ability to meet basic needs. According to the USDA’s Thrifty 

Food Plan, the cost of food increased by about 31% between 2003 and 2012. Additionally, 

while the overall cost of living has risen, household income has not. 

Food-related statistics show both an increased need for and use of safety net services. 

According to data from Feeding America, a leading domestic hunger-relief charity, Texas has 

the third highest household food insecurity rate among the ten states exhibiting statistically 

significant higher household food insecurity rates than the U.S. national average for 2000-

2012. Per the Feeding America’s Map the Meal Gap project, about 18% of households in 

Travis County and 27% of children are food insecure. And 64% of these children were income-

eligible for nutrition programs.  

Local data show significantly increased enrollment in the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance 

Program (SNAP, formerly the Food Stamp Program), suggesting that more individuals and 

families are seeking assistance to meet their food and nutrition needs. According to a 2012 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     2 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 

 

report issued by the Texas Health and Human Services Commission, about 9% of all Travis 

County residents receive SNAP benefits. 

According to a report by the Texas Health and Human Services Commission, calls to 211 Texas 

have increased every year since 2006, with a 31% increase from 2010 to 2011. Food was the 

top need communicated by callers in 2011 (35% of all calls). Utility payment assistance (26%) 

and rent payment assistance (13%) were second and third, respectively, among the “top 10 

caller needs in 2011.” 

Travis County residents unable to access or fully meet their needs through federally-funded 

assistance programs may rely on local social service programs to help meet their basic needs. 

Continuing effects of the economic recession may increase the need for these services.   

Public Health and Access to Healthcare 
Programs and services within public health and access to healthcare issue areas are primarily 

intended to improve the physical well-being of community members by encouraging healthy 

behaviors, preventing disease, increasing medical preparedness for emergencies, and 

increasing access to quality health care and counseling. Key health indicators, such as birth 

outcomes and chronic disease rates, can serve as proxy measures of community health. 

According to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), women who begin 

prenatal care after the first trimester are at a higher risk for poor pregnancy outcomes, 

including premature births and low birth weight newborns. 2010 data from the Texas 

Department of State Health Services indicates that approximately 33% of all Travis County 

mothers began prenatal care after the first trimester or received no prenatal care. More than 

half of all teenage mothers, almost half of all Hispanic mothers, and more than 1/3 of all Black 

mothers had delayed or no prenatal care.   

Per estimates from the Center for Disease Control (CDC), one in four people in the U.S. have a 

sexually transmitted disease (STD) and of the estimated 19 million new cases each year, 

almost half are among young people age 15-24.  

The Texas Department of State Health Services (DSHS) reports that some groups of individuals 

are impacted by STDs more than others. For example, the 2006 rates for chlamydia, which is 

the most commonly reported STD, were eight times higher among African Americans and 

three times higher among Hispanics compared to Whites. And the rate for gonorrhea is even 

higher for African Americans–18 times higher than for Whites. 

According to data from the CDC, in 2012, half of all the primary and secondary (P&S) syphilis 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     3 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 

 

cases in the U.S. were concentrated in 26 counties and two cities, and Travis County was one 

of those counties. In 2012, Travis County placed 25th on the list of 70, compared to 34th in 

2011 and 39th in 2012. Between 2010 and 2012, syphilis cases in Travis County increased from 

8.1 cases to 12.9 cases per 100,000. 

Chronic health conditions, such as diabetes and cardiovascular disease, have both direct costs 

and indirect costs, such as absenteeism and missed work days. Further, there are widespread 

health disparities in the incidence and mortality rates of chronic conditions among racial and 

ethnic minorities.  

According to the CDC, diabetes is the sixth leading cause of death in Texas and the fourth 

leading cause of death among Hispanics and African-Americans. Current projections show a 

quadrupling of the number of adult Texans with diabetes–from approximately 2.2 million in 

2010 to almost 8 million in 2040. Travis County projections also indicate an increase in the 

percentage of the population with diabetes–from 10.3% in 2010 to over a quarter (25.2%) in 

2040.  

Cardiovascular disease (CVD) risk factors include diabetes, smoking, obesity, poor nutrition, 

high cholesterol, high blood pressure, and physical inactivity. Data from the Texas Department 

of State Health Services shows that, Austin-Round Rock MSA residents have a higher rate of 

CVD (7.2%) compared to Texas as a whole (6.5%). Health disparities exist across education and 

income levels, particularly in increased prevalence rates for individuals without a high school 

diploma and those with incomes less than $25,000. 

Underlying our community response to these health conditions is access to affordable, quality 

care. According to a Kaiser Family Foundation report, individuals without health insurance are 

more than twice as likely to delay or forgo needed care, compared to those with health 

insurance; delaying or forgoing care can lead to serious health problems and hospitalizations 

for avoidable conditions. 

In 2010, the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act was signed into law. The law requires 

most individuals to have health insurance beginning in 2014. However, in Texas where 

Medicaid was not expanded to 133% of the federal poverty level, those who make less than 

100% of the federal poverty level ($11,490 a year as a single person or about $23,550 for a 

family of 4) may not qualify for either Medicaid or reduced costs on a private insurance plan.  

Behavioral Health 
Programs and services within this issue area provide prevention, intervention, and treatment 

to adults and children who have been impacted by issues of mental illness, substance abuse, 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     4 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 

 

and developmental disabilities.  

According to the Kaiser Family Foundation, Texas has the most residents who are suffering 

from serious mental illness than any state in the nation except for California, yet ranks 49th in 

per capita mental health expenditures in the nation. Similarly, in Travis County the need for 

behavioral health services is greater than the existing capacity to deliver these services.  

Roughly 25% of Texas inmates have received some kind of state-funded mental health 

services, including diagnoses of severe mental illness, major depression, bipolar disorder, 

schizophrenia, or a developmental disability. According to a 2008 Travis County Inmate Profile 

report, local incarcerated populations show a larger alcohol and drug related offender 

population than the national average. 

It is estimated that only half of youth with mental health issues actually receive treatment, 

and 70% of youths in the juvenile justice system have at least one mental health disorder, 

with at least 20% experiencing significant functional impairment from a serious mental illness 

such as schizophrenia or bipolar disorder, indicating that lack of treatment may contribute to 

involvement in the juvenile justice system. 

Returning veterans often have a number of behavioral health issues. A report released by the 

Veterans Intervention Project, indicates that about 150 veterans are incarcerated in the Travis 

County jail at any given time. Of the charges filed against veterans, more than a quarter were 

felony charges, and more than one-third were related to drug and alcohol use. Most of the 

veterans described in the report had not obtained services of any kind. 

The Travis County public hospital system offers very limited, dedicated psychiatric services 

compared to Texas counties of similar population size, according to the Mental Health Task 

Force (MHTF; formerly the Mayor’s Mental Health Task Force Monitoring Committee). 

Unlike other urban counties in the state, Travis County has no psychiatric emergency room 

nor does it have any kind of crisis stabilization unit connected to any of the seven major 

hospital emergency departments in the area. Additionally, there is a shortage of public 

psychiatric beds as well as a shortage of mental health professionals practicing in Travis 

County. 

Substance abuse services in Travis County are also inadequate for the population. There are 

no dedicated detoxification services in Travis County, and Travis County residential substance 

abuse treatment facilities operate with substantial waiting lists. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     5 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 

 

Child and Youth Development  
Children and youth benefit greatly from healthy, stable relationships with adults, including 

familial relationships. 

As of 2012, there were approximately 260,108 children and youth under 18 in Travis County. 

Although this is 24% of the total population, the poverty rate among children under 18 (26%) 

is higher than the overall poverty rate (18%) for Travis County. Travis County has one of the 

nation’s fastest growing populations of young children, growing 31% between 2000 and 2010 

and at 1.5 times the state rate, according to a United Way report. 

While poverty status is the standard eligibility measure for many public assistance programs, 

it does not reflect true cost of living and families need to earn significantly more to meet basic 

needs. The most recent Center for Public Policy Priorities (CPPP) Family Budget Estimator 

Project calculated that Travis County families typically need incomes of at least double the 

poverty level to afford basic provisions. 

Research shows that high quality child care supports the successful cognitive, social, and 

emotional development of young children. Access to quality child care is a key component to 

successful child development. Child care can comprise a substantial portion of family 

expenses. At licensed centers as of March 2010, the average cost of child care ranged from 

$832/month for a newborn to 11-month-old to $269/month for afterschool care for a school-

aged child. 

Travis County is home to over 180,000 school age children and youth. Studies demonstrate 

that children, especially at-risk youth, who attend quality afterschool programming have 

better attendance, test scores, and grade retention. During this same time period, children 

are at greater risk of being victims of crime or of being involved in juvenile crime. A 2009 

study estimates that 26% of Texas school age children are responsible for caring for 

themselves during the afterschool hours and 15% participate in afterschool programs. 

According to a mapping study conducted by the Central Texas Afterschool Network, during 

2010-11 most students in low income areas of Travis County were not served by afterschool 

programs regularly enough to receive benefits of the program. According to results of the 

2011 Youth Risk Behavior Survey of high school students, Texas students may be at greater 

risk for poor outcomes in some areas compared to youth nationally, including unintentional 

injuries (e.g., from not wearing a helmet or riding with a driver who had been drinking 

alcohol), tobacco use, illegal drug use, and sexual behavior. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     6 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 

 

Education 
Programs and services within this issue area promote and support academic preparedness as 

well as educational attainment and success. Studies show that educational attainment greatly 

impacts earnings. In 2012, individuals in Travis County with a bachelor’s degree have median 

earnings 84% greater than high school graduates and 161% greater than individuals without a 

high school diploma or equivalent. 

Nativity influences educational attainment. Those who are native-born are more likely to have 

graduated from high school. Only 42% of foreign-born individuals residing in Travis County 

have attended or graduated from college, compared to 76% of the native-born Travis County 

population. 

Limited English Proficient (LEP), economically disadvantaged, and at-risk student populations 

have been growing steadily and at a faster rate than the overall student population in Texas 

schools over the last few years. Since 2005, the county’s total student population has 

increased by 10%; the economically disadvantaged student population increased by 19%; the 

at-risk student population by 15%; and the limited English proficient (LEP) population by 35% 

over the same 5-year period. These increases may lead to an increased demand for literacy-

based educational services.  

English proficiency and risk status correlate with both low TAKS scores and low high school 

graduation rates. The average graduation rate for all students, grades 9-12, is 84%. LEP 

student graduation rates are significantly lower at 50%, even less than the at-risk student 

graduation rate (77%). 

According to 2012 census data, almost a third (31%) of the Travis County population speaks a 

language other than English in the home, and 19% of individuals report that they speak 

English less than “very well.” Foreign-born individuals have greater difficulty with English. 

Close to three-quarters (73%) of foreign-born Spanish speakers and 40% of foreign-born 

speakers of other languages report that they speak English less than “very well.” These 

difficulties may lead to an increased demand for ESL classes. 

Workforce Development 
Programs and services within this issue area provide employment and training services to help 

individuals improve workplace skills, obtain employment, succeed in the workplace, and help 

employers secure a skilled workforce.  

Unemployment rates in Travis County dropped from 5.2% in March 2013 to 4.3% in March 

2014. Historically, since at least 2004, the unemployment rates in Travis County have 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     7 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 

 

remained lower than the state rates (5.3% in March 2014). Average weekly wages when 

compared on an annual basis increased by $26.04 (3%) from 3rd quarter 2012 to 3rd quarter 

2013 (most recent data available).  

Federal, state, and local government together comprise the largest industry sector in Travis 

County, providing 20% of 634,831 total jobs in the 3rd quarter of 2013, according to the Texas 

Workforce Commission. Other leading industries include Professional and Business Services 

(18%) and Trade, Transportation, and Utilities (15%). 

A powerful correlation between educational attainment and earnings persists. Among Travis 

County residents 25 and over with earnings in 2012, those who graduated high school earn 

42% more per year than those who did not; those with some college or an associate’s degree 

earn 25% more than those whose formal education stopped after high school; those with a 

bachelor’s degree earned 47% more than those with some college or an associate’s degree; 

and those with a graduate or professional degree earn 39% more than those with a bachelor’s 

degree. Overall, those with a bachelor’s degree earned 84% more than those with only a high 

school degree. Among Travis County workers between the ages of 25 and 64, almost one-half 

(48%) have a bachelor’s degree or higher, and another one-quarter (25%) have some college 

or an associate’s degree. High school graduates comprise 16% of the labor force. 

For Travis County overall, 2012 median earnings were $36,029. However, median earnings for 

men ($40,767) were 30% higher than those for women ($31,432). 

Workforce trends generally predict that as education levels increase, unemployment rates 

decrease. In Travis County, those with the highest educational levels have the lowest 

unemployment (less than 4% unemployment for those with a bachelor’s degree or higher), 

and those with the lowest educational levels have the highest unemployment (about 12% for 

those with less than a high school degree). 

Transportation 
The Capital Metropolitan Transportation Authority (Capital Metro) is the regional provider of 

transit services in Travis County. Most of the unincorporated areas of Travis County are low-

density, non-urban areas and are not served by Capital Metro, but are served by CARTS. 

CARTS coordinates public transit for rural communities within Travis, Williamson, and Hays 

counties, as well as Bastrop, Blanco, Burnet, Caldwell, Fayette and Lee counties.  

The City of Austin recently developed a new comprehensive plan entitled Imagine Austin 

which includes the City’s extra-territorial jurisdiction (ETJ). The first of the City’s eight priority 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     8 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 

 

programs under the new Imagine Austin plan is “Invest in a compact and connected Austin”, 

which includes improving public transportation options. However, since the focus is the core 

urban area of the City, it’s unlikely any public transportation improvements will directly 

benefit the outlying unincorporated areas. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



CDBG PY14 Projects 
& Alternate Projects

APPENDIX E
Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

CDBG PY14 PROJECTS  

Project # 1: Acquisition of Land to Support New Rental Housing - $343,010 
Project Description: 

This project is a proposed 192-unit affordable multifamily housing development to be located at either 
12701 Lowden Lane or 727 FM 1626 in Manchaca or an alternate location to be determined. The 
apartments will feature well-appointed one-, two-, and three- bedroom apartment homes. The 10-
building community will feature many amenities including gated access, a community club house, pool 
and grille house, and walking trails.  
 

The project will serve low- to moderate-income individuals at or below 60% of Area Median Income, a 
population that will benefit as rental rates in the Austin/Round Rock MSA continue to increase. At time 
of lease-up, 100% of the units will be occupied by low- to moderate- income households. If CDBG funds 
are used for the project, 51% of the units will have an affordability period of 30 years.   
 

The project will leverage CDBG funds with additional financing through 4% Low-Income Housing Tax 
Credits and Bonds Issued through Strategic Housing Finance Corporation, which will also serve as the 
project's General Partner. The CDBG funds will be used to help fund land acquisition. If the project is 
located at an alternate site not yet determined that site will go through the required site approval and 
public comment processes.   
 

Figure 1: Project 1 - General Project Information 
CDBG Funding $343,010 

Leverage Funding TBD, 4% LIHTC  and bonds 

Program Delivery Strategic Housing Finance Corporation 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 

Expected Start / 
Completion Date 

Environmental Assessment:  Aug 2014 – October 2014 
Finalizing funding and provide notification to the County:  October  2014 
CDBG Contract in place:  November/December 2014 (dependent upon 
receipt of grant agreement from HUD) 
Acquisition of Land: January 20, 2015 
Anticipated date of billing of all CDBG funds:  January 2015 
Infrastructure construction: January to April 2015 
Completion of construction:  March 2016 
Complex opens: March 2016 

Location 
12701 Lowden Lane, Manchaca, TX;  or  
727 FM 1626, Manchaca, TX;  or  
a site to be determined 

 
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

 
 

 

  

Figure 2: Project 1 - Priority and Performance Measurement Information  
(HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Rental Housing Project Multifamily Rental Housing 

Development 

Eligible Activity Land 
Acquisition Outcome Category Affordability 

Objective Category Provide Decent 
Housing Specific Objective 

Land acquisition to support a 
multi-family housing 
development to provide 
affordable, safe and decent 
housing. 

Citation Section 
105(a)(15) Accomplishment  192 units 

Eligibility LMH Matrix Code  1 Acquisition of Real Property 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

Project # 2: Forest Bluff Street Improvements $125,000 
Project Description: 

Forest Bluff is located in eastern Travis County, Precinct 1. Most of the roads in the subdivision have 
been accepted by Travis County as maintained right-of-way. Several streets were not accepted by the 
County. Lack of regular maintenance has caused the roadway to deteriorate. This project would serve 
to bring the roadway up to Travis County standards and have it accepted for future maintenance as a 
Travis County roadway and make any necessary drainage improvements. 
 

The project will be broken up into three phases and will include improvement to sections of:  Arizona 
Oak Lane, Stave Oak Lane, Bigelow Drive, Catsby Court, English Avenue, and Delta Post Drive. The first 
phase of the project, funded with PY14 funds, will include: 1) design services; 2) land surveying 
services; 3) geo-technical services; 4) drainage design services; 5) utility location and relocation 
coordination services; 6) environmental review and related regulatory permits; and 7) project 
management time. Construction will be phased over two years.   
 

The improvements impact 564 persons (94 households), of which 94.1% are low-to-moderate income.  
 

Figure 3: Project 2 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding Phase 1: $125,000 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable 

Program Delivery  Travis County Transportation and Natural Resource Department 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 

Expected Start/ 
Completion Date 

Phase 1: October 2014-September 2015 
Phase 2: October 2015-September 2016 
Phase 3: October 2016-September 2017 

Location Forest Bluff, Precinct 1 
 

Figure 4: Project 2 - Priority and Performance Measurement Information  
(HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Infrastructure Project Street Improvements 

Eligible Activity Street 
Improvements Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve quality of streets for 
low-to-moderate income 
persons 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

 

  

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  564 persons 

Eligibility LMA Matrix Code  03 K Street Improvements 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE 

# TBD 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

Map 1 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Map 2 

 
 
  

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

Project # 3: Home Rehabilitation $200,000 
Project Description: 

This project funds minor home repair services for low- and moderate-income homeowners in the 
unincorporated areas of Travis County and the Village of Webberville, to move homes towards Housing 
Quality Standards. The program seeks to improve the energy efficiency, physical living conditions, and 
safety in owner-occupied homes. A 0% interest, forgivable 5-year loan up to $24,999 with no required 
annual or monthly payments is available. The loan is forgiven at a pro-rata rate of 20% for each year of 
home ownership. Examples of potential improvements include, but are not limited to: connections of 
houses to long-term viable sources of water (not part of a stand-alone infrastructure project), 
complementing weatherization services of other funding sources, septic tank repairs, and electrical and 
plumbing repairs. In the event that program income is created, it will be reinvested into the Home 
Rehabilitation project.  
 

These funds are targeted toward homeowners at or below 80% MFI in the CDBG service area. This 
project will be administered by Meals on Wheels and More, Inc. Some of the allocation will be used for 
project delivery costs of the project and some of the allocation may partially fund a CDBG Planner 
position to complete environmental paperwork, final inspections and sign off and any other needed 
project delivery related costs. 

 

Figure 5: Project 3 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding $200,000 

Leverage Funding To be determined 

Program Delivery Meals on Wheels and More, Inc.  

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran 
Services 

Estimated Start/ Completion Date October 2014 –September 2015 

Location Eligible homes in the unincorporated areas of Travis County 
and the Village of Webberville 

 

Figure 6: Project 3 - Priority and Performance Measurement Information  
(HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category 

Owner Occupied 
Housing Project Rehabilitation of existing 

units 

Eligible Activity Rehabilitation Outcome Category Availability/ Accessibility 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective Improve the quality of 

owner housing 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

Citation 570.202 Accomplishment  8 houses 

Eligibility LMH Matrix Code  14A, Rehabilitation, Single 
Unit Residential 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

 

  

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

Project # 4: FSS Social Work Services Expansion Project - $80,110 
Project Description: 

This program is an internal Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service expansion of 
existing services. The program increases program capacity to provide case management, information 
and referral, non-clinical counseling, crisis intervention and outreach in all four precincts of the 
unincorporated areas. The project is targeted to individuals who are at 80% MFI or below. The project 
will fund the equivalent of one FTE social worker who works at a Travis County HHS&VS facility, 
however, to reduce transportation barriers; the social worker provides the majority of service provision 
through home visits. Additionally, part of the funds may be used for 9 Homeless Management 
Information System (HMIS) licenses to provide access for a new HUD requirement through the 
Continuum of Care called coordinated assessment, which evaluates the vulnerability of homeless or 
people at-risk of homelessness to more rapidly house them. Furthermore, operating expenses 
necessary to provide home based services, mileage, and training, among others may be funded.   

 

Figure 7: Project 4 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding $80,110 

Leverage Funding TBD 

Program Delivery Family Support Services (FSS) Division of the  
Travis County Health and Human Services & Veteran Services  

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Services & Veteran Services 

Expected Start/Completion Date October 2014-September 2015 

Location Households in the unincorporated areas of Travis County and 
the Village of Webberville 

 

Figure 8: Project 4 - Priority and Performance Measurement Information  
(HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category 

Public Services, 
Other Project Social Work Services Program 

Eligible Activity Public Services Outcome Category Availability/ Accessibility 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve the availability of 
services for low/moderate 
income persons  

Citation 570.201 (e) Accomplishment  400 Individuals 

Eligibility LMC Matrix Code  05, Public Services (General) 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

Project # 5: Tenant’s Rights and Fair Housing Counseling– $50,000 
Project Description: 

The funds are allocated for Tenant’s Rights and Fair Housing Counseling for residents of the 
unincorporated areas and the Village of Webberville. This program will expand existing services in the 
unincorporated areas of the County and the Village of Webberville, and proposes to serve 
approximately 68 people. Tenant’s Rights services include: telephone counseling and in-person 
mediation, as needed. Fair housing services include: fair housing counseling, fair housing complaint 
processing and testing in support of an individual complainant. Additionally, part of the funds will be 
used for allowable program delivery costs such as marketing materials and office supplies. At least 51% 
of the recipients will be at or below 80% of the Median Family Income (MFI). Because housing 
discrimination occurs at all income levels, the project will be allowed to service up to 33 households 
above 80% MFI. Austin Tenant’s Council, designated as a sub-recipient, will provide these services.   

 

Figure 9: Project 5 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding $ 50,000 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable  

Program Delivery Austin Tenant’s Council or other designated sub-recipient 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service & Veteran Services 

Expected Start /Completion Date October 2014 - September 2015 

Location CDBG Service Area 
 

Figure 10: Project 5 - Priority and Performance Measurement Information  
(HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category   

Public Services, 
Other          Project Fair Housing Counseling & 

Testing 

Eligible Activity Public Services Outcome Category Availability/Accessibility  

Objective Category Provide Decent 
Housing  Specific Objective  

Improve the availability of 
services for low/moderate 
income persons 

Citation 570.201 (e) Accomplishment  68 People 

Eligibility LMC Matrix Code  05J, Fair Housing Activities 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

Project # 6: Administrative & Planning Expenses – $199,529 
Project Description: 

The funds allocated for administration will pay for the operating expenses associated with the grant 
including office supplies, training, contracted services, interpreting, fair housing activities, membership, 
Action Plan, annual report, reporting and other business related expenses.  Additionally, the funds will 
pay for a portion (100% and 60%) of the salaries for the two CDBG Planners (one full time and one 3/4 
time), and a portion (25%) of the salary of a TNR Senior Engineer.  These positions are responsible for 
project development, action plan and annual report development, monitoring, and reporting and other 
tasks relating to administration and planning.  

 

Figure 11: Project 6 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding $ 199,529 

Leverage Funding Travis County General Fund = estimated $120,000 

Program Delivery Travis County Health and Human Service & Veteran Services 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service & Veteran Services 

Expected Start/Completion Date October 2014-September 2015 

Location Not Applicable 
 

 
 
 

Figure 12: Project 6 - Priority and Performance Measurement Information  
(HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Not Applicable Project Program Administration 

Eligible Activity Administration 
and Planning Outcome Category Not Applicable 

Objective Category Not Applicable Specific Objective Not Applicable 

Citation 570.206 Accomplishment  
Other,  
Effective administration of the 
grant  

Eligibility Not Applicable Matrix Code  21A, General Program 
Administration 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan Not Applicable Travis County HTE # TBD 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

ALTERNATE PROJECTS  

Alternate Project # 1: Home Rehabilitation – up to $500,000 
Project Description 

This project funds minor home repair services for low- and moderate-income homeowners in the 
unincorporated areas of Travis County and the Village of Webberville, to move homes towards Housing 
Quality Standards. The program seeks to improve the energy efficiency, physical living conditions, and 
safety in owner-occupied homes. A 0% interest, forgivable 5-year loan up to $24,999 with no required 
annual or monthly payments is available. The loan is forgiven at a pro-rata rate of 20% for each year of 
home ownership.Examples of potential improvements include connections of houses to long-term 
viable sources of water (not part of a stand-alone infrastructure project), complementing 
weatherization services of other funding sources, septic tank repairs, and electrical and plumbing 
repairs. In the event that program income is created, it will be reinvested into the Home Rehabilitation 
project.  
 

These funds are targeted to homeowners at or below 80% MFI in the CDBG service area. This project is 
currently being administered by Meals on Wheels and More, Inc.    

 

Figure 13: Alternate Project 1  - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding Up to $500,000 

Leverage Funding To be determined 

Program Delivery  Meals on Wheels and More, Inc. 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran 
Services 

Estimated Start/ Completion Date To be determined 

Location Homes in the unincorporated areas of Travis County and the 
Village of Webberville 

 

Figure 14: Alternate Project 1- Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category 

Owner Occupied 
Housing Project Rehabilitation of existing 

units 

Eligible Activity Rehabilitation Outcome Category Availability/ Accessibility 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective Improve the quality of 

owner housing 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

Citation 570.202 Accomplishment  TBD, dependent on funding 
level 

Eligibility LMH Matrix Code  14A, Rehabilitation, Single 
Unit Residential 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

 

Considerations: 

• Repair of aging and deteriorating houses in the unincorporated areas is the most frequently 
presented housing need reported by residents at the CDBG public hearings. It is also a need 
observed first hand by the CDBG social workers who provide service through home visits. 

• This project was funded in PY12 and PY13, and is currently being administered by Meals on 
Wheels and More. 

• As noted under Project #2 above, a total of 32 homes have been completed are currently under 
repair. 

• Repairs and improvements through continued funding of the Home Rehabilitation Program will 
continue to positively impact and improve the quality of life for residents. 

  

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

Alternate Project # 2: Sustainability Onsite at Las Lomitas 
Project Description 

The Las Lomitas neighborhood is located in southeastern Travis County, in Precinct 4. The 
neighborhood lacks water lines and associated connections, and homeowners are currently purchasing 
water from a standpipe and transporting it to onsite tanks. The proposed project would fund 1) An 
assessment of existing conditions and a comprehensive comparison of the feasibility, costs, and 
benefits of sustainable alternative water and wastewater options versus conventional options; and 2)  
the implementation of sustainable water, wastewater, and climatic intervention infrastructure, per the 
outcomes of the study, for qualifying residents.  

 

Figure 15: Las Lomitas Project Location 
 

 
  

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

Figure 16: Alternate Project 2 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding Up to $480,000 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable 

Program Delivery  Center for Maximum Potential Building Systems (CMPBS) 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran 
Services 

Expected Start/Completion Date To  Be Determined 

Location Las Lomitas Neighborhood, Precinct 4 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Figure 17: Alternate Project 2 - Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Infrastructure Project Feasibility study and pilot 

water project 

Eligible Activity TBD Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve quality of public 
improvements for lower 
income persons 

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  TBD 

Eligibility LMA –Survey Matrix Code  TBD 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

Figure 18: Las Lomitas Current Conditions 
 

 
                     Water being transported to a residence in the Las Lomitas Neighborhood 
 
 

 
              Water storage  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

Alternate Project # 3: Street Improvements, Forest Bluff Phase 2—$240,000 
Project Description 

Forest Bluff is located in eastern Travis County, Precinct 1.  Most of the roads in the subdivision have 
been accepted by Travis County as maintained right-of-way. Several streeets were not accepted by the 
County. Lack of regular maintenance has caused the roadway to deteriorate. This project would serve 
to bring the roadway up to Travis County standards and have it accepted for future maintenance as a 
Travis County roadway and make any necessary drainage improvements. 
 

The project will be broken up into three phases. The first phase of the project is proposed for PY14 and 
includes: design services and related services as well as the environmental review. The second phase of 
the project includes: construction for improvements on the following streets: Arizona Oak Ln, Stave 
Oak Ln and Bigelow Dr. The third phase would fund construction on the following streets: Catsby Ct., 
English Ave, Delta Post Dr. If the project moves faster than anticipated and funds are available, phases 
2 and 3 may be implemented early. 
 

The improvements impact 564 person (94 households), of which 94.1% are low-to-moderate income.  
 

Figure 19: Alternate Project 3 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding Phase 2: $240,000 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable 

Program Delivery  Travis County Transportation and Natural Resource 
Department 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 

Expected Start/Completion Date 
Phase 1: October 2014-September 2015 
Phase 2: October 2015-September 2016 
Phase 3: October 2016-September 2017 

Location Forest Bluff, Precinct 1 
 

Figure 20: Alternate Project 3 - Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Infrastructure Project Street Improvements 

Eligible Activity Street 
Improvements Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve quality of streets for 
low-to-moderate income 
persons 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

 

  

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  564 persons 

Eligibility LMA Matrix Code  03 K Street Improvements 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

Alternate Project # 4: Street Improvements, Forest Bluff Phase 3—$235,000 
Project Description 

Forest Bluff is located in eastern Travis County, Precinct 1. Most of the roads in the subdivision have 
been accepted by Travis County as maintained right-of-way. Several streeets were not accepted by the 
County. Lack of regular maintenance has caused the roadway to deteriorate. This project would serve 
to bring the roadway up to Travis County standards and have it accepted for future maintenance as a 
Travis County roadway and make any necessary drainage improvements. 
 

The project will be broken up into three phases. The first phase of the project is proposed for PY14 and 
includes: design services and related services as well as the environmental review. The second phase of 
the project includes construction for improvements on the following streets: Arizona Oak Ln, Stave Oak 
Ln and Bigelow Dr. The third phase would fund construction on the following streets: Catsby Ct., 
English Ave, Delta Post Dr. If the project moves faster than anticipated and funds are available, phases 
2 and 3 may be implemented early. 
 

The improvements impact 564 persons (94 households), of which 94.1% are low-to-moderate income.  
 

Figure 21:Alternate Project 4  - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding Phase 3: $235,000 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable 

Program Delivery  Travis County Transportation and Natural Resource 
Department 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 

Expected Start/Completion Date 
Phase 1: October 2014-September 2015 
Phase 2: October 2015-September 2016 
Phase 3: October 2016-September 2017 

Location Forest Bluff, Precinct 1 
 

Figure 22: Alternate Project 4 - Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Infrastructure Project Street Improvements 

Eligible Activity Street 
Improvements Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve quality of streets for 
low-to-moderate income 
persons  

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

 
  

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  564 persons 

Eligibility LMA Matrix Code  03 K Street Improvements 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

Alternate Project # 5: Street Improvements, Chamberlain Court-$53,998 
Project Description 

Excavate and remove structurally failed portions of pavement structure to full depth. Recycle rest of 
existing roadway material, profile roadway and add new base material as required. Apply new Hot Mix 
Asphalt material for a new travel surface. This project would be implemented by TNR staff.   

 

Figure 23: Alternate Project 5 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding $53,998 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable 

Program Delivery  Travis County Transportation and Natural Resource 
Department 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 

Expected Start/Completion Date TBD 

Location Precinct 1 
 

 
  

Figure 24: Alternate Project 5 - Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Infrastructure Project Street Improvements 

Eligible Activity Street 
Improvements Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve quality of streets for 
low-to-moderate income 
persons  

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  564 persons 

Eligibility LMA Matrix Code  03 K Street Improvements 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

Map 3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Map 4 

 
 

  

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

Alternate Project # 6: Street Improvements, Mossycup Lane-$35,413 
Project Description 

Excavate and remove structurally failed portions of pavement structure to full depth. Recycle rest of 
existing roadway material, profile roadway and add new base material as required. Apply new Hot Mix 
Asphalt material for a new travel surface. This project would be implemented by TNR staff.   

 

Figure 25: Alternate Project 6 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding $35,413 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable 

Program Delivery Travis County Transportation and Natural Resource Department 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 
Expected Start/ 

Completion Date TBD 

Location Precinct 1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 26: Alternate Project 6 - Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Infrastructure Project Street Improvements 

Eligible Activity Street 
Improvements Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve quality of streets for 
low-to-moderate income 
persons  

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  564 persons 

Eligibility LMA Matrix Code  03 K Street Improvements 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

Alternate Project # 7: Street Improvements, Nuttall Drive- $50,619 
Project Description 

Excavate and remove structurally failed portions of pavement structure to full depth. Recycle rest of 
existing roadway material, profile roadway and add new base material as required. Apply new Hot Mix 
Asphalt material for a new travel surface. This project would be implemented by TNR staff.   

 

Figure 27: Alternate Project 7 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding $50,619 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable 

Program Delivery  Travis County Transportation and Natural Resource Department 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 
Expected Start/ 

Completion Date TBD 

Location Precinct 1 
 

 
  

Figure 28: Alternate Project 7 - Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Infrastructure Project Street Improvements 

Eligible Activity Street 
Improvements Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve quality of streets for 
low-to-moderate income 
persons  

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  564 persons 

Eligibility LMA Matrix Code  03 K Street Improvements 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

Alternate Project # 8: Street Improvements, Netleaf- $32,878 
Project Description 

Excavate and remove structurally failed portions of pavement structure to full depth. Recycle rest of 
existing roadway material, profile roadway and add new base material as required. Apply new Hot Mix 
Asphalt material for a new travel surface. This project would be implemented by TNR staff.   

 

Figure 29: Alternate Project 8 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding $32,878 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable 

Program Delivery  Travis County Transportation and Natural Resource Department 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 
Expected Start/ 

Completion Date TBD 

Location Precinct 1 
 

 
  

Figure 30: Alternate Project 8 - Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Infrastructure Project Street Improvements 

Eligible Activity Street 
Improvements Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve quality of streets for 
low-to-moderate income 
persons  

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  564 persons 

Eligibility LMA Matrix Code  03 K Street Improvements 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

Alternate Project # 9: Street Improvements, Mimebark Way- $55,688 
Project Description 

Excavate and remove structurally failed portions of pavement structure to full depth. Recycle rest of 
existing roadway material, profile roadway and add new base material as required. Apply new Hot Mix 
Asphalt material for a new travel surface. This project would be implemented by TNR staff.   

 

Figure 31: Alternate Project 9 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding $55,688 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable 

Program Delivery  Travis County Transportation and Natural Resource Department 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 
Expected Start/ 

Completion Date TBD 

Location Precinct 1 
 

 
  

Figure 32: Alternate Project 9 - Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Infrastructure Project Street Improvements 

Eligible Activity Street 
Improvements Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve quality of streets for 
low-to-moderate income 
persons  

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  564 persons 

Eligibility LMA Matrix Code  03 K Street Improvements 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

Alternate Project # 10: Street Improvements, Sabal Palm- $48,085 
Project Description 

Excavate and remove structurally failed portions of pavement structure to full depth. Recycle rest of 
existing roadway material, profile roadway and add new base material as required. Apply new Hot Mix 
Asphalt material for a new travel surface. This project would be implemented by TNR staff.   

 

Figure 33: Alternate Project 10 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding $48,085 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable 

Program Delivery  Travis County Transportation and Natural Resource Department 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 
Expected Start/ 

Completion Date TBD 

Location Precinct 1 
 

 
  

Figure 34: Alternate Project 10 - Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Infrastructure Project Street Improvements 

Eligible Activity Street 
Improvements Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve quality of streets for 
low-to-moderate income 
persons  

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  564 persons 

Eligibility LMA Matrix Code  03 K Street Improvements 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

Alternate Project # 11: Street Improvements, Bullace Street- $50,619 
Project Description 

Excavate and remove structurally failed portions of pavement structure to full depth. Recycle rest of 
existing roadway material, profile roadway and add new base material as required. Apply new Hot Mix 
Asphalt material for a new travel surface. This project would be implemented by TNR staff.   

 

Figure 35: Alternate Project 11 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding $50,619 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable 

Program Delivery  Travis County Transportation and Natural Resource Department 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 
Expected Start/ 

Completion Date TBD 

Location Precinct 1 
 

 

Figure 36: Alternate Project 11 - Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Infrastructure Project Street Improvements 

Eligible Activity Street 
Improvements Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve quality of streets for 
low-to-moderate income 
persons  

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  564 persons 

Eligibility LMA Matrix Code  03 K Street Improvements 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

Alternate Project # 12: Street Improvements, Vasey Blvd- $50,619 
Project Description 

Excavate and remove structurally failed portions of pavement structure to full depth. Recycle rest of 
existing roadway material, profile roadway and add new base material as required. Apply new Hot Mix 
Asphalt material for a new travel surface. This project would be implemented by TNR staff.   

 

Figure 37: Alternate Project 12- General Project Information 

CDBG Funding $50,619 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable 

Program Delivery  Travis County Transportation and Natural Resource Department 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 
Expected Start/ 

Completion Date TBD 

Location Precinct 1 
 

 

  

Figure 38: Alternate Project 12 - Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Infrastructure Project Street Improvements 

Eligible Activity Street 
Improvements Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve quality of streets for 
low-to-moderate income 
persons  

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  564 persons 

Eligibility LMA Matrix Code  03 K Street Improvements 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

Alternate Project # 13: Street Improvements, Ross Road #1-$110,600 
Project Description 

Excavate and remove structurally failed portions of pavement structure to full depth. Recycle rest of 
existing roadway material, profile roadway and add new base material as required. Apply new Hot Mix 
Asphalt material for a new travel surface. This project would be implemented by TNR staff.   

 

Figure 39: Alternate Project 13 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding $110,600 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable 

Program Delivery  Travis County Transportation and Natural Resource Department 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 
Expected Start/ 

Completion Date TBD 

Location Precinct 4 
 

 
  

Figure 40: Alternate Project 13 - Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Infrastructure Project Street Improvements 

Eligible Activity Street 
Improvements Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve quality of streets for 
low-to-moderate income 
persons  

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  4,414 persons 

Eligibility LMA Matrix Code  03 K Street Improvements 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

Map 5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Map 6

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

Alternate Project # 14: Street Improvements, Ross Road #2- $201,680 
Project Description 

Excavate and remove structurally failed portions of pavement structure to full depth. Recycle rest of 
existing roadway material, profile roadway and add new base material as required. Apply new Hot Mix 
Asphalt material for a new travel surface. This project would be implemented by TNR staff.   

 

Figure 41: Alternate Project  14- General Project Information 

CDBG Funding $201,680 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable 

Program Delivery Travis County Transportation and Natural Resource Department 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 
Expected Start/ 

Completion Date TBD 

Location Precinct 4 
 

 

 

Figure 42: Alternate Project#14 - Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Infrastructure Project Street Improvements 

Eligible Activity Street 
Improvements Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve quality of streets for 
low-to-moderate income 
persons  

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  4,414 persons 

Eligibility LMA Matrix Code  03 K Street Improvements 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

Alternate Project # 15: Street Improvements, Shadowglen Trace- $172,640 
Project Description 

Excavate and remove structurally failed portions of pavement structure to full depth. Recycle rest of 
existing roadway material, profile roadway and add new base material as required. Apply new Hot Mix 
Asphalt material for a new travel surface. This project would be implemented by TNR staff.   

 

Figure 43: Alternate Project 15 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding $172,640 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable 

Program Delivery Travis County Transportation and Natural Resource Department 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 
Expected Start/ 

Completion Date TBD 

Location Precinct 1 
 

 

  

Figure 44: Alternate Project 15- Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Infrastructure Project Street Improvements 

Eligible Activity Street 
Improvements Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve quality of streets for 
low-to-moderate income 
persons  

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  394 persons 

Eligibility LMA Matrix Code  03 K Street Improvements 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

Map 7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Map 8 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

Alternate Project # 16: Acquisition of Land to Support New Rental Housing – up to 
$500,000 

Project Description: 

This project is a proposed 192-unit affordable multifamily housing development to be located at either 
12701 Lowden Lane or 727 FM 1626 in Manchaca or an alternate location to be determined. The 
apartments will feature well-appointed one-, two-, and three- bedroom apartment homes. The 10-
building community will feature many amenities including gated access, a community club house, pool 
and grille house, and walking trails.  
 

The project will serve low- to moderate-income individuals at or below 60% of Area Median Income, a 
population that will benefit as rental rates in the Austin/Round Rock MSA continue to increase. At time 
of lease-up, 100% of the units will be occupied by low- to moderate- income households. If CDBG funds 
are used for the project, 51% of the units will have an affordability period of 30 years.   
 

The project will leverage CDBG funds with additional financing through 4% Low-Income Housing Tax 
Credits and Bonds Issued through Strategic Housing Finance Corporation, which will also serve as the 
project's General Partner. The CDBG funds will be used to help fund land acquisition. If the project is 
located at an alternate site not yet determined that site will go through the required site approval and 
public comment processes. This alternate project would allow for additional funds to be added to the 
project in the event that a new site has higher costs associated with it or additional CDBG funds are 
available from other project savings.   
 

Figure 45: Alternate Project 16 - General Project Information 
CDBG Funding Up to $500,000 

Leverage Funding TBD, 4% LIHTC  and bonds 

Program Delivery Strategic Housing Finance Corporation 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 

Expected Start / 
Completion Date 

Environmental Assessment:  Aug 2014 – October 2014 
Finalizing funding and provide notification to the County:  October  2014 
CDBG Contract in place:  November/December 2014 (dependent upon 
receipt of grant agreement from HUD) 
Acquisition of Land: January 20, 2015 
Anticipated date of billing of all CDBG funds:  January 2015 
Infrastructure construction: January to April 2015 
Completion of construction:  March 2016 
Complex opens: March 2016 

Location 
12701 Lowden Lane, Manchaca, TX;  or  
727 FM 1626, Manchaca, TX;  or  
a site to be determined 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas 

 
 
 

 

 

Figure 46: Alternate Project 16 - Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Rental Housing Project Multifamily Rental Housing 

Development 

Eligible Activity Land 
Acquisition Outcome Category Affordability 

Objective Category Provide Decent 
Housing Specific Objective 

Land acquisition to support a 
multi-family housing 
development to provide 
affordable, safe and decent 
housing. 

Citation Section 
105(a)(15) Accomplishment  192 units 

Eligibility LMH Matrix Code  1 Acquisition of Real Property 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

ATTACHMENT F  

 
KEY FINDINGS  

FROM THE  
NEEDS ASSESSMENT 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Travis County, TX                    Page 1 of 6 
 

Housing 

Owner & 
 Rental Repair 

Land & 
Infrastructure 

Supports 

Financial  
Mechanisms 
To Support 
Affordability 

Summary of Key Findings from the Needs Analysis 

Strategic Area: Housing                   Priority: High  

Public Engagement Ranking: 
Residents:  3rd  
Social Service Agencies:  1st  

Data Summary: 
• Rapid population growth in the Austin area has resulted 

in an imbalance between supply and demand in the 
housing market, the most recent data shows a 
historically low housing inventory. 

• Housing prices and rents have been steadily increasing in 
Travis County, while median incomes have not increased 
at the same rate.  

• Cost burden (paying more than 30% of income towards 
housing costs) is the most prevalent housing problem 
facing Travis County residents.   

 
Owner-occupied housing: 
• In 2013 the Austin MSA had the highest average home price of any MSA in Texas.  
• In February 2014, Austin area home prices hit an all-time high according to a report released by the Austin 

Realtors Board, with a median price of $230, 530.  
• Residents of the unincorporated areas indicate that the most urgent need related to housing is repairs for 

owner occupied housing.   
Renter-occupied housing: 
• In 2013, the Austin area had the highest Fair Market Rent for apartments with one or more bedrooms, and 

the second highest Fair Market Rent for efficiency apartments of any MSA in Texas. 
• Housing in the unincorporated area is primarily comprised of single family structures, there is a scarcity of 

affordable rental units. 
Homelessness: 
• The 2014 Annual Homelessness Count provided a point-in-time snapshot of the Austin area homeless 

population, at a total of 1,987 homeless individuals.  
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

 
Travis County, TX                    
 

Infra- 
structure 

Water  
& 

 Wastewater 

Sidewalks 
& 

Drainage 

Street  
Improvements  

Strategic Area: Infrastructure                               Priority: High  

Public Engagement Ranking: 
Residents:  1st  
Social Service Agencies:  5th   

Data Summary: 
• Residents of the unincorporated areas have indicated a 

need for water/wastewater systems and roads.  
• In particular, residents in economically disenfranchised 

areas lack access to running water and are without 
infrastructure or funding to access the area water utility.  

• Request for water and wastewater over the last five 
years totals an estimated $28 million. 

• Requests for street improvements over the last five years 
total an estimated $18 million. 

• Drainage improvements often are associated with other 
street improvement work. 

• Bike paths and sidewalks as an added benefit can provide more livable, sustainable neighborhoods. 
 
Water/Wastewater: 
• Precincts 1, 3, and 4, in particular, have a high need for water/wastewater improvements. And we recently 

received a request for wastewater improvements in Precinct 2. 
• Many residents of unincorporated areas rely on septic systems, many of which are in need of repair or 

replacement, which can be very costly. When multiple failures of septic systems occur within a subdivision, 
it can be more cost-effective to connect to a wastewater treatment plant.  

Roads: 
• There are approximately 400 miles of roadway in unincorporated areas that are not on the County 

maintained system. Unmaintained roads may make it difficult for property owners, school buses, mail 
service providers, and emergency service providers to have all-weather access to properties.  

• Neighborhoods may apply to the County’s Substandard Road Program for funds; however, the only option 
for low and moderate income neighborhoods may be through the CDBG program.  

Flood drainage: 
• Due to recent severe flood events, significant flood drainage improvements and/or repairs are needed, 

especially in the E/SE parts of the county. Of six damaged facilities, four are used by and/or benefit primarily 
low-to-moderate income households. Estimates for these repairs are over $1.5 million. 

 
  

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

 
Travis County, TX                    
 

Community  
Services 

Youth &  
Elderly  

Services 

Case  
Management 

& 
Referral 

Literacy 
Job Skills 
Education 

Strategic Area: Community Services                 Priority: High  

Public Engagement Ranking: 
Residents:  2nd    
Social Service Agencies:  2nd   

Data Summary: 
• Of the current social service contract investments made 

by the Department, approximately 5% of the services are 
being provided to persons living in the unincorporated 
areas, and another 25% to residents in areas that are 
mixed incorporated and unincorporated. 

• Approximately 18% of the total county population lives 
in the unincorporated areas of the county; therefore, it 
appears these areas are underserved with respect to 
social services. 

• Services need to expand outside the city limits in order 
to more adequately serve the needs of the residents in 
these areas. 

Youth: 
• Travis County is home to over 180,000 school-age children between the ages of 5 and 17. The poverty rate 

among children is higher than the overall poverty rate for all residents of Travis County. 
• Recent data shows that most students in low income areas of Travis County were not served by afterschool 

programs although: 
         - Research shows that afterschool and other youth programs have positive impacts on student behavior and     
           performance, and  
         - A 2011 survey of high school students points to a greater risk for poor outcomes among Texas students, compared to 
           youth nationally, due to greater risky behaviors that threaten the health and safety of youth.  
Elderly: 
• In 2012, there were 85,458 adults aged 65 and older living in Travis County, comprising 7.8% of the 

population. By 2020, that figure is expected to rise to 10.4% of the county population, and with it the need 
for services. 

 
  

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

 
Travis County, TX                    
 

Public  
Facilities 

Community 
Centers 

Recreation 
Centers 

Parks 

Strategic Area: Public Facilities and Buildings                      Priority: Low  

Public Engagement Ranking: 
Residents:  6th   
Social Service Agencies:  6th    

Data Summary: 
• Residents, primarily from E/SE and W/SW Travis County, 

have requested the following types of public facilities: 
neighborhood parks (including playgrounds and walking 
trails), recreational centers, community centers, health 
facilities, and childcare centers.   Often times, the 
discussion around public facilities also centers around 
access to community services, which residents rank as a 
more pressing need. 

• Whereas some of these types of public facilities, in 
particular, parks and community centers, are available in 
the unincorporated areas, even these public facilities 
may not be accessible to residents without, or with limited, access to personal or public transportation.  

Parks: 
• Eastern Travis County currently has less park acreage than western parts of the county, and the need for 

additional recreational areas in the eastern parts of the county is likely to increase.  
• As development continues to push into eastern Travis County, agricultural and rural land is increasingly 

converted to developed land.  
• Additionally, the demographics of the eastern part of the county include higher concentrations of low 

income households who may rely on public facilities for recreational activities.  
• Finally, as the population of the county grows, it is likely that existing facilities will have to support increased 

usage. Taken together, these factors may indicate the need for expanded recreation areas or activities in 
eastern Travis County. 

Community Centers: 
• Community centers are important to the unincorporated community as they provide centralized locations—

five outside of the urban core—for residents to access social services and community meeting rooms. 
However, as the population continues to be pushed further out in the unincorporated area, even these 
public facilities may not be accessible to residents with limited transportation options. 

 
 
  

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

 
Travis County, TX                    
 

Specialized  
Needs &  
Services 

HIV/AIDS 

Domestic 
Violence 

Elderly 
and/or  

Disabled 

Strategic Area: Populations with Special Needs/Services    Priority: High   

Public Engagement Ranking: 
Residents:  4th   
Social Service Agencies:  3rd   

Data Summary: 
• Approximately 5% of clients receiving services for the 

elderly, persons with disabilities, victims of domestic 
violence, or persons living with HIV/AIDS were from the 
unincorporated areas of the county.  Another 24% live in 
areas that are a mix of incorporated and unincorporated. 
Currently, there is no housing in the unincorporated areas 
that is specifically for disabled persons. 

• Elderly renter households are more likely to have a 
housing problem than either owner-occupied households 
or non-elderly households. 

Elderly &/or Persons with Disabilities: 
• In 2012, about 8% of the Travis County population consisted of adults aged 65 and older, and close to a 

quarter of individuals aged 65 to 74 and over half of individuals 75 and older had a disability. Since the 
elderly population is expected to rise and the rate of disability is known to increase with age, the needs for 
services for the elderly and disabled is expected to grow as well. 

Victims of Domestic Violence: 
• Children who are abused or neglected also are more likely to have a higher tolerance for and use of violence 

in relationships and enter into violent relationships as teens and adults or abuse their own children. 
• Currently, there are no beds or housing available specifically for victims of domestic violence in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County.    
Persons Living with HIV/AIDS: 
• HIV/AIDS may have the additional challenge of choosing between dedicating money to basic living expenses 

such as housing or to medical care. 
• There is only one organization in the Austin area that provides HIV/AIDS specific housing. The same 

organization provides assistance to clients at three sites in the unincorporated areas; however, there is no 
dedicated HIV/AIDS housing in the unincorporated areas.  

 
  

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

 
Travis County, TX                    
 

Business 
& 

Jobs 

Small  
Business 

Loans 

Commercial 
Exterior 
Repair 

Micro- 
Enterprise 

Loans 

Strategic Area: Business and Jobs                                 Priority: Low  

Public Engagement Ranking: 
Residents:  5th   
Social Service Agencies:  4th  

Data Summary: 
• According to the Texas Workforce Commission, in 2013, 

there was an increase in the number of jobs in every 
major industry in Texas.  

• And as of December 2013, the unemployment rate for 
Travis County (4.5%) has consistently remained lower 
than the state (5.6%) and national (6.5%) rates.  

• Approximately 7% of the services related to workforce 
development reach the residents of the unincorporated 
areas of the county, and another 30% reach residents in 
areas that are a mix of incorporated and unincorporated. 
This shows that residents throughout the unincorporated areas are in need of improved access to workforce 
development and jobs. 

• Programs and services within this issue area provide employment and training services to help individuals 
improve workplace skills, obtain employment, succeed in the workplace, and help employers secure a skilled 
workforce.  

Correlation between Education & Earning Potential 
• Current minimum wage in Texas is $7.25 per hour. According to the Center for Public Policy Priorities, a 

single adult with employer-sponsored health insurance and no children must earn $10.81 per hour, almost 
one-and-a-half times the minimum wage, to live in the Austin-Round Rock MSA without relying on public 
assistance. For a two-parent, two-child household without employer-sponsored health insurance, the 
required wage increases up to $31.51 per hour, more than four times the minimum wage. 

• Data continues to show that there is a powerful correlation between educational attainment and earnings.  
• This, coupled with the fact that the greatest job growth in Travis County has been for high-skilled workers, 

highlights the need for both short-term and long-term training, as well as efforts to increase enrollment in 
postsecondary education. 

 
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Item 19Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Item 20Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Item 21Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Item 22Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Item 23Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 
 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: June 24th, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Christina Cerda x 43858 and Susan Zavala x 
49701  
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Bruce Elfant, Tax Assessor- 
Collector 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: County Judge Sam Biscoe 

 
 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
 

•  CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON 
ASSUMPTIONS FOR TRAVIS COUNTY REGARDING THE 
FOLLOWING: 

 

 
A. PROPERTY TAX RATE CONSIDERATIONS 

 
B. NOTICE OF EFFECTIVE TAX RATE  

 
 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials should be submitted as 
a pdf to the County Judge's office,  agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next 
week's meeting. 

Item 24Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


T R A V I S  C O U N T Y  T A X  O F F I C E 
B R U C E E L  F A  N T 

T A X  A S S E S S O R  A N D  C O L L E C T O R 
 
 

5501 AIRPORT BOULEVARD 
AUSTIN, TX 78751 

(512) 854-9473 

 
 
 
June 24, 2014 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM FOR THE COUNTY JUDGE SAM BISCOE 
  PRECINCT 1, COMMISSIONER RON DAVIS  
  PRECINCT 2, COMMISSIONER BRUCE TODD  
  PRECINCT 3, COMMISSIONER GERALD DAUGHERTY  
  PRECINCT 4, COMMISSIONER MARGARET GÓMEZ 

 
FROM: Bruce Elfant, Tax Assessor-Collector 

 
SUBJECT: Property Tax Rate Considerations  

 

 
 

1.  Property Tax Rate Considerations 
 

Each year there are several items the Commissioners Court must consider when 
establishing tax rates and budget forecasts for Travis County.  We and the Planning 
and Budget Office recommend the Court adopt the following parameters: 

 
A.  Optional Homestead Exemption: $5,000 or 20% (whichever is greater).  

 
B.  Over 65 and Disabled Optional Homestead Exemptions: $70,000. 

 
C.  Historic Exemptions: City of Austin's Historic Exemption Policy 

D.  Anticipated Collection Rate (for Effective Tax Rate Calculations): 100% (lower 
estimates may be used only with justification) 

 
E.  Debt Service (and the resulting debt tax rate) may be reduced using year-end or 

reserve balances if available in the debt service fund:  If appropriate, this would 
be addressed as part of the Preliminary Budget development. 

 
F. Notice of Effective Tax Rate: Local Government Code Sec. 140.010 (c) 

 
Attachment:  2013 Historic Exemption Per Jurisdictions 
   Local Government Code Sec 140.010  

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



2013 HISTORIC EXEMPTION PER JURISDICTIONS 
 

Properties designated "H" Historic Landmarks which are used exclusively as a residence by the owners OR Properties 
owned by a non-profit corporation as defined by the Texas Non-profit Corporation Act: 
 Tax exemption on assessed 

value of land reasonably 
necessary to access and use 
structure 

Tax exemption on assessed 
value of historic structure 

Austin ISD 25%* 50%* 
City of Austin  

50%** 
 

100%** 
Travis County  

50%** 
 

100%** 
Travis County 
Healthcare District 

 
50%** 

 
100%** 

ACC District Repealed January 1, 2010 Repealed January 1, 2010 
 

* Owner-occupied residence or property owned by a non-profit corporation and designated historic after 
December 
31, 2011 or any historic designated owner-occupied residence or property owned by a non-profit corporation which 
changes ownership after December 31, 2011 are eligible for a property tax exemption by the AISD equaling 50% of 
the value of the structure and 25% of the value of the land, with a maximum exemption of $3,500. The maximum 
exemption instituted by the AISD does NOT affect the exemptions offered by City of Austin, Travis County, Travis 
County Healthcare District, and the Austin Community College District. 

 
** TIER TWO – Owner-occupied residence or property owned by a non-profit corporation and designated historic 
after December 1, 2004 or any historic designated owner-occupied residence or property owned by a non-profit 
corporation which changed ownership after December 1, 2004 are eligible for a property tax exemption by the City 
of Austin, Travis County, and Travis County Healthcare District equaling 100% of the value of the structure and 
50% of the value of the land, with a maximum exemption of the greater of $2,000 savings for each jurisdiction or 
50% of the tax levy for each jurisdiction. The maximum exemption instituted by the City of Austin, Travis County, 
and  Travis  County  Healthcare  District  does  NOT  affect  the  exemptions  offered  by  AISD,  and  the  Austin 
Community College District. 

 
**TIER THREE – Owner-occupied residence or property owned by a non-profit corporation and designated historic 
after December 31, 2011 or any historic designated owner-occupied residence or property owned by a non-profit 
corporation which changes ownership after December 31, 2011 are eligible for a property tax exemption by the City 
of Austin, Travis County, and Travis County Healthcare District equaling 100% of the value of the structure and 
50% of the value of the land, with a maximum exemption of $2,500. The maximum exemption instituted by the City 
of Austin, Travis County, and Travis County Healthcare District does NOT affect the exemptions offered by AISD, and 
the Austin Community College District. 

 
 

All other properties designated "H" Historic Landmarks: 
 Tax exemption on assessed 

value of land reasonably 
necessary to access and use 
structure 

Tax exemption on assessed 
value of historic structure 

Austin ISD 12.5% 25% 
City of Austin  

25% 
 

50% 
Travis County  

25% 
 

50% 
Travis County 
Healthcare District 

 
25% 

 
50% 

ACC District Repealed January 1, 2010 Repealed January 1, 2010 
 
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE SEC 140.010 
 
Sec. 140.010.  PROPOSED PROPERTY TAX RATE NOTICE FOR COUNTIES AND MUNICIPALITIES. 
 (a)  In this section, "effective tax rate" and "rollback tax rate" mean the effective 
tax rate and rollback tax rate of a county or municipality, as applicable, as calculated under 
Chapter 26, Tax Code. 

(b)  Except as provided by this subsection, each county and municipality shall 
provide notice of the county's or municipality's proposed property tax rate in the manner 
provided by this section.  A county or municipality to which Section 26.052, Tax Code, 
applies may provide notice of the county's or municipality's proposed property tax rate in 
the manner provided by this section or in the manner provided by Section 26.052, Tax Code. 

(c)  A county or municipality that provides notice of the county's or municipality's 
proposed property tax rate in the manner provided by this section is exempt from the notice 
and publication requirements of  Sections 26.04(e), 26.052, and 26.06, Tax Code, as 
applicable, and is not subject to an injunction for failure to comply with those requirements. 

(d)  A county or municipality that proposes a property tax rate that does not exceed 
the lower of the effective tax rate or the rollback tax rate shall provide the following notice: 

 
"NOTICE OF (INSERT CURRENT TAX YEAR) TAX YEAR PROPOSED PROPERTY TAX RATE FOR 
(INSERT NAME OF COUNTY OR MUNICIPALITY) 
 

"A tax rate of $______ per $100 valuation has been proposed by the governing body of 
(insert name of county or municipality). 
 

PROPOSED TAX RATE              $______ per $100 
PRECEDING YEAR'S TAX RATE  $______ per $100 
EFFECTIVE TAX RATE                  $______ per $100 
 

"The effective tax rate is the total tax rate needed to raise the same amount of property tax 
revenue for (insert name of county or municipality) from the same properties in both the 
(insert preceding tax year) tax year and the (insert current tax year) tax year. 
"YOUR TAXES OWED UNDER ANY OF THE ABOVE RATES CAN BE CALCULATED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 property tax amount = (rate) x (taxable value of your property) / 100 
 

"For assistance or detailed information about tax calculations, please contact: 
(insert name of county or municipal tax assessor-collector) 
(insert name of county or municipality) tax assessor-collector 
(insert address) 
(insert telephone number) 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



(insert e-mail address) 
(insert Internet website address, if applicable)" 
 
(e)  A county or municipality that proposes a property tax rate that exceeds the 

lower of the effective tax rate or the rollback tax rate shall provide the following notice: 
 

"NOTICE OF (INSERT CURRENT TAX YEAR) TAX YEAR PROPOSED PROPERTY TAX RATE FOR 
(INSERT NAME OF COUNTY OR MUNICIPALITY) 
 

"A tax rate of $_____ per $100 valuation has been proposed for adoption by the governing 
body of (insert name of county or municipality).  This rate exceeds the lower of the effective 
or rollback tax rate, and state law requires that two public hearings be held by the governing 
body before adopting the proposed tax rate. 
 

PROPOSED TAX RATE                $______ per $100 
PRECEDING YEAR'S TAX RATE  $______ per $100 
EFFECTIVE TAX RATE                 $______ per $100 
ROLLBACK TAX RATE                 $______ per $100 
 

"The effective tax rate is the total tax rate needed to raise the same amount of property tax 
revenue for (insert name of county or municipality) from the same properties in both the 
(insert preceding tax year) tax year and the (insert current tax year) tax year. 
 
"The rollback tax rate is the highest tax rate that (insert name of county or municipality) may 
adopt before voters are entitled to petition for an election to limit the rate that may be 
approved to the rollback rate. 
 
"YOUR TAXES OWED UNDER ANY OF THE ABOVE RATES CAN BE CALCULATED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 property tax amount = (rate) x (taxable value of your property) / 100 
 

"For assistance or detailed information about tax calculations, please contact: 
(insert name of county or municipal tax assessor-collector) 
(insert name of county or municipality) tax assessor-collector 
(insert address) 
(insert telephone number) 
(insert e-mail address) 
(insert Internet website address, if applicable) 
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



"You are urged to attend and express your views at the following public hearings on the 
proposed tax rate: 

First Hearing:  (insert date and time) at (insert location of meeting). 
Second Hearing:  (insert date and time) at (insert location of meeting)." 
 
(f)  A county or municipality shall: 

(1)  provide the notice required by Subsection (d) or (e), as applicable, not 
later than September 1 by: 

(A)  publishing the notice in a newspaper having general circulation in: 
(i)  the county, in the case of notice published by a county; or 
(ii)  the county in which the municipality is located or primarily 

located, in the case of notice published by a municipality; or 
(B)  mailing the notice to each property owner in: 

(i)  the county, in the case of notice provided by a county; or 
(ii)  the municipality, in the case of notice provided by a 

municipality; and 
(2)  post the notice on the Internet website of the county or municipality, if 

applicable, beginning not later than September 1 and continuing until the county or 
municipality adopts a tax rate. 

(g)  If the notice required by Subsection (d) or (e) is published in a newspaper: 
(1)  the notice may not be smaller than one-quarter page of a standard-size 

or a tabloid-size newspaper; and 
(2)  the headline on the notice must be in 24-point or larger type. 

(h)  A county or municipality that provides notice under this section shall on request 
provide any information described by Sections 26.04(e)(1)-(7), Tax Code, regarding the 
county or municipality, as applicable. 

 
Added by Acts 2013, 83rd Leg., R.S., Ch. 800 (S.B. 1510), Sec. 1, eff. January 1, 2014. 
 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

http://www.legis.state.tx.us/tlodocs/83R/billtext/html/SB01510F.HTM


 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 
 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: June 24th, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Christina Cerda x 43858 and Susan Zavala x 
49701  
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Bruce Elfant, Tax Assessor- 
Collector 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: County Judge Sam Biscoe 

 
 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
 

•  CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON 
PROPERTY TAX RATE CONSIDERATIONS FOR THE 
TRAVIS COUNTY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT DBA 
CENTRAL HEALTH. 

 
 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials should be submitted as 
a pdf to the County Judge's office,  agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next 
week's meeting. 

Item 25Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


T R A V I S  C O U N T Y  T A X  O F F I C E 
B R U C E E L  F A  N T 

T A X  A S S E S S O R  A N D  C O L L E C T O R 
 
 

5501 AIRPORT BOULEVARD 
AUSTIN, TX 78751 

(512) 854-9473 

 
 
 
June 24, 2014 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM FOR THE COUNTY JUDGE SAM BISCOE 
  PRECINCT 1, COMMISSIONER RON DAVIS  
  PRECINCT 2, COMMISSIONER BRUCE TODD  
  PRECINCT 3, COMMISSIONER GERALD DAUGHERTY  
  PRECINCT 4, COMMISSIONER MARGARET GÓMEZ 

 
FROM: Bruce Elfant, Tax Assessor-Collector 

 
SUBJECT: Property Tax Rate Considerations  

 

 
 

1.  Property Tax Rate Considerations 
 

Each year there are several items the Commissioners Court must consider when 
establishing tax rates and budget forecasts for Central Health.  We and the Planning 
and Budget Office recommend the Court adopt the following parameters: 

 
A.  Optional Homestead Exemption: $5,000 or 20% (whichever is greater).  

 
B.  Over 65 and Disabled Optional Homestead Exemptions: $70,000. 

 
C.  Historic Exemptions: City of Austin's Historic Exemption Policy 

D.  Anticipated Collection Rate (for Effective Tax Rate Calculations): 100% (lower 
estimates may be used only with justification) 

 
 

Attachment:  2013 Historic Exemption Per Jurisdictions 
    
If you should have any concerns or comments, please do not hesitate to call me at 4-9632. 
 
BE/sz 
 
cc: Leroy Nellis, Executive Manager, Planning and Budget 
      Jessica Rio, Budget Director, Planning and Budget 
      John Stephens & Jeff Knodel, Central Health 
      Michael Heath, Advanced Certified Paralegal, Transactions  

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



2013 HISTORIC EXEMPTION PER JURISDICTIONS 
 

Properties designated "H" Historic Landmarks which are used exclusively as a residence by the owners OR 
Properties owned by a non-profit corporation as defined by the Texas Non-profit Corporation Act: 
 Tax exemption on assessed 

value of land reasonably 
necessary to access and use 
structure 

Tax exemption on assessed 
value of historic structure 

Austin ISD 25%* 50%* 
City of Austin  

50%** 
 

100%** 
Travis County  

50%** 
 

100%** 
Travis County 
Healthcare District 

 
50%** 

 
100%** 

ACC District Repealed January 1, 2010 Repealed January 1, 2010 
 

* Owner-occupied residence or property owned by a non-profit corporation and designated historic after 
December 
31, 2011 or any historic designated owner-occupied residence or property owned by a non-profit corporation 
which changes ownership after December 31, 2011 are eligible for a property tax exemption by the AISD equaling 
50% of the value of the structure and 25% of the value of the land, with a maximum exemption of $3,500. The 
maximum exemption instituted by the AISD does NOT affect the exemptions offered by City of Austin, Travis 
County, Travis County Healthcare District, and the Austin Community College District. 

 
** TIER TWO – Owner-occupied residence or property owned by a non-profit corporation and designated historic 
after December 1, 2004 or any historic designated owner-occupied residence or property owned by a non-profit 
corporation which changed ownership after December 1, 2004 are eligible for a property tax exemption by the 
City of Austin, Travis County, and Travis County Healthcare District equaling 100% of the value of the structure 
and 
50% of the value of the land, with a maximum exemption of the greater of $2,000 savings for each jurisdiction 
or 
50% of the tax levy for each jurisdiction. The maximum exemption instituted by the City of Austin, Travis County, 
and  Travis  County  Healthcare  District  does  NOT  affect  the  exemptions  offered  by  AISD,  and  the  Austin 
Community College District. 

 
**TIER THREE – Owner-occupied residence or property owned by a non-profit corporation and designated historic 
after December 31, 2011 or any historic designated owner-occupied residence or property owned by a non-profit 
corporation which changes ownership after December 31, 2011 are eligible for a property tax exemption by the 
City of Austin, Travis County, and Travis County Healthcare District equaling 100% of the value of the structure 
and 
50% of the value of the land, with a maximum exemption of $2,500. The maximum exemption instituted by the 
City of Austin, Travis County, and Travis County Healthcare District does NOT affect the exemptions offered by 
AISD, and the Austin Community College District. 
All other properties designated "H" Historic Landmarks: 
 Tax exemption on assessed 

value of land reasonably 
necessary to access and use 
structure 

Tax exemption on assessed 
value of historic structure 

Austin ISD 12.5% 25% 
City of Austin  

25% 
 

50% 
Travis County  

25% 
 

50% 
Travis County 
Healthcare District 

 
25% 

 
50% 

ACC District Repealed January 1, 2010 Repealed January 1, 2010 
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Item 26Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Item 27Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Item 28Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to David Salazar at David.Salazar@co.travis.tx.us in the County Judge's office, by Tuesdays at 5:00 
p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  June 24, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Sylvia Mendoza 512-854-7008 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Estela P. Medina 854-7069 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and take appropriate action to approve the contract extension 
between the Office of Attorney General and the Travis County Domestic 
Relations Office for the Child Support Community Supervision services. 
The contract effective date March 1, 2014 to August 31st 2015 with an 
automatic renewal on September 1, 2015 for a period of one year. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
The Travis County Domestic Relations Office has entered into a contract 
with the Office of Attorney General (OAG) to provide the OAG with 
community supervision services on Title IV-D cases for the purpose of 
enforcement of child support and medical support orders, a Title IV-D 
function.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
The Travis County Juvenile Probation Department respectfully 
recommends approval of the contract. 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 29Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 
Meeting Date:  June 24, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Sylvia Mendoza 512-854-7008 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Estela P. Medina 854-7069 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and take appropriate action on a Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) between the Travis County Juvenile Board, Travis County, and the 
following Independent School Districts: Austin, Del Valle, Eanes, Lake 
Travis, Lago Vista, Leander, Manor, Pflugerville, and Round Rock 
regarding the Travis County Juvenile Justice Alternative Education 
Program for the 2014-2015 school year. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Travis County Juvenile Probation Department operates the Travis County 
Juvenile Alternative Education Program (JJAEP) as mandated by Chapter 
37 of the Texas Education Code under the oversight of the Travis County 
Juvenile Board.  Further, Section 37.011 of the Texas Education Code 
requires the Travis County Juvenile Board and all of the school districts in 
the county to enter into a joint memorandum of understanding that 
addresses certain specified requirements for the operations of the JJAEP 
annually.   
 
The proposed Memorandum of Understanding for the JJAEP of Travis 
County, to be effective September 1, 2014 through August 31, 2015, is 
between Travis County, the Travis County Juvenile Board ("TCJB"), and 
the following school districts: Austin, Del Valle, Eanes, Lago Vista, Lake 
Travis, Leander, Manor, Pflugerville, and Round Rock.  The MOU was 
approved by the Travis County Juvenile Board on May 28, 2014. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
The Travis County Juvenile Probation Department respectfully 
recommends approval of the Memorandum of Understanding. 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 30Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to David Salazar at David.Salazar@co.travis.tx.us in the County Judge's office, by Tuesdays at 5:00 
p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
_____________________________ 

Memorandum of Understanding 

2014-15 School Year 

Page 1 of 20 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

FOR THE 

JUVENILE JUSTICE ALTERNATIVE EDUCATION COOPERATIVE 

OF TRAVIS COUNTY 

 
This Memorandum of Understanding ("Agreement”) is an Interlocal Agreement entered 

into pursuant to Texas Education Code, Chapter 37 and the Texas Interlocal Cooperation Act, 

Texas Government Code, Chapter 791, and is entered into to be effective the 1st day of 

September, 2014, between Travis County, the Travis County Juvenile Board ("TCJB"), and 

the following educational entities: Austin Independent School District, Del Valle Independent 

School District, Eanes Independent School District, Lake Travis Independent School District, 

Lago Vista Independent School District, Leander Independent School District, Manor 

Independent School District, Pflugerville Independent School District, and Round Rock 

Independent School District (hereinafter referred to collectively as the "ISDs"). The parties to 

this Agreement shall be collectively referred to herein as "Participants." 

 

RECITALS: 

 

WHEREAS: 

 

(1) Texas Education Code Sec. 37.011(m) requires the TCJB to enter into a 

Memorandum of Understanding with the ISDs establishing a Juvenile Justice Alternative 

Education Program (“JJAEP”); and 

 

 (2) The Participants desire to participate in the Juvenile Justice Alternative 

Education Program Cooperative of Travis County ("JJAEP Co-Op") and to comply with the 

agreements contained herein; and 

 

 (3) The ISDs wish to reach an agreement with the TCJB as to the placement of 

students expelled from school under the discretionary expulsion and removal provisions of Texas 

Education Code, Chapter 37; and 

 

 (4) The Participants desire to create and operate the JJAEP Co-Op pursuant to 

Chapter 37 of the Texas Education Code and this Agreement; and 

 

 (5) The Participants further desire to define and create the duties and responsibilities 

of the Participants, and to set forth herein the methods by which the Participants shall fund, 

govern and establish the JJAEP Co-Op; and 

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
_____________________________ 

Memorandum of Understanding 

2014-15 School Year 

Page 2 of 20 

 (6)       The Participant ISDs recognize that the Texas Legislature has appropriated certain 

funds to pay the County and TCJB for the cost of educating students in the JJAEP Co-Op who 

are expelled under the mandatory expulsion provisions of Texas Education Code Chapter 37.  

However, such funds are insufficient to meet the cost of educating students in the JJAEP Co-Op; 

and 

 

 (7)       The ISDs are required to consider course credit earned by a student while in the 
JJAEP Co-Op as credit earned in a school district program pursuant to Texas Education Code 

Sec. 37.010(d), and the ISDs have an ongoing interest in the quality of education provided in the 
JJAEP Co-Op and the academic success of students who will be returned from the JJAEP Co-Op 
to the regular school setting.  Therefore, the ISDs desire to assist in providing the JJAEP Co-Op 

with full, adequate funding; and 
 

 (8) The relationship between the Participants necessitates this Interlocal Agreement; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BY THIS AGREEMENT IT IS MUTUALLY 

UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED BY THE PARTICIPANTS AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION ONE: DEFINITIONS 

 
For purposes of this Agreement: 

 

 1.1 "discretionary" shall mean any student who is expelled or removed from the 

regular classroom and meets the definition of any one of the following three categories: 

  1.1.a.  “discretionary Category I”  shall mean any student who is expelled under 

Texas Education Code Sec. 37.007 (b), (c), (f) or (i);  

  1.1.b.  “discretionary Category II” shall mean any student who is expelled for 

committing an off-campus offense under Texas Education Code Sec. 37.0081(a); 

  1.1.c.  “discretionary Category III” shall mean any student who is a publicly 

Registered Sex Offender who is eligible for placement in the JJAEP under Subchapter I of 

Chapter 37 of the Texas Education Code.   

 

             1.2    "ISSP transition team" shall mean those persons responsible for reviewing a 

student's academic progress in accordance with Texas Education Code Sec. 37.011(d); that is, 

the TCJB or its designee, and the parent or guardian of the student. For purposes of this 

Agreement, a representative of the ISD from which the student was expelled may also be a 

member of the ISSP transition team, together with any JJAEP Co-Op staff as may be 

appropriate. 

 

 1.3 "mandatory expulsion" shall mean any student who is expelled pursuant to the 

provisions of Texas Education Code Sec. 37.007 (a), (d) or (e). 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
_____________________________ 

Memorandum of Understanding 

2014-15 School Year 

Page 3 of 20 

1.4  "rollover funds" shall mean all funds paid by the ISDs to the TCJB for either 

discretionary or mandatory expulsion allotments that remain unexpended on August 31 of each 

year. 

1.5 “semester” as referenced by the Texas Education Code Subchapter I. Placement 

of Registered Sex Offenders shall mean 90 school days. 

 

1.6 “student" shall mean any person residing in Travis County aged ten years or older 

and required to attend school pursuant to Texas Education Code Sec. 25.085. 

 

SECTION TWO: STUDENT CODES OF CONDUCT 

 
 2.1 The JJAEP Co-Op will be created and operated pursuant to Chapter 37 of the 

Texas Education Code and this Memorandum of Understanding.  Each ISD has developed a 

Student Code of Conduct, specifying the circumstances under which a student may be removed 

from a classroom, campus, or alternative education program. 

 

 2.2 The Student Code of Conduct adopted by each ISD shall set forth the 

circumstances under which students will be subject to expulsion from the school setting and 

placement in the JJAEP Co-Op.  A student may be expelled and placed in the JJAEP if the 

student, while placed in a disciplinary alternative education program, engages in documented 

serious misbehavior despite documented behavioral interventions.  Serious misbehavior, as 

defined by Texas Education Code 37.007(c), means:  

(1)  Deliberate violent behavior that poses a direct threat to the health or safety of others; 

 

 (2) Extortion, meaning the gaining of money or other property by force or threat; 

 

(3) Conduct that constitutes coercion, as defined by Section 1.07, Texas Penal Code; or 

 

(4) Conduct that constitutes the offense of: 

(A)  Public lewdness under Section 21.07, Texas Penal Code; 

(B)  Indecent exposure under Section 21.08, Texas Penal Code; 

(C)  Criminal mischief under Section 28.03, Texas Penal Code; 

(D)  Personal hazing under Section 37.152, Texas Education Code; or 

(E)  Harassment under Section 42.07(a)(1), Texas Penal Code, of a student or district 

employee. 

 

SECTION THREE: GOVERNANCE OF JJAEP CO-OP 

 

 3.1 Composition of Governing Body - The JJAEP shall operate as a function of 

Travis County and the TCJB, separate and apart from the other Participants to this Agreement. It 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
_____________________________ 

Memorandum of Understanding 

2014-15 School Year 

Page 4 of 20 

shall not be an independent political subdivision, nor shall it operate under the direction or 

control of any party to this Agreement other than Travis County and the TCJB. 

 

 3.2 Executive Committee - Upon the effective date of this Agreement, there shall be 

created an Executive Committee, consisting of one (1) representative of each ISD, one (1) 

representative of Travis County, and one (1) representative of the TCJB, each to be appointed by 

their respective governing body.  All representatives to the Executive Committee shall be named 

not later than thirty (30) days from the effective date of this Agreement. Vacancies on the 

Executive Committee shall be filled by appointment by the governing body represented thereby. 

The Executive Committee exists solely to advise and assist the TCJB, and has no authority to 

direct or control the JJAEP Co-Op. 

 

 3.3 Quorum and Voting - Four (4) members of the Executive Committee shall 

constitute a quorum.  The Executive Committee shall act by and through resolutions, motions or 

orders adopted or passed by the Executive Committee upon the vote of the majority of the 

members the Executive Committee attending the meeting at which the issue was presented. 

 

 3.4  Voting Rights - Each member shall be entitled to one vote on each matter 

submitted to a vote of the members.  In the event of a tie vote, the Chair shall have two votes. 

 

 3.5 Chair - At the initial meeting of the Executive Committee, and thereafter 

annually, the Executive Committee shall select from its membership a Chair by the affirmative 

vote of a majority of the members. The Chair shall prepare the agenda, preside over the meetings 

of the Executive Committee and shall be responsible for scheduling regular and special called 

meetings of the Executive Committee, including the provision of notice thereof. 

 

 3.6 The TCJB representative shall act as custodian of all minutes, records, and 

reports of the Executive Committee, and shall generally assist the Chair and shall have such 

powers and perform such duties and services as shall from time to time be delegated to him or 

her by the Chair. 

 

 3.7 The Chair shall serve in his or her respective capacities until tendering written 

resignation(s) or until replacement by a majority vote of the members of the Executive 

Committee. 

 

 3.8 The Chair shall be entitled to vote on all matters coming before the Executive 

Committee. 

 

 3.9 Meetings - The Executive Committee shall hold regular meetings at such time 

and in such place determined by the Executive Committee.  If the Executive Committee does not 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
_____________________________ 

Memorandum of Understanding 

2014-15 School Year 

Page 5 of 20 

designate the place of meeting, the meeting shall be held at the Administrative Offices of the 

Austin Independent School District, 1111 West 6th Street, Austin, Texas, 78703.  Procedures for 

meetings shall be governed by the most current version of Robert's Rules of Order.  Special 

meetings of the Executive Committee shall be called by the Chair, or by affirmative vote of not 

less than one-third (1/3) of the members of the Committee. 

 

 3.10 Notice of Meeting - Written notice of the regular meetings of the Executive 

Committee shall be mailed, delivered or sent by electronic mail to each member not less than 

five (5) days prior to the date thereof.  Written notice of all meetings of the Executive Committee 

shall be posted at the place(s) for posting notice of public meetings of each of the Parties hereto 

in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act. The Chair of the Executive Committee shall 

transmit to each member of the Executive Committee a notice for the purpose of such posting not 

less than five (5) days prior to the date of the meeting. Written notice of any special meeting of 

the members shall be given to each member not less than 24 hours and as soon as reasonably 

possible prior to the date thereof.  The notice shall state the place, date and time of the meeting, 

who called the meeting, and the general purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called.  

Notice shall be given by or at the general direction of Chair of the Committee, or the members 

calling the meeting. 

    

3.11 Duties - The activities of the Executive Committee shall include, but not be 

limited to the following: 

 

A. To develop and recommend proposed written operating policies to the TCJB 

consistent with any rules and regulations adopted by the Texas Juvenile Probation 

Commission pursuant to Texas Education Code Sec. 37.011, and Texas Human 

Resources Code Sec. 221.002(a) regarding the operations, policies and procedures 

of the JJAEP Co-Op, and to make advisory recommendations to the TCJB 

regarding such operations, policies, and procedures including suggested changes 

or amendments thereto; 

 

B. To review the contractual requirements and arrangements between the TCJB and 

third-party providers of goods and services in connection with the creation and 

operation of the JJAEP Co-Op, and to make recommendations to the TCJB in 

connection with such contracts; 

 

C. To act as a liaison between the Participants and any third-party providers of 

programs or services.  Such liaison services shall include, but not be limited to 

general communications, problem resolution, and Participant meeting 

coordination; 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
_____________________________ 

Memorandum of Understanding 

2014-15 School Year 

Page 6 of 20 

D. To participate in an advisory capacity in the development of the annual operating 

budget for the JJAEP Co-Op; to recommend the initial criteria for, and thereafter 

monitor the ISDs' billing and payment schedule for the JJAEP Co-Op; 

 

E. To facilitate coordination with the Participants to this Agreement on matters 

relating to the supervision, educational and rehabilitative services available for 

expelled students and students assigned to the JJAEP Co-Op and the subsequent 

transition back into the school setting; 

 

F. To assist the TCJB in developing job descriptions, screening applicants, and 

making personnel and staffing recommendations for the JJAEP Co-Op; 

 

G. To formulate and recommend other policies or procedures as appropriate to the 

TCJB as may be necessary to operate consistent with any rules and regulations as 

shall be adopted by the Texas Juvenile Probation Commission; and 

 

H. To formulate and recommend a consistent method for calculating the budget and 

cost projections for the JJAEP Co-Op. 

 

3.12    JJAEP Co-Op Executive Committee Compensation - No member of the JJAEP Co-

Op Executive Committee shall receive compensation for his or her services as a member of the 

Committee. Nothing herein contained shall be construed to preclude any Committee member 

from receiving compensation or reimbursement for expenses from the member's respective 

employer for serving on the Committee. 

 

SECTION FOUR:  STUDENT PLACEMENT IN JJAEP  

 

4.1 The Participants hereto acknowledge that Texas Education Code Sec. 37.010 (a) 

requires that every expelled student in a county with a population of 125,000 or greater who is 

not detained or receiving treatment under an order of the juvenile court must be enrolled in an 

educational program.  It is therefore the intent of the JJAEP Co-Op to provide educational 

services to all expelled students, as provided more fully herein.  However, no students will be 

assigned to the Travis County JJAEP except as set forth by provisions of this Agreement. 

 

4.2 Students who are expelled from the school district setting will be afforded due 

process within the respective ISD as provided by school district policy and federal and state law. 

4.3 Each ISD shall use its best efforts to notify the juvenile court in writing as soon as 

practicable upon the ISD’s identification of a student who the ISD reasonably believes has 

engaged in conduct for which the student will be subject to mandatory expulsion.  Such notice 

may be given in addition to any notice required under Texas Family Code Sec. 52.041.  If the 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
_____________________________ 

Memorandum of Understanding 

2014-15 School Year 

Page 7 of 20 

juvenile court receives written notice under this section that a student is believed to have 

engaged in conduct for which the ISD reasonably believes the student will be subject to 

mandatory expulsion, and the student is under the jurisdiction of the juvenile court, the juvenile 

court shall consider entering an order that the student attend the JJAEP Co-Op as soon as 

practicable, pending the outcome of any disciplinary proceedings at the ISD. 

 

4.4 Every student eligible for placement in the JJAEP as set forth by the provisions of 

this Agreement who has been expelled from an ISD, and for whom information has been 

provided by the ISD from which the student has been expelled to the juvenile court in 

accordance with Texas Family Code Sec. 52.041, shall be ordered by the juvenile court to enroll 

in the JJAEP Co-Op as soon as reasonably practicable after the juvenile court's receipt of such 

notice.  The information provided by the ISD for any student expelled for serious misbehavior 

under Texas Education Code Sec. 37.007(c), shall include documentation of the serious 

misbehavior and documentation of the behavioral interventions provided by the ISD prior to the 

expulsion. 

 

4.5 Failure of an ISD to timely notify the juvenile court of an expulsion pursuant to 

Texas Family Code Sec. 52.041 shall result in the student's duty to continue attending the school 

district's educational program, which shall be provided to that student until such time as the 

notification to the juvenile court is properly made. 

 

4.6 The juvenile court shall, for each student taken into custody for conduct that 

occurred on school property or at a school-sponsored or school-related activity, use its best 

efforts to ascertain whether the conduct for which the student was taken into custody would 

subject the student to mandatory expulsion.  If the juvenile court ascertains that the conduct for 

which the student was taken into custody is such that it would subject the student to mandatory 

expulsion, the juvenile court shall consider entering an order that the student immediately begin 

attending the JJAEP Co-Op pending resolution of the disciplinary action, including any 

expulsion hearings, at the ISD. 

 

4.7 It is the intent of the Participants hereto that for each expelled student who is 

placed in the JJAEP Co-Op, the term of such placement will be coterminous with the term of the 

student's expulsion from school.   The ISDs agree that a placement term of no less than one six 

week grading period will be required, absent extenuating circumstances.  Students must remain 

in the JJAEP Co-Op for the full period ordered by the juvenile court unless the student's school 

district agrees to accept the student before the date ordered by the juvenile court or the student is 

referred back to the ISD pursuant to Section 4.8 or Section 4.9 or Section 4.10 herein. The 

juvenile court shall consider the term of a student's expulsion in entering any order as to the 

student, including terms and conditions of release from custody, deferred prosecution, or 

probation. At the conclusion of the student's term of probation, or any other requirement imposed 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
_____________________________ 

Memorandum of Understanding 

2014-15 School Year 

Page 8 of 20 

by the juvenile court, including conditions of a deferred prosecution ordered by the court, or such 

conditions required by the prosecutor or probation department, and if the student meets the 

requirements for admission into the public schools established by law, the school district in 

which the student resides must readmit the student, but may assign such student to the school 

district alternative education program. 

 

 4.8    It is the intent of the Participants hereto that the JJAEP Co-Op shall give priority to 

mandatory expulsion students from each of the ISDs.   It is understood by the Participants, 

however, that the JJAEP Co-Op has limited space and staffing, and that conditions outside the 

control of any Participant to this Agreement may cause fluctuations in the JJAEP Co-Op 

population. The current maximum capacity of the JJAEP is fifty students. The “maximum 

capacity” of the JJAEP may be redefined from time to time, however, as deemed appropriate by 

the JJAEP Co-Op. Given the limited space at the JJAEP, participants agree to abide by the 

following procedures for discretionary placement decisions: 

 

A. Each participating school district will be permitted to enroll as many as  

four discretionary students in the JJAEP Co-Op at any time during the 

school year.  These students must meet the definition of discretionary 

Category I, II or III as set forth by this Agreement.  

 

B. Discretionary students will not be accepted into the JJAEP in the event 

that maximum capacity has been reached. 

 

C. Discretionary students will not be accepted into the JJAEP if the student is 

seventeen (17) years of age or older, and not under the jurisdiction of the 

juvenile court.  

 

In the event the JJAEP has reached maximum capacity and a mandatory expulsion student is 

referred for placement in the JJAEP Co-Op, the JJAEP Manager will immediately identify the 

school district(s) with the highest number of discretionary student placements, and determine 

which discretionary student from these districts should be dismissed from the JJAEP Co-Op to 

accommodate the additional mandatory expulsion student. The JJAEP Manager will base this 

decision on information regarding the circumstances for the expulsion and the student’s behavior 

while at the JJAEP. 

 

 

4.9 A student who is assigned to the JJAEP as a “discretionary category II” student 

for a felony offense under Texas Education Code Sec. 37.0081(a) shall be returned to the 

sending ISD upon the first of the following events to occur: 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
_____________________________ 

Memorandum of Understanding 

2014-15 School Year 

Page 9 of 20 

a. The charges are dismissed or reduced to a misdemeanor offense; 

b. The student is acquitted; 

c. The student completes the term of placement; 

d. The student is assigned to another program; or 

e. The student graduates from high school. 

 

4.10  A student who is assigned to the JJAEP for engaging in serious misbehavior, as 

defined by and pursuant to Texas Education Code Sec. 37.007(c)  will be returned to the sending 

ISD upon the completion of the semester or, in circumstances when the student is expelled 

within 6 weeks of the end of a semester, the completion of the following semester, unless 

otherwise returned earlier by expiration of the term of the expulsion or by other mutual 

agreement. 

 

SECTION FIVE:  LIAISON 

 

 5.1 Each ISD shall notify the juvenile court in writing of its designated Liaison. 

Each Liaison shall have authority to offer recommendations to the juvenile court regarding 

placement alternatives for students under the jurisdiction of the juvenile court, and to bind the 

Liaison's respective ISD to any agreement to return a child to the school setting. 

 

 5.2 The Liaison shall assist the juvenile court in obtaining the permission from the 

parent(s) of each student served by the JJAEP Co-Op to release medical, educational or other 

appropriate records to the juvenile court and to the JJAEP Co-Op.  In the absence of such 

parental consent, the juvenile court may consider the need for a court order releasing such 

records, and the Liaison may provide the juvenile court with such other educational information 

regarding the child as may be permitted by law. 

 

 5.3 The Liaison shall be responsible for coordinating the ISD’s participation on the 

ISSP transition team, as appropriate. 

 

 5.4 As necessary, the Liaison will consult with representatives of the Participants 

regarding matters affecting the programs, services, and student population of the JJAEP Co-Op. 

 

SECTION SIX: JJAEP CO-OP FACILITIES AND STAFFING 

 
 6.1  The JJAEP Co-Op facilities and staffing will be provided by Travis County and the 

TCJB.  Such facilities and staffing may be provided under a separate agreement with one or 

more ISDs or a third party provider.  It is contemplated by the Participants that the facilities, 

staffing, services and other requirements of the JJAEP Co-Op will be fully operational no later 

than the first day of school in each year in which this Agreement continues in force and effect.  

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
_____________________________ 

Memorandum of Understanding 

2014-15 School Year 

Page 10 of 20 

The JJAEP Co-Op shall operate on the same school calendar as the Austin Independent School 

District.  TCJB shall comply with all state bidding and procurement laws in obtaining facilities 

and staffing for the JJAEP Co-Op to the extent such are applicable. 

 

SECTION SEVEN: TRANSPORTATION 
 

 7.1 Each ISD shall be responsible for providing for the transportation of its students 

to and from the JJAEP Co-Op facility. Each ISD acknowledges and agrees that the student drop 

off and pick-up locations will be no further than two (2) miles from the students’ residence. 

Disciplinary incidents occurring during transport on the ISDs' vehicles will be referred to the 

JJAEP Program Administrator or designee for appropriate disciplinary action. 

 

SECTION EIGHT: RELEASE OF STUDENT AND JUVENILE RECORDS 

 

 8.1 The governing body of each Participant finds that in order to appropriately serve 

students receiving services under this Agreement, the sharing of information pertinent to the 

provision of education and rehabilitation services is essential and in the best interests of the 

students served.  In the absence of parental consent, the juvenile court with jurisdiction over a 

student receiving educational services under this Agreement shall consider authorizing the 

entities providing services to such student to release appropriate juvenile, educational, 

diagnostic, treatment or other records as appropriate to permit the consistent provision of 

services to the student, as provided under Texas Family Code Sec. 58.0051. 

 

8.2 All student education records discussed or reviewed by any person specific to an  

individual student shall be considered confidential, and shall be shared only with the juvenile 

court, the student, the parent(s) or guardian(s) of the student, and those employees of the juvenile 

court, Participant, or JJAEP Co-Op with a legitimate educational interest in the student.  Student 

educational records shall be transferred to the appropriate ISD upon dismissal of a student from 

the JJAEP Co-Op. 

 

8.3 Each ISD shall be responsible for providing the JJAEP the following  

educational records prior to the students’ admission to the JJAEP: 

  a. Grades and transcript (current and past semester) 

  b. Immunization records 

  c. Special Education assessments if applicable 

  d. ARD and IEP information if applicable 

  e. Current information related to state-mandated assessments 

  f. Attendance and grades for one prior full semester 

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
_____________________________ 

Memorandum of Understanding 

2014-15 School Year 

Page 11 of 20 

SECTION NINE:  FUNDING FOR JJAEP CO-OP 

 

 9.1.a.   Daily Rate for Discretionary Category I and III Students - The ISDs will be billed 
a daily rate not to exceed the daily rate authorized by the Texas Juvenile Justice Department for 

mandatory expulsion students, for each day a “discretionary category I” student, who is expelled 
pursuant to Texas Education Code Sec. 37.007 (b), (c), (f) or (i), and “discretionary category III” 
student, who is placed as a publicly Registered Sex Offender pursuant to Texas Education Code 

Chapter 37, Subchapter I, is in attendance in the JJAEP Co-Op. 
9.1.b.  Daily Rate for Discretionary Category II Students - The ISDs will be billed a 

daily rate based on the actual operational costs as determined by the TCJB based on the Board’s 
annual audit for each day a “discretionary category II” student who was expelled for a felony 
pursuant to Texas Education Code Sec. 37.0081 is enrolled in the JJAEP.  Audit figures from the 

most recently finalized audit will be used to set current year actual daily costs.  The rate per 
student per day of enrollment for school year 2014-2015 will be set by the TCJB at their duly 

noticed meeting in September 2014, and notification will be provided to all ISDs under this 
Agreement. 
 

 9.2 Rollover Funds- If any portion of the funds paid by the ISDs hereunder remain 
unused at the end of any school year, such funds shall become rollover funds for the following 

year, and shall be applied to the cost of funding JJAEP Co-Op operational expenses for the 
subsequent school year(s). 
 

 9.3 Maintenance of Depository Account - Travis County shall place all funds 

received hereunder in a fully insured depository account, or other secured account, as required by 

law. Funds received hereunder shall be separately accounted for and may not be budgeted or 

allocated for any purpose other than the operation of the JJAEP Co-Op.  All principal and any 

interest accruing to the TCJB account from such deposited funds shall be credited to the JJAEP 

Co-Op and shall be used for the necessary and reasonable expenses of the JJAEP Co-Op and 

shall not be commingled with the regular operating funds of either the TCJB or Travis County.  

All rollover funds shall be separately accounted for and used to fund program costs for the 

subsequent school year. 

 

 9.4 Accounting - Travis County shall provide an accounting to the Participants, on an 

as-requested basis, of the amounts paid to the TCJB in connection with the JJAEP Co-Op, 

together with supporting documentation. 

 

 9.5 Billing - Travis County agrees to establish and coordinate billing arrangements 

with the ISDs with respect to the ISDs’ funding obligations, if any, to the JJAEP Co-Op under 

this Agreement. 

 9.6 Audit - At least annually, Travis County shall provide an audited accounting to 

the other Participants of funds received and paid with respect to the JJAEP Co-Op. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
_____________________________ 

Memorandum of Understanding 

2014-15 School Year 

Page 12 of 20 

 9.7 Budget - The Executive Committee shall provide recommendations to the TCJB 

on budgetary matters relating to the establishment and operation of the JJAEP Co-Op. 

 

SECTION TEN: SPECIAL SERVICES 

 
 10.1 The TCJB shall be responsible for any services required to comply with the 

Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. The ISD in which a 

student resides shall provide and fund related services specified in the Individualized Education 

Plan to eligible students under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act. 

 

 10.2 TCJB and the ISDs shall cooperate in the provision of related services to students 

placed in the JJAEP Co-Op. 

 

 10.3 Each ISDs shall provide reasonable notice to the administrator of the JJAEP Co-

Op of the ISD's Admission, Review and Dismissal Committee ("ARD”) meetings where 

placement in the JJAEP Co-Op will be considered or when reviewing or modifying the program 

of a special education student in the JJAEP Co-Op. The ISDs shall be responsible for scheduling 

and sending notices of ARD meetings during the period of expulsion, and for notifying and 

inviting JJAEP Co-Op representatives to participate in ARD meetings. For students receiving 

services under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, the ARD Committee meetings 

shall satisfy the requirement for the Individual Student Services Plan transition team meetings as 

otherwise required in Section 12.1 herein. 

 

 10.4 If, after placement of a discretionary student with disabilities in the JJAEP Co-
Op under this Agreement, the administrator of the JJAEP Co-Op has concerns that the student’s 
educational or behavioral needs cannot be met in the JJAEP Co-Op, the administrator (or his/her 

designee) shall immediately provide written notice to the ISD from which the student was 
expelled.  Upon receipt of such notice, the ISD shall convene an ARD committee meeting to 

reconsider the placement of the student in the program, giving reasonable advance notice to the 
administrator of the JJAEP Co-Op.  A representative of the JJAEP Co-Op may participate in the 
ARD committee meeting to the extent that the meeting relates to the student’s placement or 

continued placement in the JJAEP Co-Op. 
 

SECTION ELEVEN: EXPEDITED MAGISTRATE SYSTEM  
 

11.1 The expeditious hearing of all cases related to the JJAEP Co-Op by the juvenile 

court is crucial to the spirit and the letter of the Texas Legislature's changes to both the 

Education and the Juvenile Justice Codes.  Accordingly, the following expedited judicial 

procedures shall be applied to those cases concerning students expelled from the school setting: 

 

 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
_____________________________ 

Memorandum of Understanding 

2014-15 School Year 

Page 13 of 20 

A. The juvenile courts shall establish a procedure by which the Juvenile Probation 

Department Intake Division shall identify students who are eligible for placement 

in the JJAEP Co-Op, and notify the District Attorney when it receives a referral for 

an offense that may result in placement in the JJAEP Co-Op not later than the next 

working day after the referral is received. 

 

B. The ISDs shall make their best efforts to conduct their expulsion hearings no later 

than seven (7) school days after an offense is reported to the respective school 

Liaison.  If the student is expelled, the ISD will send to the juvenile court, not later 

than the second working day after the expulsion hearing, the recommendations of 

the Liaison regarding placement of the student in either the JJAEP Co-Op or a 

school district program. The Liaison will also forward such academic and 

behavioral records as it may have legal authority to share with the juvenile court, 

or in the absence of such authority, shall forward a written report to the juvenile 

court relating non-confidential information that is relevant to the educational 

placement of the student. 

 

C. Upon receipt of a referral or Preliminary Investigation Report on a student eligible 

for placement in the JJAEP Co-Op, the District Attorney shall review such referral 

or Preliminary Investigation Report, and shall file a delinquency petition, if 

appropriate, not later than five (5) working days after receipt of the Preliminary 

Investigation Report. 

 

D. The juvenile court hearing on a delinquency petition filed under subsection (C) 

herein shall be conducted no later than fourteen (14) days after the delinquency 

petition is filed. It is the intent of the Participants that the term of probation for any 

student placed in the JJAEP Co-Op will not be shorter than the term of the 

student's expulsion from school. 

 

SECTION TWELVE: ACADEMIC REVIEW AND TRANSITION 
 
 12.1 Within a reasonable period of time after admission to the JJAEP Co-Op, each 

student shall have an Individual Student Services Plan (“ISSP”) prepared by the ISSP transition 

team to meet the student’s individual academic needs.  The ISSP shall be reviewed periodically, 

at reasonable intervals, and shall address each student’s emotional, social, and educational needs.  

In the case of a high school student, the ISSP shall contain a review of the student’s progress 

toward meeting high school graduation requirements and shall establish a specific graduation 

plan for the student.  The ISSP shall be designed by the ISSP transition team and any other 

persons deemed appropriate by the TCJB, and shall require parental participation.  For students 

receiving services under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, no ISSP transition team 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
_____________________________ 

Memorandum of Understanding 

2014-15 School Year 

Page 14 of 20 

review shall be required under this section. 

 

 12.2 The TCJB shall provide to the ISDs a summative evaluation of the performance 

of all students served by the JJAEP Co-Op on an annual basis. Such evaluation shall reflect the 

academic performance of students served in the JJAEP Co-Op each year, as well as providing 

follow-up with former students of the JJAEP Co-Op. The ISDs shall assist the JJAEP Co-Op in 

developing meaningful performance measurement criteria, and in providing follow-up data for 

former JJAEP Co-Op students who return to the school setting. All Participants shall use their 

best efforts to work collaboratively to capture meaningful performance data, as well as follow-up 

information on students returning to the ISDs. 

 

 12.3 The TCJB will provide the following services to the ISDs for students who are 

ordered into the regular classroom or school district alternative education program setting as a 

condition or term of probation: 

 

A. Supervision by a certified juvenile probation officer for the remaining period of 

probation, which will emphasize protection of the community, accountability, and 

competency building. 

 

 B. Implementation of the individual student's ISSP transition plan, including wrap-

around services identified in the ISSP transition plan. The transition plan will be 

developed and agreed to by the student's JJAEP Co-Op transition team. The court-

ordered portion of the ISSP transition plan may include, but not be limited to 

community service, parent classes, counseling, and other appropriate services. 

 

 12.4 The ISSP transition team shall formulate a transition plan, specifying any 

services to be provided upon return to the regular educational setting, as part of the ISSP for each 

student. The ISSP transition plan shall be completed prior to the student's completion of the 

JJAEP Co-Op placement. 

 

SECTION THIRTEEN: TERM OF AGREEMENT 

 

 13.1 The initial term of this Agreement shall be for the period from the effective date 

of this Agreement through August 31, 2015.  This Agreement shall be automatically renewed for 

an additional term of one year on the same terms and conditions, unless one or more of the 

Participants hereto elects to terminate this Agreement by providing written notice to all other 

Participants hereto at least sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the initial term, unless 

terminated sooner.  This Agreement may be extended for additional terms of one year upon the 

mutual consent of the Participants evidenced by an extension agreement entered into not later 

than thirty (30) days prior to the termination date of this Agreement, or any extension hereof. 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
_____________________________ 

Memorandum of Understanding 

2014-15 School Year 

Page 15 of 20 

13.2 Any provision of the preceding Section 13.1 to the contrary notwithstanding, any 

ISD may withdraw from this Agreement prior to the expiration of the term hereof by written 

agreement of the TCJB, or for good cause, at any time.  Any ISD withdrawing from this 

Agreement shall be entitled to recover all funds from the Texas Juvenile Justice Department to 

which it is entitled.  No ISD withdrawing from this Agreement shall be entitled to receive any 

portion of the rollover funds, unless this Agreement is terminated by all Participants hereto in its 

entirety, or this Agreement is terminated by operation of law.  In the event this Agreement is 

terminated in its entirety, any rollover funds remaining shall be distributed to the ISDs, pro-rata, 

based upon the number of students served by the ISD residing in Travis County. 

 

13.3 In the event of termination by any Participant, the Agreement will remain in 

force and effect with respect to the remaining Participants, unless such termination frustrates the 

overall purposes and intent of this Agreement. 
 

SECTION FOURTEEN:  MISCELLANEOUS 

 
14 1  Records and Reporting Requirements - Throughout the term of this Agreement, 

the Participants hereto agree to establish and maintain detailed records regarding the 

administration and operation of the school alternative education program and JJAEP Co-Op, 

including information regarding the costs of such programs, including facilities, staffing and 

administrative expenses. 

 

14.2 Legal Requirements - The Participants agree to comply fully with all applicable 

federal, state, and local statutes, ordinances, rules, and regulations in connection with the 

programs contemplated under this Agreement. This Agreement is subject to all applicable 

present and future valid laws governing the juvenile justice programs applicable to school 

districts and/or county juvenile probation departments.  In the event that any of the Participants 

hereto are required by law or regulation to perform any act inconsistent with this Agreement, or 

to cease performing any act required by this Agreement, this Agreement shall be deemed to have 

been modified to conform with the requirements of such law or regulation. 

 

14.3 Notice - Except where oral notice is specifically allowed or required under this 
Agreement, any notice provided hereunder by any party to another shall be in writing and may 

be either: 1) delivered by hand to the party or the party's designated agent; 2) deposited in the 
United States mail, postage paid; 3) transmitted by telecopy; 4) transmitted by electronic mail 

transmission; or 5) delivered by a reputable courier service, to the following address or telecopy 
number: 
 

 Austin Independent School District: 
Dr. Paul Cruz Interim Superintendent of Schools 

Austin Independent School District 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
_____________________________ 

Memorandum of Understanding 

2014-15 School Year 

Page 16 of 20 

1111 West 6th Street 
Austin, Texas 78703 

512- 414-2412 PHONE  512- 414-1486 FAX 
e-mail: superintendent@austinisd.org 

 
Del Valle Independent School District: 
Dr. Kelly Crook, Superintendent of Schools 

Del Valle Independent School District 
5301 Ross Road 

Del Valle, TX 78617 
512- 386-3010 PHONE   512- 386-3015 FAX 
e-mail: Kelly.crook@del-valle.k12.tx.us 

 
Eanes Independent School District: 

Dr. Nola Wellman, Superintendent of Schools 
Eanes Independent School District 
601 Camp Craft Road 

Austin, TX 78746 
512- 732-9001 PHONE  512- 732-9005 FAX 

e-mail: supt@eanesisd.net 
 

Lake Travis Independent School District: 

Dr. Brad Lancaster, Superintendent of Schools 
Lake Travis Independent School District 

3322 Ranch Road 620 South 
Austin, TX 78738  
512- 533-6000 PHONE 512- 533-6001 FAX 

e-mail: tobina@ltisdschools.org 
 

Lago Vista Independent School District: 
Mr. Matthews Underwood, Superintendent of Schools 

  Lago Vista Independent School District 

 P.O. Box 4929 

  Lago Vista, TX 78645-0001 

  512- 267-8300 PHONE  512- 267-8304 FAX 

e-mail:  matt_underwood@lagovista.txed.net 

 

Leander Independent School District: 

Dr. Bret Champion, Superintendent of Schools 

Leander Independent School District 

P.O. Box 218 

Leander, Texas 78646 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

mailto:supt@eanesisd.net


 
_____________________________ 

Memorandum of Understanding 

2014-15 School Year 

Page 17 of 20 

512-570-0000 PHONE  512-570-0048 FAX 

e-mail: superintendent@leanderisd.org 

 

Manor Independent School District: 

 Dr. Esthela Allison, Interim Superintendent of Schools 

 Manor Independent School District 

  P.O. Box 359 

  Manor, TX 78653 

 512- 278-4002PHONE   512- 278-4017 FAX 
 e-mail:  leslie.thomas@manorisd.net 

  

 Pflugerville Independent School District: 

 Dr. Alex Flores, Superintendent of Schools 

 Pflugerville Independent School District 

 1401 West Pecan Street 

 Pflugerville, TX 78660-2518 

 512- 594-0000 PHONE 512- 594-0011 FAX 

 e-mail:  superintendent@pflugervilleisd.net 

 

 Round Rock Independent School District: 

 Dr. Steve Flores, Superintendent of Schools 

 Round Rock Independent School District 

 1311 Round Rock Avenue 

 Round Rock, Texas 78681 

 512- 464-5022  PHONE 512- 464-5055 FAX 

 e-mail:  superintendent_rrisd@roundrockisd.org  

 

Travis County Juvenile Board: 

Honorable Rhonda Hurley 

98th District Court 

Chair, Travis County Juvenile Board 

1000 Guadalupe Street, 5th Floor 

Austin, Texas 78701 

512- 854-9384 PHONE  512- 854-9332 FAX 

 

 Travis County: 

Honorable Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

            314 West 11th Street, Suite 520 

Austin, Texas 78701 

512- 854-9555 PHONE  512- 854-9535 FAX 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
_____________________________ 

Memorandum of Understanding 

2014-15 School Year 

Page 18 of 20 

with a copy to the Travis County Attorney: 

 

Honorable David Escamilla, Travis County Attorney 

 314 West 11th Street, Suite 300 

 Austin, Texas 78701 

 512- 854-9415 PHONE  512- 854-9316 FAX 

 

Any party may designate a different agent or address for notice purposes by giving the other 

Participants ten (10) days written notice in the manner provided above. 

 

 14.4 Amendments - If changed conditions are encountered during the term of this 

Agreement, the Agreement may be supplemented or amended under terms and conditions 

mutually agreeable to the Participants, provided that all such changes, amendments, supplements 

or modifications shall be in writing. 

 

14.5   Integration Clause - This Agreement, including schedules and attachments, 

contains the entire agreement of the Participants hereto with respect to the matters covered by its 

terms, and it may not be modified in any manner without the express written consent of the 

Participants. No other agreement, statement, or promise made by or to any party, or made by or 

to any employee, officer, or agent of any party, that is not contained in this Agreement shall be 

of any force or effect. It is acknowledged by the Participants that no officer, agent, employee or 

representative of Travis County has any authority to change or amend the terms of this 

Agreement or any attachments to it or to waive any breach of this Agreement unless expressly 

granted that authority by the Travis County Commissioners Court. 

 

14.6 Partial Invalidity - If any term(s) or provision(s) of this Agreement are held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remainder of the 

provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be effected, 

impaired or invalidated, unless such holding causes the obligations of the Participants hereto to 

be impossible to perform or shall render the terms of this Agreement to be inconsistent with the 

intent of the Participants hereto. 

 

 14.7 Non-assignability - No assignment of this Agreement or of any duty or obligation 

of performance hereunder, shall be made in whole or in part by any Participant without the prior 

written consent of the other Participants hereto. 

 14.8 Waiver - No waiver of a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall be 

construed to be a waiver of any breach of any other provision. No delay in acting with regard to 

any breach of any provision shall be construed to be a waiver of such breach. 

 

 14.9 Immunity - Neither Travis County, the TCJB, nor the ISDs waive or relinquish 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
_____________________________ 

Memorandum of Understanding 

2014-15 School Year 

Page 19 of 20 

any immunity or defense on behalf of themselves, their trustees, commissioners, offices, 

employees, and agents as a result of its execution of this Agreement and performance of the 

functions and obligations described herein.   

 

 14.10 Available Funds - The Participants to this Agreement expressly acknowledge and 

agree that all monies paid pursuant to this Agreement shall be paid from budgeted available 

funds for the current fiscal year of each such entity. 

 

 14.11 Open Meetings - The meetings at which this Agreement was approved by the 

Participants' governing boards were posted and held in accordance with the Texas Open 

Meetings Act, Texas Government Code Ch. 551. 

 

 14.12 Mediation - Any dispute arising under this Agreement may be submitted, upon 

agreement of the Participants, to non-binding mediation. When mediation is acceptable to the 

participants in resolving any dispute rising under this Agreement, the Participants agree to use 

the Dispute Resolution Center of Austin or any other mediator as shall be mutually agreed upon 

by the Participants, to provide mediation as described in Section 154.023 of the Texas Civil 

Practice and Remedies Code. Unless the Participants are satisfied with the result of the 

mediation, the mediation will not constitute a final binding resolution of the dispute.  All 

communications within the scope of the mediation shall remain confidential as described in 

§154.073 of the Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code, unless the Participants agree, in 

writing, to waive the confidentiality. 

 

 IN WITNESS THEREOF, the undersigned Participants acting under the authority of 

their respective governing boards have caused this Agreement to be duly executed in multiple 

counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original, all as of the day and year above first 

written, which is the date of this Agreement.   

 

APPROVED:     

 
_______________________________________ 
Honorable Rhonda Hurley      

Chair, Travis County Juvenile Board     

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Honorable Samuel T. Biscoe  

Travis County Judge 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
_____________________________ 

Memorandum of Understanding 

2014-15 School Year 

Page 20 of 20 

APPROVED:      APPROVED:   

 

 

_________________________________  _________________________________ 

Austin Independent School District   Del Valle Independent School District   
 
 

APPROVED:      APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________________  _________________________________ 
Eanes Independent School District   Lago Vista Independent School District 

   

 

APPROVED:      APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________________  _________________________________ 
Lake Travis Independent School District  Leander Independent School District  

   
 

APPROVED:      APPROVED:      

 

 

_________________________________ _________________________________  
Manor Independent School District Pflugerville Independent School District 
 

 
APPROVED:  

 

 

_________________________________  

Round Rock Independent School District    
 

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Item 31Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Item 32Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Item 33Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 
 
Meeting Date:  June 24, 2014 
 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Tim Labadie 854.5864 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: David Escamilla, County Attorney 
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Sam Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
Consider and take appropriate action concerning the settlement offer regarding 
payment for STAR Flight services rendered to Ginger Gould.  Executive Session also 
pursuant to Tex. Gov’t Code § 551.071(1)(B). 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:  
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: N/A 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:  N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: N/A 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
Danny Hobby 854.9367 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 34Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 
 
Meeting Date:  June 24, 2014 
 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Tim Labadie 854.5864 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: David Escamilla, County Attorney 
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Sam Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
Consider and take appropriate action concerning the settlement offer regarding 
payment for STAR Flight services rendered to Idiris Hasan.  Executive Session also 
pursuant to Tex. Gov’t Code § 551.071(1)(B). 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:  
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: N/A 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:  N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: N/A 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
Danny Hobby 854.9367 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 35Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



Item 36Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 
Northwest Travis County Road District No. 3 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: June 24th, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Christina Cerda x 43858 and Susan Zavala x 
49701  
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Bruce Elfant, Tax Assessor- 
Collector 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: County Judge Sam Biscoe 

 
 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
 

•  CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON 
PROPERTY TAX RATE CONSIDERATIONS FOR THE 
NORTHWEST TRAVIS COUNTY ROAD DISTRICT NO. 3. 

 
 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials should be submitted as 
a pdf to the County Judge's office,  agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next 
week's meeting. 

NWRD Item 2Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


T R A V I S  C O U N T Y  T A X  O F F I C E 
B R U C E E L  F A  N T 

T A X  A S S E S S O R  A N D  C O L L E C T O R 
 
 

5501 AIRPORT BOULEVARD 
AUSTIN, TX 78751 

(512) 854-9473 

 
 
 
June 24, 2014 

 
 
MEMORANDUM FOR THE COUNTY JUDGE SAM BISCOE 

      PRECINCT 1, COMMISSIONER RON DAVIS  
      PRECINCT 2, COMMISSIONER BRUCE TODD  
      PRECINCT 3, COMMISSIONER GERALD DAUGHERTY  
      PRECINCT 4, COMMISSIONER MARGARET GÓMEZ 

 
FROM: Bruce Elfant, Tax Assessor-Collector 

 
SUBJECT: Property Tax Rate Considerations  

 

 
 

1.  Property Tax Rate Considerations 
 

Each year there are several items the Commissioners Court must consider when 
establishing tax rates and budget forecasts for Northwest Travis County Road 
District No. 3.  We and the Planning and Budget Office recommend the Court adopt 
the following parameters: 

 
A.  Optional Homestead Exemption: No exemptions. 

 
B.  Over 65 and Disabled Optional Homestead Exemptions: No exemptions. 

 
C.  Historic Exemptions: No exemptions. 

D.  Anticipated Collection Rate (for Effective Tax Rate Calculations): 100% (lower 
estimates may be used only with justification) 

 
E. Debt Service (as the resulting debt rate) may be reduced using year-end or 

reserve balances if available in the debt service fund: If appropriate, the 
Financial Advisor will address this with Planning and Budget as part of the Road 
District’s budget. 

    
If you should have any concerns or comments, please do not hesitate to call me at 4-9632. 
 
BE/sz 
 
cc: Leroy Nellis, Executive Manager, Planning and Budget 
      Jessica Rio, Budget Director, Planning and Budget 
      Nicki Riley, County Auditor 
      Ladd Patillo, Financial Advisor

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 
Travis County Bee Cave Road District No. 1 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Date: June 24th, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Christina Cerda x 43858 and Susan Zavala x 
49701  
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Bruce Elfant, Tax Assessor- 
Collector 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: County Judge Sam Biscoe 

 
 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
 

•  CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON 
PROPERTY TAX RATE CONSIDERATIONS FOR THE 
TRAVIS COUNTY BEE CAVE ROAD DISTRICT NO. 1. 

 
 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials should be submitted as 
a pdf to the County Judge's office,  agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next 
week's meeting. 

BCRD Item 2Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


T R A V I S  C O U N T Y  T A X  O F F I C E 
B R U C E E L  F A  N T 

T A X  A S S E S S O R  A N D  C O L L E C T O R 
 
 

5501 AIRPORT BOULEVARD 
AUSTIN, TX 78751 

(512) 854-9473 

 
 
 
June 24, 2014 

 
 
MEMORANDUM FOR THE COUNTY JUDGE SAM BISCOE 

      PRECINCT 1, COMMISSIONER RON DAVIS  
      PRECINCT 2, COMMISSIONER BRUCE TODD  
      PRECINCT 3, COMMISSIONER GERALD DAUGHERTY  
      PRECINCT 4, COMMISSIONER MARGARET GÓMEZ 

 
FROM: Bruce Elfant, Tax Assessor-Collector 

 
SUBJECT: Property Tax Rate Considerations  

 

 
 

1.  Property Tax Rate Considerations 
 

Each year there are several items the Commissioners Court must consider when 
establishing tax rates and budget forecasts for Travis County Bee Cave Road District 
No. 1.  We and the Planning and Budget Office recommend the Court adopt the 
following parameters: 

 
A.  Optional Homestead Exemption: No exemptions. 

 
B.  Over 65 and Disabled Optional Homestead Exemptions: No exemptions. 

 
C.  Historic Exemptions: No exemptions. 

D.  Anticipated Collection Rate (for Effective Tax Rate Calculations): 100% (lower 
estimates may be used only with justification) 

 
E. Debt Service (as the resulting debt rate) may be reduced using year-end or 

reserve balances if available in the debt service fund: If appropriate, the 
Financial Advisor will address this with Planning and Budget as part of the Road 
District’s budget. 

    
If you should have any concerns or comments, please do not hesitate to call me at 4-9632. 
 
BE/sz 
 
cc: Leroy Nellis, Executive Manager, Planning and Budget 
      Jessica Rio, Budget Director, Planning and Budget 
      Nicki Riley, County Auditor 
      Ladd Patillo, Financial Advisor

Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.



 Created 06-19-14 at 4:02 p.m.


	Item 01
	Item 03
	RES RAllen Ag Req
	RES RAllen

	Item 04
	11018 : Dell Trade-In
	Dell Trade In Agenda Request for 06242014 CC
	Dell Trade In 06242014 CC


	Item 05
	11021 : 44*1364 Owner Occupied Home Rehap - MOWM
	PLACE CONTACTS HERE
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	4400001364 Mod 2 Dept Memo
	4400001364 Mod 2 FRD
	4400001364 Mod 2 Draft


	Item 06
	11022 : Approve Ct 44-1995 KG Empowerment Training Svcs
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	KG Empowerment transmittal letter March 2014
	44-1995 KG CT vendor signed


	Item 07
	11023 : Cont 4400002086 Moya Park Shelter & Bathroom Repair, AGCM
	PLACE CONTACTS HERE
	Executive Summary
	B1404-011-JW Dept Memo
	4400002086 FRD
	4400002086 Contract Draft


	Item 08
	11024 : B1406-003-JW Oil/Gas Lease Resolution
	PLACE CONTACTS HERE
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	Dept Memo
	Resolution
	B1406-003-JW Exhibit A
	4500000190 Lease
	B1406-003-JW Exhibit B
	Newspaper Ads Table


	Item 09
	11025 : Approve Ct 44--1972 Talking Points - COPE
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	44-1972 Talking Points vender signed
	Talking Points Psychotherapy transmittal March 2014 (2)


	Item 10
	11026 : Approve contract award for Cafeteria/Vending Services
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	Cafeteria  Vending FM recommendation
	Contract for Cafeteria and Vending Machine Concession Services with Accent Food Services - RFS S1312-003-LD


	Item 11
	11033 : Approve contract award for grounds maintenance services.
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	Grounds Maintenance Award Memo
	Tabulation for_Bid_1404-001-LD


	Item 12
	11036 : Easy Access Mod 30
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	Memo Easy Access Mod 30
	MA960322 Easy Access Mod 30


	Item 13
	11034 : 4400000257 SAP Mod 5
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	Mod 5 Memo


	Item 14
	Item 15
	Item 16
	Item 17
	Item 18
	Agenda Request Public Comment Draft
	Meeting Date: June 24, 2014
	Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:
	Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Samuel T. Biscoe
	AGENDA LANGUAGE:
	BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:
	STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:
	A. Staff recommends the approval of the attached draft Program Year 2014- 2018 Consolidated Plan and Program Year 2014 Action Plan for public comment.
	ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:

	PY14_PY18 ConPlan_Public Comment Draft 6.19.14
	AcronymsTOCListFigures.pdf
	SECTION I: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 1
	SECTION II: THE PROCESS 5
	SECTION III: NEEDS ASSESSMENT 32
	APPENDICES

	PY14-18ConPlan_Public Comment Draft.pdf
	Executive Summary
	Executive Summary

	The Process
	Lead & Responsible Agencies
	Consultation
	Citizen Participation

	Needs Assessment
	Overview
	Housing Needs Assessment
	Disproportionately Greater Need: Housing Problems
	Disproportionately Greater Need: Severe Housing Problems
	Disproportionately Greater Need: Housing Cost Burdens
	Disproportionately Greater Need: Discussion
	Public Housing
	Homeless Needs Assessment
	Non-Homeless Special Needs Assessment
	Non-Housing Community Development Needs

	Housing Market Analysis
	Overview
	Number of Housing Units
	Housing Market Analysis: Cost of Housing
	Housing Market Analysis: Condition of Housing
	Public and Assisted Housing
	Homeless Facilities and Services
	Special Needs Facilities and Services
	Barriers to Affordable Housing
	Non-Housing Community Development Assets
	Needs and Market Analysis Discussion

	Strategic Plan
	Overview
	Geographic Priorities
	Priority Needs
	Influence of Market Conditions
	Public Housing Accessibility and Involvement
	Barriers to affordable housing
	Homelessness Strategy
	Lead based paint Hazards
	Anti-Poverty Strategy
	Monitoring

	Annual Action Plan
	Expected Resources

	Annual Goals and Objectives
	Projects
	Projects
	AP-38 Project Summary
	Geographic Distribution

	Affordable Housing
	Affordable Housing
	Public Housing
	Homeless and Other Special Needs Activities
	Barriers to affordable housing
	Other Actions

	Program Specific Requirements

	Appendix E.pdf
	Appendix E title page
	PY14 Projects

	CDBGPresentationOfProjectsFullBackup052814_vfinal.pdf
	Agenda Request Form Projects_2014
	Meeting Date: June 3, 2014
	Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:
	Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Samuel T. Biscoe
	AGENDA LANGUAGE:
	BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:
	Hill Country News    Oak Hill Gazette    Austin Chronicle

	STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:
	Housing and Community Development total (67 %):
	ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:

	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Travis County�Community Development Block Grant�(CDBG) Program
	Project Update 
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21

	Attachment C
	Attachment D
	Attachment E
	1_PY14_Project_Selection_Process
	2_PY14 Projects recommended for funding
	3_PY13 Projects Selection Matrix_v52813

	Attachment F
	Attachment F_cover sheet
	Full matrix_all years
	1
	2
	3
	4
	Please refer to the Instructions for the Project Proposal Form before filling out this document. If you need additional space to answer any section, attach additional sheets of paper.
	Please refer to the Instructions for the Project Proposal Form before filling out this document.
	Travis County Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program
	Section 3 Overview
	Section 3 Overview
	Applicability
	Eligibility for Preference


	Certification for Resident Seeking Section 3 Preference in Training and Employment

	5
	Please refer to the Instructions for the Project Proposal Form before filling out this document. If you need additional space to answer any section attach additional sheets of paper.
	Please refer to the Instructions for the Project Proposal Form before filling out this document.

	6
	Lowden Lane Apartments 
	CDBG Project Proposal
	Section 3 Certification
	Conceptual Site Plan
	Site Location Map
	Development Pro Forma


	TCAD Property ID 576792
	Lowden Lane Area_H+T_Index
	Oakhill area_H+T_Index

	7
	8
	Please refer to the Instructions for the Project Proposal Form before filling out this document. If you need additional space to answer any section attach additional sheets of paper.
	Please refer to the Instructions for the Project Proposal Form before filling out this document.



	AcronymsTOCListFigures.pdf
	SECTION I: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 1
	SECTION II: THE PROCESS 5
	SECTION III: NEEDS ASSESSMENT 32
	APPENDICES

	AcronymsTOCListFigures(DRAFT).pdf
	SECTION I: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 1
	SECTION II: THE PROCESS 5
	SECTION III: NEEDS ASSESSMENT 32
	APPENDICES



	Item 19
	Item 20
	Item 21
	Item 22
	Item 23
	Item 24
	Item 25
	Item 26
	Item 27
	Item 28
	Item 29
	Commissioners Court Agenda Request community supervision 6242014
	TCJvP Comunity Supervision signed
	Community Supervision Contract

	Item 30
	Commissioners Court Agenda Request JJAEP MOU 06242014
	TCJvP JJAEP memo signed
	JJAEP MOU 2014-15 school year FINAL

	Item 31
	Item 32
	Item 33
	Item 34
	Item 35
	Item 36
	NWRD Item 02
	BCRD Item 02



